
Marysville City Council Meeting 
February 26, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously 
distributed in the packets for the February 20, 2007 Work Session. 

 

Call to Order 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Committee Reports 
Presentations 
 
A. Employee Service Awards 
 
B. Proclamation: Soroptimist International of Marysville Saturday of Service 

 
 
 
Audience Participation 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1. Approval of February 12, 2007 City Council Meeting Minutes.                              * 
 
2. Approval of February 20, 2007 City Council Work Session Minutes.                     * 
 
Consent 
 
3. Approval of February 14, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $679,313.73; Paid by    * 

Check No. 36967 through 37155. 
 

4. Approval of February 21, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $430,605.61; Paid by     * 
Check No. 37156 through 37316. 

 
5. Approval of February 20, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $638,989.97; Paid by     * 

Check No. 17485 through 17541. 
 
6. Authorize Mayor to Sign the Visitor & Community Information Center Services    * 

Agreement with Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of Commerce. 
 
7. Authorize Mayor to Sign the Interlocal Agreement between Snohomish County 

and the City of Marysville for Traffic Signal and Street Light Maintenance. 
 
8. Authorize Mayor to Sign Amendment IV to Intergovernmental Agreement with 

Snohomish County to Furnish Fleet Management Services. 
 
9. Approval of IT Staffing Classification and Compensation Proposal for Application 

Specialist/programmer, Computer Support Technician I, and Computer Support 
Technician II Positions. 

 



Marysville City Council Meeting 
February 26, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously 
distributed in the packets for the February 20, 2007 Work Session. 

 

10. Authorize Mayor to Sign Snohomish County Human Services Grant Contract for 
Senior Services Project Program Grant Renewal. 

 
12. Authorize Mayor to Sign Golf Course Agreement with Golf Cart Marketing to 

Initiate Promotional Marketing Banner Program. 
 
13.    Authorize Mayor to Sign Professional Services Agreement with RH2 for Design 

Services on Lake Goodwin Well Site Improvements Project. 
 
Review Bids 
 
Public Hearings 
 
Current Business 
 
11. Planning Commission Recommendation for Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Adopting a Subarea Plan for the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Area, 
Development Regulations and Areawide Rezone of the Subarea; PA06086. 

 
New Business 
 
14. Planning Commission Recommendation to Approve Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Updating Capital Facility Plan Element for Marysville, Lakewood, 
and Lake Stevens School District. 

 
Legal 
 
Ordinance and Resolutions 
 
16. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Providing for the                * 

Amendment of the City’s Comprehensive Plan by the Adoption of the Marysville, 
Lakewood, and Lake Stevens School District 2006-2011 Capital Facilities Plans 
as a Subelement of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Establishing the 
Adoption of Said Plan and the Collection and Imposition of School Impact Fees 
as a Component of the City’s Annual Budgeting Process; and Amending 
Ordinance No. 2676 Relating to Adoption of the City Budget of the City of 
Marysville. 

 
Mayor’s Business 

 
15. Park Board Advisory Meeting Minutes; January 17, 2007 
 
Staff Business 
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Information Items 

Page 2 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Marysville City Council Meeting 
February 26, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

*These items have been added or revised from the materials previously 
distributed in the packets for the February 20, 2007 Work Session. 

 

 
Adjourn 
 
 
Executive Session 
 
A.  Litigation 
B.  Personnel 
C.  Real Estate 
 
Adjourn 
 

Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible meetings for 
people with disabilities.  Please contact Kristie Guy, Human Resources Manager, at (360) 363-
8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD Relay) two days prior to the 
meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for this meeting. 

 

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 3 of 575



SOROPTIMIST INTERNATIONAL OF MARYSVILLE 
SATURDAY OF SERVICE DAY 

P R O C L A M A T I O N  

WHEREAS, Soroptimist is an international volunteer organization for business and 
professional women who work to improve the lives of women and girls in local 
communities and throughout the world; and 

WHEREAS, Soroptimist lnternational of Marysville is part of this larger organization with 
almost 100,000 members in 120 countries; and 

WHEREAS, Soroptimist lnternational of Marysville club contributes time and financial 
support to community-based projects; and 

WHEREAS, Soroptimist lnternational of Marysville club has designated Operation Backpack 
as their project for the organization's Saturday of Service; and 

WHEREAS, children removed from homes where there are drugs have to leave everything 
behind, Operation Backpack supplies them with a backpack containing clothing 
and personal necessities; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dennis Kendall, Mayor of the City of Marysville, do hereby proclaim 
Saturday, March 3rd, 2007 as 

"SOROPTIMIST INTERNATIONAL OF MARYSVILLE 
SATURDAY OF SERVICE DAY" 

in the City of Marysville and encourage all citizens to recognize the contribution made by the 
Soroptimist lnternational of Marysville club, express their appreciation, and celebrate with 
them as they help supply backpacks to those in need. 

Presentations B - 1

Page 4 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Marysville City Council 
February 12, 2007 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 
Call to Order/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 P.M.
Approval of Minutes 
Approve January 22, 2007 City Council Meeting Minutes. Approved
Approve February 5, 2007 City Council Work Session Minutes. Approved
Consent Agenda  
Approve January 17, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $277,859.41; Paid by 
Check No. 36460 through 36569. 

Approved

Approve January 24, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $1,432,924.43; Paid 
by Check No. 36570 through 36700 with Check No. 35394, 35335, and 
36260 Void. 

Approved

Approve January 31, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $323,918.26; Paid by 
Check No. 36701 through 36836. 

Approved

Approve February 7, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $2,472,801.60; Paid 
by Check No. 36837 through 36966 with Check No. 35634 Void. 

Approved

Approve January 19, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $750,919.06; Paid by 
Check No. 17345 through 17411. 

Approved

Approve February 5, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $976,237.68; Paid by 
Check No. 17412 through 17484. 

Approved

Authorize Mayor to Sign Final Mylar for Subdivision Known as Rakestraw. Approved
Authorize Mayor to Sign Professional Services Agreement with Pac Rim 
Services for Professional Plans Examiner Services. 

Approved

Approve Court Administrator Position to be Placed in the M8 Classification 
of the Management Pay Grid. 

Approved

Review Bids 
Public Hearings 
Current Business 
Abatement and Removal of Graffiti Discussed
New Business 
Approve Professional Services Supplemental No. 3 Agreement with KPFF 
Engineers; State Avenue (116th Street N.E. – 152nd Street N.E.) Corridor 
Improvements. 

Approved

Approve Technical Services Agreement; North Resource, Inc Approved
Legal 
Ordinances and Resolutions 
Approve an Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Amending 
Ordinance No. 2655 to Increase the Portion of State Avenue to be 
Improved to Encompass the Area from Approximately 116th Street N.E. to 
Approximately 152nd Street N.E., and Adding Land and Property 
Authorized to be Condemned, Appropriated, Taken and Damaged. 

Approved 
Ord. 2685

Approve an Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending 
Chapter 6.25 of the Marysville Municipal Code Relating to Abatement and 
Removal of Graffiti. 

Approved 
Ord. 2684

Approve an Ordinance of the City of Marysville Annexing Certain 
Unincorporated Area Known as the North Lakewood Annexation Area into 

Approved 
Ord. 2686

Page 1 of 2 

Minutes 1 -1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 5 of 575



Marysville City Council 
February 12, 2007 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 
the City of Marysville and Prezoning Said Properties Consistent with the 
City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan Designations. 
Approve an Ordinance of the City of Marysville Annexing Certain 
Unincorporated Area Known as the Smokey Point Annexation Area into 
the City of Marysville and Prezoning Said Properties Consistent with the 
City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan Designations. 

Approved 
Ord. 2687

Approve an Ordinance of the City of Marysville Amending the 2006 Budget 
and Providing for the Increase of Certain Expenditures Items as Budgeted 
for in  2006 and Amending Ordinance No. 2604, Amending Ordinance No. 
2608, Amending Ordinance No. 2616, Amending Ordinance No. 2619, and 
Amending Ordinance No. 2679. 

Approved 
Ord. 2688

Approve a Resolution of the City of Marysville Granting a Utility Variance 
for Tulalip Tribes of Washington for Property Located at 6410 “A” and “B” 
23rd Avenue N.E., Marysville, Washington and Amending Resolution No. 
1763. 

Approved 
Res. 2197

Information Items 
Mayor’s Business 
Affirm Police Chief Appointment. Approved
Approve Golf Pro Contract. Approved
Staff Business 
Call on Councilmembers 
Adjournment 8:50 P.M.
Executive Session 
Discussed  Litigation and Real Estate 

9:00 P.M.

Adjournment 9:25 P.M.
Regular Session 9:25 P.M.
Authorize the Mayor to sign settlement agreement with Cousins and Long 
Painting 
Adjournment 9:28 PM.
 

Page 2 of 2 

Minutes 1 -2

Page 6 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 1 of 11 

 

MARYSVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

February 12, 2007 7:00 P.M. CITY HALL 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Dennis Kendall called the February 12, 2007 meeting of the Marysville City 
Council to order at 7:00 p.m.  The invocation was led by Pastor Greg Kanehen of 
Marysville Free Methodist Church. Mayor Kendall led those present in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Mary Swenson gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Dennis Kendall 
 
Council: Mayor Pro Tem Jon Nehring, Lee Phillips (arrived at 7:20), Carmen 

Rasmussen, Jeff Seibert, John Soriano, Jeff Vaughan, and Donna 
Wright,  

 
Staff: Mary Swenson, Chief Administrative Officer; Grant Weed, City Attorney; 

Sandy Langdon, Finance Director; Paul Roberts, Public Works Director; 
John Turner, Interim Chief of Police; Doug Buell, Community Information 
Officer; Jim Ballew, Parks and Recreation Director; and Laurie Hugdahl, 
Recording Secretary. 

 
Mary Swenson commented that Councilmember Phillips had informed her that he 
would be arriving late. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Councilmember Seibert summarized the February 2 Public Works meeting as 
follows: 

 The Marysville School District has not submitted its curriculum as required to 
receive the discounted surface water rates. 

 Regional Transportation Improvement District ballot items were discussed. 
 Development Standards – list of changes coming to Council. 
 Triangle Access Study moving forward. Maps available of preferred 

alternative and other options.  
 2007 Capital Improvement Projects were discussed. 

 

Minutes 1 -3

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 7 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 11 

 

Jeff Vaughan stated that the Graffiti Prevention Subcommittee met and discussed 
opportunities with the school district to educate youth. More information will be 
coming forward to Council soon. 
 
PRESENTATIONS
 
A. Strawberry Festival Pageant Candidates. 
 
Bobbi Young, Chairperson of the Strawberry Festival Pageant, introduced the seven 
contestants who hoped to represent the City in the Strawberry Festival in the 
position of Royal Ambassador and two Ambassadors. Each of the following 
contestants addressed a speech to the City Council and staff stating their 
qualifications: Shandra Ann Brand, Alicia Lynn Coragiulo, Brooklynn Diane Elfattal, 
Devin Nicole Leatherman, Kirsti Ann Meyers, Cassie Nicol Miller, and Danielle 
Nicole Wilcoxson.  
 
B. Swear-In Custody Officer Adam Veach and Custody Officer Devin 

Madan. 
 
Mayor Kendall swore in the two new custody officers and invited them to introduce 
their families. 
 
C. Employee of the Month. 
 
Mayor Kendall commended the two co-employees of the month for January, Karen 
Kussy, Sr. Accounting Technician and Lisa Schultz, Accountant in the Finance 
Division, for their outstanding efforts during a period when the department was short-
staffed. He acknowledged and thanked them for their unwavering support and 
dedication to the City. 
 
Mayor Kendall took the opportunity to introduce the newly hired police chief, Rick 
Smith. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Phyllis MacKenzie, 1528 – 172nd Street 
 
Ms. MacKenzie addressed issues in Lakewood. She asked if the City is involved in 
the removal of the parking lot and sidewalks at the post office in Lakewood. She 
urged the City to take action on the sidewalk from 16th to the railroad now. Next, she 
indicated her disappointment at not being able to participate in the study for 
transportation issues related to the Triangle Access Study. She recommended 
involving residents more and noted that there should be a right-hand turn into 
27th/Target. She also informed staff and the Council that there is a 45-lot subdivision 
going in at 156th. 

Minutes 1 -4

Page 8 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 
Mary Swenson thanked her for the information and indicated that they would check 
on the post office project. Public Works Director Paul Roberts commented that there 
are citizens involved in the study and he discussed the progress of that study.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 
1. Approval of January 22, 2007 City Council Meeting Minutes.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Soriano, to 
approve the minutes as presented. Councilmember Wright indicated that she would 
be abstaining since she was not in attendance at the 1/22 meeting. Motion passed 
unanimously (6-0) with Councilmember Wright abstaining. 
 
2. Approval of February 5, 2007 City Council Work Session Minutes. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
approve the 2/5/07 Work Session minutes as presented. Motion passed 
unanimously (7-0). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Kendall announced that they would be pulling item 9, regarding the Visitor & 
Community Information Center Services Agreement with Greater Marysville Tulalip 
Chamber of Commerce, until the next cycle in order to obtain more information. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Rasmussen, seconded by Councilmember 
Vaughan, to approve the following consent agenda items 3-8, 10, 11, and 19: 
 
3. Approval of January 17, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $277,859.41; 

Paid by Check No. 36460 through 36569. 
 
4. Approval of January 24, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $1,432,924.43; 

Paid by Check No. 36570 through 36700 with Check No. 35394, 35335, 
and 36260 Void. 

 
5. Approval of January 31, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $323,918.26; 

Paid by Check No. 36701 through 36836. 
 
6. Approval of February 7, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $2,472,801.60; 

Paid by Check No. 36837 through 36966 with Check No. 35634 Void. 
 
7. Approval of January 19, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $750,919.06; 

Paid by Check No. 17345 through 17411. 
 

Minutes 1 -5

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 9 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 11 

 

8. Approval of February 5, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $976,237.68; 
Paid by Check No. 17412 through 17484. 

 
10. Authorize Mayor to Sign Final Mylar for Subdivision Known as 

Rakestraw. 
 
11. Authorize Mayor to Sign Professional Services Agreement with Pac 

Rim Services for Professional Plans Examiner Services. 
 
19. Approval of Court Administrator Position to be Placed in the M8 

Classification of the Management Pay Grid. 
 
Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
REVIEW BIDS 
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
12. Abatement & Removal of Graffiti. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Mabell Hegewald, 4425 Meridian Avenue North #9, Marysville, WA 98271. 
 
Ms. Mabel, a 38-year resident of Snug Harbor, who has always considered 
Marysville her home, said she has been broken-hearted about the graffiti and 
vandalism. She spoke against penalizing businesses for the vandalism. She stated 
that the ones who are to blame should be the ones to pay the price. She said she 
recognizes the parents as the ultimate responsible parties. She feels that they 
should have to pay the price by helping their children clean up the graffiti and 
vandalism, doing community service and participating in parenting classes. She also 
suggested delaying the age when the teens can get their license until 18 if they are 
caught in delinquent acts. 
 
David Toyer, 1208 – 113 Avenue SE, Lake Stevens, WA 98258 
 
Mr. Toyer spoke on behalf of the Chamber. He encouraged the Council to amend 
the section regarding restrictions of paint and markers to say that it was voluntary 
the first year, but would be revaluated after one year. Councilmember Rasmussen 

Minutes 1 -6

Page 10 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 11 

 

noted that the Task Force had been in agreement with this and it had already been 
addressed. Grant Weed explained that that had been their intention all along. 
 
Craig Wells, 1048 State, Business Owner 
 
Mr. Wells was in favor of the 48-hour requirement for cleanup. His business has 
been targeted several times and he says that it becomes less of a problem when it is 
cleaned up quickly. He feels that this is simply an unfortunate cost of doing 
business. 
 
Council Discussion: 
 
Councilmember Carmen Rasmussen said that this has been an example of a great 
partnership between the community, city government and volunteers. She 
acknowledged and applauded Caldie Rogers’ efforts on behalf of the Chamber. 
 
Councilmember Jeff Seibert said he had served on the Graffiti Abatement 
Committee six years ago. They had similar issues and their recommendations were 
effective within about six months. He noted that the youth are more aggressive now 
and he feels that 48 hours is an appropriate timeframe from cleanup. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Nehring expressed his thanks to the Graffiti Task Force. He spoke in 
support of the voluntary request to the business community to keep certain products 
out of the hands of youth. He agreed with Ms. Hegewald that parents need to be 
held accountable and there needs to be a powerful message sent to parents. He 
said he would support having the kids clean up future graffiti when they are caught 
and have parents be involved in the consequences. Although he was in favor of the 
48-hour cleanup requirement, he stated that he did not like the City and business 
owners having to pay the full price for this. 
 
Councilmember Jeff Vaughan asked Chief Turner to discuss the situation regarding 
holding juveniles accountable. Chief Turner said that the Juvenile Court 
representative will be at the Task Force meeting this week. He agrees that parents 
should be held accountable, but there are certain state laws regarding this. There is 
a certain dollar amount parents can be held responsible for. Publicizing a youth’s 
name is forbidden unless a youth is to be remanded to an adult court. The Task 
Force will be exploring other options such as assigning youth to cleanup. He stated 
that this ordinance is only one of many tools that need to be addressed. 
 
Councilmember Lee Phillips agreed that this is just the start of what still remains to 
be done regarding graffiti and vandalism. He thanked all the committee members, 
staff and councilmembers that have been involved in this. He especially commended 
Jeff Vaughan for his role in addressing this issue. 
 

Minutes 1 -7

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 11 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 11 

 

City Attorney Grant Weed commented that the ordinance is intended to be a living 
document. Graffiti has become an epidemic in other areas. This may be an 
opportunity to lobby for statewide statutory revisions such as those that exist in 
California. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
13. Professional Services Supplemental No. 3 Agreement with KPFF 

Engineers; State Avenue (116th Street N.E. – 152nd Street N.E.) 
Corridor Improvements. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Seibert, seconded by Councilmember Rasmussen, 
to authorize the Mayor to sign Supplement No. 3 to the previously-executed 
Professional Services Agreement with KPFF Engineers, in the amount of $196,585. 
Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
20. Technical Services Agreement; North Resource, Inc. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Soriano, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign the attached Service Agreement and Exhibit A from 
North Resource, Inc. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
LEGAL 
 
None. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
14. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Amending 

Ordinance No. 2655 to Increase the Portion of State Avenue to be 
Improved to Encompass the Area from Approximately 116th Street 
N.E. to Approximately 152nd Street N.E., and Adding Land and 
Property Authorized to be Condemned, Appropriated, Taken and 
Damaged. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, 
to approve Ordinance 2685. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
15. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending Chapter 

6.25 of the Marysville Municipal Code Relating to Abatement and 
Removal of Graffiti. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
approve Ordinance 2684 relating to abatement and removal of graffiti. Motion 
passed unanimously (7-0). 

Minutes 1 -8

Page 12 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 
16. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville Annexing Certain 

Unincorporated Area Known as the North Lakewood Annexation Area 
into the City of Marysville and Prezoning Said Properties Consistent 
with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan Designations. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
approve Ordinance 2686. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
17. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville Annexing Certain 

Unincorporated Area Known as the Smokey Point Annexation Area 
into the City of Marysville and Prezoning Said Properties Consistent 
with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan Designations. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Soriano, seconded by Councilmember Nehring, to 
approve Ordinance 2687. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Councilmember Swenson emphasized that this is a very important annexation for 
the City. She commended the cooperation with the County during the period of trying 
to get NASCAR for facilitating this.  
 
18. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville Amending the 2006 Budget and 

Providing for the Increase of Certain Expenditures Items as Budgeted 
for in  2006 and Amending Ordinance No. 2604, Amending Ordinance 
No. 2608, Amending Ordinance No. 2616, Amending Ordinance No. 
2619, and Amending Ordinance No. 2679. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Wright, to 
approve Ordinance 2688. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
21. A Resolution of the City of Marysville Granting a Utility Variance for 

Tulalip Tribes of Washington for Property Located at 6410 “A” and “B” 
23rd Avenue N.E., Marysville, Washington and Amending Resolution 
No. 1763. 

 
Councilmember Seibert asked about the letter referenced on page 2, 1.c. Ms. 
Swenson explained that they have been involved in negotiations with the Tribes. 
Staff will request a letter as soon as the Council approves this. Council will have the 
opportunity to review it before the variance is issued. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Rasmussen, seconded by Councilmember 
Soriano, to approve Resolution 2197 regarding the Tulalip Utility Variance. Motion 
passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

Minutes 1 -9

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 13 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 8 of 11 

 

MAYOR’S BUSINESS 
 
22. Police Chief Appointment. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
approve the contract for appointment of the Rick Smith as the new police chief. 
Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
23. Golf Pro Contract. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Nehring, 
to approve the Employment Agreement for Golf Course Professional for David 
Castleberry. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).  
 
Other: 
 
Mayor Kendall noted that he would be out of the office Wednesday and Thursday in 
Olympia. He was pleased to announce that the attended the opening of Red Robin 
today. 
 
STAFF BUSINESS 
 
Rick Smith thanked the Council and staff for the opportunity to represent the City of 
Marysville and the Police Department. He said he is very excited to serve here. 
 
Paul Roberts thanked Ms. MacKenzie for her input tonight. He said that they plan to 
get together with her to discuss her comments.  
He thanked Chief Turner for the great work he has done in Marysville and welcomed 
Chief Rick Smith. 
 
Grant Weed thanked Chief Turner for his efforts. He welcomed Rick Smith and said 
he was looking forward to working with him.  
He noted that he had four matters for Executive Session: two pending litigation 
items, one potential litigation item, and one real estate matter. Action was expected 
on one of the potential litigation items and the time expected was 20 minutes. 
 
Mary Swenson thanked Chief Turner for the great job he has done for the City. She 
stated that she is thrilled to have Rick Smith here.  
 
Sandy Langdon thanked Chief Turner for his time here at the City. She 
congratulated Rick Smith and said she looked forward to working with him. 
 

Minutes 1 -10

Page 14 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 9 of 11 

 

CALL ON COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
Carmen Rasmussen welcomed Chief Smith. She thanked Chief Turner for 
everything he has done for the City.  
She said she attended the Community Development Bock Grant Funding application 
reviews all day yesterday and today so she was unable to attend the opening of Red 
Robin.  
She was happy with the “Gap” annexation and the opportunity to bring family-wage 
jobs to Marysville.  
She noted that she would be out of the state from Friday until Monday. 
 
Lee Phillips welcomed Rick Smith and thanked Chief Turner for his service.  
He stated that the I-Net TV Advisory Committee would be coming to Council in 
March.  
He said learned a lot at the Smart Growth Conference about planning development 
to manage traffic better and also be pedestrian-friendly. He hopes to go over some 
of what he learned with Gloria Hirashima and also share the information with the 
Council. 
 
John Soriano thanked Councilmember Vaughan for his efforts and leadership on the 
Graffiti Task Force. He thanked all the committee members for their service.  
He thanked Chief Turner for his service to the City, noting that he especially 
appreciated his help on the Public Safety Committee.  
He welcomed Rick Smith as the new police chief. 
 
Jeff Vaughan thanked everyone for their support of efforts with the Graffiti Task 
Force. He thanked Jeff Seibert for helping years ago with the graffiti issue and 
reminding them of what had been done in the past.  
He thanked Chief Turner, saying that he is a really great guy who really cares about 
the City. He welcomed Chief Smith. 
 
Donna Wright thanked Jeff Vaughan and the Graffiti Task Force for the work they 
have done.  
She is thrilled with the annexation of the “Gap” area.  
She thanked Chief Turner for his service and welcomed Chief Smith.  
She noted that Dr. Hinds is retiring from his position as Health Officer for the 
Snohomish County Health District. Dr. Gary Goldbaum will be taking his place. A 
retirement party will be held on February 21 for Dr. Hinds. 
 
Jeff Seibert said he enjoyed the Red Robin opening.  
He welcomed Chief Smith. He commended Jeff Vaughan and the Graffiti Task 
Force.  
He thanked Chief Turner for his service and most recently for the removal of the 
truck on 80th. 

Minutes 1 -11

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 15 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 10 of 11 

 

He said he would like to receive more information on the Lakewood area 
development mentioned by Ms. MacKenzie. Mary Swenson said that they would 
continue to pursue this subject with the County. 
He noted that the work done because of the NASCAR project has brought forth a lot 
of good results.  
 
Jon Nehring thanked Chief Turner and expressed appreciation at his dedication and 
hard work. He was also excited to have Chief Smith come on board. He thanked 
Mayor Kendall and Mary Swenson for keeping Council involved with the decision. 
He said he enjoyed the Red Robin opening. 
He thanked Jeff Vaughan, the Graffiti Task Force and MSAC volunteers for all their 
hard work. 
He suggested bringing up the topic of graffiti at the legislative meetings this week. 
 
Mayor Kendall commended Chief Turner for all his hard work and dedication to the 
City. 
 

Chief Turner referred to the exposé on Channel 4 regarding SnoPac. He noted that 
Channel 4 did not discuss the audit that showed that out of 6,000 calls there were 
only 64 with errors. He thinks that the transition to SnoPac has gone relatively 
smooth and that it was a good decision on Council’s part to make that difficult 
choice.  
He told Rick Smith that the chemistry of the Council/Police Chief relationship in 
Marysville is a wonderful and unique thing.  
He thanked staff and the Mayor forsaking him to come back. He said he was 
honored at the opportunity and proud to be part of the team. He commended the 
excellent leadership by the Mayor and Mary Swenson. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Kendall recessed at 8:50 into Executive Session, which began at 9:00 p.m. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Council met in Executive Session at 9:00 p.m. and discussed two pending litigations, 
one potential litigation, and one real estate issue. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council reconvened into Regular Session at 9:25 p.m. 

Minutes 1 -12

Page 16 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 12, 2007 Meeting Minutes 
Page 11 of 11 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember 
Rasmussen to authorize the Mayor to sign the settlement agreement with Cousins 
and Long Painting as discussed in Executive Session. 
 
Seeing no further business, Mayor Kendall adjourned the meeting at 9:28 p.m.  
 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2007. 
 
 
____________________ ____________________ ____________________ 
Mayor  Deputy City Clerk Recording Secretary 
Dennis Kendall Lillie Lein Laurie Hugdahl 
 
 

Minutes 1 -13

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 17 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 of 8 

 

MARYSVILLE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
February 20, 2007                                                                                        City Hall 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Council met in Executive Session at 6:00 p.m. and discussed one potential litigation. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Mayor Kendal adjourned the Executive Session at 6:50 p.m. no action taken. 
 
CALL TO ORDER / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Dennis Kendall called the February 20, 2007 work session of the Marysville 
City Council to order at 7:05 p.m.  There was no invocation. Mayor Kendall led those 
present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Finance Director Sandy Langdon gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Dennis Kendall 
 
Council: Mayor Pro Tem Jon Nehring, Carmen Rasmussen, Jeff Seibert, John 

Soriano, Jeff Vaughan, and Donna Wright.  
 
Staff: Mary Swenson, Chief Administrative Officer; Grant Weed, City Attorney; 

Sandy Langdon, Finance Director; Paul Roberts, Public Works Director; 
Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director; Kevin Nielsen, City 
Engineer; Jim Ballew, Parks and Recreation Director; and Laurie 
Hugdahl, Recording Secretary. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Nehring, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
excuse the absence of Councilmember Phillips. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
None. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 

Minutes 2 -1

Page 18 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 of 8 

 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of February 12, 2007 City Council Meeting Minutes. 
 
2. Approval of February 20, 2007 City Council Work Session Minutes.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
3. Approval of February 14, 2007 Claims.  
 
4. Approval of February 21, 2007 Claims.  
 
5. Approval of February 20, 2007 Payroll.  
 
6. Authorize Mayor to Sign the Visitor & Community Information Center 

Services Agreement with Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of 
Commerce. 

 
Chief Administrative Officer Swenson distributed information that had been 
requested by Councilmember Phillips regarding the amounts other cities contribute 
to either the Chamber or the visitor information center. Councilmember Seibert 
commented that it looks like Marysville is right in the middle. Chief Administrative 
Officer Swenson agreed and thanked Finance Director Sandy Langdon for compiling 
this information. 
 
7. Authorize Mayor to Sign the Interlocal Agreement between Snohomish 

County and the City of Marysville for Traffic Signal and Street Light 
Maintenance. 

 
Paul Roberts commented that the County provides this as a backup for the services 
that they use.  
 
8. Authorize Mayor to Sign Amendment IV to Intergovernmental 

Agreement with Snohomish County to Furnish Fleet Management 
Services.  

Public Works Director Paul Roberts explained that this would cover the installation 
and systems for two-way radios for the fleet cars. 
 
9. Approval of IT Staffing Classification and Compensation Proposal for 

Application Specialist/Programmer, Computer Support Technician I, 
and Computer Support Technician II Positions. 

Minutes 2 -2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 19 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 3 of 8 

 

 
Finance Director Sandy Langdon explained that this item pertained to the 
reclassification of two positions in order to be more cost effective and provide better 
customer service. 
 
10. Authorize Mayor to Sign Snohomish County Human Services Grant 

Contract for Senior Services Project Program Grant Renewal. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Jim Ballew commented that this is the third year of 
this program and not much has changed. Jane Schaffer has been appointed for the 
position. 
 
REVIEW BIDS 
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
11. Planning Commission Recommendation for Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Adopting a Subarea Plan for the East Sunnyside/Whiskey 
Ridge Area, Development Regulations and Areawide Rezone of the 
Subarea; PA06086. 

 
Community Development Director Hirashima explained there have been multiple 
Planning Commission workshops, two public hearings, and two open house 
community meetings, and numerous written comments regarding this plan. She 
reviewed the background, history and implications of the Subarea Plan. She 
reviewed the 17 key concepts (as shown on page 190 of 523 of the work session 
packet) around which the Plan was developed in order to create a higher quality 
neighborhood.  
 
She commented that they did receive concerns about the secondary impact fee. The 
Planning Commission had discussed options such as an RID, secondary impact fee 
and revamping the citywide impact fee. After much deliberation the Planning 
Commission ultimately felt that the secondary impact fee was the best solution. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Nehring asked about the reasoning for putting high density multi-
family housing in these areas. He said that he had more of a vision of high-end 
housing. He also expressed concerns about traffic issues related to high-density 
housing. Gloria Hirashima stated that one of the goals was to get a mix of use in this 
area. She explained that for when the whole area was considered, only 13% of the 

Minutes 2 -3

Page 20 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 4 of 8 

 

area was high density. She added that the Whiskey Ridge area is adjacent to 
Highway 9 where there is commercial and multifamily/mixed use. Mayor Pro Tem 
Nehring still had concerns about the traffic. He asked about long-term goals for 
these types of annexations. 
 
Councilmember Carmen Rasmussen discussed a seminar she attended where there 
had been discussion about the fact that for the first time in history there are two 
types of people seeking out this type of dwelling – baby boomers as well as young 
families starting out. She was not sure that the mixed use was actually large enough 
in relation to the multifamily area in terms of shopping and other amenities. She felt 
that the multifamily would be fulfilling a unique purpose in this area. 
 
Gloria Hirashima commented that the multifamily range in this area is different than 
the typical multifamily. The code encourages higher density if developers do the 
incentives. She discussed the mixed use zone as a great transition zone, but noted 
that it does not allow for single family at all. The Planning Commission looked at 
many configurations and ultimately tried to find a mix that would work from a market 
standpoint as well a good feature mix. 
 
Councilmember Seibert commented that some parts of the multifamily zone might be 
better suited for larger houses. He noted that developers did not have to build to 
capacity. Director Hirashima concurred. Councilmember Seibert asked for 
clarification regarding densities. Director Hirashima explained that they start at 4.5 
but incentives are available up to 8 density/acre.  
 
Councilmember Seibert asked about the alignment of 44th. Ms. Hirashima explained 
that because of the ownership issues and engineering restrictions in the area the 
road alignment wasn’t as smooth as they would have liked.  
 
Councilmember Seibert then asked about the Sunnyside School Road. City 
Engineer Kevin Nielsen explained that they would keep it open as long as possible. 
He stated that WSDOT would dictate improvements through the development 
process. 
 
Councilmember Rasmussen pointed out that the Kiwanis Park is not showing on the 
map. She noted that there is a need to look at improved facilities for parking and 
pedestrian walkways there. Parks and Recreation Director Ballew concurred. 
Councilmember Rasmussen then asked how the goal of open space/parks is 
addressed in the plan. Director Hirashima stated that they are anticipating additional 
acquisition. 
 
Councilmember Seibert asked if the Planning Commission had discussed the option 
of a citywide impact fee as opposed to the secondary impact fee. Director Hirashima 
said that they had several discussions regarding this issue. She explained that the 
cost for a citywide impact fee would be too high. The Planning Commission felt that 

Minutes 2 -4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 21 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 5 of 8 

 

the planned 40th Street and 67th Avenue Whiskey Ridge connections should be 
borne by that area. Director Swenson pointed to the escalating cost of road 
improvements. Director Hirashima offered to run the numbers to look at the 
alternative of a citywide impact fee. Mayor Pro Tem Nehring said he would like to 
see that. Kevin Nielsen thought that they might be able to have that study back in 
April. 
 
Councilmember Seibert questioned the commercial zones in Sunnyside area 
between Highway 9 and 87th down Soper Hill. Director Hirashima stated that the 
Planning Commission felt that there was more commercial needed in that area. 
Councilmember Seibert asked about the importance of the road connections in that 
area. City Engineer Nielsen reviewed the volume of traffic on the various arterial 
roads. He stated that in order for this area to develop, it is imperative to have those 
connections. Chief Administrative Officer Swenson concurred. She stated that it is 
extremely important to handle that right now. Councilmember Rasmussen agreed 
and commented on the already congested traffic there.  
 
Councilmember Seibert asked about transit increases in the area. Kevin Nielsen 
responded that the consult had explored those avenues, but it didn’t look too 
promising. Director Hirashima added that they have made transit provisions in the 
Plan. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
12. Golf Course Agreement; Golf Cart Marketing. 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Swenson explained that this would be a revenue source 
for the golf course. Councilmember Rasmussen asked who discovered this. Chief 
Administrative Officer Swenson acknowledged Jim Ballew. Councilmember 
Rasmussen commended him.  
 
Councilmember Soriano asked for examples of advertisers. Director Ballew said that 
it would be national businesses/organizations. Mayor Kendall advised him to go to 
the company’s website to take a look at some examples. 
 
Councilmember Vaughan wondered why this was allowed at the golf course, but not 
on utility trucks. Staff indicated that they would get an answer from City Attorney 
Grant Weed. 
 
13. Professional Services Agreement with RH2 for Design Services on 

Lake Goodwin Well Site Improvements Project. 
 
Director Roberts explained that this Agreement is for the redesign of the water 
system at Lake Goodwin. Councilmember Soriano asked about the Interlake System 

Minutes 2 -5

Page 22 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 6 of 8 

 

at Seven Lakes. Director Roberts commented that they have 25 customers up there. 
Kevin Nielsen explained the process for those improvements. 
 
14. Planning Commission Recommendation to Approve Comprehensive 

Plan Amendment Updating Capital Facility Plan Element for 
Marysville, Lakewood, and Lake Stevens School District. 

 
Community Development Director Hirashima reviewed the background of the Capital 
Facilities Plans. Rod Stanton, Lake Stevens School District; Denise Stiffarm, 
Marysville School District; and Frey Owyn, Lakewood School District were in 
attendance to represent their respective school districts. 
 
Councilmember Donna Wright asked about the Snohomish County figures. Gloria 
Hirashima explained that they would be 25% less than the Marysville School District. 
The other two districts would be the same.  
 
LEGAL 
 
None. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
None. 
 
MAYOR’S BUSINESS 
 
Mayor Kendall said that he had received a letter from the PSRC congratulating the 
City of Marysville for receiving the PSRC Corridor Improvement Grant for 
$1,014,000 for the 136th -152nd Street Corridor Improvements. 
 
STAFF BUSINESS 
 
Gloria Hirashima commented that the first neighborhood meeting for the 88th Street 
Subarea Plan would be held tomorrow at the school district offices at 6 p.m. 
 
Jim Ballew said that over 100 volunteers of the Stillaguamish Task Force would be 
planting over 1000 trees and shrubs.  
He announced that two kids were apprehended on Friday. He commended the 
person responsible. 
The subcommittee for Graffiti Prevention will meet on Thursday at 9:30 at the Fire 
Department. 
Judie Kirchberg, an employee of 13 years, called in sick for the first time today for 
half of the day. 
 

Minutes 2 -6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 23 of 575



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 7 of 8 

 

Paul Roberts announced that Kari Schmault gave birth to a baby girl over the 
weekend. 
John Tatum received a letter from the Mayor to be the new Traffic Engineer. He will 
start next week. 
Public Works facilities were broken into and some wire and miscellaneous items 
were stolen. 
 
Sandy Langdon reminded Council of the Finance Committee meeting tomorrow at 
4:30 p.m. 
 
Mary Swenson commended the Police Department and the Public Works 
Department for the movement of traffic last week during the accident on I-5. 
Suzi Elsner started work last Friday. 
The Gap area is officially Marysville today. 
 
CALL ON COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
Carmen Rasmussen commented that the access channel in Everett plays replays of 
previous Silvertips games. A Marysville citizen was curious if Marysville could also 
play these. Mary Swenson said they would check on it.  
Councilmember Rasmussen then asked Sandy Langdon to look into doing a line 
item for Parks and Recreation programs scholarships. Director Langdon thought that 
this had to be done through a non-profit of a foundation. Councilmember 
Rasmussen had heard that there might be some correlation with the Free and 
Reduced Lunch Federal Program. 
 
Jeff Vaughan asked what could be done about the backed up traffic from the post 
office. Mayor Kendall said they would be meeting with them to discuss traffic safety. 
 
Jeff Seibert addressed an issue with a transit stop across from 84th where there is a 
lack of sidewalks and the danger of mid-block crossing on a busy street. 
 
John Soriano applauded the comments made by Public Works Director Paul Roberts 
at the AWC Conference during the Governor’s Luncheon. Mayor Kendall concurred. 
 
Donna Wright reminded Council of Dr. Hinds’ upcoming retirement celebration. 
She commented that the leadership at the recent AWC Conference appeared to 
realize how important the cities and were very willing to help. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
15. Park Board Advisory Meeting Minutes; January 17, 2007. 
 

Minutes 2 -7

Page 24 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



 
Marysville City Council 

February 20, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Page 8 of 8 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Seeing no further business, Mayor Kendall adjourned the meeting at 8:43 p.m.  
 
 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2007. 
 
 
____________________ ____________________ ____________________ 
Mayor  Deputy City Clerk Recording Secretary 
Dennis Kendall Lillie Lein Laurie Hugdahl 

Minutes 2 -8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 25 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 

I AGENDA NUMBER: I 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Claims 

AGENDA SECTION: 

Please see attached. 

ATTACHMENTS: APPROVED BY:. 
Claims Listings 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the February 
14, 2007 Period 2 claims in the amount of $679,313.73 paid by Check No.'s 36967 
through 37155. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

Consent 3 - 1

Page 26 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 211 312007 
TIME:. 2:05: 10PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

PAGE: 

CHK # 

36967 

VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF SALES & USE TAXES JANUARY 2007 00 1.23 1700. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 00101 130.549000. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 00 102020.549000. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 00 103010.549000. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT O F  40 1.23 1700. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 401434 10.553000. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 4 1046060.553000, 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 420.23 17 10. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 42047267.553000. 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 503.23 1700. 
A & M ELEVATOR INC. ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE-PSB, C.H. 00 1000 10.548000. 
A & M ELEVATOR INC. MONTHLY ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE 00 1000 10.548000. 
A & M ELEVATOR DJC. ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE-PSB, C.H. 00 103530.548000. 
A & M ELEVATOR INC. MONTHLY ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE 00 103530.548000. 
ROBERTA ABERCROMBIE UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 10. 
ACE ACME SEPTIC SERVICE INC PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL LKWD RD 40 140280.54 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 PRESRIPTS,MILK, SUPPLIES- JAIL 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00 103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 00 103960.53 1000. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1250. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00 103960.53 1250. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1250. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 00103960.53 1250. 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 REFRESHMENTS-PROJECT,WUCC MTG 30500030.563000.R0604 
ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 40 1434 10.549000. 
ALL BATTERY SALES & SERVICE MISC SHOP SUPPLIES 50100065.53 1000. 
AMERICAN CLEANERS UNIFORM CLEANING - POLICE DEPT 00 103 12 1.526000. 
AMERICAN CLEANERS 00 103222.526000, 
AMERICAN CLEANERS 001 03960.526000. 
AMERICAN CLEANERS 00 104190.526000. 
AMERICAN CLEANERS 00 104230.526000. 
AMSAN SEATTLE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES- KBSCC 00105250.53 1400. 
ARLINGTON GLASS & INSULATION, INC. (ACREPLACE BROKEN INSULATED UNIT 00 1 12572.548000. 
AT&T PHONE 360-659-6212 ALARM 40 142480.542000. 
AUTOMATIC FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICES SURFACE WATER NOTICE LETTERS 40145040.541000. 
BADINGER, CHERYL & RICHARD UB 9833 10000000 33 10 64TH AVE 401.122120. 
JEAN D. BAKKO UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 10. 
BARNES, JEFFREY & KIMBERLY UB 62079000000 1 4 122 107TH PL 401.1221 10. 
BARRON HEATING AIR CONDITIONING 2ND BILLING OF 6- PARKS & REC 00 105380.548000. 
BARRON HEATING AIR CONDITIONING 2ND BILLING OF 6- 80 COLUMBIA 40143780.548000. 
BARRON HEATING AIR CONDITIONING 2ND BILLING OF 6- GOLF COURSE 42047 165.548000. 
BENNETT, LYNNE UB 030240000000 86 18 60TH DR N 401.1221 10. 
DIANE BERGMAN REIMBURSE VELUM PAPER, CIP 00 100020.53 1000. 
BICKFORD FORD-MERCURY FRONT BRAKE ROTOR, PAD SET 501.141 100. 
BIEMOLD, EDWARD & JUDY UB 290650000003 13327 60TH DR 401.1221 lo. 
VETA BLAKESLEY LINE DANCING INSTRUCTION 00 105250.54 1020. 
BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT HOLSTER,HANDCUFF CASE-FORSLOF 00103 12 1.526000. 

ITEM - 
AMOUNT 

Consent 3 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 27 of 575



DATE: 211 312007 
TIME.' 2:05: 10PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

CHK # 

36987 
36988 

VENDOR 

BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 
ARTHUR BOERSEMA 
ARTHUR BOERSEMA 
ARTHUR BOERSEMA 
BOONDOCKER'S CAFE 
BOONDOCKER'S CAFE 
BOONDOCKER'S CAFE 
BRAZIER, DARREN 
ERIK BRODLAND 
BUD BARTON'S GLASS CO 
BUSINESS TELECOM PRODUCTS 
CAMPBELL'S 
CAMPBELL'S 
GWENDOLYN R CAMPBELL PUBLIC POLIC 
CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 
CAPTAIN DIZZY S EXXON 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
CAPTAIN DIZZYS EXXON 
LILA CARLSON 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 
VICKI CARVER 
CASCADE MUSIC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
CDW GOVERNMENT INC 
JOYCE CHAMPAGNE 
CHAMPION BOLT & SUPPLY 
CHAPMAN, MELVIN 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
CMRS-TMS 
COMMERCIAL FENCE CORPORATION 
COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION 
COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION 
MERRITT SCOTT CONNER 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

BOOTS, EQUIPMENT - VEACH 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 

FOOD FOR DISPATCH DEC 2007 

UB 461 160000000 5830 145TH ST 
REFUND CLASS REGISTRATION FEES 
REPAIR, RESEAL WINDOW-WWTP 
CS5O/HL1 0 -TELEPHONE HEADSETS 
CLEAR TOILETS IN JAIL 

'YIT JOB CLASS & COMP ANALYSIS 
2-YD CONTAINER LIDS (X 12) 
CAR WASH- K. NIELSEN 1/26/07 
CAR WASH FOR POLICE VEHICLES 

CAR WASH- VEHICLE #V006 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
ZIP TIES, MOP HEADS & HANDLES 
SPRAY PRIMER, TOOLS-LIBRARY 
LAMPS, TAPE 
MISC. SIGNAL MAINT. SUPPLIES 
LAMP, SCRUB BRUSH 
INSTRUCTOR ADULT DRAWING 
EXTENSION,TWEED CABLES 
MS ACCESS 2003 LICENSE & MEDIA 
MONITORS, KEYBOARDS, MICE, ETC 
OFFICE 2007 MEDIA 
MONITORS, KEYBOARDS, MICE, ETC 
70 - OFFICE 2007 UPGRADES 
EXCHANGE SERVER MEDIA 
EXCHANGE BACKUP MEDIA 
EXCHANGE BACKUP SOFTWARE 
EXCHANGE SERVER SOFTWARE LICS. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
WEDGE ANCHORS, PLATE WASHERS 
UB 270450000000 1 1933 54TH DR 
POSTAGE METER CHARGES 

COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION 
ANNUAL SPRINKLER SYSTEM TEST 
5# ABC SERVICE/TAG/HYDRO/RECHG 
INSTRUCTOR-GARDENING IN NW 

PAGE: 2 

ACCOUNT # 

00 103960.526000. 
00 102520.5490 10. 
40 1434 10.549070. 
40 1434 10.54907 1. 
00 1030 10.549000. 
00103010.549000. 
00 103010.549000. 
401.1221 10. 
00 1 10347.376009. 
40 142480.548000. 
00104190.535000. 
00 1000 10.548000. 
00100010.548000. 
50300090.54 1000. 
4 1046060.548000. 
00 100020.54 1000. 
00 103010.548000. 
00103121.548000. 
00 103222.548000. 
00 104230.548000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00 102520.5490 10. 
00105380.53 1000. 
001 12572.53 1000. 
10 1 10463.548000. 
101 10564.53 1000. 
40 142280.548000. 
00105 120.541020. 
00105090.53 1280. 
50300090.53 1000. 
50300090.53 1000. 
50300090.535000. 
50300090.535000. 
50300090.535000. 
50300090.549000. 
50300090.549000. 
50300090.549000. 
50300090.549000. 
00102520.549010. 
40142480.53 1300. 
401.1221 10. 
00 100020.542000. 
00 102020.542000. 
101 11230.531000. 
40143410.542000. 
41046170.53 1000. 
50 100065.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
40220594.563000.WO604 
00103530.541000. 
501.141 100. 
00105250.541020. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

542.91 
61.49 
44.49 

106.26 
15.17 
17.87 
23.82 
30.84 

144.00 
504.53 

1,150.13 
150.82 
171.20 
570.00 
456.96 

4.50 
4.50 
4.50 

40.50 
13.50 
4.50 
9.12 

75.87 
13.90 
55.84 
96.74 
29.27 

208.25 
23.5 1 

183.37 
723.79 
58.59 

757.22 
18,553.82 

29.30 
37.99 

645.59 
11,759.02 

15.30 
29.18 
48.85 

102.1 1 

1,585.79 
6.00 

130.18 
8.07 
6.00 
6.00 

36,177.94 
2 10.00 
72.95 
84.00 

Consent 3 - 3

Page 28 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 211 312007 
TIME.: 2:05: 1 OPM 

CHK # 

370 1 0 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

PAGE: 

VENDOR ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

COOK PAGING (WA) ACCTl261011 425-339-0338 00 105380.542000. 
COOK PAGING (WA) 425-257-38291 425-339-06 13 10 1 1 1230.542000. 
COOK PAGING (WA) 40 1434 10.542000. 
CO-OP SUPPLY FASTENERS 00105380.53 1000. 
CO-OP SUPPLY BURLAP 00105380.53 1000. 
CO-OP SUPPLY LIME- PETTING ZOO 00105380.53 1000. 
CO-OP SUPPLY POLE SAW 00105380.535000. 
CO-OP SUPPLY STRAW BALES 10 1 1 156 1.548000. 
COVAD COMMUNICATIONS INTERNET SERVICES 50300090.53 1000. 
ELEANOR CRAIG UTILITY TAX REBATE 00102520.549010. 
ELLEN E CRlGER 00102520.549010. 
ELLEN E CRIGER 40 1434 10.549070. 
ELLEN E CRIGER 40143410.549071. 
CRYSTAL SPRINGS 4 CASES WATER (115, 1/22) 40142480.53 1330. 
DAN MEEKS CURB,GUnER-47 AV@ ARMAR& 75TH 10 1 1 156 1 ,548000.MO604 
CUSTER, JARROD & BRAND1 UB 790920000000 58 17 65TH AVE 401.1221 10. 
CUZ CONCRETE PRODUCTS CONCRETE CATCH BASINS,FRAME 10 1 1 1440.53 1000. 
DEAVER ELECTRIC INSTALL WATER PUMP SYSTEM 40 142480.548000.MO562 
DEAVER ELECTRIC FLOOR OUTLET-COPYIFAX MACHINE 40143780.548000. 
DEAVER ELECTRIC DISCONNECT 14K TRANSFORMER 40143780.548000. 
LUANA DEFREITAS INSTRUCTOR-HULA CLASS 00 105250.54 1020. 
LUANA DEFREITAS INSTRUCTOR SR. TAI CHI 00 105250.54 1020. 
DELL MARKETING LP PC EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 50300090.53 1000. 
DELL MARKETING LP 50300090.53 1000. 
DELOREYES, JOEY UB751159790001 5513 80THAVE 401.1221 10. 
DELOREYES, JOEY 401.122130. 
DELOREYES, JOEY 410.122100. 
ARLINE DEPALMA INSTRUCT DRIFTWOOD SCULPTURE 00 105250.54 1020. 
DeSANTIS HOLSTER & LEATHER GOODS COM26 KYDEX MID-RIDE HOLSTER 00 1.23 1700. 
DeSANTIS HOLSTER & LEATHER GOODS COM26 TASER DBL CARTRIDGE POUCH 001.23 1700. 
DeSANTIS HOLSTER & LEATHER GOODS COM26 KYDEX MID-RIDE HOLSTER 00 104230.53 1000. 
DeSANTIS HOLSTER & LEATHER GOODS COM26 TASER DBL CARTRIDGE POUCH 00104230.53 1000. 
DeSANTIS HOLSTER & LEATHER GOODS COM26 KYDEX MID-RIDE HOLSTER 00104230.53 1000. 
DAP DO & THUCO KIEV UTILITY TAX REBATE 001 02520.5490 10. 
DAVID DOOP ESRl TRAINING-LODGING, MILEAGE 00 102020.543000. 
MARC DORN PARTIAL CONVEYANCE,3 ST147 AV 30500030.563000.T0102 
E&E LUMBER INC SPRAY PAINTS & CADDY 00103630.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC FASTENERS 00105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC SPRAY PAINT -HOLMAN GRAFFITI 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC PRIMER, PAINT 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC CONCRETE- PETTING ZOO 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC PARTS- BBQ DRINKING FOUNTAIN 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC PAINT SUPPLIES - COMEFORD PARK 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC FLOAT, BIT, FASTENERS 00105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC SUPPLIES- BBQ DRINKING FOUNTAN 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC CONCRETE- PETTING ZOO 00105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC LUMBER & ANGLE TIM 00105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC NAILS, LUMBER, CONCRETE-KBSCC 00 105380.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC BRUSHES, NOZZLE, UTILITY KNIFE 10 1 1036 1.53 1000. 
E&E LUMBER INC DUCT TAPE, DOUG FIR UTlL & BTR I0 1 1036 1.53 1000. 

E&E LUMBER M C  WHITEWOOD 101 11561.548000. 
E&E LUMBER INC PLASTIC BAGS, ALEX PLUS CLEAR 40 140 180.53 1000. 

ITEM - 
AMOUNT 

4.60 
3.83 
3.83 

7.32 

20.17 
55.27 

26.90 
43.35 

220.60 

49.78 

4 1.43 
42.24 
87.60 

69.91 
7,087.00 

169.29 

1,388.58 

2,712.50 

299.73 

1,074.15 

16.00 

77.44 

1,102.41 

1,102.41 

232.13 
0.49 

17.50 

176.80 

-7.88 

-2.34 

9.10 

29.84 
99.26 

53.92 
283.66 

10,450.00 
80.95 

5.2 1 

5.50 
7.14 

9.39 
20.43 

26.9 1 
30.14 
30.75 
32.5 1 
32.84 

101.91 
16.38 
16.47 

15.07 
19.80 

Consent 3 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 29 of 575



DATE: 211 312007 
'TIME: 2:05: 10PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

CHK # 

37028 

VENDOR 

E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
WA DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL WC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL WC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EDGE ANALYTICAL INC 
EVERETT CARBONIC 
EVERETT TIRE & AUTOMOTIVE 
CITY OF EVERETT 
CITY OF EVERETT 
EVERGREEN DISTRICT COURT 
FEDEX 
FEDEX 
MARJORIE FILBERT 
FIRE PROTECTION,INC 
FLINT TRADING INC 
JEFF FRANZEN 
JEFF FRANZEN 
JEFF FRANZEN 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

TRASH CAN - PW SHOP 
BOLTS, WAX RINGS-GOLF RESTAUR 
GASKETS, BITS- GOLF RESTAURANT 
PRESSURE TREATED DECK BOARD 
WASTEWATER PERMIT 711106-6/30 
LAB SAMPLES - STILL WELL 
LAB SAMPLES -STILLY RIVER 
LAB SAMPLES- I21 STIMEADOWS 
LAB SAMPLES- 202 172ND ST 
LAB SAMPLES- 202 172ND ST 
LAB SAMPLES- EDWARD SPRINGS 

LAB SAMPLES-202 172ND ST 
LAB SAMPLES-202 172ND ST EPTDS 
LAB SAMPLES-EDWARD SPRINGS 

LAB SAMPLES-SOMEVILLE LANE B/O 
LAB SAMPLES-STILL WELL 
LAB SAMPLES-STILLY RIVER 
LAB SAMPLES-N240 ZONE TRANSMIS 
LAB SAMPLES-HYDRANTS 
LAB SAMPLES- MISC LOCATIONS 

LAB SAMPLES-MISC. LOCATIONS 
LAB SAMPLES- MISC LOCATIONS 
LAB SAMPLES-FIELD BLANK 
CARBON DIOXIDE 40 LBS 
P225160R 16 TIRES X 6 
CREDIT MEMO ADOPTION RETURN 
REBILL ANIMALS-SHELTER APR-SEP 
HASKETT, ANDREW R 06 1260 
BOND COMPLIANCE, SINGLE AUDIT 
PACKAGE TO GRANGER COMPANY 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
SERVICE CALLISECURITY 1/24/07 
THERMAL STOP BARS 
REIMBURSE-CAMERA EQUIPMENT 

PAGE: 4 

ACCOUNT # 

40143780.53 1000. 
42047 165.53 1000. 
42047165.53 1000. 
50 100065.534000. 
40143410.553200. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.541000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.541000. 
40140780.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
401.141400. 
501.141 100. 
00104230.551000. 
00104230.55 1000. 
00 1.229050. 
00101023.549000. 
30500030.563000.R0301 
00 102520.5490 10. 
00105380.541000. 
10 1 10564.53 1000. 
10308521.535000. 
10308521.535000. 
10308521.535000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

20.06 
25.19 
44.15 
57.5 1 

20,193.30 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
12.00 
24.00 
36.00 

180.00 
180.00 
180.00 
192.00 
200.00 
43.44 

465.44 
-80.00 
800.00 
550.00 
161.43 
16.88 
64.5 1 

5 10.20 
1,410.30 

61.01 
128.44 
247.32 

Consent 3 - 5

Page 30 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 211 312007 
TIME: 2:05: I OPM 

CHK # 

37040 
3704 1 

3 7042 
37043 
37044 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

PAGE: 5 

VENDOR 

FRED MEYER 
CRAIG A. FULLERTON 
GALLS INC 
GENERAL CHEMICAL CORP 
DON GILLETTE 
DON GILLETTE 
DON GILLETTE 
LUCY GILMARTIN 
LUCY GILMARTlN 
LUCY GILMARTIN 
GOLDFINCH BROTHERS 
JOSEPH H. GRANGER 
GRAY AND OSBORNE 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC 
GREATER SEATTLE CHAPTER IFMA 
GREENSHIELDS INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 
BECKY GRILL0 
GLADYS GROTE 
GLADYS GROTE 
GLADYS GROTE 
HALLIE HARRIS 
HALLIE HARRIS 
HALLIE HARRIS 
ROSE HAYES 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
HILLS, ELEANOR B. 
HOPE HEALTHIIHAC 
HOPE HEALTHIIHAC 
FRANCES HOWLAND 
PATRICIA F. HUNTER 
INGERSOLL, TONY 
IRON MOUNTAIN QUARRY LLC 
JOHNSON, BARRY & CHERYL 
KAMPLING, DANIEL J 

MARCIA KELLEY 
DORIS KONIS 
DORIS KONIS 
DORIS KONIS 
LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 
LASTING IMPRESSIONS INC 
KEN & WINIFRED LEE 
LILLIE LElN 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

3 JEANS - R. GETTLE 40 1434 10.526200. 
CONSULTING-BAYVIEWIWHISKEY TRI 00 105380.54 1000. 
GALLS SQURE GEAR BAG 00103960.53 1000. 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 1 1.84 TONS 40142480.53 1320. 
UTILTY TAX REBATE 001 02520.549010. 

40 1434 10.549070. 
40 1434 10.54907 1. 

UTILITY TAX REBATE 00102520.549010. 
40 143410.549070. 
40143410.549071. 

UHMW MDT STAND RISER 50 100048.564000. 
REVIEW CERTIFICATES #2,MAP REV 30500030.563000.R0301 
PAY ESTIMATE # I0 40220594.563000. W0504 
GOLF PATCH CABLES 42047165.535000. 
GOLF PATCH PANEL 42047 165.535000. 
NETWORK SUPPLIES 50300090.53 1000. 
EDUCATIONAL SYMPOSIUM-SHEPARC 50200050.549000. 
HYDRAULIC HOSE ASSEMBLY KC03 50 100065.534000. 
REFUND DEPOSIT 00 1.239100. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.549010. 

40 1434 10.549070. 
40 1434 10.54907 1 .  
00 102520.5490 10. 
40143410.549070. 
40 1434 10.54907 1. 

INSTRUCTOR- CLOGGING 00 105250.54 1020. 
METER WRENCHES 501.141 100. 
T- 10 WATER METERS 401.141400. 
ROMAC SERVICE SADDLE 40 140580.548000. 
OPERATING PERMITISYSTEM CERTIF 40 1434 10.553200. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00102520.549010. 
2007 HOPE HEALTH CALENDARS 00 1.23 1700. 

001003 10.549010. 
INSTRUCTOR-GOURD CARVING 00 105250.54 1020. 
REFUND-UNABLE TO ATTEND CLASS 00 1 10347.376009. 
UB 933 170000000 191 7 5TH ST 401.1221 10. 
CRUSHED ROCK - 223.68 TONS 101 10130.531000. 
UB 730480000000 6401 20TH DR N 401.1221 10. 
UB 452 160520001 571 0 138TH PL 401.1221 10. 
REFRESHMENTS-GOLF PRO INTERV W! 00 100 1 10.549000. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.549010. 

40 1434 10.549070. 
40143410.549071. 

EZ STREET ASPHALT-10.22 TONS I01 10130.531000. 
WOOL CAPS X 12 501.141 100. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00102520.549010. 
MILEAGE-MOPU, PASSPORT TRAlNIG 00 10 1 130.543000. 
CREDIT MEMO-PRICE CORRECTION 50 1.14 1 100. 
TRACTION RETREAD TIRES 501.141 100. 

501.141 100. 
CREDIT-REVERSAL SERVICE CALL 50 100065.534000. 
ANVIL BACKHOE DRIVE TIRE #H005 50 100065.534000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

97.62 
357.50 
23.83 

3,238.16 
27.53 
42.24 
87.60 
75.84 
42.24 
87.60 
70.06 

500.00 
22,8 10.04 

21.37 
2 1.77 
29.82 
99.00 

153.17 
53.00 
36.22 
42.24 
87.60 
58.43 
42.24 
87.60 
50.00 

239.50 
1,064.70 

244.34 
6,780.20 

25.95 
-34.94 
445.97 
24.00 
25.00 

164.80 
2,062.91 

15.00 
9.8 1 

35.94 
37.28 
42.24 
87.60 

942.54 
195.30 
37.09 

128.75 
-2,976.13 
2,976.13 
3,129.13 

-86.80 
565.5 1 

Consent 3 - 6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 31 of 575



DATE: 21 13/2007 
.TIME: 2:05: 10PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

PAGE: 6 

CHK # VENDOR 

37073 LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 
LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER 

37074 DEPT OF LICENSING 

37075 JACKLIN LOMAN 

37076 LOWES HIW INC 
LOWES HIW INC 

37077 MACAULAY & ASSOCIATES INC 

37078 MARY SVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARY SVILLE PRINTING 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

37079 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

37080 MC LELLAN, MARIAN 
37081 F.J MCDANIEL 

37082 MCLOUGHLIN & EARDLEY CORP 

37083 MCNEILUS TRUCK & MFG 

MCNEILUS TRUCK & MFG 

37084 MEMORY4LESS 

37085 MOTOR TRUCKS INC 

MOTOR TRUCKS INC 
37086 WASHINGTON MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOC 

37087 NC MACHINERY COMPANY 

37088 NEBLINA, FRANCISCA & CESAR 
37089 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

37090 OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
37091 OKPALA, CHARLES 

37092 PATRICIA L. OLSON 
37093 ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

3 15180R-22.5120 M-320 TIRES 

REPAIR FLAT DRIVE AXLE TIRE 

SECTION REPAIR TO TIRE- H005 

SECTION REPAIR TO TIRE4252 

BOU, VICTOR- CPL ORlGlNAL 

UTILITY TAX REBATE 

MISC SUPPLIES-STILLY TREATMENT 
MISC. 1-114" PLUMBING 

APPRAISAL, 4 PROPERTIES 47 AVE 
COPY I BK 88 ST PRE-DESIGN 

RETURN ADDRESS LABLES 
COLLISION STATEMENT FORM -2500 
LAW ENFORCE COIL BINDING JOB 

RETURN ADDRESS LABLES 

OPERATORS DAILY REPORT FORMS 

RETURN ADDRESS LABLES 

17906 43 AV NE, STORMWATER 
UB 830005000000 5729 70TH ST N 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 

STROBE LIGHTBARS, BULBS 

CURROTTO BELT X 5 

MEMORY UPGRADE 

RELAY -#JO 16 

8 112 " BLIND SPOT MIRROR #252 
WMCA CONFERENCE-LANGDONILEIN 

BUSINESS LICENSE PAID TWICE 

UB 420761 190006 16716 41ST DR 
IS CELL SERVICE 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
XEROX TONER FOR PHSR6 100 

STAMP "DISTRIBUTED: INKED 

COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

UB 76 1640000002 73 12 67TH ST N 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
PSB- 1635 GROVE ST 

ACCOUNT # 
ITEM 

AMOUNT 

Consent 3 - 7

Page 32 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 211 312007 
'TIME: 2:05: 1 OPM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

PAGE: 7 

CHK # 

37093 

VENDOR 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 
ORKIN EXTERMNATING 

ORKIN EXTERMINATING 

ORKlN EXTERMINATING 

ORKlN EXTERMINATING 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
PACIFIC POWER PRODUCTS 

PACIFIC POWER PRODUCTS 

PACIFIC POWER PRODUCTS 
PACIFIC TOPSOILS INC 

PACIFIC TOPSOILS INC 

PAPE MACHINERY 
PAPE MACHINERY 
PAPE MACHINERY 
PAPE MACHINERY 

PAPE MACHINERY 
PAPE MACHINERY 

JANE PARKER 

JANE PARKER 

JANE PARKER 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 
LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 
LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 

PEREZ, YSELLA 
PERTEET ENGINEERING INC 
PERTEET ENGINEERING INC 

PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 
PLATT- EVERETT 

PLATT- EVERETT 
HARRY PRINGLE 

HARRY PRINGLE 

HARRY PRINGLE 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

CITY HALL, 1049 STATE AV 

CABOOSE 3 16 CEDAR AV 
LIBRARY- 6 120 GROVE ST 

4822 GROVE ST- OLD CITY HALL 

WWTP, 2 COLUMBIA 

PW - 80 COLUMBIA 
MAT CLEANING -WWTP 

MAT CLEANING PW ADMIN BLDG 

MAT CLEANING- MEZZANINE 

UNIFORM CLEANING -PREP CHARGE 
UNIFORM CLEANING- MECHANICS 
UNIFORM CLEANING-MECHANICS 

UNIFORM CLEANING- MECHANICS 
CIRCUIT BREAKER FOR MOWER 

BELT 

HYPRO PUMP WICLUTCH 

STUMP DISPOSAL FEE 
TOPSOIL, MANURE, SOD 

CREDIT MEMO -CORE CHARGE #228 
PARTS CATALOG- H003 
ALTERNATOR - #228 

TACHOMETERkIOUR METER #228 

AUX MOTOR FUEL PUMP H003 
FUEL LINE, WASHERS, SCREW H003 

UTILITY TAX REBATE 

AIR FILTERS 

CREDIT-RETURN INCORRECT PART 

24-VOLD HEADLIGHT 
INHIBITOR RUST 
OIL/AIR/FUEL/TRANS FILTERS 
WIPERS, OIL FILTERS, ALARM 

AIWOILiFUEL FILTERS, FLUID 
AIR & OIL FILTERS, BULBS 

3M FLEXIBLE SEAM SEALER 

SERPENTINE BELT, IDLER PULLEY 

SERPENTINE BELT TENSIONIIDLER 
PTKT SK STANDARD DUALFROSTED 

UB 331412800001 14914 44TH DR 
PAY ESTIMATE# 14- TO102 & R0501 

FUEL CONSUMED - STREETS 
GROUND FOR WIRELESS ANTENNA 

UTILITY TAX REBATE 

ACCOUNT # 
ITEM 

AMOUNT 

Consent 3 - 8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 33 of 575



DATE: 211 312007 
TIME: 2:05: 10PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

CHK # 

37128 

VENDOR 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 

SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SPECIALTY TOWING 

ST CLAIR, MONICA 
WASHINGTON STATE PATROL 

STEINER, MARK 

SUPERIOR SIGNALS INC 
SUPERIOR SIGNALS INC 
T BAILEY, INC. 

ROBERT TAKLO 
TANDEM SERVICE CORP INC 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 

TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 

TELWEST 

TELWEST 
TELWEST 
TERRA RESOURCE GROUP 

TESSCO TECHNOLOGIES 

TIMELESS DESIGN 
UAP DISTRIBUTION,INC 

US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
USA BLUEBOOK 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

UNIFORM- D. SZECHENYI 

UNIFORM - M. MECHLING 
UNIFORM - D. SZECHENYI 

UNIFORM - C. WINELAND 

UNFORM - M. MECHLING 
UNIFORM - J. ROTH 

GLOVES 
SWEATSHIRTS 
WINTER JACKETS 
RAINGEAR (JACKETS, PANTS) 
EVIDENCE lMPOUND 

UB 4521 60500000 5704 138TH PL 
HUTCHISON, P.-TAXI FINGERPRmT 
UB 28 1 160000000 5420 129TH PL 

LIGHT AMBER STROBE BEACONS 

PAY ESTIMATE #6 

UTILITY TAX REBATE 
SEPTIC PUMPING SVC-SOPER HILL 

ACCT # 19860 

ACCT# 19862 

ACCT # 19860 

ACCT # 19863 

ACCT# 19862 
ACCT # 19863 

ACCT# 19862 

ACCT # 19860 

ACCT # 19863 
ACCT # 19860 

ACCT# 19862 
PARKER, PRISCILLA- W.E 100806 
2-WAY RADIO ANTENNAS #962 

INSTALLITRUCWDRAWING HRS-MILL 
FUNGICIDES 
PAY ESTIMATE #6- 153595 135366 
THERMAL CHART PAPER 
POLE BLDG 
ACCT# 03 2 1 1 10046960940 1 

PAGE: 

ACCOUNT # 

42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
501.141 100. 
501.141100. 
501.141100. 
501.141 100. 
00 103222.54 1000. 
401.1221 10. 
00 10 1 130.549000. 
401.122110. 
501.141 100. 
50 1.23 1700. 
40220594.563000. WO 10 1 
001 02520.549010. 
40142280.548000. 
00 100020.542000. 
00 100050.542000. 
00100 1 10.542000. 
001003 10.542000. 
00 100720.542000. 
00 10 1023.542000. 
00101 130.542000. 
00102020.542000. 
00103010.542000. 
00 103222.542000. 
00 103530.542000. 
00 103960.542000. 
00 104000.542000. 
00 104 190.542000. 
00 105250.542000. 
00 105380.542000. 
00 143523.542000. 
10 1 1 1230.542000. 
40 142480.542000. 
40 1434 10.542000. 
41 046 170.542000. 
4204706 1.542000. 
50100065.542000. 
50200050.542000. 
50300090.542000. 
00143523.541000. 
50 100065.534000. 
40143780.548000. 
42047 165.53 1930. 
40220594.563000. WO 10 1 
40140 180.53 1000. 
00103222.542000, 
00 104000.542000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

120.22 

144.38 
151.99 

165.07 
227.84 
232.24 

12.49 
53.92 

141.07 
21 1.44 
124.78 
128.48 
30.00 

141.55 

235.34 
-1  8.44 

135,386.39 
43.66 

833.08 
30.55 

57.58 

46.06 
23.03 

1 1.52 

34.54 

5.76 
76.38 

192.89 

151.67 
368.48 

24.54 

15.34 
24.54 

18.40 

291.39 
40.28 

30.55 
30.56 

42 1.62 

3.06 
6.14 

21.38 
6.1 1 

17.28 

478.00 
1 15.70 

1,146.25 
1,493.33 

6,597.78 
443.84 
153.00 
35.00 

Consent 3 - 9

Page 34 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 2/13/2007 
TIME: 2:05: IOPM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/13/2007 TO 2/14/2007 

CHK # 

37144 

VENDOR 

VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTH WEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VIANIS VINCENT 
WASHINGTON STATE TREASURER 
WASTE MANAGEMENT NORTHWEST 
WASTE NEWS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON N C  PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WEED GRAAFSTRA AND BENSON INC PS 
WELLER, JONATHAN & STACY 
WHISTLE WORKWEAR 
DENNIS WHITNEY 
KYLE WOODS 
WSASC 
ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

ACCT 1006640 1 1800 
ACCT 03 0275 102746380 1 05 
ACCT 103742634704 
ACCT 103957234007 
ACCT0302 1 1 10979248 1505 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
PUBLIC SAFETY & BLDG REVENUE 
SOLID WASTE PICK UP 
SUBSCRIPTION WASTE NEWS 
LITIGATION SERVICES 

UB 100170000001 91 16 47TH DRN 
BOOTS- E. ERGA 
REFUND DEPOSIT JENNINGS BARN 
PARTIAL REIMBURSE U.W. CLASS 
WSASC MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 2006 
FIRST AID SUPPLIES- CITY HALL 

PAGE: 10 

ACCOUNT # 

00 104000.542000. 
001 04000.542000. 
00 105380.542000. 
40 142480.542000. 
40143410.542000. 
00 102520.549010. 
001.237010. 
42047267.547000. 
4 1046060.549000. 
00102020.541000. 
00105515.541000, 
0010551 5.541000. 
00105515.541000. 
30500030.563000.R0302 
30500030.563000.R030 1 
30500030.563000.T0 102 
30500030.563000.R0301 
40143410.54 1000. 
40143410.54 1000. 
40 1434 10.54 1000. 
40143410.541000. 
40145040.541000. 
401.1221 10. 
40 1434 10.526200. 
00 1.239 100. 
00 100020.549000. 
00 105250.549000. 
00103530.549000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

85.50 
108.86 
77.79 
49.71 
74.85 
15.97 

42,2 14.84 
32.43 
34.00 

665.00 
899.25 

1 1,669.07 
17,747.00 

67.50 
69.00 

783.00 
1,566.50 

643.34 
750.75 

1,627.00 
1 1,669.08 
1,882.50 

33.35 
170.00 
58.00 

300.00 
40.00 

243.00 

WARRANT TOTAL: 679,3 13.73 

Less Voids: 

Consent 3 - 10

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 35 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: Februarv 26.2007 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Claims 

AGENDA SECTION: 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

Please see attached. 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Claims Listings 

BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the February 
21,2007 Period 2 claims in the amount of $430,605.61 paid by Check No.'s 37156 
through 373 16. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

APPROVED BY: 
C L  4 : 

c ~6 
- 

AMOUNT: 

Consent 4 - 1

Page 36 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: 1 :42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR I N V O I C E S  FROM 212012007 TO 2/21/2007 

CHK # VENDOR 
37156 ACCESSDATA 

37157 ACCIS 
ACCIS 

37 158 ACCURINT 

37 159 HELEN M. ADKINS 
37 160 ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #47 1 

37 16 1 ALBERTSONS FOOD CENTER #471 
37 162 ALL1 ED EMPLOYERS LABOR RELATIONS 

37163 AMERICAN RED CROSS 

37 164 AMERICAN TRAINCO 
37165 BRYAN ANDERSON 
37 166 WASHINGTON ANIMAL CONTROL 
37 167 CITY OF ARLINGTON 
37168 ASCOM HASLERIGE CAP PROG 

ASCOM HASLERIGE CAP PROG 
37169 AT&T 
37 170 ATLAS FENCE COMPANY 

ATLAS FENCE COMPANY 
37171 AVILIJCEA,HEINRICH 

371 72 JAMES B BALLEW 
371 73 BANK OF AMERICA 

37 174 DAVE BAUMGARTEN 

37 175 BENS CLEANER SALES 
37176 BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 

BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 
BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 
BLUMENTI-1AL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 

BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 

BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 

37 177 MARYKE BURGESS 

MARYKE BURGESS 

MARYKE BURGESS 
37178 BUSINESS & LEGAL REPORTS INC 

BUSINESS & LEGAL REPORTS INC 
37179 BUSINESS 21 PUBLISHING 
37180 DOUG BYDE 

37 18 1 CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 

CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 
CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 

CAPITAL INDUSTRIES INC 
37 182 CARR & ASSOCIATES 
37183 CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 

CARR'S ACE HARJIWARE 
CARR'S ACE HARDWARE 

37 184 CASCADE MAILING 

CASCADE MAILING 

37 185 WA CITIES INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

37186 CITY TREASURER EVERETT WA 

37 187 CLARK OFFICE PRODUCTS 

371 88 CLEAR IMAGE INC 
37189 CLEARWIRE 

37 190 CNR, INC 

ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

TRAINING FEES- J. FRANZEN 00103 121.549100. 
2007 MEMBERSHIP DUES 50300090.549000. 
ASSOC COUNTY CITY INFO SYSTEMS 50300090.549000. 
BACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONS 001 03010.541000. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 10. 
SUPPLIES FOR PARKS & REC 00105 120.53 1070. 

00 105 120.53 1070. 
212007 MEMBERSHIP DUES 001001 10.541000. 
ADMIN FEE-CLASS BY D. SOREN 00 103222.549 100. 
CLASS:BASIC ELECTRICITY-NORSBY 50200050.549000. 
REFUND DEPOSIT-JENNINGS BARN 00 1.239 100. 
2007 MEMBERSHIP-VASCONI 00 104230.54 1000. 
ARLINGTON CHRISTIAN SCHL WATER 40 140080.533000. 
LASTEC REARMOUNT ROTARYMOWEI 42047 165.545000. 
TOR0 REELMASTER 42047 165.545000. 
PHONE CHARGES 360-653-4741 40 142480.542000. 
FENCING PARTS -PARKS MAINT. 00105380.53 1000. 
REPAIR POST- VANDALISM 40 143780.548000. 
WATERiSEWER CONSERV. REBATE 40 140580.549000. 
DRAWER HARDWARE-JENNMGS BAR? 00 105380.53 1000. 
FINANCE CHARGE REIMBURSEMENT 00 1030 10.549000. 
HYDRANT METER-DEPOSIT REFUND 401.245200. 
REPLACE BURNER GAS IGNITER-PW 50100065.548000. 
VEST REPLACEMENT-AKAU,SPARR 00 103 12 1.526000. 
HOLSTER - GOOLSBY 00 103222.526000. 

00 103222.526000. 
00103222.526000. 

VEST REPLACEMENT-AKAU,SPARR 00 103222.526000. 
UNIFORM PANTS,ETC.-DUEMMELL 00 104 190.526000. 
CUPS,SUPPLIES-VALENTINE DANCE 00 105 120.53 1050. 
SUPPLIES FOR KBSCC 00105250.53 1000. 
CDL TESTINGIPERMIT FEE 00 105250.549000. 
SAFETY MEETINGS ON CD-ROM 001.23 1700. 

001003 10.53 1200. 
SAFETY MEETING GUIDELINES 001003 10.53 1200. 
TRAINING MANUAL -WASTEWATER 401434 10.549050. 
6-YD CONTAINERS (7 OF 36) 4 1046060.53 1000. 
6-YD CONTAINERS (9 OF 36) 4 1046060.53 1000. 
6-YD CONTAINERS ( I0  OF 36) 4 1046060.53 1000. 

4 1046060.53 1000. 
SAFETY TRAINING 001003 10.53 1200. 
MISC. TOOLS, SUPPLIES 40142480.535000. 
MISC. PVC FOR WWTP AIRGAP 40 142480.548000. 
BUNGEE CORDS, TARP 4 0  142480.548000. 

UTILITY BILLING MAILING 00 143523.542000. 
UB MAILING-STORMWATER LETTER 00143523.542000. 
TRAINING NO SHOW FEE 001001 10.549000. 
WATERIFILT. SERVICE PURCHASE 40 140080.533000. 
500 4 PT SUMMONSIBAIL NOTICES 00 100050.53 1000. 
FATHER DAUGHTER DANCE PHOTOS 00 105 120.53 1050. 
REFND-DUP. RIGHT OF WAY PERMIT 10 1 16322.329000. 
2 SINGLE LINE PHONES 50300090.53 1000. 

PAGE: 1 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

1,695.00 
75.00 

250.00 

30.00 

77.47 

57.57 

63.72 
2,104.97 

21.00 

445.00 
58.00 
35.00 
48.88 

554.00 
1,188.90 

25.68 

100.69 

1 19.35 
50.00 
43.07 

16.68 
166.45 

274.73 
986.27 

- 154.95 

-5.72 

89.95 
877.47 

131.08 

32.25 
16.35 

20.00 
-28.16 
359.4 1 

299.00 
26.74 

10.586.24 

13,610.88 
15,123.20 

15,123.20 
600.00 

65.50 
19.30 
33.58 

213.86 

609.84 
95.00 

80,260.88 

867.46 
949.38 
250.00 
191.84 

Consent 4 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 37 of 575



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: I :42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

PAGE: 2 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/20/2007 TO 2/21/2007 

CHK # 

37190 
37191 

VENDOR 

CNR, INC 
JUDY COONTS 
JUDY COONTS 

CO-OP SUPPLY 
WA DEPT OF CORRECTIONS 
CREIGHTON ENGINEERING INC 
CREIGHTON ENGINEERING INC 
DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 
KIMBERLEE DANIELSON 
DAVIDSON, SHARON 
SI-IEILA DAVIS 
SHEILA DAVIS 
DAVYDENKO, VLADIMIR & LIDIYA 
DEVANY MDUSTRIAL CONSULTANTS 
DEVANY INDUSTRIAL CONSULTANTS 
DONOVAN. RICHARD & LEANE 
BERYL DOUGLAS 
DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL 
DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL 
DUNLAP INDUSTRIAL 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
E&E LUMBER INC 
THE EAR PHONE CONNECTION 
THE EAR PHONE CONNECTION 
EDWARD & ASSOCIATES 
ELSTER AMCO WATER, INC 
ELSTER AMCO WATER, INC 
ELSTER AMCO WATER, INC 
WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 
WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 
WA ENVIRONMENTAL TRAINING CENTER 
ESRl 
ANA ESTRADA 
EVEREn STAMP WORKS 
EVERGREEN PRINT SOLUTIONS 
FEI SEATTLE ADMlN iY3206 
FERRELLGAS 
FERRELLGAS 
FERRELLGAS 
FERRELLGAS 
WA FESTIVALS Rr EVENTS ASSOC 
JEFF FRANZEN 
JEFF FRANZEN 
JEFF FRANZEN 
FRED PRYOR SEMINARS 
FRED PRYOR SEMINARS 
GALLAWAY, MIKE & BETTY 
GENERAL CHEMICAL COW 
GLACIER NORTHWEST 

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC 

ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FEB 2007 50300090.541000. 

GIFT CERT, REFRESHMENTS 00 100 1 10.549000. 
00 1003 10.5490 10. 

LAWN RAKE 00 105380.535000. 
INMATE MEALS 00103960.53 1250. 
PLAN CHECK SERVICE 00 102020.54 1000. 

00102020.54 1000. 
DELTA AV SEWER-CALL FOR BIDS 40230594.563000.SO602 
INSTRUCT-HYPNO. SMOKING CESSAT 00 105 120.54 1020. 
UB291330000001 5903 133RDPL 401.1221 10. 
INSTRUCTOR- BASIC FIRST AID 00 105 120.54 1020. 
INSTRUCTOR - CPR 00 105 120.54 1020. 
UB 45202 1000003 5 125 138TH ST 401.1221 10. 
TRAINING BOOKS 00 1.23 1700. 

00 1003 10.53 1200. 
UB 65 1449125501 10627 60TH AVE 401.1221 lo. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 10. 
VISE 40 142480.535000. 
BOOTS- T. KING 40 1434 10.526200. 
BOOTS, 3 PR JEANS- L. WILSON 40 1434 10.526200. 
TOILET PLUNGER 00 10001 0.53 1000. 
MATERIALS-JENNINGS PARK SIGN 3 1000076.563000.P060 1 
FIBERGALSS POLE & LANTERN 42047 165.535000. 
2 X 12 8' UNIVERSAL 42047 165.535000. 
HAWK LAPEL MICROPHONE EARPIECI 00 1.23 1700. 

00104230.53 1000. 
INTERPRETER SERVICES 2/5/07 00 1025 15.549000. 
CREDIT MEMO-REVERSE INV 663 16 40 143980.564000. 
HANDHELDS, DOCS, INSTALL, TRNG 40 143980.564000. 
HANDHELDS,DOCKS, INSTALL, TRNG 40 143980.564000. 
WASTEWATER OPER WKSHP-R AVEY 40 1434 10.549030. 
WASTEWATER OPER WKSHP-J FILORI 40 1434 10.549050. 
WASTEWATER WORKSHOP-J. COBB 40 1434 10.549050. 
GEODATABASE DESIGN CLASS-DOOP 00 102020.549000. 
REFUND DEPOSIT -JENNINGS BARN 00 1.239 100. 
STAMPS FOR FRONT COUNTER 00102020.53 1000. 
STATEMENTS 00 143523.53 1000. 
518" X 314" T-10 WATER METERS 401.141400. 
PROPANE 39.5 GALLONS 101 10130.531000. 

101 10564.53 1000. 
40 140980.53 1000. 
4 1046060.53 1000. 

MEMBERSHIP 2007 00 105380.549000. 
REIMBURSE-REMINGTON TRAINING 00 103 12 1.543000. 

00103 121.543000. 
RIFLE FRONT SIGHT DUAL MOUNTS 00 103740.535000. 
MANAGING MULT. PRIOR.-MCCANN 40 1434 10.549020. 

4 1046060.549000. 
UB 849000165001 7424 69TH AVE 401.1221 10. 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 1 1.8 1 TONS 40142480.53 1320. 
CONCRETE 4 YDS 101 10361.531000. 
GOLF EQUIPMENT PANEL FAN 42047 165.535000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

416.38 
12.00 
27.50 
13.01 

2,207.12 
262.50 
487.50 
332.50 
204.00 
22.04 

260.00 
300.00 
131.37 
-9.50 

121.20 
139.23 
37.82 

264.44 
190.05 
261.51 

3.57 
140.19 
14.52 
38.02 
-9.85 

125.64 
1 1 1.64 

- 16,144.20 
16,084.90 
16,144.20 

150.00 
150.00 
150.00 
950.00 
58.00 
8 1.50 

1,489.21 
2,576.60 

20.77 
20.77 
20.77 
20.77 
50.00 
98.62 

418.14 
1,029.35 

99.50 
99.50 

154.92 
3,229.96 

672.6 1 
78.29 

Consent 4 - 3

Page 38 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: 1 :42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 212012007 TO 212 112007 

PAGE: 3 

CHK # 

37221 
37222 
37223 
3 7224 
37225 

VENDOR 

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC 
MYRTLE GREENE 
ELAINE HANSON 
HARTMANN, RANDY & JOY 
HBD 
MBD 
I-ID FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD FOWLER COMPANY 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS. LTD 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS. LTD 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
IID SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
HEALTHFORCE OCCMED BILLING DEPT 
HEALTHFORCE OCCMED BILLING DEPT 
JOYCE HU'I'ZELL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
10s CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
IOS CAPITAL 
INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC CO INC 
JDS INC 
JDS INC 

JESSOP, ASTRID 
JH BAXTER & CO 

KEEFE. RYAN M 

ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

GOLF MAINTENANCE EQUIP PANEL 42047 165.535000. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 10. 
REFUND DEPOSIT-SCHEDULE CONFLT 00 1 10347.376009. 
UB 840100710001 6415 81ST DR N 401.1221 10. 
STRONG BAG BASIC-PROPERTYIJAIL 00 1.23 1700. 

00103960.53 1000. 
CREDIT MEMO RETURNED PARTS 401.141400. 

401.141400. 
CREDIT MEMO-RETURN OF ADAPTER: 40 1.14 1400. 
314" CHECK VALVE 401.141400. 
314" CHECK VALVES, I" ADAPTORS 40 1.14 1400. 
2" METER SETTER 401.141400. 
2" TEES/ELLS/ADAPTERS 40 140580.548000. 
CREDIT FOR RETURNED MATERIALS 40 142480.548000. 
MISC. PARTS1 SUPPLIES 40142480.548000. 
TEFLON TAPE, GASKET, FLANGE 40142480.548000. 
2" BRASS SWING CHECK VALVES 40 142480.548000. 
MISC. SUPPLIES FOR AIRGAP 40 142480.548000. 
10 1-0250 SADDLE AND STRAPS 40142480.548000. 
MISC. PIPE, GASKETS, RESTRAINT 40142480.548000. 
MUELLER GATE VALVE 40 142480.548000. 
2x20' SOFT COPPER TUBING 40 142480.548000. 
MISC. PIPE, PARTS 40 142480.548000. 
MISC 2" MATERIALS- PUMP SYSTEM 40 142480.548000. 
RENEWAL FEE (LATE) 00 102020.549000. 
MEDICAL EXAM- POLICE CANDIDATE 00 1030 10.54 1000. 

00103010.541000, 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.5490 lo. 
COPIER RENTAL 211-2/28/07 00 100020.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL CITY HALL 00 1003 10.549000. 

00101023.545000. 
00101 130.548000. 

COPIER RENTAL 211- 2/28/07 00 102020.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 211-2/28/07 00 102020.545000. 
COPIER CHARGES - RECORDS DEPT 001 041 90.545000. 
COPIER CHARGES - OFFICE OPERAT 00 104 190.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL - PW 10 I I 1230.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL- WWTP 40142480.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 211- 2/28/07 40 14341 0.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL - PW 40 1434 10.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 21 1-2128107 401434 10.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL CITY HALL 40 1434 10.545000. 
COPIER LEASE- GOLF 42047 165.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 21 1-2/28/07 501 00065.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 2/11 - 2/28/07 50100065.545000. 
COPIER RENTAL 21 1-2/28/07 50200050.545000. 
PUMP PACKING 40 140 180.548000. 
I-BOMMER SPIRNG HINGE 00105380.53 1000. 
12-MCKINNEY HINGES 00105380.53 1000. 
UB 84900009900 1 7320 75TH PL N 401.1221 10. 
35' WOOD POLE DELIVERED 40220594.563000.WO607 
CDL RENEWAL 10 1 1 1230.549000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

301.60 
8.01 

50.00 
108.12 
-20.34 
259.58 

-141.66 
-141.65 
-105.66 

20.87 
226.97 
554.06 
405.94 

-380.67 
8.37 

1 1 1.77 
128.86 
702.75 
22.24 

568.52 
1,053.27 
1,375.78 
3,107.45 
3,665.10 

35.00 
472.00 
472.00 
21.87 

1 12.70 
176.40 
264.59 
264.59 
29.18 

197.24 
2 16.79 
770.82 
107.01 
136.72 
29.17 

107.00 
197.24 

1,058.37 
82.47 
28.18 
98.20 
28.18 
5 1.86 
20.53 
93.44 
84.23 

905.98 
30.00 

Consent 4 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 39 of 575



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: I:42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/20/2007 TO 2/21/2007 

PAGE: 4 

CHK # VENDOR 

37237 DENNIS KENDALL 
37238 L 155- 1 EAGLE POINT LLC 

37239 KERRY & JOYCE LACKEY 

KERRY & JOYCE LACKEY 

KERRY & JOYCE LACKEY 
37240 LASTING IMPRESSIONS INC 

3724 1 LILLIE LEIN 
37242 DEPT OF LICENSING 

DEPT OF LICENSING 
DEPT OF LICENSING 
DEPT OF LICENSING 

37243 LOWES HIW INC 
37244 MAGNESS. DARRELL 
37245 MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL COURT 

37246 MARYSVILLE GLOBE 

MARYSVILLE GLOBE 
MARYSVILLE GLOBE 

MARYSVILLE GLOBE 
MARYSVILLE GLOBE 
MARYSVILLE GLOBE 

37247 MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 
MARYSVILLE PRINTING 

37248 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
ClTY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

ClTY OF MARYSVILLE 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
ClTY OF MARYSVILLE 

37249 MCGREGOR HARDWARE DISTRIBUTION 

MCGREGOR HARDWARE DISTRIBUTION 
37250 MCNETT, JANET & TOM 

3725 1 MEMORY4LESS 

MEMORY4LESS 
37252 YOLANDA MONTES DE OCA 

37253 VICKI MORROW 
VICKI MORROW 

37254 MOTOROLA 

37255 NELSON PETROLEUM 
37256 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 

37257 NORTH RESOURCE, INC. 
37258 NORTHUP GROUP 

NORTHUP GROUP 

37259 NORTHWEST CASCADE M C  

37260 NORTH WEST INSTRUMENT SERVICES 
37261 WORTH NORTON 

ITEM DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # 

INTERNET FEES-OUT OF TOWN 00 100 1 10.549000. 
UB 450030000000 14600 5 1ST AVE 401.1221 10. 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 00 102520.549010. 

40 1434 10.549070. 
40143410.549071. 

KNIT CAPS X 12 501.141 100. 
MILEAGE-PARLIAMENTARY STUDY GI 00 10 1 130.543000. 
BUCKRIDGE,PHYLLIS- CPL RENEWAL 001.237020. 
MCLERRAN, JOHN-CPL RENEWAL 00 1.237020. 
PIFFATH,NICOLAI-CPL ORIGINAL 001.237020. 
ROBBINS,THOMAS-CPL RENEWAL 001.237020. 
GUTTER MATERIALS- STRWBERY FLD 00 105380.53 1000. 
UB 13 1334150001 11926 46TH AVE 401.1221 10. 
BANK CARD FEES - JAN 2007 00 100050.54 1000. 
LEGAL ADVERTISING 00 102020.544000. 
LEGAL ADS 00 102020.544000. 
LEGAL ADVERTISING 00 102020.544000. 
LEGAL ADS 00 102020.544000. 

00102020.544000. 
LEGAL ADVERTISING 40230594.563000.S( 
SUITE 101 WHITE ENVELOPES 00101023.531000. 
BUSINESS CARDS- J. DORCAS 00 102020.53 1000. 
BUSINESS CARDS - CHIEF SMITH 00103010.53 1000. 
BUSINESS CARDS CSO DREYER 00104230.53 1000. 
1635 GROVE-PSB- S,G,S, STORMWT 00 1000 10.547000. 
662 1 GROVE ST IRR-STORMWATER 00 105380.547000. 
69 15 ARMAR RD - WATER 00105380.547000. 
6915 ARMAR RD- WATER, STORMWTR 00 105380.547000. 
53 15 64TH AV- WATER, SEWER 00105380.547000. 
691 5 ARMAR RD- WATER,SEWER 00 105380.547000. 
6915 ARMAR RD- WATER, SEWER 00105380.547000. 
69 15 ARMAR RD-WTR, GBG, SEWER 00 105380.547000. 
6120 GROVE- WTR,GBG,STORMWATER 00 1 12572.547000. 
LOCKS 7 OF 16-WATER FILTRATION 40 14 1580.548000. 
LOCKS 9 OF 16-WATER FILTRATION 40 141 580.548000. 
UB 2 1270000000 1 490 1 122ND PL 401.1221 10. 
MEMORY UPGRADES 50300090.535000. 
WORKSTATION MEMORY CD & ENG 50300090.535000. 
REFUND DEPOSIT- JENNINGS BARN 00 1.239100. 
INSTRUCTOR - YOGA 00 105 120.54 1020. 
INSTRUCTOR- PILATES 00 105 120.54 1020. 
MODEMS, CABLE, SOFTWARE 50100048.564000. 
VARIOUS MOTOR OILS 501.141 100. 
IS CELL SERVICE 1012006 50300090.542000. 
IS CELL SERVICE 9/20106 50300090.542000. 
IS CELL SERVICE 1 1/2006 50300090.542000. 
L DUQUE- IT CONSULTING 50300090.54 1000. 
PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS 00103010.541000. 

00103010.541000. 
HONEY BUCKET-STRAWBERRY FIELD 00 105380.545000. 
ANNUAL MAINTICALIB-LAB BALANCE 40 142480.54 1000. 
IT SUPPLIES 50300090.53 1000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

Consent 4 - 5

Page 40 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: I :42:53PM 

CHK # VENDOR 

37262 VANCE P ODELL 
37263 OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFlCE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR lNVOICES FROM 212012007 TO 2/21/2007 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICES 1/07 
CREDIT MEMO - LASER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFlCE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
BATTERIES 
OFFlCE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFlCE SUPPLIES 
COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES. COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
FILES 
OFFlCE SUPPLIES 
CHAIR, MAT,OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

COPY PAPER, OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
BATTERIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
BATTERIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 

ACCOUNT # 

00102515.541000. 
00100020.53 1000. 
00 100020.53 1000. 
00 100020.53 1000. 
00100020.53 1000. 
00100020.53 1000. 
00 100020.53 1000. 
00100020.53 1000. 
00100020.53 1000. 
00 100020.53 1000. 
00 100060.53 1000. 
00 1003 10.53 1000. 
001 003 10.53 1000. 
00 1003 10.53 1000. 
00101023.531000. 
00101023.531000. 
00101 130.531000. 
00 102020.53 1000. 
00102020.53 1000. 
001 02020.53 1000. 
00 102020.53 1000. 
00102020.53 1000. 
00 102020.53 1000. 
00102020.53 1000. 
00103121.531000. 
00103222.53 1000. 
00 103222.53 1000. 
00 103222.53 1000. 
00103222.53 1000. 
00 103222.53 1000. 
00104000.53 1000. 
00104190.53 1000. 
00104190.53 1000. 
00104 190.53 1000. 
00104190.53 1000. 
00 104190.53 1000. 
00 143523.53 1000. 
00143523.531000. 
101 1 1230.53 1000. 
40 142480.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
401434 10.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
40143410.53 1000. 
50100065.53 1000. 
50100065.53 1000. 
50100065.53 1000. 
50100065.53 1000. 

PAGE: 5 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

Consent 4 - 6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 41 of 575



DATE: 212 1/2007 
TIME: I :42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/20/2007 TO 2/21/2007 

PAGE: 6 

CHK # VENDOR 
37263 OFFICE DEPOT 

OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE DEPOT 

37264 ALLENA OLSON 
37265 OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 
OVERALL LAUNDRY SERVICES INC 

37266 PACIFIC TOPSOILS INC 
37267 THE PARTS STORE 

THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 
THE PARTS STORE 

37268 LAURIE HUGDAHL 
LAURIE HUGDAHL 
LAURIE HUGDAI-IL 
LAURIE HUGDAHL 

37269 LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 
LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 

37270 PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 
PETROCARD SYSTEMS INC 

37271 PHOTOGRAFIX 
PHOTOGRAFIX 

37272 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 
37273 PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 

PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
BATTERIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OFFICE SUPPLIES, COPIER PAPER 

MILEAGE-FEDERAL FUNDING SYMPO,' 
MAT CLEANING - WWTP 
MAT CLEANING -MEZZANINE 

UNIFORM CLEANING - CARL 
UNIFORM CLEANING-CARL 

UNIFORM CLEANING-MECHANICS 
DUMP ASPHALT, DUMP CONCRETE 
AIRIOIL FILTERS, HEADLAMP, ETC 
CREDIT MEMO-RETURN SEW BELT 
SPARK PLUGS #556 
SERPENTINE BELT EXCHANGE #807 
SERPENTINE BELT #920 
SERPENTINE BELT- #92 1 
DRIVE BELT,SAW DRIVE BELT4299 
SERPENTINE BELTIIDLER-#807 
WATER PUMPITHERMOSTAT ASSY#33: 
MINUTE TAKING SVC-COUNCIL 2/05 
COUNCIL MTG MINUTES SVC 2/12 
MINUTE TAKING SERVICE-1/29/07 
MINUTE TAKING SERVICE 113 1/07 
ZWTP SK- EVIDENCE BOXES 

FUEL- ENGINEERING/SURFACE WATR 
FUEL - POLICE 
FUEL-OPERATIONS, SANITATION 
FUEL- ENGINEERINGISURFACE WATR 
FUEL-OPERATIONS, SANITATION 
CANNON EOS 30 D DIGITAL CAMERA 

PERMIT 42 ACCOUNT 
ACCT 4 18-00 1-6 12-5 
ACCT 345-002-2 10-2 
ACCT34 1-007-063-9 METER255904 
ACCT 490-00 1-1 55-4 
ACCT 445-003-900-5 
ACCT 343-042-303-2 
ACCT 423-00 1-35 1-0 
ACCT 564-00 1 - 175-4 
6700 88TH ST -UTILITY CHARGE 
ACCT 493-00 1-880- 1 

ACCT# 540-0 1 1-293-3 
PUD-6MG RES 500-001-942-1 
ACCT 335-001 -900-0 
ACCT 40 1-00 1-485-2 

ACCOUNT # 

50100065.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
50200050.53 1000. 
00 100020.549000. 
40142480.598 100. 
40 143780.549000. 
40143780.549000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
42047 165.526000. 
50 100065.526000. 
10 1 1 1230.548000. 
501.141 100. 
50 100065.534000. 
50 100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50 100065.534000. 
50 100065.534000. 
50100065.534000. 
50 100065.534000. 
50 100065.534000. 
00101 130.541000. 
00 101 130.541000. 
00 102020.541000. 
00 102020.54 1000. 
00 1.23 1700. 
00 104 190.53 1000. 
00 100020.532000. 
00 103222.532000. 
40143880.532000. 
40 145040.532000. 
4 1046060.532000. 
103.23 1700. 
10308521.535000. 
00 143523.542000. 
00 1000 10.547000. 
00 105380.547000. 
00 105380.547000. 
001 12572.547000. 
00 1995 13.547000. 
10 1 10463.547000. 
101 10564.547000. 
10 1 10564.547000. 
10 1 1 1230.547000. 
401401 80.547000. 
40 140 180.547000. 
40 140 180.547000. 
401401 80.547000. 
40140 180.547000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

28.32 
2.37 
2.44 

10.78 
13.89 
28.3 1 

42.27 
7.9 1 

13.55 
20.21 
21.50 
21.50 
21.50 
68.27 

760.00 
397.35 
-24.46 

4.0 1 
4.1 1 

33.32 
33.32 
47.13 
86.73 

108.94 
1 17.00 
162.00 
36.00 

195.00 
-25.78 
329.03 
48.68 

3,769.43 
2,974.06 

73.44 
2,792.03 
- 160.52 

2,048.92 
4,000.00 
3,033.21 

15.50 
287.69 

3,970.24 
2,387.37 

840.08 
49.37 

1 17.75 
272.5 1 

27.75 
142.94 
191.05 
625.44 

1,726.45 

Consent 4 - 7

Page 42 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: 1:42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/20/2007 TO 2/21/2007 

PAGE: 7 

CHK # 

37273 

VENDOR 

PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO I OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUD NO 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
PUGET SOUND SECURITY 
R & G CONSRUCTION 
RADAR INC 
ROBERT HALF TECHNOLOGY 
ROMTEC 
SCBOWBO REC BALL DIVISION 
SHRED IT WESTERN WASHINGTON 
SHRED IT WESTERN WASHINGTON 
SHRED IT WESTERN WASHINGTON 
TERRY SIMON 
SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 
SNO CO PUBLIC WORKS 
JOHN SORIANO 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SOUND SAFETY PRODUCTS CO INC 
SPRINGBROOK NURSERY 
SPRINGBROOK NURSERY 
SPRINGBROOK NURSERY 
SPRINGBROOK NURSERY 
SPRINGBROOK NURSERY 
WASHINGTON STATE PATROL 
STELLAR INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY 
SUNRISE ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTIFIC 
KAREN SWANSON 
ELMA SWANSON 
SYSTEMS INTERFACE INC 
TELE-COMMUNICATION, INC 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

ACCT 243-00 1-286-0 
ACCT 370-002- 19 1-2 
ACCT # 46 1-029-794-9 
ACCT 447-00 1-040-8 
ACCT 543-001-067-7 
SERVICE DATE 1215106-2/5/07 
DUPLICATE KEY-PSB BLDG 
HYDRANT METER-DEPOSIT REFUND 
SERIAL PORT CABLE 
S. BAKHTIARI IT TEMP (W.E 212) 
4 CLEAN OUT COVERS-RESTROOMS 
(108) I -REF & (45) 2-REF GAMES 
SHREDDNG SERVICES 

SHREDDING SERVICE 
PRO TEM SERVICES 215 
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FEES- JAN 
DISPOSAL FEES- MIXED DEBRIS 
MILEAGE- AWC LEGISLATIVE CONF 
3 PR JEANS - R. AVEY 

3 PR JEANS- J. PALM 
3 PR JEANS- L. SKYTA 
BOOTS - D. LAMBERT 
BOOTS - R. AVEY 
BOOTS - F. STAIR 

BOOTS - J. CRAIN 
BOOTS- J. CRAIN 
BOOTS- J. FILORI 

BOOTS - S. BRYANT 
3 PR JEANS- E. TINSLEY 
3 PR JEANS- D. DOUGLAS 
3 PR JEANS- D. HIGBEE 
3 PR JEANS - T. BALLOU 
BOOTS- T. BALLOU 
BOOTS- D. DOUGLAS 
1 PR JEANS- L. IMADHAY 
2 PR JEANS- L. IMADHAY 
BOOTS. JEANS EXCHANGE- IMADHAY 
112 YD MED BARK- LIBRARY 
112 YD 518 CHIPS-COOK SHELTER 
2 112 YDS GRAVEL 

3 YDS MED BARK- LIBRARY 
FINGERPRINT BACKGROUND CHECKS 
118" LETTERIFIGURE STAMPS 
WIPEOFF,ERASE GRAFFITI REMOVER 
REFUND - OTHER 
REFUND- MEDICAL 
SUPPLY XPS-15: MSVL SUNNYSIDE 
HEADSET 

ACCOUNT # 

40 142280.547000. 
40 142480.547000. 
40 142480.547000. 
40 142480.547000. 
40 1434 10.547000. 
42047267.547000. 
00100010.53 1000. 
40 1.245200. 
501.141 100. 
50300090.54 1000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00105120.53 1040. 
00 100 1 10.549000. 
00 1003 10.549000. 
00103010.541000. 
00 100050.54 1000. 
4 1046060.55 1000. 
00105380.547000. 
00 100060.543000. 
401434 10.526200. 
401434 10.526200. 
40 1434 10.526200. 
40 1434 10.526200. 
401434 10.526200. 
40143410.526300. 
401434 10.526300. 
401434 10.526300. 
401434 10.526300. 
40 1434 10.526300. 
401434 10.526300. 
401434 10.526300. 
4 1046060.526000. 
4 1046060.526000. 
4 1046060.526000. 
4 1046060.526000. 
4 1046060.526000. 
4 1046060.526000. 
50 148058.526000. 
50148058.526000. 
50148058.526000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00105380.531000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
001.237100. 
40142480.535000. 
00105380.53 1000. 
00 1 10347.376020. 
001 10347.376020. 
40142280.548000. 
00143523.53 1000. 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

619.58 
7,408.59 
9,697.20 

12,390.97 
28.52 

226.86 
3.20 

167.10 
79.26 

1,152.00 
272.84 

5.337.00 
24.75 
24.75 
89.10 

185.00 
107,3 16.00 

75.00 
94.09 
92.85 
92.85 
92.85 

157.33 
165.94 
81.31 
81.31 
81.31 
81.31 
81.31 
81.31 

170.00 
97.74 
99.37 
99.37 

100.18 
139.90 
155.09 
30.14 
60.27 

159.86 
9.15 

18.29 
44.38 
44.39 
54.88 

192.00 
56.03 

359.49 
69.00 
69.00 

916.70 
68.83 

Consent 4 - 8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 43 of 575



DATE: 212 112007 
TIME: 1:42:53PM 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
INVOICE LIST 

FOR INVOICES FROM 2/20/2007 TO 2/21/2007 

CHK # 

37293 
37294 

VENDOR 

TELE-COMMUNICATION, INC 
TERRA RESOURCE GROUP 
TERRA RESOURCE GROUP 
J. STEVEN TIHOMAS 
J. STEVEN THOMAS 
TOKAY SOFTWARE 
LORRIE TOWERS 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
UNITED PARCEL, SERVICE 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
UNITED RENTALS 
UNITED RENTALS 
UNITED RENTALS 
UNITED RENTALS 
UNITED RENTALS 
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION CTR 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
VERIZON NORTHWEST 
MARY VESZELOVSZKY 
VINYL SIGNS & BANNERS 
VINYL SIGNS & BANNERS 
WENDY WADE 
WASTE MANAGEMENT NORTHWEST 
LOREN WAXLER 
WAYNE F RICKARD 
WEBCHECK 
ERICA WEIR 
WESTERN EQUIPMENT DISTRIBUTORS 
WESTERN GRAPHICS INC 
WESTERN POWER & EQUIPMENT 
ALEX WIERSMA 
ALEX WIERSMA 
CHESTER WOGE 
DONNA WRIGHT 
DONNA WRIGHT 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 

HEADSETS 
TEMP. WORK-REBECCA STARCHER 
TEMP.- REBECCA STARCHER 
PRO TEM SERVICES 1/17 & 1119 
PRO TEM SERVICES 216 & 219 
BACKFLOW PREV. MGMT SOFTWARE 
PRO TEM SERVICE 118 & 1/25/07 
SHIPPING CHARGES 

LEVEL LASER SENSOR HOLDER 
CB DRAIN GUARDS 
BROOMS, PAINT, OIL, BATTERIES 
HYDRAULIC SPREADER 
MULTI-CUTTER SAW, BLADE 
EXCAVATION NOTIFICATION- I12007 
ACCT.# 03 0274 109471 5727 10 
ACCT# 10877883 1503 
ACCT.# 03 02 1 1 10977883 18 10 
ACCT.# 03 0273 1092686355 01 
ACCT 102857559902 
ACCT 102778795907 
METER READING 10116 -1 1/15/06 
METER READING 1 1/16 - 1211 5/06 
METER READING 12/16 -1/15/07 
METER READING 9/16 - 1011 5/06 
METER READING 8/30 - 911 5106 
UTILITY TAX REBATE 
JENNINGSICOMEFORD PARK SIGNS 

REIMBURSE MEALS-STREET SURVIVL 
SERVICE - JANUARY 
DURAND, MICHELLE C5230L 
INTERIOR DETAIL, REPLACE SEAT 
ONLINE LIEN REQUEST-UB 1107 
REFUND DEPOSIT-JENNFNGS BARN 
SCREW- FH 
MOTORCYCLE DECALS/INSTALLATIOl 
WATER SO1,ENOID VALVE-#MO 12 
REIMBURSE MEAL-STREET SURVIVAL 
MEALS-FIELD TRAINING ACADEMY 
PREVIOUSLY OWNED GOLF BALLS 
REGIST & AIRFARE-NLC WASH D.C. 

ACCOUNT # 

00 143523.53 1000. 
00 100050.54 1000. 
00 100050.54 1000. 
00 100050.54 1000. 
001 00050.54 1000. 
40 140780.54 1000. 
00 100050.54 1000. 
00 103222.542000. 
00 103222.542000. 
00 103222.542000. 
00 103222.542000. 
00 103222.542000. 
101 1 1230.535000. 
40 145040.548000. 
501.141 100. 
50 100065.535000. 
50100065.535000. 
40141 180.541000. 
00103 121.542000. 
00 104000.542000. 
00 104000.542000. 
00 104000.542000. 
00 1 12572.542000. 
40 1434 10.542000. 
40141280.541000. 
40 14 1280.54 1000. 
40141280.541000. 
40141280.541000. 
40141280.541000. 
00 102520.5490 10. 
00105380.53 1000. 
3 1000076.563000.P~ 
00 103222.543000. 
42047267.547000. 
001025 15.541000. 
50 100065.548000. 
00143523.541000. 
00 1.239 100. 
42047 165.548000. 
00 103222.548000. 
50 100065.534000. 
00 103222.543000. 
00 103222.543000. 
42047267.534000. 
00100060.543000. 
00100060.549000. 

WARRANT TOTAL: 

PAGE: 8 

ITEM 
AMOUNT 

Consent 4 - 9

Page 44 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
1 AGENDA ITEM: 1 AGENDA SECTION: I Payroll I 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

- 

Please see attached. 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Blanket Certification 

BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the February 
20,2007 payroll in the amount $638,989.97 Check No.'s 17485 through 17541. 

APPROVED 

.#s!? 
AMOUNT: 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Consent 5 - 1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 45 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

Agreement 
PREPARED BY: 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 

Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Visitor and Community Information Center Services 

I AGENDA NUMBER: ( 

AGENDA SECTION: 

I ATTACHMENTS: I APPROVED BY: 
I Proposed Agreement b 

The City of Marysville has contracted with The Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of 
Commerce for visitor and community information services for the past two years. The latest 
contract expired December 3 1, 2006 and both the City and the Chamber wish to renew this 
agreement. 

The City of Marysville together with the Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of Commerce and 
the Tulalip Tribes have worked together on a joint efforts to foster economic growth in our 
community. 

Discussion between the City and Chamber regarding the renewal of this agreement as led to a 
request to increase the agreement amount from $24,000 to $31,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Visitor and Community Infonnation Center Services Agreement 
with the Greater Marysville Tulalip Chamber of Commerce and City of Marysville. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

Consent 6 - 1

Page 46 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Consent 6 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 47 of 575



VISITOR & COMMUNITY INFORMATION CENTER 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THE GREATER MARYSVILLE TULALIP CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
& CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

The CITY OF MARYSVILLE, a first-class municipal corporation of the State of Washington 
(hereinafter the "City"), with offices located at City Hall, 1049 State Avenue, Marysville, 
Washington, 98270, and THE GREATER MARYSVILLE TULALIP CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE, 8825 341h Avenue NE, Suite C, Marysville, Washington, 98271 (hereinafter the 
LLC~ntra~tor") ,  in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

I. PURPOSE: This Agreement covers the partial funding of a Visitor & Community 
Information Center which is a joint economic development project of The Greater 
Marysville Tulalip Chamber of Commerce, the City of Marysville and the Tulalip Tribes. 

11. TERM OF AGREEMENT: Notwithstanding the date of execution hereof, this 
Agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2007 to December 3 1, 2007, both dates 
inclusive. 

111. LIAISON: The City's officer responsible for this Agreement is Mary Swenson, the Chief 
Administrative Officer. The Contractor's responsible person is Caldie Rogers, the 
PresidentICEO. 

IV. SCOPE OF WORK: See Exhibit "A" attached and incorporated herein by this reference. 

V. PAYMENT: Contractor shall be paid $3 1,000.00 per year payable in the first quarter of 
2006. 

VI. EXTRA WORK AND CHANGE ORDERS: Work in addition to, or different from, that 
provided for in the Scope of Work section, shall only be allowed by prior authorization in 
writing, as a modification to this Agreement. Such modifications shall be attached hereto 
and made a part hereof, and shall be approved in the same manner as this Agreement. 

VII. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE: The Contractor agrees to defend the City, hold it 
harmless, and indemnify it as to all claims, suits, costs, fees and liability arising out of the 
acts or work of the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, or agents (including field 
work) pursuant to this Agreement, where such liability is incurred as a result of the 
actions or omissions of such parties. Contractor will obtain and maintain in force at least 
the following minimum insurance coverage covering all activity under this Agreement, 
and as to which the City shall be named as additional insured: 

A. Workers Compensation Statutory Amount 
B. Broad Form comprehensive General Liability $1,000,000 

Consent 6 - 3

Page 48 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



C. Automobile Liability $ 500,000 

Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted it under 
the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW. Further, the 
indemnification obligation under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any 
limitation on benefits payable to or for any third party under the workers' compensation 
acts. 

An insurance certificate showing the coverage required under this paragraph VII will be 
submitted to the City annually. The City, its officers, agents and employees shall be 
named as additional insured's as it respects the obligations under this agreement. 

VIII. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable 
laws, ordinances, and codes and statutes of the State and local governments. 

IX. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES: 

A. Should either party hereto believe that the other has failed to substantially perform all 
or a material part of its obligations under the Agreement, it shall deliver written 
notice to that effect to the other, specifying the alleged default and giving the other 
party fifteen (15) days to cure such default. Thereafter, should the default not be 
remedied to the satisfaction of the non-defaulting party, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the non-defaulting party upon seven (7) days written notice (delivered 
by certified mail). 

B. In the event of default by either party, the non-defaulting party may, at its option, 
bring suit to either recover damages resulting from the default or, alternatively, seek 
specific performance of this Agreement. 

C. Should a party file suit to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, including without 
limitation a suit seeking damages for default, the substantially prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recoup its legal expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred, 
in connection with such effort. 

D. If either party defaults without legal excuse in timely fulfilling any monetary 
obligation owed to the other party hereunder, the obligation shall bear 12% simple 
interest from the date of default until paid in full. 

X. ASSIGNMENT: Neither party shall assign or delegate any or all interests in this 
Agreement without first obtaining the written consent of the other party. 

XI. VENUE STIPULATION: This Agreement has been and shall be considered as having 
been made and delivered within the State of Washington, and shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of Washington both as to interpretation and performance. Any action in 
law or equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any of the 

Consent 6 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 49 of 575



provisions contained therein, shall be instituted and maintained only in Snohomish 
County Superior Court, Everett, Washington. 

XII. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR: Neither the Contractor nor personnel employed by the 
Contractor shall acquire any rights or status in the City's employment, nor shall they be 
deemed employees or agents of the City for any purpose other than as specified herein. 
Contractor shall be deemed an independent contractor and shall be responsible in full for 
payment of its employees, including workers' compensation, insurance, payroll 
deductions, and all related costs. Further, Contractor represents that it is customarily in 
the business of providing the services described in this Agreement, has its own place of 
business, is eligible for and does file with the Internal Revenue Service a schedule of 
business expenses, has established an account with the State Department of Revenue and 
has received a unified business identifier number, and maintains a separate set of books 
and records for such business. 

EXECUTED, this the day of , 2007, for the Contractor, 
THE GREATER MARYSVILLE TULALIP CHAMBER OF COMMERCE: 

EXECUTED, this the day of ,2007, for the 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE: 

Attest: 

Approved as to form: 

Departmental Approval: 

Consent 6 - 5

Page 50 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



EXHIBIT A 

VISITOR & COMMUNITY INFORMATION CENTER 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The goal of the Visitor & Community Information Center (VCIC) is to strengthen area economy 
by promoting the greater Marysville Tulalip area as a desirable place to visit whether for leisure, 
business, or culture with a focus on enhancing the visibility and growth of businesses within the 
visitor market; and 2) promoting the greater Marysville Tulalip area as a desirable place to invest 
and live in. 

Free travel and recreation counseling services will be provided to visitors and residents 9:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., seven days a week from Memorial Day through Labor Day and Mondays through 
Fridays from Labor Day to Memorial Day. Free community and business information will be 
provided to residents, current and potential investors and businesses year-round Mondays 
through Fridays from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

A summary of contacts and services rendered will be tracked and reported monthly in writing to 
the City's project manager. 

The Chamber's scope of work regarding the Visitor & Community Information Center will 
include: 

Organize and coordinate an ongoing Volunteer Travel Counselor Development Program 
to include recruitment, placement, training, supervising, recognition and evaluation of 
volunteers; 

Plan and direct the activities of the Visitor & Community Information Center including: 
developing a comprehensive information network, monitoring and updating changes in 
information, collecting and distributing literature and materials, providing promotional 
display areas in the Visitor & Community Information Center, and providing Voter's 
Registration services; 

Develop cooperative relations with local and statewide chambers of commerce, 
information centers, visitor and convention bureaus, local community service 
organizations, other tourist attractions and the State of Washington's Division of 
Tourism, providing an environment required to adequately respond to requests from 
visitors, locals and businesses for information and referrals; 

Coordinate approved public use of chamber facilities including scheduling use, 
supervising and monitoring use, assisting users as required, and identifying and reporting 
safety and maintenance concerns; 

Consent 6 - 6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 51 of 575



Maintain and distribute literature and materials reasonably required for the proper and 
efficient operation of the Visitor & Community Information Center; 

Collect and display tourism and recreation promotional videos; 

Maintain a record keeping system, resource library and community information data 
bases; 

Manage the administrative functions of the Visitor & Community Information Program 
including: recruiting, hiring, training, supervising and evaluating the Visitor Services 
staff, includes full-time, part-time, temporary, interns and students. 

Serve as a distribution point for materials generated and provided by the City's economic 
development committees. 

Assist the City's economic development efforts by providing available information to 
committees as requested. 

Direct businesses seeking relocation to the City's Community Development Director or 
appropriate City staff. 

Provide a monthly report documenting businesses seeking location andlor relocation to 
the region. 

Work collaboratively with City staff to ensure that efforts are not duplicated and 
enhanced services are provided to both parties. 

In an effort to keep all parties informed with the progress and successes of this agreement the 
parties agree to the following: 

The Chamber President will meet on a monthly basis with the City's Chief 
Administrative Officer to ensure adequate lines of communication exist between both 
parties. 

The Chamber PresidentICEO and four Chamber Board members will meet with the 
Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer and three Council members, on an as needed basis 
to review the status of the contract. 

Consent 6 - 7

Page 52 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



U:\Survey\Visitor Info Svcs 2/27/2007 

City of Marysville 
Visitor 

Information 
Contract 

Services Survey 

Arlington 

Bothell 

Covington 

Edmonds 

Kent 

Kirkland 

Lynnwood 

Marysville 

Monroe 

Moses Lake 

MTLKT 

Olympia 

Redmond 

Richland 

Pasco 

Port Angeles 

Yakima - 

Do you contract out for 
visitor information services? 

N o 

Yes 

N o 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

If so with whom? 

Chamber 

Chamber 

Chamber 

Visitor & Convention Bureau 

Brandhamer 

The Chamber & The 
Convention Bureau 

If so how much is the 
contract? 

$22,80O/yr 

$1 8,000lyr 

$7,50O/yr 

$90,000 (HotelIMotel Tax) 

$50,0001yr 

Chamber-$1 0,000lyr 
Conv Bureau-$50% of 

HotelIMotel Tax 

Comments 

Chamber rec'd HotelIMotel grant for visitor 
office space 

Plus $53,00O/yr advertising and $1 5,6001yr 
website contract - 

Consent 6 - 8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 53 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
[ AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

Interlocal Agreement Between Snohomish County and the City of 
Marysville for Traffic Signal and Street Light Maintenance 
PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Massie, Assistant City Engineer 
ATTACHMENTS : 

Interlocal Agreement Between Snohomish County and the 
City of Marysville for Traffic Signal and Street Light 
Maintenance 

BUDGET CODE: 

The existing interlocal agreement, executed on June 7, 2000, has recently expired with 
Snohomish County which allowed County Public Works staff to provide Marysville with traffic 
signal and street light maintenance and operations services. This new interlocal will allow the 
City to request the County to continue to provide these services on an as-needed basis for a 
period of six more years. 

Consent 

AGENDA NLTMBER: 

AMOUNT: 
101 11230.541000 

In the event of emergency situations, or at times when Marysville's Senior Traffic Control 
System Technician is unavailable, the City desires the services of Snohomish County's Traffic 
Operations personnel and equipment to assist the City with signal and street light maintenance 
and operations. The County can provide to the City the service of traffic signal control 
technicians who possess the same certifications as our Senior Traffic Control System Technician, 
specifically journeyman electrician licensure and Level 2 and 3 International Municipal Signal 
Association (IMSA) certifications. 

TBD 

Although Marysville's Traffic Control System Technician does possess a Level 1 IMSA 
certification, additional experience is needed to obtain the Level 2 and 3 IMSA certifications 
necessary to effectively maintain and operate the City's growing inventory of traffic signal 
control systems and street lights. Additionally the Traffic Control System Technician has other 
existing non-signal related responsibilities including pavement marking and street sign 
installation and maintenance. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement 
Between Snohomish County and the City of Marysville for Traffic Signal and Street Light 
Maintenance. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

G:/shared/engineering/Massie/County interlocal for signal maintenance.doc 

Consent 7 - 1

Page 54 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
BARBARA SIKORSKI 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY COUNCIL 
3000 ROCKEFELLER AVENUE MS 609 
EVERETT, WA 9820 1 

Parties: City of Marysville and Snohomish County 
Tax Account No.: Not Applicable 
Legal Description: Not Applicable 
Reference No. of Documents Affected: Not Applicable 
Filed with the Auditor pursuant to RCW 39.34.040 
Document Title: 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Between 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY and THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between SNOHOMISH COUNTY, a 
political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY" and the 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, hereinafter 
referred to as "CITY" for the purpose of providing traffic signal and street light maintenance 
services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY'S geographical boundaries lie within the COUNTY; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY possesses the power, legal authority and responsibility to maintain traffic 
signals and street lights within its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY, through the Snohomish County Department of Public Works, 
provides traffic signal and street light maintenance services within unincorporated portions of 
Snohomish County and also possesses the ability to provide those services into the geographical 
area of the CITY; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to enter into an agreement with the COUNTY whereby the 
COUNTY will perform traffic signal and street light maintenance services within the boundaries 
of the CITY; and 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final 1-07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 1 of 9 

Consent 7 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 55 of 575



WHEREAS, the COUNTY is agreeable to rendering such services on the terms and conditions 
contained in the following Interlocal Agreement, hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"; and 

WHEREAS, such agreement is entered into under the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 
RCW, RCW 36.75.207 and RCW 35.77.020-.040; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED as follows: 

1. Scope of Agreement 

A. The COUNTY agrees to perform for the CITY any and all functions specified below 
relating to traffic signal and street light maintenance services, subject to the 
availability of sufficient personnel, equipment and materials to perform the requested 
work without unduly disrupting the normal operation and functions of the COUNTY. 

B. For the purpose of this Agreement, "traffic signal maintenance services" shall be 
limited to the following activities, not subject to mandatory competitive bidding, as 
determined by the CITY: 

Routine Maintenance, Re-lamp, On-Call Emergency Response, Materials, and Signal 
Engineering as requested by the CITY and described in detail in Exhibit A, attached 
and incorporated by reference into this Agreement. 

C. For the purpose of this Agreement, "street light maintenance services" shall be limited 
to the following activities, not subject to mandatory competitive bidding, as 
determined by the CITY: 

Routine Maintenance, Electrical Repair, and Materials, as described in detail in 
Exhibit A, attached and incorporated reference into this Agreement. 

D. For the purpose of this Agreement, "traffic signal maintenance services" and "street 
light maintenance services" are collectively referred to as "Services." 

E. The COUNTY Public Works Director and/or the COUNTY Engineer, acting as the 
administrators of this Agreement, and CITY Director of Public Works are authorized 
to act on behalf of the COUNTY and CITY respectively, and shall develop working 
procedures associated with any of the activities comprising Services. No separate 
legal or administrative entity is created under this Agreement. 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final I-07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 2 of 9 

Consent 7 - 3

Page 56 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



F. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as in any way divesting the CITY of any 
of its powers with respect to the supervision, management, and control of streets 
within its boundaries. 

G. By entering into this Agreement, the parties intend to have the COUNTY provide 
Services to the CITY. The COUNTY does not intend to assume, nor does the CITY 
expect the COUNTY to gain, any greater responsibility and/or liability than it would 
normally have imposed upon it by law for the performance of traffic signal and street 
light maintenance services generally for the citizens of unincorporated Snohomish 
County. 

H. The COUNTY is acting as an independent contractor so that control of personnel, 
standards of performance, discipline, and all other aspects of performance shall be 
governed entirely by the COUNTY. 

2. Performance of Traffic Signal and Street Light Maintenance Services 

A. For the purpose of performing Services under this Agreement, the COUNTY shall 
furnish and supply all necessary labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, 
and supplies except to the extent labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, andlor 
materials are supplied by the CITY as agreed to by the COUNTY in writing. In 
addition, the COUNTY will perform material sampling and equipment testing. Both 
parties agree that they and their officers and agents shall cooperate in the carrying out 
of said functions and that the COUNTY shall have full authority, possession and 
necessary control of the work with the full assistance when necessary from the police 
of the CITY. 

B. For the purpose of facilitating the performance of the Services under this Agreement, 
it is hereby agreed that the CITY, upon reasonable request in writing by the 
COUNTY or its duly authorized representative, will allow the temporary closing to 
traffic of all streets, or portions thereof, necessary to be closed before any work is 
commenced thereon. The CITY will be responsible for furnishing the materials and 
labor needed to temporarily close a street or streets while maintenance is being 
performed. 

C. The Services provided by the COUNTY under this Agreement shall be pursued with 
care and diligence to COUNTY standards. The COUNTY will make efforts to 
accommodate pertinent schedules of the CITY. The COUNTY shall notify in 
writing the CITY of any hardship or other inability to perform under this Agreement, 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final I -07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 3 of 9 

Consent 7 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 57 of 575



including postponement of requested work due to priority given the normal workload 
of COUNTY personnel. 

3. Work Order Requests 

Requests for work which is not included in the Services set out in Exhibit A shall be 
processed through work order requests. 

A. If the CITY desires that the COUNTY perform any work on its signal and street 
lighting system beyond the Services identified in Exhibit A, then the CITY shall 
direct a work order request to the COUNTY Public Works' Transportation and 
Environmental Services Director, on forms provided by the COUNTY. These work 
order requests shall adequately describe the work to be performed and indicate a 
desired completion date. The COUNTY may require the CITY to prepare a road 
plan and profile or sketches to adequately describe the scope, intent and detail of the 
work. 

B. The COUNTY shall respond to such work order request in writing. If the 
COUNTY's response is in the affirmative, the COUNTY shall include an estimate of 
time and costs to complete the work. Charges shall be in accordance with Section 4 
of this Agreement. 

Upon receipt of the COUNTY's estimate, the CITY may either issue a written notice 
to proceed which authorizes the COUNTY to perform the requested work or a written 
notice rejecting the COUNTY's estimate. The issuance of a notice to proceed shall 
constitute a representation by the CITY that the schedule of charges and basis of 
payment are acceptable and sufficient funds are appropriated to cover the cost of the 
requested work. The issuance of a rejection by the CITY shall relieve the COUNTY 
of all obligations to perform any work identified in the work order request. If no 
written notice to proceed is received by the COUNTY from the CITY within tenty- 
one (21) days from the mailing date of the COUNTY's estimate, then the COUNTY 
will treat the estimate as if it had been rejected. 

D. The scope of requested work may be amended in writing at any time with the consent 
of both parties. 

E. It may be necessary for the COUNTY to use consultants from the COUNTY on-call 
list to complete the duties described in this section. 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traf ic  Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final 1 -07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 4 of 9 

Consent 7 - 5

Page 58 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



4. Basis of Payment 

A. Unless otherwise hereinafter provided, the CITY shall pay to the COUNTY 
Treasurer, for Services within the scope of this Agreement, the entire cost to the 
COUNTY of performing such work, including; salaries wages, and benefits of all 
employees engaged therein; all supervision over such employees while so employed; 
cost of clerical work and travel expenses, including mileage of employees; prorated 
departmental overhead; office supplies; materials; all other costs and incidental 
expenses; and depreciation on machinery and equipment. 

In computing the cost of the use of machinery and equipment, the full cost to the 
COUNTY of rental machinery and equipment and any operator furnished therewith, 
and the COUNTY equipment rental rate on COUNTY-owned machinery and 
equipment shall be included. 

B. The COUNTY shall be reimbursed in full by the CITY for Services provided by the 
COUNTY in accordance with the schedule of estimated costs set forth in Exhibit C 
incorporated herein or as otherwise incurred in connection with approved work order 
requests. The estimated cost set forth in Exhibit C are as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. Estimated costs may be adjusted annually to reflect current labor and 
material charges. The COUNTY shall document all costs for labor, materials and 
equipment with its billing to the CITY. The COUNTY agrees that only those costs 
directly allocable to a project under accepted accounting procedures will be charged 
to the project. 

C. For the purpose of fixing the compensation to be paid by the CITY to the COUNTY 
for the services rendered, it is hereby agreed that there shall be included in each 
billing, to cover administrative costs, an amount not to exceed the COUNTY 
administrative rate. This rate is currently set at 15% of the total labor cost to the 
COUNTY of performing all services to the CITY during billing period under this 
Agreement. This rate may be adjusted annually to reflect changes in actual 
administrative costs. 

D. The CITY agrees to make payment on billings submitted by the COUNTY within 
thirty (30) days following receipt by the CITY of said billing. 

5. Records 

A. The COUNTY shall maintain accurate time and accounting records related to work 
under this Agreement in the same manner as prescribed for normal COUNTY road 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final 1-07.doc 
JGL 1 1/22/2007 

Page 5 of 9 

Consent 7 - 6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 59 of 575



projects. Such records as to any project shall be available for inspection in the 
COUNTY Department of Public Works for a period of three (3) years following final 
payment of billings for such project. 

B. The COUNTY shall keep a reasonable itemized and detailed work or job record 
covering the cost of all services performed including salaries, wages and other 
compensation for labor, supervision and planning; the rental value of all COUNTY- 
owned machinery and equipment; rental paid for all rented machinery and equipment 
together with the costs of an operator thereof and furnished with said machinery or 
equipment; the cost of all machinery and supplies furnished by the COUNTY; 
reasonable handling charges; and all additional items of expense incidental to the 
performance of such functions or service. The CITY shall have the right to inspect, 
review and copy such records at all times with reasonable notice to the COUNTY. 

C. The COUNTY shall provide to the CITY at the close of each calendar month a 
summary billing covering all services performed during said month. 

6. Facilities to be Provided by the CITY 

The CITY grants to the COUNTY permission to enter CITY rights-of-way for the 
purposes of operating and maintaining the traffic signal system and associated lighting 
systems. 

All electrical power billings for the operation of the traffic signals and street lighting 
systems will be paid by the CITY. 

7. Hold Harmless/Indemnificntion 

A. Each party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its officers, 
elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents from all claims, lawsuits, 
penalties, losses, damages or costs of any kind whatsoever to the extent such a claim 
arises or is caused by the indemnifying party's own negligence or that of its officers, 
elected or appointed officials, agents, or employees in performance of this Agreement. 

B. The parties hereby agree that, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, the 
performance of services pursuant to this Agreement shall not constitute an assumption 
by Snohomish COUNTY of any CITY municipal obligations or responsibilities 
relating to the roads, streets, utilities, transportation facilities, or other elements of the 
projects or activities described in this Agreement. Ownership and jurisdiction of all 
such facilities shall remain with the CITY. 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final I-07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 6 of 9 

Consent 7 - 7

Page 60 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



C. The CITY is a member of the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA), which 
is a self-insured pool of over 99 municipal corporations in the State of Washington. 
WCIA has at least $1 million per occurrence combined single limit of liability 
coverage in its self insured layer that may be applicable in the event an incident 
occurs that is deemed to be attributed to the negligence of the member. 

D. The COUNTY is self-insured with a retention level of $1 million. Above that level 
the COUNTY has excess liability coverage. 

E. In the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages 
to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the COUNTY 
and the CITY, its officers, employees, and volunteers, each party's liability hereunder 
shall be only to the extent of such party's negligence. It is further specifically and 
expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes both the 
COUNTY'S and the CITY'S waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 5 1 
RCW, solely for purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually 
negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. 

8. Commencement, Duration, and Renewal 

A. This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by all of the parties and shall 
remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated as provided in section 14, for a term of 
six (6) years; PROVIDED that the COUNTY'S obligations after December 3 1, 2007 
are contingent upon local legislative appropriation of necessary funds in accordance 
with applicable laws and the Snohomish County Charter. 

B. This Agreement may be renewed for additional terms of six (6) years if, at or prior to 
its termination date, the parties agree in writing to such renewals. Any renewal must 
be executed with the same formalities as this document. 

9. Amendments 

This Agreement may be amended at any time by written agreement of the parties. 

10. Legal Requirements 

Each party shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and 
regulations in performing this Agreement. 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final I-07.doc 
JGL I 1/22/2007 

Page 7 of 9 

Consent 7 - 8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 61 of 575



11. Choice of Law and Venue 

The laws of the state of Washington shall apply to the construction and enforcement of 
this Agreement. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceedings to enforce this 
Agreement or any provison included in this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of 
Snohomish County, Everett, Washington. 

12. Severability 

Should any clause, phrase, sentence, or paragraph of this Agreement be declared invalid 
or void, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

13. Written Notices 

Any written notice under this Agreement shall be sent or delivered as follows: 

Any notice from the CITY to be sent to the COUNTY shall be sent or delivered to: 

Traffic Operation Manager 
Snohomish County 
MIS 607 3000 Rockefeller Ave. 
Everett, Washington 9820 1 

Any notice from the COUNTY to be sent to the CITY shall be sent or delivered to: 

Assistant City of Engineer 
City of Marysville 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, Washington 98270 

14. Termination 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 
not less than thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 

B. This Agreement is contingent upon governmental funding and local legislative 
appropriations. In the event that funding from any source is withdrawn, reduced, 
limited, or not appropriated after the effective date of this Agreement and prior to 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Trafic Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalmaintILA2 final I-07,doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 8 of 9 

Consent 7 - 9

Page 62 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



normal completion, this Agreement may be terminated by the COUNTY immediately 
upon notice to the CITY. 

C. Upon termination of this Agreement as provided in this section, the COUNTY shall 
be paid by the CITY for work performed prior to the effective date of termination. 
No payment shall be made by the CITY for any expense incurred or work done 
following the effective date of termination unless authorized in writing by the CITY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement, effective on 
the date indicated below. 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

By: By: 
Director of Transportation and City Manager (or Mayor) 
Environmental Services 

DATE: DATE: 

Appropd as to form only_: 

DATE: //z~/o? 

Interlocal Agreement Between SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
and the CITY OF MARYSVILLE for Traffrc Signal and 
Street Light Maintenance 

Marysville signalrnaintILA2 final 1-07.doc 
JGL / 1/22/2007 

Page 9 of 9 

Consent 7 - 10

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 63 of 575



EXHIBIT A 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

Traffic Signal Maintenance Services covered by this Agreement consist of the following 
services for the traffic signals listed in Exhibit B of this Agreement: 

Routine Maintenance - This is a monthly activity that includes inspection of the traffic 
signal cabinet/controller/program; a visual inspection of the display system; and a check 
of pedestrian push buttons, emergency pre-emption, and detection systems. Furthermore, 
appropriate records will be maintained in the controller cabinet and in the office file 
located in the Snohomish County Traffic Operations Office. Approximately one hour per 
month per intersection will be spent on routine maintenance. 

Re-lamp - Traffic signal indicators will be replaced as needed. It is estimated that 
approximately four hours per intersection per year will be spent on this activity. This is 
typically a two person operation which includes an assistant to the Signal Technician for 
traffic control purposes. 

On-Call Emergency Response - This service provides 24 hour emergency response for 
traffic signal and street light malfunctions. For estimating purposes, it is assumed that 
each signal will have two emergencies per year. There is a minimum of three hours of 
labor per on-call emergency response. This estimate of three hours of labor per On-Call 
Emergency Response does not include additional materials, equipment charges, or labor 
costs associated with extraordinary circumstances such as weather-related problems, 
knock-downs, and acts of God that may result in significant equipment damage or 
destruction. 

Materials -The County will provide all supplies and materials for both routine and on- 
call maintenance. This does not include replacement of major components of a traffic 
signal or additional materials, equipment charges, or labor costs associated with 
extraordinary circumstances such as weather-related problems, knock-downs, and acts of 
God that may result in significant equipment damage or destruction. Any costs incurred 
by the County in providing such supplies and materials shall be reimbursed by the City 
according to the terms of Section 4 of the Agreement. 

Traffic Signal Engineering - This activity provides for analysis and modifications of the 
existing traffic signal and illumination systems for improved operation and safety. 
Modifications to the operation of any traffic signals shall not be done without written 
authorization by the City. It also provides for engineering plan review and technical 
support services, as well as construction inspection services, for new traffic signal and 
illumination systems constructed by the City. 

Consent 7 - 11

Page 64 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

Street Light Maintenance Services covered by this Agreement consist of the following 
services for those street lights that are associated with or are on the same powersource as 
County maintained traffic signals, except where the City has specifically requested 
additional services. The total number of County maintained street lights is described in 
Exhibit B of this Agreement: 

Routine Maintenance - Yearly re-lamping activity that includes the replacement of a 
percentage of the total number of lamps consistent with the manufactures estimated lamp 
service life. For estimating purposes, it is assumed that the County will replace 50 lamps 
each year. 

Electrical Repair - The County will provide rewiring and other electrical work done to 
damaged street lighting. City personnel will perform all other work associated with 
repairing damaged street lights. 

Materials -The County shall provide all supplies and materials for both routine and on- 
call maintenance. This does not include replacement of major components of a street 
light or additional materials, equipment charges, or labor costs associated with 
extraordinary circumstances such as weather-related problems, knock-downs, and acts of 
God that may result in significant equipment damage or destruction. Any costs incurred 
by the County in providing such supplies and materials shall be reimbursed by the City 
according to the terms of Section 4 of the Agreement. 

Consent 7 - 12

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 65 of 575



EXHIBIT B 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE TRAFFIC SIGNAL INVENTORY 

STREET LIGHTING INVENTORY 

Location 
Marysville 

Number of Street Lights 
112 

Consent 7 - 13

Page 66 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



EXHIBIT C 

ESTIMATED TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE COSTS 

The County will bill on an actual time and materials basis. The chart below is an estimate of 
annual costs based on historical average needs and rates. 

The annual costs for maintaining the City of Marysville's Twenty-Six (26) traffic signals are 
estimated to amount to $38,688. Costs are estimated as of the effective date of this Agreement. 
Estimated costs may be adjusted annually to reflect current labor and material charges This 
figure does not include the cost of work performed by County personnel in response to work 
orders issued upon request by the City in accordance with Section 3 of this Agreement. The 
above costs include the current County administration rate of 15%. 

ESTIMATED STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE SERVICE COSTS 

Total Cost for 26 
Intersections 

$ 15,600 
$ 6,968 
$ 10,920 
$ 5,200 
$ 38,688 

Item 

Routine Maintenance 
Annual Relamp 
On-Call Emergency Maintenance 
Materials 
Total 

The County will bill on an actual time and materials basis. The chart below is an estimate of 
annual costs based on historical average material needs and rates. The County shall be 
compensated for time at the hourly rates as follows. 

Cost Per Intersection 

12 hours @ $50/hr = $600 
4 hours @, $67/hr = $268 
6 hours @, $70/hr = $420 

$200 
$1,488 

The annual costs for maintaining the City of Marysville's one hundred twelve ( 1  12) street lights 
are estimated to amount to $3,550. Costs are estimated as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. Estimated costs may be adjusted annually to reflect current labor and material 
charges This figure does not include the cost of work performed by County personnel in 
response to work orders issued upon request by the City in accordance with Section 3 of this 
Agreement. The above costs include the current County administration rate of 15%. 

Item 
Routine Maintenance 
Damage Repair 
Materials (lamps and ballasts) 
Totals 

Hourly Rate 
$50 
$50 

Hours 
3 3 
2 5 

Cost ($) 
$1,650 
$1,250 
$ 650 
$3,550 

Consent 7 - 14

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 67 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
1 AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

I Amendment IV to Intergovernmental Agreement for Furnishing I I 
Fleet Management Services 
PREPARED BY: / AGENDA NUMBER: / Mike Shepard , Fleet & Facilities Manager I I 

Attached is Amendment IV to an Intergovernmental Agreement for Furnishing Fleet 
Management Services with Snohomish County. Snohomish County provides two-way 
radio setup and programming services for the City of  Marysville. The original 
Intergovernmental Agreement was signed in 2003 and Amendment IV will extend the 
services from January 2 1,2007 to January 2 1,2008. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Amendment IV to Intergovernmental Agreement for Furnishing 
Fleet Management Services 

The City of Marysville Fleet Services Division does not have a radio shop with employed 
radiolradar technicians. In order for these services to be performed we must extend the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Snohomish County for another year term. 

BUDGET CODE: 
SO 100065 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Marysville City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment 
IV to Intergovernmental Agreement for Furnishing Fleet Management Services. 

AMOUNT 
$7,000 Estimate 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Consent 8 - 1

Page 68 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Exhibit A 
Fourth Annual Extension 

After Recording Return To: 

Snohomish County 
Department of Public Works 
Fleet Management Division 
3402 McDougall Avenue 
Everett, WA 98201 

TO 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 

FURNISHING FLEET MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

Agency: City of Marysville 
..................................................................... 

THIS AMENDMENT to that certain Intergovernmental Agreement For Furnishing Fleet 
Management Service entered into on January 22, 2003 ("Agreement") is made by and between 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, and CITY OF 
Marysville, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington. For and in consideration of the 
mutual benefits herein, the terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby modified as 
follows: 

1. COMPENSATION. Section 7.1, Compensation, shall be amended as follows: 

7.1. Compensation. Compensation for service rendered during 2007-2008 contract 
period shall be as follows: 

a. COUNTY inventory parts shall be supplied at cost + 25% 
b. COUNTY equipment mechanic labor shall be supplied at a cost of $61.88 

per hour; overtime labor shall be provided at 1.5 times the hourly rate. 
c. COUNTY radiolradar technician labor shall be supplied at a cost of $61.88 

per hour; overtime labor shall be provided at 1.5 times the hourly rate. 
d. Vendor repairs shall be provided at COUNTY cost plus labor for 

transporting to and from vendor at above COUNTY labor rate and direct 
parts shall be supplied at cost + 10%. 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement, set out in section 8 of the Agreement, shall 
be extended one year to January 2 1,2008. 

Consent 8 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 69 of 575



3. EXHIBIT B. Exhibit B is amended to add or delete services as follows: Current 
list of applicable CITY equipment is attached hereto and incorporated within. 

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED BY THIS AMENDMENT, ALL OTHER TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND 
EFFECT. 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY CITY OF Marysville 

By: By: 
Allen M. Mitchell, Fleet Manager Dennis L. Kendall, Mayor 
Date: Date: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Grant K. Weed, City Attorney 

Consent 8 - 3

Page 70 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Exhibit B 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

POLICE VEHICLE INVENTORY 
(AS OF 01/21/2007) 

Rev - 4 01/21/2007 G:\Shared\Fleet & Facilities\lnterlocaI Agreements\Snohomish 
County\Police-Veh-lnventory.doc 

Dept 

POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL INVEST 
ANlML CONT 
POL PATROL 
POLINVEST 
POL INVEST 
POL ADMlN 
POL INVEST 
POL INVEST 
POL PATROL 
POL INVEST 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL CORR. 
POL PATROL 
POL INVEST 
POL ADMlN 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL INVEST 
POL CORR. 
POL ADMlN 
POL PATROL 

POL INVEST 

POL PATROL 

POL INVEST 
POLPATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 

Serial 

Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
1 GNDMI 9X92B131602 
1 GCECI 9V81 E276383 
4G44S08101A001471 
lGlND52J91M589761 
I G I  ND52JX1 M589896 
1 G I  ND52J716227321 
I GNCSI 3W42K191224 
1 GDEG25K5J521985 

1 1 K9B20811 TK118381 
I 1 J4FJ28S5VL516203 
2FALP71W5VX152908 

I 2FAFP71W3YX1700020 
/ 1 FBJS31Y9PHB46286 
2FAFP71W2WX140827 
2G1 WL52MXV1156856 
2G1WL52M9V1160185 
1 FMPU16L72LB00166 
1 J4FF68S2XL609630 
1 J4FF68S4XL609628 
1 J4FF68S4XL609631 
2FAFP71W41Xl51613 
1 B3AL36T64N364271 
2G1 WF52E939263993 
1 B3AL46T15N675615 
1 B9BR10153H659010 

1 FDKE30M3MHB01647 

1 FDXK74C1 RVA37348 

JT2SV21 E2K389198 
2FAFP71W93X108646 
2FAFP71W93X140321 
2FAFP71 W03X140322 

Model 

MOTOR CYCLE 
MOTOR CYCLE 
MOTOR CYCLE 
MOTOR CYCLE 
ASTRO 
C10 PICKUP 
TRAILER 
MALIBU 
MALIBU 
MALIBU 
S-10 BLAZER 
CONVERSION VAN 
RADAR TRAILER 

I CHEROKEE 
CROWN VICTORIA 

I CROWN VICTORIA 
E350 PASS. VAN 
CROWN VICTORIA 
LUMINA 
LUMINA 
EXPEDITION 
CHEROKEE 
CHEROKEE 
CHEROKEE 
CROWN VICTORIA 
STRATUS 
IMPALA 
STRATUS 
RADAR TRAILER 
E350 INCIDENT 
RESPONSE VAN 
F700 ARMORED 
TRUCK 
CAMRY 
CROWNVICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 

Make 

HARLEY DAV 
HARLEY DAV 
HARLEY DAV 
HARLEY DAV 
CHEVROLET 
CHEVROLET 
KENDO 
CHEVROLET 
CHEVROLET 
CHEVROLET 
CHEVROLET 
GMC 
SMART 
JEEP 
FORD 

' FORD 
1 FORD 

FORD 
CHEVROLET 
CHEVROLET 
FORD 
JEEP 
JEEP 
JEEP 
FORD 
DODGE 
CHEVROLET 
DODGE 
B & W 

FORD 

FORD 

TOYOTA 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 

Veh. # 

TBD 
TBD 
TBD 
TBD 
91 0 
914 
91 5 
920 
92 1 
922 
925 
930 
949 
950 
951 
955 
957 
959 
96 1 
962 
964 
965 
966 
967 
968 
A002 
A003 
A004 
Fool 

J004 

J017 

N923 
PI01 
PI02 
PI03 

Year 

2007 
2007 
2007 
2007 
2002 
2001 
2001 
2001 

[ 2001 
1 2001 
1 2002 
1 1988 
1 1996 
1 1997 
( 1997 
1 2000 
( 1993 
1 1998 
1 1997 
1 1997 
1 2002 
1 1999 
1 1999 
1 1999 
1 2001 
2004 
2003 
2005 
2003 

1991 

1994 

1989 
2003 
2003 
2003 

Consent 8 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 71 of 575



Rev - 4 01/21/2007 
County\Police~Veh~lnventory.doc 

POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POLPATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL PATROL 
POL INVEST 

2FAHP71 W93X144474 
2FAHP71 W73X194628 
2FAHP71 W93X194630 
2FAHP71W53X194629 
2FAHP71 W54X125664 
2FAHP71W54X145123 
2FAHP71W74X145124 
2FAHP71W94X145125 
2FAHP71 W84X170789 
2FAHP71W44X170790 
2FAHP71W45X150783 
2FAHP71 W65X150784 
2FAHP71 W85X150785 
2FAHP71 WX5X150786 
2FAHP71W06X114705 
2FAHP71W26X114706 
2FAHP71 W46X114707 
2FAHP71W66X114708 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
Unknown at this time 
JH4DA9360PS014383 

CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VIC K-9 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
CROWN VICTORIA 
INTEGRA 

FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
FORD 
ACURA 

PI04 
PI05 
PI06 
PI07 
PI08 
PI09 
PI10 
PI11 
PI12 
PI13 
P I  14 
PI15 
PI16 
PI17 
PI19 
PI20 
PI21 
PI22 
PI23 
PI24 
PI25 
PI26 
PI27 
SO01 

2003 
2003 
2003 
2003 
2004 
2004 
2004 
2004 
2004 
2004 
2005 
2005 
2005 
2005 
2006 
2006 
2006 
2006 
2007 
2007 
2007 
2007 
2007 
1993 

Consent 8 - 5

Page 72 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: April 24,2006 
I AGENDA ITEM: 1 AGENDA SECTION: 
/ IT Staffing Classification and Compensation I Consent I 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 
Worth Norton, Information Services Manager 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Classification and Compensation Analysis of Information 

The types and uses of information technology in municipal agencies changes rapidly, and 
IT job positions andlor the organization of the IT function must adapt to provide efficient, 
cost-effective services. Over the last 4 years, the city's IT functions has evolved to meet 
its changing needs. Now, the city is reevaluating its IT positions to plan for current and 
future needs. 

APPROVED BY: 

BUDGET CODE: 
50300090 5 1 1000 and others.. . 

The Classification and Compensation Analysis for the two reclassified IT positions was 
prepared by Gwendolyn Campbell. Based on Gwendolyn's findings, the proposed job 
descriptions accurately captures the responsibilities assigned to the positions and the 
knowledge, skills and abilities required to perform them. 

Technology Positions MAYOR C A ~  
2. Computer Support Technician I - Job Description 
3. Computer Support Technician I1 - Job Description 

AMOUNT: 
Per 2007 Salary Range 

The adoption of this reclassification does not create an additional FTE. Both of these 
positions were approved in a 2006 budget revision and are in the 2007 budget. Filling 
these positions permanently has been delayed pending this analysis. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
City staff recommends that Council adopt the IT Staffing Classification and 
Compensation proposal. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Consent 9 - 1

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 1 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 73 of 575



CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 

AT THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

The types and uses of information technology in municipal agencies changes rapidly, 
and JT job positions and/or the organization of the IT function must adapt to provide 
efficient, cost-effective services. Over the last 4 years, the city's JT function has evolved 
to meet its changing needs. Now, the city is reevaluating its IT positions to plan for 
current and future needs. 

The following table shows the current IT positions and positions proposed by the 
Finance Department. 

This project includes reviewing revised job descriptions for Computer Support 
Technician I and Computer Support Technician I1 and making recommendations for the 
appropriate placement of these positions in the city's pay grid. Since the Application 
Specialist/Programmer position will not be funded in the next year, a job description is 
not created at this time. 

fl POSIlTONS 

Key responsibilities of the IT positions are shown on the table below. The Finance 
Department is not proposing any changes to the positions of IT Manager and Network 
Administrator; however, they are included to put the proposed changes in the context of 
the entire IT function as well as illustrate the job classification progression. 

CURRENT POSITIONS 
IT Manaqer 

Network Administrator 

Computer Support Technician 

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF ~NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 

JANUARY 2007 
PACE 1 

PROPOSED POSITIONS 
IT Manaqer 

Network Administrator 
Application Specialist/Proqrammer 
Computer Support Technician I1 
Computer Support Technician I 

Consent 9 - 2

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 2 of 12Page 74 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



See attachments for proposed job descriptions for Computer Support Technician I and 
Computer Support Technician 11. 

The purpose of the compensation analysis is to evaluate placement of the position 
within the city's classification and compensation grid. The goal is to assign a 
compensation level that accurately reflects the responsibilities and accountabilities of the 
position; the skills, knowledge, and abilities required to perform the job; and preserves 
the internal equity of the classification and compensation system by compensating the 
position fairly relative to other city job classifications. To gauge internal equity, I 
matched the level of responsibility and accountability and the knowledge, skills, and 
abilities required to perform each of the IT jobs to existing positions on the city's 
compensation grid. 

IT 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

SYSTEMS 

network, PCs, 
data, voice, radio 

network, PCs, 
voice, radio 

network, PCs, data, 
voice, radio 

data, PCs, 
voice, radio 

PCs, 
voice, radio 

POSITION 

ll Manager 

NetworkAdministrator 

Appll'cation 
Specia/is~Programmer 

Computer Support 
Technician I1 

Computer Suppott 
Technician I 

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF ~NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 
JANUARY 2007 
PAGE 2 

KEY RESPONSIBIL~ES OF IT POS~ONS 
KEY RESPONSIBILITIES 

Direct, manage, supervise, & 
coordinate activities and operations of 
IT Division. 

Install,maintain&supportTT 
infrastructure systems. 

Perform systems analyses and 
program mi ng tasks . 

Responsible for all PC hardware & 
software, including planning 
equipment replacement, upgrades 
and maintenance programs. 
Responsible for basic 
administrative server functions, 
including setting up new users and 
database administration. 
Assist with administration of VOIP 
call servers; maintain & configure 
desktop phones. 
Provides technical supervision to 
help desk personnel 
Provide technical assistance to 
desktop computer users, including 
routine maintenance. 
Perform basic user account 
administration. 

Consent 9 - 3

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 3 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 75 of 575



External market comparables are not generally considered in reclassifying existing 
positions since using market data for these positions in isolation from the rest of the 
city's positions might unfairly impact internal equity. Splitting the responsibilities of the 
current Computer Support Technician into 2 different positions is in part a 
reclassification and also creates a new job, so market data is included in this analysis. 
My analysis and recommendations, however, place more weight on internal equity 
considerations. 

Internal Euuity 

The Finance Department proposes to split the existing Computer Support Technician job 
into 2 positions, which comprise the first and second levels of a computer support job 
series: Computer Support Technician I and Computer Support Technician 11. The lower 
level tasks would be assigned to the CST I and the higher level tasks, in addition to 
some tasks which may be assigned to a future Applications Specialist/Programmer 
position, to the CST 11. 

The positions in the computer support job series have the following distinguishing 
characteristics. The CST I is the entry level in the job series. Positions in this class 
perform routine computer support tasks for users of personal computer hardware, 
software, and peripheral devices. This class differs from the Computer Support 
Technician I1 class in that the work of the former is more closely reviewed and 
supervised, and tasks require less technical knowledge. 

The CST I1 is the second level in the job series; incumbents perform basic administrative 
server functions as well as the routine computer support tasks performed by the CST I. 
This class differs from the Computer Support Technician I class in that the former 
performs tasks that require more technical knowledge and relies upon this knowledge to 
make recommendations to management regarding personal computer hardware, 
software, and peripheral devices, and positions in this class also serve as lead workers. 

A summary of each position's function is as follows. 

CST I: This position provides technical help desk assistance to desktop 
computer users and performs routine maintenance to computer systems 
under the technical guidance of the Computer Support Technician 11. 

CST 11: This position is responsible for all personal computer hardware 
and software including planning equipment replacement, upgrades, and 
maintenance programs. This position is responsible for basic 
administrative server functions and other IT infrastructure including 
telephones, wireless communications devices, copiers, etc. 

The positions are further distinguished by the scope of responsbility and accountability. 

CST I: The work performed by this class is routine and repetitive, and 
while incumbents may operate independently, supervision or guidance is 
readily available, their work may be reviewed frequently, and decisions 
are generally limited to minor changes in routine. 

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF ~NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 

JANUARY ZOO7 
PACE 3 

Consent 9 - 4

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 4 of 12Page 76 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CST 11: The work performed by this class follows established procedures 
and general directions; incumbents operate independently and apply 
established guidelines and alternatives to make routine judgments and 
decisions. 

The Computer Support Technician is currently assigned to the N-4 salary range. The 
Finance Department recommends placing the CST I at the N-3 level and the CST I1  at 
the N-5 level. 

There are no positions assigned to the N-3 level; 2 positions, Police Department's 
Confidential Administrative Secretary and the Deputy City Clerk, are assigned to the N-4 
level. I n  comparison to these positions, the level of responsibility and accountability of 
the Computer Support Technician is slightly below that of the Police Department's 
Confidential Administrative Secretary. While the jobs are very different, they both work 
independently and have the authority to make decisions using established guidelines 
and alternatives. The Computer Support Technician requires a higher level of technical 
expertise, as reflected in the education and experience requirements for the two 
positions; however, the Confidential Administrative Secretary position has a wider scope 
of responsibilities, many external contacts, and handles sensitive information and 
documents. 

The N-5 salary range includes the GISICAD Technician and the Procurement/Distribution 
Specialist; several positions are assigned to the N-6 salary range, including Surface 
Water Technician and Building Inspector. The CST I1 appears to most closely match the 
latter 2 positions in the scope of responsibilities, the level of accountability, and the 
education, training, and professional certification requirements. The CST 11, Surface 
Water Technician, and Building Inspector are skilled technical positions requiring an 
associate of arts degree or equivalent coursework in their technical field, and 
certification in their technical field is required or preferred. 

External Equity 

The cities of Bothell, Edmonds, Kirkland, Olympia, and Redmond, which have been used 
in recent classification analyses, are used as comparables in this analysis. These cities 
are similar in population or service area to the City of Marysville, and they share a labor 
market. 

I n  the 2006 Association of Washington Cities annual salary survey, all 5 cities reported 
positions in the Computer Support Specialist job classification; however, a review of 
those job descriptions shows a wide range in the level of responsibility and 
accountability as well as salaries. The positions at Bothell, Edmonds, and Kirkland are 
not good external comparables because their scope of responsibilities includes some 
that Marysville assigns to the Network Administrator and plans to assign to the 
Applications Specialist/Programmer positions. (In this analysis, I have considered those 
Applications Specialist/Programmer tasks that will be assigned to the Computer Support 
Technician I1 until the former position is created and filled and still find Bothell's, 
Edmonds', and Kirkland's positions to have a wider scope of responsibilities.) 

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF ~NFORMAT~ON TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 
JANUARY ZOO7 
PAGE 4 

Consent 9 - 5

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 5 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 77 of 575



Olympia's and Redmond's positions of Computer Systems Technician and Systems 
Support Specialist, respectively, are closest in the level of responsibility and 
accountability to the Computer Support Technician I1 position. All three are primarily 
responsible for personal computer hardware and software support as well as some 
duties generally assigned to an Applications SpeciaIist/Programmer. 

The 2007 salary range for Olympia's Computer Systems Technician is $4,076-4,955. The 
2006 salary range for Redmond's Systems Support Specialist is $3,307-4,827; 
negotiations for the 2007 contract year are pending. 

IV. RECOMMENDATIONS 
I recommend the following actions. 

1 Adopt the proposed job descriptions for Computer Support Technician I and 
Computer Support Technician 11, which capture the responsibilities assigned to the 
positions and the knowledge, skills, and abilities required to perform them. 

2. Place Computer Support Technician I at range N-3 and the Computer Support 
Technician I1 at range N-6 on the non-represented, non-management classification 
grid; this placement reflects their value within the organization and preserves 
internal equity among the city's non-represented, non-management positions. 

CLA~SIFICATION AND COMPENSATION ANALYSIS OF ~NFORMAT~ON TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS 

JANUARY ZOO7 
PACE 5 

Consent 9 - 6

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 6 of 12Page 78 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City of Marysville 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

Job Title: 
DepartmentlDivision: 
Reports To: 
FLSA Status 
Union Status: 
Salary Grade: 
ApprovallRevision Date: 

Computer Support Technician I 
Finance Department I lnformation Services 
lnformation Services Manager 
non-exempt 
non-union 
N-3 
January 2007 

POSITION SUMMARY: 
This position provides technical help desk assistance to desktop computer users and 
performs routine maintenance to computer systems under the technical guidance of the 
Computer Support Technician II. 

The work performed by this class is routine and repetitive, and while incumbents may operate 
independently, supervision or guidance is readily available, their work may be reviewed 
frequently, and decisions are generally limited to minor changes in routine. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS OF THE JOB CLASS: 
This is the entry level in the computer support job series. Positions in this class perform 
routine computer support tasks for users of personal computer hardware, software, and 
peripheral devices. This class differs from the Computer Support Technician II class in that 
the work of the former is more closely reviewed and supervised, and tasks require less 
technical knowledge. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Other duties may be assigned as needed. 

1. Responsible for help desk functions including expediting requests to the appropriate IT 
personnel and tracking help desk requests. 

2. Troubleshoot problems with desktop computer systems, software applications, and 
peripheral devices; make needed repairs and adjustments. 

3. Install and set-up new desktop computer systems, software applications, PC peripheral 
devices. 

4. Assist with routine maintenance on city websites. 

5. Perform preventive maintenance on desktop computer systems and peripheral devices. 

6. Perform daily backup tape rotation. 

7. Perform very basic user account administration, such as password resets. 

8. Assist with desktop and wireless phone deployments. 

9. Train users on basic PC software, email, and phone systems. 

JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN I 
PAGE 6 

Consent 9 - 7

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 7 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 79 of 575



KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty 
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or 
ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

Knowledge of: 
Operations of a variety of desktop computer systems, software applications, and 
peripheral devices. 
Basic phone and data wiring including general knowledge of LAN operations. 
HTML, web site design and graphics. 

Ability to: 
Diagnose problems with desktop computer systems, software applications, and peripheral 
devices and identify and implement effective solutions. 
Provide excellent customer service under sometimes stressful situations. 
Communicate effectively, orally and in writing. 
Prioritize projects and requests for assistance and work on multiple projects in the same 
timeframe. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 
A combination of the experience, education, and training listed below which provides an 
equivalent background to perform the work of this position. 

Experience: 
Two years experience installing andlor maintaining Windows 2000 and XP workstations and 
supporting users on PC software or equivalent education. Web site design experience is 
desirable. 

Education and Training: 
High school diploma or GED is required. Associate of technical arts degree in computer 
information is desired. 

Licenses or Certificates: 
A+ certification or Microsoft coursework is desired. 
Possession of, or ability to possess within three months of hire date, a Washington State 
driver's license is required. 
Must be bondable. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 1 WORKING CONDITIONS: 
The physical demands and characteristics of the work environment described here are 
representative of those occurring in the performance of the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 
the essential functions. 

While performing the essential functions of this job, the employee is frequently required to 
stand; walk; sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and talk or 
hear. The employee is occasionally required to reach with hands and arms and stoop, kneel, 
JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN I 
PAGE 7 

Consent 9 - 8

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 8 of 12Page 80 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



crouch, or crawl. The employee must regularly lift andlor move up to 50 pounds. Specific 
vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, peripheral vision, 
depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus. While performing the duties of this job, the 
employee is occasionally exposed to toxic or caustic chemicals, i.e. copier toner. 

This position works in an office, and the noise level in the work environment is usually low to 
moderate. 

This position works a regular schedule; however, incumbents may be required to work some 
holiday, evening andlor weekend hours to respond to emergencies and/or to implement 
specific projects. 

This position description generally describes the principle functions of the position and the 
level of knowledge and skills typically required. It does not constitute an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee, and it is subject to change as the needs of 
the employer and the requirements of the job change. 

JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN I 
PAGE 8 

Consent 9 - 9

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 9 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 81 of 575



City of Marysville 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

Job Title: Computer Support Technician II 
DepartmentlDivision: Finance Department / Information Services 
Reports To: Information Services Manager 
FLSA Status non-exempt 
Union Status: non-union 
Salary Grade: N-6 
ApprovallRevision Date: January 2007 

POSITION SUMMARY: 
This position is responsible for all personal computer hardware and software including 
planning equipment replacement, upgrades, and maintenance programs. It is also 
responsible for basic administrative server functions and other IT infrastructure including 
telephones, wireless communications devices, copiers, etc. 

The work performed by this class follows established procedures and general directions; 
incumbents operate independently and apply established guidelines and alternatives to make 
routine judgments and decisions. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS OF THE JOB CLASS: 
This is the second level in the computer support job series. Positions in this class perform 
routine computer support tasks for users of personal computer hardware, software, and 
peripheral devices and basic administrative service functions. This class differs from the 
Computer Support Technician I class in that the work of the former performs tasks that 
require more technical knowledge and relies upon this knowledge to make recommendations 
to management regarding personal computer hardware, software, and peripheral devices. 
Positions in this class also serve as lead workers. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Other duties may be assigned as needed. 

1. Troubleshoot problems with desktop computer systems, software applications, and 
peripheral devices; make needed repairs and adjustments; track calls for assistance. 

2. Maintain logs and tracks inventory of computer systems, related software, and peripheral 
devices to ensure strict adherence to all copyright laws and licensing agreements. 

3. Install and set up new desktop computer systems, software applications, PC peripheral 
devices, faxes, copiers, postage machines and other technology based tools. 

4. Administer anti-virus and including updating servers, configuring clients and user 
education. 

5. Manage daily system backups and conduct periodic backup verifications. 

6. Perform basic server administration including setting up user accounts and email, 
password resets, folder permissions and disk space management. 

7. Administer server databases permissions in association with client server applications. 
JOB DESCRIPTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN 11 

Consent 9 - 10

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 10 of 12Page 82 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



8. Assist in administering VOlP call servers and maintain and configure desktop phones 

9. Manage and maintain city wireless cellular phones. 

10. Provide technical supervision to city IT interns and help desk personnel. 

11. Make recommendations to management regarding policies and procedures based on field 
observations and user interactions. 

12. Train users on basic PC software, email, copiers and phone systems. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty 
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or 
ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

Knowledge of: 
Operations of a variety of desktop computer systems, software applications, and 
peripheral devices. 
Structure and function of wide area and local area networks. 
Basic knowledge of VOlP technology. 
Clientlserver database principles. 

Ability to: 
Diagnose problems with desktop computer systems, software applications, and peripheral 
devices, and identify effective solutions. 
Interpret complex wiring diagrams and flow diagrams. 
Use the TCPIIP protocol and work in Windows 2003 server environments. 
Identify issues of security, reliability, or efficiency with desktop computer systems and 
make recommendations to address them. 
Provide excellent customer service under sometimes stressful situations. 
Communicate effectively, orally and in writing. 
Prioritize projects and requests for assistance and work on multiple projects in the same 
timeframe. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 
A combination of the experience, education, and training listed below which provides an 
equivalent background to perform the work of this position. 

Experience: 
Four years experience installing and maintaining Windows workstations and supporting users 
on PC software, including two years experience administering clientlserver database 
applications is required. Experience with phone systems is desirable. 

Education and Traininq: 
High school diploma or GED is required. An associate of technical arts degree in computer 
information is desirable. 

JOB DESCRIFTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN 11 
PAGE 10 

Consent 9 - 11

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 11 of 12February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 83 of 575



Licenses or Certificates: 
Certification or coursework in Microsoft desktop and server applications is required. 
Possession of, or ability to possess within three months of hire date, a Washington State 
Driver's license. 
Must be bondable. 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS I WORKING CONDITIONS: 
The physical demands and characteristics of the work environment described here are 
representative of those occurring in the performance of the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 
the essential functions. 

While performing the essential functions of this job, the employee is frequently required to 
stand; walk; sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and talk or 
hear. The employee is occasionally required to reach with hands and arms and stoop, kneel, 
crouch, or crawl. The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 50 pounds. Specific 
vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, peripheral vision, 
depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus. While performing the duties of this job, the 
employee is occasionally exposed to toxic or caustic chemicals, i.e. copier toner. 

This position works in an office, and the noise level in the work environment is usually low to 
moderate. 

This position works a regular schedule, however, incumbents may be required to work some 
holiday, evening andlor weekend hours to respond to emergencies and/or to implement 
specific projects. 

This position description generally describes the principle functions of the position and the 
level of knowledge and skills typically required. It does not constitute an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee, and it is subject to change as the needs of 
the employer and the requirements of the job change. 

JOB DESCRIFTION FOR COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNICIAN 11 
PAGE 11 

Consent 9 - 12

February 26, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 12 of 12Page 84 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVTLLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Snohomish County Human Services Grant Contract 

Jim Ballew - Director of Parks and Recreation . 
ATT.ACHh.IENTS: 
Snohomish County Human Senices Cirant Agreement 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

RUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

Senior Services Project Program Contract Renewal 
PREPARED BY: 

Summary: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

The Parks and Recreation Department has been awarded a renewal grant-in aid .Agreement through the 
Snohomish County Division of Long Term Care and Aging Program to offset part-time personnel costs for 
the balance of 2007. The total grant is for $7.500 which will cover the salaries and benefits for the Ken 
Baxter Senior Co~nmunity Center Program Clerk. This is now a full time position which assists the 
Coordinator position in a variety of functions and events throughout the year. 

This is the third year the grant program provided by Snohomish County's Human Services Department will 
assist operations at the Ser~ior Center and is designed as a reimbursable program. The Parks and Recreation 
Department will generate all reporting invoices as per program requirements. 

Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Snohomish County Human Services 
Grant Agreement which will provide $7,500 in reimbursed filnds for the salaries and benefits of the 
Program Clerk position at the Ken Baxter Senior Community Center through 2007. 

Consent 10 - 1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 85 of 575



SNOHOMISH COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3000 ROCKEFELLER, MIS 305 - EVERETT, WA 98201 

(425) 388-7200 

CONTRACT NUMBER: A-07-75-0 1-200 

Contracting Organization: Contract Period: 110 112007 - 1213 112007 

Name: City of Marysville Funding Authority: County Budget Ordinance #06-092 

Address: 69 1 5 Armar Rd Maximum Amount Awarded: 
Marysville, WA 98270 Under This Contract: $ 7,500.00 

Telephone: (360) 65 1-5084 
Specifics of Funding: Snohomish County General Revenues 

Federal Catalog No.: NIA 

IRS Tax No. (Employer I.D.): 91 -6001459 Status Determination: Subrecipient 

Additional terms of this contract are set out in arid governed by the following, which are incorporated herein by reference: 

X Basic Terms and Conditions No. HSD-2006-103-200 , maintained on file at the Department of Human Services; 

X Specific Terms and Conditions, attached as Exhibit A , 
X Statement of Work, attached as Exhibit B I 

X Budget, attached as Exhibit C 

X Basic Terms and Conditions Addendum attached as Exhibit G 

cl attached as Exhibit 

attached as Exhibit 

HSD Contact Person: 

Susie Starrfield 
425-388-72 18 

Title of ProjectiServices: 

Senior Center Projects 

In the event of any inconsistency in this contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (a) 
appropriate provisions of state and federal law, (b) Specific Terms and Conditions, (c) Basic Terms and Conditions Addendum, (d) 
Basic Terms and Conditions, (e) other attachments incorporated by reference, and (f) other documents incorporated by reference. 

Contractor Contact Person: 

Tara Mizell, Recreation Serv. Mgr. 
360-65 1-5084 

THE CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION AND SNOHOMISH COUNTY HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE TO THE 
TERMS O F  THIS CONTRACT. SIGNATURES FOR BOTH PARTIES ARE REQUIRED BELOW. BY SIGNING, THE 
CONTRACTOR IS CERTIFYING THAT THE AGENCY IS NOT DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR OTHERWISE 
EXCLUDED FROM PARTICIPATING IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS. 

FOR THE CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION: FOR SNOHOMISH COUNTY: 

(Signature) (Date) Janelle Sgrignoli (Date) 
Director 

(Title) Department of Human Services 

Consent 10 - 2

Page 86 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SNOHOMISH COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3000 ROCKEFELLER, MIS 305 - EVERETT, WA 9820 1 

(425) 388-7200 

CONTRACT NUR1113ER: A-07-75-0 1-200 

Contracting Organization: Contract Period: 110 112007 - 1213 112007 

Name: City of Marysville Funding Authority: County Budget Ordinance #06-092 

Address: 69 15 Armar Rd Maximum Amount Awarded: 
Marysville, W A  98270 Under This Contract: $ 7,500.00 

Telephone: (360) 65 1-5083 
Specifics of Funding: Snoho~nish County General Reve~iues 

Federal Catalog No.: N/A 

Addit ional  t e rms  of this  contract a r e  set out in and governed by the follo\ving, which a r e  incorporated herein by reference: 

IRS Tax  No.  (Employer I.D.): 9 1-600 1459 Status Determination: Subrecipient 

Basic Terms and Conditions No. HSD-2006-103-200 , maintained on file at the Department of  Human Services; 

Specific Terms and Conditions, attached as Exhibit A 

Statement of Work, attached as Exhibit B 

Budget, attached as Exhibit C 

Basic Terms and Conditions Addendum attached as Exhibit G 

attached as Exhibit 

attached as Exhibit 

In the event of  any inconsistency in this contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (a) 
appropriate provisions o f  state and federal law, (b) Specific Terms and Conditions, (c) Basic Terms and Conditions Addendum, (d) 
Basic Terms and Conditions, (e) other attachments incorporated by reference, and (0 other documents incorporated by reference. 

HSD Contact Person: 

Susie Starrfield 
425-388-72 18 - 

Title of Project/Services: 

Senior Center Projects 

THE CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION AND SNOHOMISH COUNTY HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE TO THE 
TERMS O F  THIS CONTRACT. SIGNATURES FOR BOTH PARTIES ARE REQUIRED BELOW. BY SIGNING, THE 
CONTRACTOR IS CERTIFYING THAT THE AGENCY IS NOT DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR OTHER\!'ISE 
EXCLUDED FROM PARTICIPATING IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS. 

Contractor Contact Person: 

Tara Mizell, Recreation Serv. Mgr. 
360-65 1-5084 

FOR THE CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION: FOR SNOHOMISH COUNTY: 

(Signature) (Date) Janelle Sgrignoli (Date) 
Director 

(Title) Department of  Human Services 

Consent 10 - 3

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 87 of 575



EXHIBIT "A" 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

I .  DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

In performing the services under this Contract, the City of Marysville 
(hereinafter the Contractor) shall comply with the provisions contained in 
the following documents incorporated by reference and maintained on file 
a t  the Snohomish County Human Services Department, Long Term Care & 
Aging: 

- Snohomish County Long Term Care & Aging's Program Instructions 

- Contractor's grant application as submitted. 

11. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor shall submit required reports on a format supplied or 
approved by Snohomish County Long Term Care & Aging. Snohomish 
County Long Term Care & Aging shall submit to the Contractor Program 
Instruction(s) which specify required reporting information and 
instructions for completing reports. Overdue reports shall delay payment 
to the Contractor until the next billing month. 

Report Ti t les  
Progress Report 
Final Report 

Due 
July 10, 2007. 
January 10, 2008. 

111. REIMBURSEMENT 

A. The Contractor must submit requests for reimbursement no later 
than ten (10) days following the end of each calendar month. The 
request for reimbursement must be submitted on forms approved by 
Snohomish County Long Term Care & Aging. The County shall 
process correct and properly submitted billings for reimbursement 
after all supporting documentation is received. Billings received after 
the 10th of the month will be processed for reimbursement in the 
succeeding month. 

B. The monthly billing shall be based on program expenses and be 
accompanied by monthly expenditure reports showing line-item 
expenditures corresponding to the Approved Budget. 

Exhibit A 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 1 of 2 

Consent 10 - 4

Page 88 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



C .  The Contractor must submit final request for reimbursement for 
2007 expenses no later than January 10, 2008. Billings received 
after January 10, 2008 for expenses incurred in 2007 will not be 
processed. 

IV. NON DISCRIMINATION 

The following provisions are added to provisions contained in the Basic 
Agreement between the Contractor and Snohomish County; 

A. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Americans 
With Disabilities Act (PL 10 1-336). 

B. The Contractor and any subcontracting party shall comply with the 
state regulations for barrier-free facilities, as designated in RCW 
19.27.03 1. The Contractor and subcontractors shall provide barrier- 
free access to and egress procedures from facilities, meeting places, 
and structures that will enable the use of all program services for the 
disabled community. 

V. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

A. The Contractor must establish written procedures to be followed in 
the event of weather related emergencies, disasters, or situations 
which may interrupt service delivery. 

B. The Contractor must establish a written plan which describes 
procedures to be followed in the event a client becomes ill or is 
injured while a t  the Contractor's office or if staff are a t  the client's 
home. The plan must be thoroughly explained to staff and 
volunteers. 

VI. TERMS OF CONTRACT 

The contract is awarded for a term of twelve months, January 1, 2007 
through December 3 1, 2007. 

Exhibit A 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 2 of 2 

Consent 10 - 5

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 89 of 575



EXHIBIT "B" 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

I. SERVICE DEFINITION 

The Contractor shall operate or provide for the operation of a senior 
center. This project provides start u p  or seed money for selected senior 
centers within the county. 

11. MINIMUM SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Grant will fund a part-time assistant senior center coordinator, which 
will increase the number and variety of offerings a t  the senior center and 
increase attendance for existing activities. 

B. Specific duties for the assistant senior center coordinator are a s  follows: 
1. Customer service, taking and processing of registrations, 
2. Assisting with events and operation of daily programs, 
3 .  Set-up and break down of activities, 
4. Maintenance of attendance records and volunteer records, 
5. Assist with marketing, press releases, posters and flyers, 
6. Maintenance of participant database and newsletter, and 
7. Reminder calls to participants, trip escorting, and clerical support. 

C.  The Contractor shall send a representative to the Council on Aging 
Senior Center Committee. 

111. MONITORING 

The Contractor will cooperate with Snohomish County Long Term Care 
and Aging a s  it conducts its assessment of the project implementation as 
proposed in Section I1 above. 

Exhibit B 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 1 of 1 

Consent 10 - 6

Page 90 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

EXHIBIT C 
APPROVED CONTRACT BUDGET 

COST REIMBURSEMENT 

PROGRAM TITLE: Senior Center Projects 

AGENCY: City of Marysville 

ADDRESS: 6915 Armar Rd., Marysville, WA 98270 

CONTRACT 1/1/07 TO 12/31/2007 
PERIOD: 

REVENUE SOURCES: 
FUNDS AWARDED UNDER CONTRACT: 

REVENUE SOURCE 

Snohomish County General Revenue 

AMOUNT 

$7.500.00 

TOTAL FUNDS AWARDED: $7,500.00 

NON-FEDERAL MATCHING RESOURCES: 

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL RESOURCES: $ 0.00 

MATCH REQUIREMENTS FOR PERCENTAGE: N/A AMOUNT: 
CONTRACT: 

OTHER PROGRAM RESOURCES (Identify): 

SOURCE PERIOD AMOUNT 

TOTAL OTHER RESOURCES $00.00 

Exhibit C 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 1 of 4 

Consent 10 - 7

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 91 of 575



' SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

EXPENDITURES 

Exhibit C 
A-07-75-01-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 2 of 4 

TOTAL 

$6,763.00 
737.00 

$7,500.00 

OTHER 
RESOURCES 

FUND 
SOURCE 

FUND SOURCE: 
Snohomish 

County 
$6,763.00 

737.00 

$7,500.00 

BARS 
# 

10 
20 
3 0 
4 1 
42 
42 
43 
43 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
49 
49 
64 

$ 

MATCHING 
RESOURCES 

CATEGORY 

SalariesNVages 
Benefits 
Supplies 
Prof. Services 
Postage 
Telephone 
MileagelFares 

Meals 
Lodging 
Advertising 
LeasesIRentals 
Insurance 

Utilities 
RepairsIMaint. 
Printing 
Dues/Subscript. 
Registr./Tuition 

MachinerylEquip 

-- 
TOTAL: 

Consent 10 - 8

Page 92 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

EXPENDITURE NARRATIVE 

AMOUNT TYPE OF EXPENDITURE 
i.e., Salaries: 40% Program Person, etc. 
Benefits: FICA, Medical, etc. 
Communications: Postage, Telephone, etc. 

$6,763.00 

Exhibit C 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 3 of 4 

Salaries- Part-time Asst. Senior Center Coordinator 

$737.00 Benefits - FICA & L&I for 725 hours 

Consent 10 - 9

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 93 of 575



SNOHOMISH COUNTY 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

DETAIL SALARIES / WAGES 

Exhibit C 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 4 of 4 

POSITION 

Recreation Asst. I1 

FT/PT 

PT 

% OF 
TIME 

TO FUND 

100% 

FUND 

Snohomish 
County 

TOTAL 
MONTHLY 

$ 563.58 

MONTHLY 
CHG TO 

FUND 

$ 563.58 

TOTAL CHG 
TO FUND 

$ 6,763.00 

Consent 10 - 10

Page 94 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



EXHIBIT G 
BASIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS ADDENDUM 

Statements contained in the Contract Face Sheet notwithstanding, the following 
provisions hereby supplement the corresponding provisions contained in the Basic 
Terms and Conditions between the Contractor and Snohomish County. To the 
extent a provision herein does not have a corresponding provision in the Basic 
Terms and Conditions, that provision is hereby added to the Basic Terms and 
Conditions between the Contractor and Snohomish County. 

I. CONTRACTOR NOT EMPLOYEE OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 

The Contractor and his or her employees or agents performing under this 
agreement are not to be deemed employees of the County, nor as agents of the 
County in any manner whatsoever. The Contractor will not hold himself or 
herself out as nor claim to be an  officer or employee of the County or of the 
State of Washington by reason hereof and will not make any claim, demand, 
or application to or for any right or privilege applicable to a n  officer or 
employee of the County or of the State of Washington, including, but not 
limited to, Workers' Compensation coverage, Unemployment Insurance 
benefits, Social Security benefits, or retirement membership or credit. 

11. SERVICES PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW, RULE AND 
REGULATION 

The Contractor and any subcontractors agree to abide by the terms of RCW 
Chapters 74.08, 74.34, 74.36 and 74.38, and any rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder. All activities conducted under this agreement and 
under contracts pursuant to this Agreement shall be in accordance with all 
applicable laws, rules, ordinances, codes and regulations of local, state and 
federal governments, as now or hereafter enacted or amended. 

111. CLIENT GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

The Contractor shall establish a system through which applicants for and 
recipients of services under the approved plans may present grievances about 
the activities of the Contractor or any subcontractor(s) related to service 
delivery. The system shall provide applicants and recipients with an  informal 
hearing before representatives of the Contractor. Clients served with State 
funds, including Senior Citizens Services Act and Social Services Block Grant, 
must be informed of their right to a fair hearing regarding service eligibility 
specified in WAC 388-02 and under the provisions of the Administrative 
Procedures Act, Chapter 34.05 RCW. 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 1 of 6 

Consent 10 - 11

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 95 of 575



IV. RECORDS, DOCUMENTS AND REPORTS 

The Contractor shall provide to the County such financial, program, and other 
reports, and a t  those intervals and in such formats a s  are required by the 
County. 

The Contractor's failure to submit required reports in a timely manner, as set 
forth in contracts and Program Instructions, shall result in the County's 
withholding payment of Invoice Vouchers submitted for reimbursement of 
funds relative to the delinquent report(s). 

The Contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall maintain all books, records, 
documents, reports and other evidence of accounting procedures and 
practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of 
any nature expended in performance under the approved Area Agency Plan. 
Provided, subcontractors shall report all revenues and expenditures to the 
Contractor in a manner consistent with the reporting requirements of the 
"Budgeting, Accounting, Reporting System for Counties and Cities, and Other 
Local Governments," hereinafter referred to as "BARS," as issued by the Office 
of the State Auditor, State of Washington. Subcontractors may, however, 
maintain their fiscal books, records, documents and other data in any 
manner consistent with generally accepted accounting practices. 

The Contractor shall retain such fiscal books, records, documents, reports, 
and other data in a manner consistent with "BARS." 

During the term of this agreement and for six years following termination or 
expiration of this agreement, the Contractor shall maintain and provide copies 
of records, upon request, that: 

1. Document performance of all acts required by statute, regulation, rule 
or this agreement, including client records; 

2. Substantiate the Contractor's statement of its organizational structure, 
tax status, capabilities and performance; and 

3.  Demonstrate accounting procedures practices and records that 
sufficiently and properly document the Contractor's invoices to the 
County and all expenditure made by the Contractor to perform as  
required by this agreement. 

The Contractor shall give reasonable access to its place of business, and its 
business and client records to the County and to any employee of the State of 
Washington or the United States of America for the purpose of inspecting the 
Contractor's place of business and its records, and monitoring, auditing, and 
evaluating the Contractor's performance, compliance or quality assurance 
with applicable laws, regulations, rules and this agreement. 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 2 of 6 

Consent 10 - 12

Page 96 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



V. RIGHTS IN DATA 

Unless otherwise provided, data which originates from this Agreement shall be 
"works for hire" a s  defined by the U. S. Copyright Act of 1976 and shall be 
owned by the County. Data shall include, but  not be limited to, reports, 
documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, 
computer programs, films, tapes, and/or  sound reproductions. Ownership 
includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer 
these rights. Data which is delivered under the Agreement, but  which does 
not originate therefrom, shall be transferred to the County with a 
nonexclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable license to publish, translate, reproduce, 
deliver, perform, dispose of, and to authorize others to do so; Provided, that 
such license shall be limited to the extent which the Contractor has  a right to 
grant a license. The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise the 
County, a t  the time of delivery of data furnished under this Agreement, of all 
known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein and of any portion 
of such document which was not produced in the performance of this 
Agreement. The County shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or 
claim or copyright infringement received by the Contractor with respect to any 
data delivered under this Agreement. The County shall have the right to 
modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the data by the 
Contractor. 

VI. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIAL 

Material created by the Contractor and paid for by the County as a part of this 
agreement shall be owned by the County and considered "works for hire" as 
defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976. This material includes, but  is not 
limited to: books, computer programs, documents, films, pamphlets, reports, 
sound reproductions, studies, surveys, tapes and/  or training materials. 
Materials which the Contractor uses to perform this agreement but  which is 
not created for or paid for by the County is owned by the Contractor. 

VII. OWNERSHIP OF REAL PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
PURCHASED BY THE CONTRACTOR 

Title to all property, equipment and supplies purchased by the Contractor 
with funds from this agreement shall vest with the County. When real 
property, or equipment with a per unit fair market value over $5,000, is no 
longer needed for the purpose of carrying out this agreement, or this 
agreement is terminated or expired and will not be renewed, the Contractor 
shall request disposition instructions from the County. If the per unit fair 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 3 of 6 

Consent 10 - 13

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 97 of 575



market value of equipment is under $5,000, the Contractor may retain, sell or 
dispose of it with no further obligation. 

VIII. OWNERSHIP OF REAL PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
PURCHASEDBYTHECOUNTY 

Title to property, equipment and supplies purchased by the County and 
provided to the Contractor to carry out the activities of this agreement shall 
remain with the County. When real property, or equipment are no longer 
needed for the purpose of carrying out this agreement, or this agreement is 
terminated or expired and will not be renewed, the Contractor shall request 
disposition instructions from the County. 

IX. OWNERSHIP OF CLIENT ASSETS 

The Contractor shall ensure that any client for whom the Contractor or 
subcontractor is providing services under this agreement shall have 
unrestricted access to the client's personal property. The Contractor or 
subcontractor shall not interfere with the client's ownership, possession, or 
use of such property. Upon termination of this agreement, the Contractor or 
subcontractor shall immediately release to the client and/or the County all of 
the client's personal property. 

X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. The Contractor may use personal information gained by reason of this 
agreement only for the purpose of this agreement. The Contractor shall 
not disclose, transfer or sell any such information to any party, except as 
otherwise provided in this agreement or by law and with prior written 
consent of the person, or his/her attorney or guardian, to whom the 
personal information pertains. The Contractor shall maintain the 
confidentiality of all personal information and other information gained by 
reason of this agreement, and shall return or certify the confidential 
destruction of such information if requested by the County. 

B. The Contractor or its subcontractors may disclose information to each 
other, to the County, to DSHS, or to appropriate authorities, for purposes 
directly connected with the services provided to the client. This includes, 
but is not limited to, determining eligibility, providing services, and 
participation in disputes, fair hearings or audits. The Contractor and its 
subcontractors shall disclose information for research, statistical, 
monitoring and evaluation purposes conducted by appropriate federal 
agencies, DSHS and the County. The County must  authorize in writing 
the disclosure of this information to any other party not identified in this 
section. 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 4 of 6 

Consent 10 - 14

Page 98 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



XI. CLIENT ABUSE 

The Contractor shall report all instances of suspected client abuse in 
accordance with RCW 74.34. 

XII. DEBAFtMENT AND SUSPENSION 

The Contractor certifies that the Contractor is not presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participating in this agreement by any federal department or 
agency. If requested by the County, the Contractor shall complete a 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion form. Any such form completed by the Contractor for this 
agreement shall be incorporated into this agreement by reference. 

XIII. RESTRICTIONS AGAINST LOBBYING 

The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that no federal 
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an  officer 
or employee of a federal agency, a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making 
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have or will be paid for the 
purposes stated above, the Contractor must file a disclosure form in 
accordance with 45 CFR Section 93.1 10. 

The Contractor shall include a clause in all subcontracts restricting 
subcontractors from lobbying in accordance with this section and requiring 
subcontractors to certify and disclose accordingly. 

XIV. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

The Contractor shall maintain a work place free from alcohol and drug abuse. 

XV. SUBCONTRACTING 

A. The Contractor shall not subcontract work or services provided under 
this Agreement without obtaining the prior written authorization of the 
County. At the County's request, the Contractor will forward to the 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 5 of 6 

Consent 10 - 15

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 99 of 575



County copies of subcontracts and fiscal, programmatic, and other 
material pertaining to subcontracts. 

B. Any subcontracts shall be in writing and incorporate the following 
clauses with word changes where appropriate to properly identify the 
parties to the subcontract: 

o Client Abuse; 
o Client Grievance; 
o Compliance with Applicable Law; 
o Confidentiality; 
o Debarment and Suspension; 
o Indemnification and Hold Harmless; 
o Licensing and Accreditation Standards; 
o Inspection, Maintenance of Records; 
o Ownership of Real Property, Equipment and Supplies Purchased by 

the Contractor; 
o Ownership of Real Property, Equipment and Supplies Purchased by 

the County; 
o Ownership of Client Assets; 
o Ownership of Material; 
o Restrictions Against Lobbying; and 
o Single Audit Act (if applicable). 

C. When the nature of the service the subcontractor is to provide requires 
a certification, license or approval, the Contractor may only subcontract 
with such Contractors that have and agree to maintain the appropriate 
license, certification or accrediting requirements/standards. 

D. In any contract or subcontract awarded to or by the Contractor in 
which the authority to determine service recipient eligibility is delegated 
to the Contractor or to a subcontractor, such contract or subcontract 
shall include a provision acceptable to the County that specifies how 
service applicants and recipients will be informed of their right to a fair 
hearing in case of denial or termination of a service, or failure to act 
upon a request for services with reasonable promptness. 

Exhibit G 
A-07-75-0 1-200 

Senior Center Projects 
City of Marysville 

Page 6 of 6 

Consent 10 - 16

Page 100 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
1 AGENDA ITEM: / AGENDA SECTION: 
I Cedarcrest Golf Course  Marketing Agreement with Golf Cart I 1 

Marketing, Las Vegas, Nevada 
PREPARED BY. 
Peter Col.1-eran, Go12 Course S u p e r i n t e n d e n t  
ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement 

Summary: 

AGENDA NUMBER. 

APPROVED JV$? 
J. Ballew ,/y- 

BUDGET CODE. 

Golf Cart marketing of Las Vegas Nevada will install vinyl banners on all golf carts owned by the City at 
Cedarcrest Golf Course adorned with a national brand advertiser on each panel. Golf Cart Marketing will 
provide and maintain all banners at their cost. Cedarcrest Golf Course will receive up to $50 per cart, per 
month for the rights to provide advertisements authorized by the City. The following schedule is applied 
per installation. 
Program Type: Front Back Front and Back 
Fee Paid $30 $20 $50 

AMOUNT: 

Potential fees paid to Cedarcrest per year are as follows: 
40 carts Per Month Annual 
Front Only $1200 $14,400 
Back Only $800 $9,600 
Front and back $2000 $24,000 

Advertising of alcohol, tobacco or adult related products or immediate competitors would not be 
authorized. 

Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Golf Course Agreement with Golf Cart 
Marketing of Las Vegas Nevada to initiate a pron~otional marketing banner program at Cedarcrest Golf 
Course effective 2007. 

New Business 12 -1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 101 of 575



cdf Course Agreement 
5348 Vegas Dr~ve Las Vegas, NV 89208 Phone 877 846 9584 Fax 877 817 5617 www GolfCartMarket~ng corn 

/ Code: (55rl Director: [ /Ic 
/!~cp3,,jz 

Date: 1 

Address: I y#g rfs bt E, --- -- 
I cityl~tate: 1-1 zip: -'A 

Phone: - 4 5-9 - T-5-d L ]  ax: l3&-~ C; <7-C335~~ I E mail: 11 
@ Public Front Back Both 

Number of Holes: Semi-private Select Program Type:  on^ 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep- Oct Nov Dec 
-7- ---.I-- l r -  77.- 7- - 1,- 

Total 
1 - 7  1-7 

Total 
,#Carts, , Width , ,#Carts, , Width , ,##Carts, , Wid: - , 

Carts Measure the width of the ~ m n f  
front and back of Be 

cam between me poles Back j I  T I  T I  TI /I 

I Fee Paid: $30 $20 $50 I 
- - 

(Fees  are paid on a per cart, per month basis) 

Ihe Golf Course Agreement ("Agreement") is dated as of the above date hetween Golf Cart Marketing, Inc., having its principal place of business at 5348 Vegas 
Dr, Las Vem\NV R9k@ C l W  Wes (keneitter r e f e d  k, as "W Cart Marketing"), and the MCCoucse listed above. (hereinafter referred to as " W f  
Course") This agreement is for the purpose of aJJowing Golf Cart Marketing to place Vinyl Visors (TM) on the Golf Course's golf carts. Both parties will agree to 
the following terms. 
Right of Rehsal The Golf Course has the right of refusal of any advertisement that they deem inappropriate for their golf facility. Golf Cart Marketing will 
submit samples of s~gnage for the Golf Course to review before the campaign begins. 
Paymemt to the Coif Cmrse GoK Cart fvhkmg s t d l  pay tfie Got€ Comse the 6ees st;bed atrcrve fot &upby@ the Vinyl Visats oa theit @f cam 
according to instructions given to the course by Golf Cart Marketing. Golf Cart Marketing shall pay the Golf Course in the beginning of each month for all 
advertising Bisplayed for that month. G d f  Cart Marketing shall MU be liable for payments for advertising that extend beyond tke campaign dates set by Golf Cart 
Marketing. 
Placement of Vinyl Visors The Vinyl Visors will be placed in the visor position on the front andlor back of the golf cart between the poles at the top just 
befm the roof. The front or the back of the golf cart is determined by the program Ulat the advertiser has selected. 
Installation and Removal of Vinyl Visors The Regional Director of Golf Cart Marketing, Deuane Kuenzi, will be responsible for placing and 
mainraining ifre Vinyl Visors on rhe golf cam. me City of Miuysvifie, Washingron will not be hdd responsible in the event of vandalism to Be Vinyl VimSarS 
Should vandalisnl occur, or the Vinyl Visors be damaged in any way, Golf Cart Marketing will replace the Vinyl Visors within 24 hours of being notified by tlle 
Golf Chme at no axst to the C i f  or The City of Marysville, Washington. Further. Deuane Kuenzi will he responsible for removing all Vin j Visors at the 
end of the campaign. 
Length of Contract The length of term of this contract will be from one year from the date of this agreement and will automatically renew itself each year. 
Termination O€ Contract Termination of this contract can be made by e i t k  party at any time by giving a thirty (30) day advanced notice in writing. 

n 

Director: 

Executive Director: 

Titte: WL) R 
Date: 1 /A d / ~ - d d / 7  

New Business 12 -2

Page 102 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARY SVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
1 AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 
Engineering for Design Services on the Lake 
Goodwin Well Site Improvements Project 

PREPARED BY: 

This Professional Services Agreement will provide the City with design services for the Lake 
Goodwin Well Site Improvements project. The recommended consultant for this work is RH2 
Engineering. After reviewing several Consultants' qualifications, the selection committee 
ultimately determined that RH2 was best-suited for this project. 

New Business 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

David Zull, P.E., Project Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: 

It is staffs opinion that the negotiated fee of $155,279.00 is fair and consistent with industry 
standard for the type of work at hand. Furthermore, RH2 has a proven track record with the 
City and they perform excellent work. In light of these facts staff is confident that the City 
would be well-served by RH2 working on this project. 

BY: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the Council authorize the Mayor to sign Professional Services 
Agreement in the amount of $1 55,279.00 with RH2 Engineering. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Professional Services Agreement 
C 

- 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

G:\Shared\Engineeri~ig\Lake Goodwin Well\Agenda Bills\PSA ABdoc 

New Business 13 - 1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 103 of 575



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF MARY SVILLE 

AND RH2 ENGINEERING 
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

6- ?-n ''43sc 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into in Snohomish County, 

I 

Washington, by and between CITY OF MARYSVILLE, hereinafter called 

the "City, " and RH2 ENGINEERING, a Washington corporation, 

hereinafter called the "Consultant." 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has represented, and by entering 

into this Agreement now represents, that the firm and all 

employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 

compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing 

activities to be performed and that all personnel to be assigned 

to the work required under this agreement ,are fully qualified and 

properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be 

assigned. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, 

covenants and performances contained hereinbelow, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I .  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the City with 
engineering services to improve the Lake Goodwin Well site 
including disinfection improvements as described in Article 11. 
The general terms and conditions of relationships between the 
City and the Consultant are specified in this agreement. 

ARTICLE 11. SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work is set out in the attached "Scope of 
Services," E x h i b i t  A. All services and materials necessary to 
accomplish the tasks outlined in E x h i b i t A  shall be provided by 
the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the scope of services or 
this agreement. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 1 
/wpf/forms/MVOO38 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 2

Page 104 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



ARTICLE 111. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

111.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE. The Consultant shall 
accept minor changes, amendments, or revision in the detail of 
the work as may be required by the City when such changes will 
not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery 
schedule. Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes 
and/or changes in cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

Extra Work. The City may desire to have the Consultant 
perform work or render services in connection with each 
project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the scope of work in the scope of 
services. Such work will be considered as extra work and 
will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth 
the nature and the scope thereof. All proposals for extra 
work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no 
cost to the City. Work under a supplemental agreement shall 
not proceed until executed in writing by the parties. 

111.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS. The work product and 
all documents listed in the scope of services shall be furnished 
by the Consultant to the City, and upon completion of the work 
shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its 
records. The Consultant will be responsible for the accuracy of 
the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this 
agreement or in the event that this contract shall be terminated 
prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of 
the Consultant, along with a summary of work done to date of 
default or termination, shall become the property of the City. 
Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City. Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this contract. The summary 
of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of these 
documents or modifications thereof for any purpose other than 
those authorized under this Agreement without the written 
authorization of Consultant. 

111.3 TIME OF PERFORMANCE. The Consultant shall be 
authorized to begin work under the terms of this agreement upon 
signing of both the scope of services and this agreement and 
shall completed by March 31, 2008, unless a mutual written 
agreement is signed to change the schedule. An extension of the 
time for completion may be given by the City due to conditions 
not expected or anticipated at the time of execution of this 
agreement. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 2 
/wpf/forms/MVOO38 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 3

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 105 of 575



111.4 NONASSIGNABLE. The services to be provided by the 
Consultant shall not be assigned or subcontracted without the 
express written consent of the City. 

111.5 EMPLOYMENT. Any and all employees of the 
Consultant, while engaged in the performance of any work or 
services required by the Consultant under this agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the 
City, and any and all claims that may or might arise under the 
Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees while 
so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the 
Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any of the work 
or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the 
Consultant. 

111.6 INDEMNITY. 

a. The Engineer will at all times indemnify and hold 
harmless and defend the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives, from and 
against any and all lawsuits, damages, costs, charges, 
expenses, judgments and liabilities, including attorney's 
fees (including attorney's fees in establishing 
indemnification), collectively referred to herein as 
"losses" resulting from, arising out of, or related to one 
or more claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of the Engineer in performance of Engineer's 
professional services under this agreement. The term 
"claims" as used herein shall mean all claims, lawsuits, 
causes of action, and other legal actions and proceedings of 
whatsoever nature, involving bodily or personal injury or 
death of any person or damage to any property including, but 
not limited to, persons employed by the City, the Engineer 
or other person and all property owned or claimed by the 
City, the Engineer, or affiliate of the Engineer, or any 
other person. 

b. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine 
that this agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the 
event of liability for damaging arising out of bodily injury 
to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting 
from the concurrent negligence of the Engineer and the City, 
its members, officers, employees and agents, the Engineer's 
liability to the City, by way of indemnification, shall be 
only to the extent of the Engineer's negligence. 

c. The provisions of this section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this agreement. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 3 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 4

Page 106 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



111.7 INSURANCE. 

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance. The Consultant 
shall, before commencing work under this agreement, file 
with the City certificates of insurance coverage to be kept 
in force continuously during this agreement, and during all 
work performed pursuant to all short form agreements, in a 
form acceptable to the City. Said certificates shall name 
the City as an additional named insured with respect to all 
coverages except professional liability insurance. The 
minimum insurance requirements shall be as follows: 

(1) Comprehensive General Liability. $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury 
personal injury and property damage; damage, $2,000,000 
general aggregate; 

(2) Automobile Liability. $300,000 combined 
single limit per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage; 

(3) Workers1 Compensation. Workers' compensation 
limits as required by the Workers1 Compensation Act of 
Washington; 

(4) Consultant's Errors and Omissions Liability. 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and as an annual aggregate. 

b. Endorsement. Each insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, 
voiced, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days1 prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

c. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance to be 
provided by Consultant shall be with a Bests rating of no 
less than A:VII, or if not rated by Bests, with minimum 
surpluses the equivalent of Bests1 VII rating. 

d. Verification of Coverage. In signing this 
agreement, the Consultant is acknowledging and representing 
that required insurance is active and current. 

111.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION. The Consultant agrees to comply 
with equal opportunity employment and not to discriminate against 
client, employee, or applicant for employment or for services 
because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following: 
employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 4 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 5

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 107 of 575



recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of 
services. The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth 
the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination 
provision, this agreement may be terminated by the City, and 
further that the Consultant will be barred from performing any 
services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is 
made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have 
been terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

111.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES. During the 
performance of this agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply 
with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment practices. 

111.10 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. Affirmative action shall be 
implemented by the Consultant to ensure that applicants for 
employment and all employees are treated without regard to race, 
creed, color, sex, age, marital status, national origin or the 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless 
based on a bona fide occupational qualification. The Consultant 
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that all of its 
employees and agent adhere to this provision. 

111.11 LEGAL RELATIONS. The Consultant shall comply with 
all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to 
work to be done under this agreement. This contract shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of 
Washington. Venue for any action commenced relating to the 
interpretation, breach or enforcement of this agreement shall be 
in Snohomish County Superior Court. 

111.12 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Consultant's relation 
to the City shall at all times be as an independent contractor. 

111.13 CONF'LICTS OF INTEREST. While this is a non- 
exclusive agreement the Consultant agrees to and will notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant's 
client base and will seek and obtain written permission from the 
City prior to providing services to third parties where a 
conflict of interest is apparent. If a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this 
agreement. 

111.14 CITY CONFIDENCES. The Consultant agrees to and 
will keep in strict confidence, and will not disclose, 
communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences 
of the City or any information regarding the City or services 
provided to the City. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 5 
/wpf /forms/MV0038 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 6

Page 108 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



ARTICLE IV. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

IV.l PAYMENTS. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for 
completed work for services rendered under this agreement and as 
detailed in the scope of services as provided hereinafter. Such 
payment shall be full compensation for work performed or services 
rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and 
incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment shall be on 
a time and expense basis, provided, however, in no event shall 
total payment under this agreement exceed $155,279. In the event 
the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set 
forth in Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant an additional 
amount based on a time and expense basis, based upon Consultant's 
current schedule of hourly rates. 

a. Invoices shall be submitted by the Consultant to 
the City for payment pursuant to the terms of the scope of 
services. The invoice will state the time expended, the 
hourly rate, a detailed description of the work performed, 
and the expenses incurred during the preceding month. 
Invoices must be submitted by the 20th day of the month to 
be paid by the 15th day of the next calendar month. 

b. The City will pay timely submitted and approved 
invoices received before the 20th of each month within 
thirty (30) days of receipt. 

IV.2 CITY APPROVAL. Notwithstanding the Consultant's status 
as an independent contractor, results of the work performed 
pursuant to this contract must meet the approval of the City, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the scope of work and City 
requirements. 

ARTICLE V. GENERAL 

V.l NOTICES. Notices to the City shall be sent to the 
following address: 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
C/O David L. Zull, PE 
80 Columbia Avenue 
MARYSVILLE, WA 98270 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following 
address: 

RH2 ENGINEERING 
Attention: John Hendron, PE 
12100 NE 1 9 5 ~ ~  Street, Suite 100 
Bothell, WA 98011 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 6 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 7

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 109 of 575



Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) 
days after deposit of written notice in the U.S. mail with proper 
postage and address. 

V.2 TERMINATION. The right is reserved by the City to 
terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time upon ten 
(10) days' written notice to the Consultant. 

If this agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City 
for its convenience, a final payment shall be made to the 
Consultant which, when added to any payments previously made, 
shall total the actual costs plus the same percentage of the 
fixed fee as the work completed at the time of termination 
applied to the total work required for the project. 

V.3 DISPUTES. The parties agree that, following reasonable 
attempts at negotiation and compromise, any unresolved dispute 
arising under this contract may be resolved by a mutually agreed- 
upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

V.4 NONWAIVER. Waiver by the City of any provision of this 
agreement or any time limitation provided for in this agreement 
shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision. 

DATED this day of , 2007. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

BY 
Mayor 

RH2 ENGINEERING 
A 

Approved as to form: 

GRANT K. WEED, City Attorney 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 7 
/wpf/forms/MVOO38 - PSA 

New Business 13 - 8

Page 110 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Exhibit A 
City Of Marysville 

Lake Goodwin Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Scope of Services 
January 2007 

PROJECT BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

The City of Ma~ysville (City) currently owns and operates the Lake Goodwin Well, which has a water 
right for 550 gallons per minute (GPM) instantaneous, and 880 acre-feet annual, withdrawals. Due to 
limiting factors at the well screen, the maximum operating capacity has been reduced to 350 GPM. 
The Well is equipped with a 50-horsepower, 8-stage, he-shaft  driven vertical turbine pump and 
discharges to the Lake Goodwin Standpipe, which has a storage capacity of approximately 750 gallons 
and an overflow elevation of 457 feet. The Well provides drinktng water for 25 homes along an 
existing 12-inch cast-iron water main supply line that runs to Edward Springs Reservoir and to the 
Seven Lakes Water Association (Association) through an emergency intertie. The Well is isolated from 
the Edward Springs Reservoir by a normally closed valve. The Lake Goodwin Well source is currently 
unchlorinated and water quality is generally good with t l ~ e  exception of elevated levels of iron and 
manganese. 

The City is designing a new 0.5 million gallon VG) storage reservoir that will have an overflow 
elevation of 327 feet. The new reservoir will be sited near the Edward Springs Reservoir. The 
anticipated construction completion date is spring 2008. In order to better utilize the Lake Goodwin 
Well source, the City desires to reconfigure the Well to supply the new reservoir and repurpose the 
supply line as a dedicated transmission main. This will require the existing water services to be 
removed and the intertie with Seven Lakes' water Association be abandoned. In addition, the 
transmission main runs over a hill with an elevation of approximately 442 feet. Pumping over a hill 
where the downstream hydraulic gradient is lower presents some hydraulic challenges and is generally 
avoided whenever possible due to the potential for creating a siphon in the line. The main objective of 
this project is to upgrade the Lake Goodwin Well pump and mechanical systems, the electrical power 
supply (if required), the automatic control and telemetry systems to operate based on the new reservoir 
level, and to provide mechanical and control systems at the new reservoir site to ensure proper 
operation of the well pump and transmission hydraulics. Coordination with the City's reservoir design 
consultant and control systems integrator will be required as part of this project. The Seven Lakes 
Water Association has agreed to provide service for the City's 25 existing customers on the 
transmission line. Coordination with the Association for transfer of these services and abandonment of 
the intertie will also be required as part of this project. 

Page 1 
J:\dara\rnar\s.20\2006 Lake Goodwin Wcll\SOn'- lakc Goodwin \X1ell.dnc 

New Business 13 - 9

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 111 of 575



Cig OfMatysville 
Lake Goodwin Weell and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope OfSeruices 

Finally, as part of t h~s  project, the City will add &sinfection to the well source. Disinfection will be 
acheved using bulk 12.5 percent sodium hypochlorite. The new chlorination system will include 
chemical storage tank(s), metering pump(s), a chemical injection system, a chlorine residual analyzer 
and other ancillary equipment. The chlorination system will be housed in a new concrete masonry 
buildtng to be constructed on-site. It is assumed that the required disinfection contact time will be 
achieved in the transmission main. 

Approval from the Washmgton State Deparment of Health (DOH) wdl be required for mo&fications 
and disinfection of the Lake Goodwin Well. For this approval, a Project Report and D O H  
Construction Document review will be required. It is assumed that a Snohomish County building 
permit and SEPA wdl also be required as part of this project. 

Below is a description of the tasks necessary to implement the improvements. 

Objective: Meet with the City to establish project goals and design criteria. Prepare D O H  project 
report and answer questions to help the City obtain project approval from DOH. Complete site survey 
and prepare preliminary design plans and construction cost estimate. Determine site specific 
geotechnical information for use in the design of the proposed improvements. 

Approach 

1.1 I'ry'ect Kick-off and Design Criterid Meeti~g - Meet with City personnel to discuss City goals, project 
requirements and project constraints. The goal of this meeting will be to: 1) identify all 
improvements that wdl be included in the current project; 2) identify future improvements that 
should be planned for in the design (e.g. future replacement well, future iron and manganese 
filtration plant, emergency backup power); 3) establish operation and control scheme for well and 
reservoir; and 4) document design criteria and client preferences. Develop a list of needed 
information to collect from the City. Obtain a copy of avadable surveys, title reports, easements 
and all other avadable information that is pertinent to project report and predesign. City staff to 
advise RH2 Engineering regarding lirmtations for site based on site zoning, sensitive area 
designations for site and property h e  setback requirements. Review obtained information. 

Deli~erable: Memorandum of project goals and design criteria. 

1.2 DOH Project Rtport - Prepare a project report based on applicable Waslungton Administrative 
Code WAC) report requirements. Perform detailed hydradc analysis for the purpose of pump 
and valve selection and determination of suitabihty of existing well pump. Document the 
background of the project and objectives, approach of the pump and transmission main hydraulic 
and chlorination storage and feed system sizing analyses, and results of the analyses and sizing 
recommendations. Prepare prelirmnary design plans showing site and buildmg layouts and 
planning level construction cost estimate to be included with project report. Submit the project 
report to the DOH. If necessary, respond to DOH comments by letter to obtain D O H  project 
report approval. 

Deliverable: DOH Project Report. 

Page 2 
I/ I S / Z W 7  114 1.4 1 I'M 

New Business 13 - 10

Page 112 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City OfMarysville 
Lake Goodwin Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope ofSertnces 

1.3 Site Snmy - RH2 will coordinate with a professional land surveyor to provide horizontal and 
vertical survey control, topographic and boundary information for the existing well site. The 
survey shall include all surface features, underground utilities, topography, roadway and utdity 
alignments, rights-of-way, property lines, sanitary control restrictive covenants and easements. 
Benchmarks shall be set for future use. Survey shall follow RH2 Engineering standard 
topographic survey requirements, including 2-foot contour intervals and all topographic 
information. Review completed survey and perform site visit to "ground-truth" survey 
information. 

Deliverable: Formatted site survey. 

1.4 Geotechnical Investigaion - Review available geologic and seismic information and perform a field 
geologic reconnaissance. Perform field investigation, including the excavation of up to one test 
pit or hand-auger boring near the proposed facility to evaluate the composition and strength of 
the earth that will support the structure for the purpose of establishmg geotechnical design 
criteria required for structural design. This estimate assumes that the City will provide the 
personnel and equipment to dtg these test pits. Soil bearing capacity, earth composition and the 
presence and depth of groundwater will be determined from existing data and the geologic 
reconnaissance. Develop site alteration and design guidelines, including temporary and final 
slopes for fills and excavations, surface water drainage patterns, dewatering requirements, 
estimated stripping depths, backfill and compaction requirements, and recommendations for 
subgrade preparation and backfill. Identify potential geologic hazards at the site. Identify seismic 
risks and zone. 

Deliverable: Geotechnical design criteria. 

Task Deliverables: Memorandum of project goals and design criteria; approved DOH Project Report; 
formatted site survey; and geotechnical design criteria. 

Objective: The objective of this task is to develop a set of detailed design plans and specifications 
based on the established design criteria, client preferences and approved project report. 

Approach 

2.1 Site Design - Prepare construction and final site grading plans, final site plans and erosion control 
plans. It is assumed that site grading will be constrained to the project site and that soil 
stabilization measures, such as retaining walls, shored walls or rockeries, will not be necessary. 

Deli~erable: Detailed site design plans and details. 

2.2 Site Utiliie~ and CT/Transmission Main Improvements - Prepare design plans and details for site 
utilities. Site utility design will consist of water, stormwater, sanitary sewer, chemical injection and 
sampling, and power and control signal utilities from the structure to connection points provided 
in the adjacent right-of-way. Water system design will include improvements to the existing 
supply main and work at the Edward Springs Reservoir site required for repurposing the water 
main as dedicated chlorine contact time transmission main. I t  is anticipated that the existing 

Page 3 

J:\&l\mor\s442006 b.4~ C&n CiU\.TOW - Idkt G d v n  D'rlLdor 

New Business 13 - 11

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 113 of 575



City OfMaysvilLe 
h k e  Goodm'n Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope $Services 

water main is of suitable condition and will not require sipficant modfications or extension to 
meet CT requirements. 

Deliverable: Detailed site utility plans and details. 

2.3 Stmctzral Design - Finalize chlorination building size and configuration. Design and detail budding 
floor and foundation, building walls, roof and other miscellaneous structural components. 
Design shall be in accordance with the 2003 International Building Code (IBC). Prepare structural 
calculations necessary for submittal of building permit. It is anticipated that the structure will be 
above grade, rectangular (approximately 12 by 20 feet), and constructed with a concrete floor, 
concrete masonry unit walls and a roof with wood trusses and a metal roofing system. It is 
assumed no other existing structures will require improvements. 

Deliverable: Detailed structural plans and details; structural calculations. 

2.4 Mechanical Deskn - Finalize improvements of major and minor mechanical components and 
piping systems within the existing well pump station and proposed chlorination facility, as well as 
the mechanical components immediately outside of each facfity. Major mechanical systems 
include the well pump modifications and discharge piping. Minor mechanical systems include the 
sizing, selection and design of a chlorination system, o h e  sampling, eye washes/safety showers 
and chemical injection piping runs. Determine suitable coatings for mechanical and concrete 
surfaces to protect surfaces from corrosion. Finahze design of addtional mechanical features to 
provide access to and permit efficient operation of the well and chlorination facilities. Include 
final design of access doors, piping, plumbing, heating, ventilation and equipment removal 
system. 

Deliverable: Detailed mechanical plans and details; Washington State Energy Code calculations. 

2.5 Electtzcal and Telemety Deskn - Develop design of electrical, control, monitoring and telemetry 
systems for the well pump station modifications and proposed chlorination facility. It is 
anticipated that the existing well building's electrical system conforms to current electrical code 
requirements and will not require significant upgrades. Determine connected load for normal and 
emergency operating condtions. Determine power supply requirements and confirm that 
existing supply is sufficient. For the proposed structure, design exterior and interior lighting. 
Prepare one-line diagram; power plan; signal and grounding plan; control dtagrams; motor control 
center details; branch circuit panels; and necessary details to show work to be completed. Plans 
will conform to NEC and ISA standards. Develop design of control and monitoring sensors to be 
installed at the well and chlorination fachties, includmg construction details, as necessary. 
Equipment that meets the City standards will be selected. Develop design of telemetry system to 
interface with existing City telemetry systems. 

Deliverable: Detailed electrical and telemetry plans and detds.  

2.6 Contracts and Spen$%ation.r - Prepare legal and technical specifications specific to this project. 
Specifications shall be based on RH2 standard master specifications. 

Deliverable: Legal and technical specifications. 

Page 4 

New Business 13 - 12

Page 114 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City flMarymille 
Ldke Goodwin Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Sem'ces 

2.7 Final Design Plans - Prepare final design plans and specifications incorporating all of the above 
information. Prepare cover sheet, general information sheet, miscellaneous details and 
construction notes. It is assumed that 26 sheets will be included in the final set of design plans. 

Deliverable: Final design plans and specifications. 

2.8 In-Home Review - Perform an in-house quality control review of design plans and specifications. 
Review shall be completed by an independent senior-level professional engineer familiar with the 
nature of the work. Revise plans and specifications and prepare for transmittal to the City. 

Deliverable: QA/QC review of design plans and specifications and edits. 

2.9 Construction Cost Estimate - Finalize construction cost estimate to establish engineer's estimated 
cost of construction based on information supplied by material vendors and slmilar projects 
adjusted for anticipated biddtng conditions. 

Deliverable: Engineer's Estimate of anticipated construction cost. 

2.10 Cig Design Review - At approximately 60 and 95 percent of design completion, provide the City 
with two current set of plans (ll-inch x 17-inch format) for review and comment. An updated 
construction cost estimate and specifications will also be provided at the 95 percent review. 
Attend a meeting following each review to discuss City comments. Revise design plans and 
specifications according to City comments and prepare a bid ready set. 

Deliverable: 60 percent and 95 percent City review sets and design review meetings. 

Task Deliverables: Detaded site, utihty, structural, mechanical, electrical, and control plans and details; 
structural and energy code calculations for budding permit; legal and technical specifications; final plans 
and specifications; QA/QC review of h a 1  plans and specifications; engineer's estimate; 60 percent and 
95 percent City design reviews. 

Objective: The tasks below are identified as being required to obtain approval to bid the project. Upon 
approval, RH2 d prepare the bid documents and assist the City in the biddmg process, with the 
objective of obtaining a qualified contractor to complete the construction of the project. 

Approach: 

3.1 Snohomis/7 Corn0 Building Permit - Prepare a building permit submittal per Snohornish County 
requirements. It is anticipated that the City will submit for the permit and pay all associated fees. 
Respond to building department questions and update the submittal accordmgly. 

Deliverable: Completed Snohomish County Building Permit Application. 

3.2 DOH Constmction D0nrment.r - Prepare and submit 95 percent design plans to D O H  for 
construction document approval. Respond to DOH comments and incorporate responses into 
the plans and specifications, if necessary, to obtain DOH approval of final construction plans to 
permit construction of the project. 

Deliverable: D O H  Construction Documents. 

Page 5 

New Business 13 - 13

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 115 of 575



Cig ofMaymile 
Lake Goodwz'n Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope ofSetvices 

3.3 Bid Documents - Prepare 30 sets of bid documents for distribution to prospective bidders; prepare 
6 sets of bid documents for use by RH2 and the City during bidding. 

Deliverable: Thirty-six sets of Bid Documents. 

3.4 Advetzti~ement for Bidding - Prepare advertisement for bidding and submit to DJC and local 
newspaper for advertising. It is assumed that the City will pay advertisement fees directly. It is 
also anticipated that the City will distribute the bid documents and maintain a plan holder's list. 

Deliverable: Advertisement for bid. 

3.5 Addendm - Respond to bidder questions and prepare and transmit one addendum as necessary. 

Deliverable: Bid document addendum. 

3.6 Bid Opening and BidderQt/ah$?catioons - Attend bid opening and compile bid results. Review three 
lowest responsible bids and check qualifications of the lowest responsible bidder. Provide the 
City with an award recommendation. 

Deherable: Bid Tab and Recommendation of Award. 

Task Deliverables: Completed Snohornish County building permit application and DOH 
construction documents; bid documents; advertisement for bid; addenda; bid tab; and recommendation 
of award. 

Objective: To assist the City with the administration and enforcement of the contract documents 
during the construction phase. It is assumed that the City will be primarily responsible for construction 
inspection and adrmnistration. RH2's services will include preparation of construction documents, 
attendance at the pre-construction conference, submittal review, on-call technical assistance, on-call 
construction observation, and start-up and testing services. 

Approach: 

4.1 Constmction Management - Attend and assist City in conducting pre-construction conference with 
Conttactor and other agencies. Prepare three sets of full- and half-size color plans and deliver to 
the Contractor at the meeting. Prepare two sets of half-size color plans for the City. Attend 
construction progress meetings with City and Contractor (to coincide with on-call inspection). 
RH2 wdl provide on-call technical assistance in reviewing and respondmg to Contractor Requests 
for Information (RFIs) and City questions within the level of fee shown. RH2 will also assist City 
in reviewing and respondmg to change orders submitted by Contractor. 

Deliverable: Construction documents, RFI review and response. 

4.2 S~bmiflal Review - Review and approve (or reject, if necessary) shop drawings, equipment 
submittals, specifications, schedules and construction sequence for conformance to the contract 
documents. RH2 will provide a written response to the Contractor and City for each submittal 
reviewed. 

Deliverable: Submittal review and approval. 

Page 6 

New Business 13 - 14

Page 116 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Cip ofMarysville 
Lake Goodwin Well and Disinfection Improvements 

Exhibit A 
Scope ofSemkes 

4.3 Constmction Observation - Provide a part-time, on-site engineer to observe the progress and quality 
of construction and, based on partial observation of construction, confirm that the project is 
being completed in general conformance with the contract documents. Observe activities, 
including mechanical, structural, and electrical and control construction. In addition, RH2 will 
provide inspection of the subgrade and other items required by the Revised Code of Washington 
(RCW) for a licensed Geologist or Enpeering Geologst. It is assumed that the City will provide 
full-time construction inspection to ensure that the Contractor is meeting City standards. RH2's 
periodic and targeted site inspections will &ow the Engineer to evaluate and monitor the 
methods and competency of the Contractor and inspect critical design elements to ensure those 
items inspected meet City and design requirements. If necessary, RH2 will noti$ the Contractor 
and City and d~scuss rectification of any work that has not been completed in accordance with the 
plans and specifications. 

When RH2 completes an inspection, a written report for the visit wdl be prepared that records 
observations, progress and discussions that have taken place. The fee estimate is based on 
approximately 8 hours of construction observation per week for 12 weeks. The level of 
involvement by RH2 will be re-evaluated during construction and may be adjusted based on 
Contractor qualifications and project schedule. It is assumed that the City wdl retain and 
coordinate the services of special testing laboratories and inspectors for inspection and testing of 
soils density, reinforced concrete and masonry, as required. RH2 will assist the City in reviewing 
pay requests from the Contractor, including ascertaining quantities and percent completion of the 
work as stated by the Contractor, and prepare progress reports, includmg contract time remaining 
statements. RH2 will consult with the City on construction costs and scheduling. The City will 
process requests for payment. 

Deliverable: Construction observation reports, pay requests. 

4.4 Testing and Start-@ - Provide an engineer on-site during testing and start-up to assist with trouble- 
shooting and veri5 proper operation. Conduct final inspection in conjunction with City staff. 
Make final check for satisfactory completion of all punch-list items and all specified construction 
by the Contractor. Determine if the project has been completed in general conformance with the 
contract documents. Recommend final payment and acceptance. It is anticipated that the 
Contractor will complete all punch-list items prior to the final inspection. Prepare the DOH 
Construction Completion Report form for the portion of the project inspected by RH2 staff. 

Deliverable: Recommendation of project acceptance and D O H  construction completion report. 

4.5 Constrt/ction Records - Review field records provided by the Contractor to check accuracy and 
consistency with the inspector's field records. Prepare construction record drawings from the 
Contractor-provided as-built drawings, and deliver one full-size mylar set and one full-size paper 
set of record drawings at end of the project. A CD-ROM containing the record drawings in TIFF 
file format will also be provided. 

Deliverable: Construction records in printed and electronic archival formats. 

Task Deliverables: Construction documents; submittal review and response; RFI review and 
response; construction observation reports; pay request review; recommendation of project acceptance; 
DOH construction completion report; and construction record drawings. 

Page 7 

New Business 13 - 15

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 117 of 575



EXHIBIT B 
City of Marysville 
Lake Goodwin Well and Disinfection Improvements 
Estimate of Time and Expense 

Description 
............................................................................................................................................... ' ..................... 

Classification 
Hours 

Task 1 Predesign and Project Report --- - - p~~ 

1.1 Project Kickoff and Design Criteria Meeting -- - - -- - - -- - . -- 

1.2 Project Report 
-- . - .. 

1.3 Site Survey ~ 

1.4 Geotechnical Investigation 
Subtotal 

Task 2 Final Design - - -- - . - - - -. - 
2.1 Site Design 
2.2 ~~te-utilities -~. and CTrrransmission Main lrnprovements .- -- 

2.3 Structural Design 9 8  

20 
64 
28 
24 
136 

I PROJECT TOTAL I 1088 1 $ 123,859 1 9 15,000 1 $ 16,420 1 $ 155,279 1 

TotalLabor 

$ 2,787 
$ 8,297 
$ 18,601 
$ 3,671 
$ 33,356 

36 

- 70 

$ 5,455 
$ 2,075 
$ 4,160 
$ 398 
$ 1,492 
$ 825 
$ 14,405 

Task - ..- 3 Services During Bidding 
~~p -. 

3.1 Snohomish County Building - - Permit .- . 

-3.2 DOH Construction .- Documents -~ .- --- 
3.3 - Bid Documents - -  - 

3.4 Advertisement for Bid - 
3.5 Respond To Bidder's Questions and Prepare ~ ~ddenda - 

3.6 Bid Opening and Bidder Qualifications 
Subtotal 

J.\data\mar\srlOVWG Lake Goodwin WelRMAR Lake G W t n  Well - Fee Estimate 171 Rates.xls 

$ 107 
$ 625 
$ 411 
$ 1 4 6  
$ 1,289 

$ 2,680 
$ 7,672 
$ 3,190 
$ 3,525 
$ 17,067 

2.4 Mechanical Design ~- - - -. -- - -.- 152 $ 17,872 $ - $  1,984 $ 19,856 
2.5 Electrical and Telemetry Design -. - -- - -. -- 70 $ 8,170 $ - $ 763 $ 8,933 
2.6 Contracts and Specifications - - . 30 $ 3,496 $ - $ 242 $ 3,738 
2.7 Final Design -- Plans ~ . 20 2,162 $ - $ 5 3 7  $ 2,699 

6,636 
$ 6,181 
$ 14,791 - 
$ 5,300 
$ 2,337 
$ 35,245 

Task 4 Services During Construction - 
4.1 Construction Management - 46 $ 5,188 $ 
4.2 Submittal Review 64 $ 5,944 $ - 
4.3 Construction Observation -- -- 136 $ 13,772 $ - 

- 4.4 Testing and Start-up 5,148 $ 
- 

4.5 Construction Records 16 $ 1,652 $ - 
Subtotal 308 $ 31,704 $ - 

Subconslt. 
Cost 

$ - 
$ - 
$ 15,000c 
$ - 
$ 15,000 

40 -- 
14 -- 
20 
4 
12 
8 

98 

- $  1 , 4 4 8 $  
$ 237 
$ 1,019 
$ 152 
$ 685 
$ 3,541 

$ 4,765 
$ 9,153 

~ ~ $ 12,082- -$ - 984 

$ 4.256 
$ 8,244 

2.8 In-House Review -- 

-- 2.9 Construction Cost ~ s t i m a t e  ..~ - 

2.10 City Design Review 
Subtotal 

Total 
Expense 

$ 13,066 -- 

28 -- 
14 
28 

546 

$ 3,790 
$ 1,846 
$ 3,310 
$ 65,228 

$ 4,324 
$ 1,618 
$ 1,304 
$ 380 
$ 1,474 
$ 7 6 0  
$ 9,860 

Total Cost 

$ - 
$ - 

$ 509 
$ 909 

$ - 
$ - 
$ - 
$ - 

-- 
$- - 
$- - 
$ - 
$ - 
$ - 
$ - 
$ - 

$ 1,131 
$ 457 
$ 2,856 
$ 18 
$ 18 
$ 65 
$ 4,545 

$ 332 
$ 152 
$ 632 
$ 7,044 

$ 4,122 
$ 1,998 
$ 3.942 
$ 72,272 

New Business 13 - 16

Page 118 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



[J?,GF ?.If r -- -- \b,- ,F - \b PbFFh 

EXHIBIT C 
RH2 Engineering 

- SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES 

- 17 HOURLY RATES 

CLASSIFICATION RATE CLASSIF7CATION RATE 
I 1 
Principal 
Pnnctpal 
Pr~nc~pal 

Profess~onal 
Profess~onal 
Profess~onal 

Professional 
Professional 
Professional 

Technician 
Technician 
Technician 
Technician 

Administrative 
Administrative 
Administrative 
Administrative 
Administrative 

IN-HOUSE SERVICES 

In-house copies (each) 81DX X l I "  $0.07 CAD Plots $10.00 -- - - - - --- - - .-- - - --- - -- - -- ---- -- --- - - -- - - - -- - - -- - -- -- - - .La!&:- -..-..---_- eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 

In-house copies (each) 8112" - X 14" $0.08 CAD Plots .-- Full Size S5.00 
In-house copies (each) 11"X 17" $0.14 CAD Plots Half Size $2.00 - - ---- -- -- -- ---- -- ---- -- -- -- - --- --- - - -- -- - -- - - -- - - - - - - -- -- - - - - - - - - .- - - - --- -- - - - - - -- -- ------ - - - -. --. 

$0.85 In-house copies (color) (each) .!-!-L?2-!-!-'1 GIs System . - Per - - - -- Hour - - - - -------------- ----- $10.00 - -- - -- -. 
$1.50 h-house ~ p i e s  (color) (each) -!-!l?:-.?-!? CIS Plots . - Per - - ---- Plot - . - -- --- - ---- ------ -- - $5.00 -- -- - ---. 
$1 70 fn-house copies (color) (each) L!-?!-!?y In-house Computer Per Hour ----- ---- $9.00 

Mileage Per Mile $0.485 
FAX (each sheet) $1.00 Digital Camera Per Dav S10.00 ---- -- - -- ------ - -- - -- -- -. - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- -- - -- - -- - - -- -- - -- - - - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - -. .------ ---. -------- 
In-house CAD System Per Hour $25.00 Digital Camera Per Week $30.00 -- -- -- --- - - - - - - - - -- -- - - -- - - - - - - - -- - - - -- - - - - - --- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -. 

Digital Camera Per Month $90.00 .- - - --- - - - - - - - - - - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - -. 
'Note: At pmjecl complet~on all digllal photos can be supplied to the 
cl~ent on CD, upon request. 

PURCHASED SERVICES 

All purchased printing, copying, m~scellaneous and subconsultant services are billed at cost plus 15% 

CHANGES IN RATES 

Rates listed here are adjusted annually. The current, most recent schedule of hourly rates are used for billing purposes. Payment for work 
accomplished shall be on the bas~s of hourly rates in effect at the time ofbilling plus direct expenses and outside services as stated in this Exhibit. 

New Business 13 - 17

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 119 of 575



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
AGENDA ITEM: (PA 06086) I AGENDA SECTION: 
Planning Commission Recommendation to Approve Comprehensive 
Plan amendment adopting a subarea plan for the East 
Sunnyside/Whis key Ridge area, Development Regulations and 

. Areawide Rezone of the subarea 
PREPARED BY: 
Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Planning Commission Minutes dated 10/17/06, 10/24/06, 

11/ 14/06,12/5/06,12/12/06 and 1/23/07 
2. Public Comments 
3. Glossary from Maqsville Comprehensive Plan 
4. Key Master Plan Concepts 
5. Preliminary Draft from October 2006 
6. Staff Recommended D r h  dated 12/9/06 
7. Memo dated 1/23/07 from Commumity Dev. Director 

summarizing 1/ 11/07 community meeting and comments 
8. Planning Commission recommended plan, updating 

12/9/06 document. 
9. Chapter 19.26, Residential Density Incentives 

BUDGET CODE: 

1 New Business 

APPR~VED BY: 

MAYOR 

& 
I 

AMOUNT: 

The Planning Commission has recommended approval of a subarea plan for the East Sunnyside 
Whiskey Ridge area, together with associated development regulations and areawide rezones. The 
plan amends the City's Comprehensive Plan. The plan includes recommended development 
regulations that would apply to the subarea. The Commission also recommended approval of 
revisions to Chapter 19.26, Residential Density Incentives in order to implement goals of the subarea 
plan. The Planning Commission held public workshops between October and January 2007. 
Community Development staff hosted two commimity meetings on November 16, 2006 and 
January 11, 2007. The Planning Commission held public hearings on December 11, 2006 and 
January 23,2007. 

The Planning Commission has recommended approval of a subarea plan and regulations for the East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge area The Commission's recommended plan is Exhibit 8. Prior versions 
of the plan are provided as background dormation since the public hearing minutes and earlier 
public comment frequently reference these versions. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Planning Commission recommendation to adopt East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge subarea plan, development regulations and areawide rezones. 
Alternatively, the Council may take the following actions: 1) Hold additional public hearings to 
consider amendments to the plan and regulations; 2) Remand the plan & regulations to the Planning 
Commission for further review; or 3) Deny the Commission's recommendation to adopt the subarea 
~ l a n  and regulations. 

Y 

COUNCIL ACI'ION: 

Current Business 11 - 1

Page 120 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 17,2006 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the October 17, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:03 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Jerry Andes, Steve Leifer, Becky Foster 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absences of Commissioners Deirdre Kvangnes, 
Dave Voigt, and Toni Mathews. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

September 26, 2006 Minutes 

Becky Foster suggested amending Mike Beardsley's comments at the top of page 2 
to read: ". . . requested that the Planning Commission consider those residents 
that already live . . . " 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster; seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve the September 26, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as amended. 
Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

PUBLIC HEARING (Continued) 

A. Smokey Point Annexation Prezone (PA 06017) 

Steve Muller explained that the hearing had been continued in order to clarify the 
zoning of the southwest corner of 1 52nd and 51 ''. 
Gloria Hirashima discussed the memo from Cheryl Dungan dated 10/1 3/06 which 
addressed the zoning of this area. She noted that map was corrected to show 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 17, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page I of 4 

Current Business 11 - 2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 121 of 575



that area as R18 MF density. The legal description was also corrected to exclude 
the railroad right-of-way. 

Public Testimony (7:07) 

Chairman Muller opened the hearing for public testimony. 

Ms. Hirashima commented that she received an email from Mike Beardsley 
saying that he could not attend tonight, but that he wanted to reiterate his 
comments. 

Larry Novak, 3606 Densmore Avenue, Everett asked for clarification of the 
zoning of his area near SR 92. Chairman Muller confirmed that he was speaking 
about the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan and explained that this was not the time 
for comments on that issue. He explained the proper order of events for that 
matter. 

Seeing no further comments, the public hearing was closed at 7:09 p.m. 

There were no comments or questions from the Planning Commission. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Andes to 
forward the Smokey Point Prezone Annexation to the City Council. Motion 
passed unanimously (4-0). 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Preliminary Draft 

Gloria Hirashima opened the first workshop on the Whiskey Ridge area. She 
commented that the City Council had just passed the annexation ordinance for the 
East Sunnyside I Whiskey Ridge annexation, effective December 1, 2006. She 
stated that they hope to conclude the Master Plan of the area close to that time. She 
explained that the preliminary draft was released last week and there will be three 
workshops on the Master Plan between now and next month. 

Director Hirashima reviewed the 17 East Sunnyside~Whiskey Ridge Key Master Plan 
Concepts and the East Sunnyside I Whiskey Ridge Master Plan dated 10/12/06. 
She covered the six proposed alternatives and discussed the differences between 
the alternatives. She commented that staff's preference is a land use alternative that 
goes with the curved road going into SR 92, such as Alternative 4 or 1. 

Chairman Muller requested that the map depict the open space corridor for all the 
power lines and the trail system. Director Hirashima indicated that staff could do this. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 17, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 3

Page 122 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Ms. Hirashima reviewed the Master Plan Road Projects: SR 92 Connection; 44" 
Street; 4oth Street; and Densmore Road (possibly). She discussed the lack of 
existing transit service in the area and plans to look at a stop at SR 92 and Highway 
9. She also discussed non-motorized system improvements and the possibility of a 
park around King Lake. She noted that Lake Stevens School District has a bus barn 
at the Sunnyside School Road and Densmore, but has indicated the need for an 
additional elementary school. Staff will also be discussing a water system and sewer 
plan. 

Chairman Muller cautioned against creating another Frontier Village type 
development. It would be nice to insure that the commercial area will serve a certain 
area of the surrounding residential area. Gloria Hirashima commented that having 
some mixed use on the edge allows for some flexibility in this. Chairman Muller 
expressed concern about assigning too much commercial to one area. He requested 
information from staff about how to visualize the commercial area. Director 
Hirashima indicated she would bring this back to the Planning Commission. She 
commented that they will be having a public open house in November to receive 
additional feedback. 

Chairman Muller concurred with staff's preference of Alternative 4, but suggested 
brainstorming how to achieve that while protecting the flavor of the neighborhood. 

Commissioner Andes asked about the Sunnyside School connection with Highway 
9. Director Hirashima stated that WSDOT is recommending closure of that 
connection. 

Commissioner Leifer asked if a mobile home park would be a conditional use in this 
area. Ms. Hirashima explained that mobile home parks are allowed as a conditional 
use in a multi-family zone in the regular code and staff would propose keeping this 
the same. 

COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Gloria Hirashima updated the Planning Commission on the City Council's approval 
of the Small Lot Development Code. She noted that the City Council had had some 
concern regarding keeping control of the high quality of housing. Director Hirashima 
had pledged to stay on top of developments and keep the Council informed of any 
new issues. 

Chairman Muller discussed a recent unprovoked and violent attack on his dog by an 
aggressive pit bull. He discussed the potential for liability for the City for not 
protecting people from dangerous animals. Ms. Hirashima suggested that it might be 
more appropriate to address this at a City Council meeting. Chairman Voigt 
suggested contacting the city attorney to see what can be done. Ms. Hirashima said 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 17, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 123 of 575



she would relay the conversation to the police chief since this is a recurring issue 
with residents. 

Commissioner Leifer brought up a hazardous condition at State Avenue and 116'~ 
where the westerly lane shrinks from two lanes to one lane very quickly. He 
suggested having signage indicating, "Right turn only except for Transit." Apparently 
this is also an issue at 88th. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

Tuesday, October 24 

ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Leifer; seconded by Commissioner Andes to adjourn at 8:21 
p.m.- Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 17, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 5

Page 124 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 24,2006 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the October 24, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:07 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Toni Mathews 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absences of Commissioners Deirdre Kvangnes, 
Becky Foster and Steve Leifer. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

October 17, 2006 Minutes 

Motion made by Commissioner Mathews; seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve the October 17, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as presented. Motion 
passed unanimously (4-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

A. Proposed Draft Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Director Hirashima solicited feedback on the Draft Master Plan 

Chairman Muller asked if they were going to limit the amount of PRDIsmall lot 
activity within the Master Plan area. Director Hirashima replied that the intent of 
staff is not to limit it, but the City does intend to be very deliberate about how this 
area is planned. She said that they want to provide some sort of balance - 
making the most of the land, but also having a nice product. She explained that 
the draft is structured to provide a lower base density at the medium single family 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 24, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page I of 3 

Current Business 11 - 6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 125 of 575



zone. The single family area also has a larger range than normally seen in the 
single family zone since it spans 4-8 dwelling units per acre. In order to get a 
higher yield, developers must go through the residential density incentives. 

Ms. Hirashima reviewed the Development Strategies, dated 10/24/06, noting that 
it would replace pages 4-22 and 4-23 in the Master Plan. She then reviewed the 
Residential Density Incentives - Chapter 19.26, dated 10/24/07. She explained 
that the focus is on encouraging public facilities, projects to promote community 
image and identity, storm drainage facilities, project design and pedestrian 
connections/walkability. Chairman Muller suggested opening up the naming of 
neighborhoods to the public as part of this process. Ms. Hirashima concurred. 

Chairman Muller asked if the City has easements along the power lines. Ms. 
Hirashima explained that they do not, but the goal is to obtain all the easements 
along the power lines and to obtain cross-connections to those. In places where 
easements cannot be obtained, the City will do a workaround through the streets. 

Vice Chairman Voigt asked about if the petroleum pipeline might provide another 
opportunity for trails. Ms. Hirashima thought that the pipeline was further south 
than this area. 

Vice Chairman Voigt asked about the decision making process for the 
alternatives. Director Hirashima stated that they hope to get feedback from the 
public at the open house and throughout the process on the different alternatives. 
They also plan to have Transportation review a few different road concepts. After 
all of this, staff will prepare a preferred alternative or a Planning Commission 
preferred alternative. They hope that it will be narrowed down to a consensus of 
one option with a few different variables by the end of this process. 

Vice Chair Voigt agreed with focusing on key connections. He asked if they could 
get an aerial photograph of the area, a map of sensitive areas and a 
topographical/slope map. He referred to the secondary traffic impact fee 
mentioned in the draft and asked about impact fees on other infrastructure, such 
as sewer and water. He wondered if there was going to be a concept level cost 
estimate to try to get a feel for how much it will cost to equip the area with what it 
needs and how it will be paid for. Ms. Hirashima explained that storm water fees 
are assessed per dwelling unit. There is a draft sewer plan and a forced main 
pump station is shown on the draft. Public Works expects that this will be a 
developer improvement with recovery, but they need to discuss this more. 

Vice Chair Voigt then asked about the logical sequence of improvements and 
developments. Ms. Hirashima stated that they would have Public Works come to 
a meeting to discuss this. Staff also hopes to have the secondary impact fee 
calculated by the next meeting. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 24, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 3 

Current Business 11 - 7

Page 126 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Chairman Muller asked how staff is envisioning the final product. Ms. Hirashima 
discussed a mix of use with some higher density developments, lot size ranges, 
density ranges, commerciallmixed use and the development of an east-west 
collector. The City will be regulating designs to create consistency and quality 
products. There will be specified standards for fencing and landscaping with a 
range of options. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

November 14 - Work Session 
November 21 -Work Session (if needed) 
November 28 -Work Session 
December 12 - Public Hearing 

ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Voigt; seconded by Commissioner Andes to adjourn at 8:05 
p.m. Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
October 24, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 3 

Current Business 11 - 8

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 127 of 575



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

November 14,2006 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the November 14, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:03 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes, Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky Foster 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Kevin Nielsen, City Engineer 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absences of Commissioners Steve Leifer and 
Toni Mathews. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

October 24, 2006 Minutes 

Motion made by Commissioner Mathews; seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve the October 24, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as presented. Motion 
passed unanimously (4-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

A. Preliminary Draft Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Director Hirashima continued discussion on the Preliminary Draft. She noted that 
it has six alternatives. Staff plans to whittle it down to a preferred alternative. 
There will be a hearing on December 12 and an open house this Thursday at 
Sunnyside Elementary. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 9

Page 128 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Sewer 

Kevin Nielsen reviewed the Whiskey Ridge sewer basins, noting that there is 
plenty of sewer in this area. Chairman Muller asked about the timeline for 
installation. Mr. Nielsen replied that the 15" pipe is in; the 12" gravity is going in. 
Most of it is already in, but soon the sewer will be to 44th. Chairman Muller asked 
about recovering the costs. Vice Chair Dave Voigt asked if the existing pump 
station has adequate capacity. Mr. Nielsen replied that it does. He noted that 
they could swap out the pumps if needed. 

Mr. Nielsen then reviewed the water service in the area. He explained that it is 
currently served by Snohomish County PUD. The City has an agreement with 
them to take over from 83rd to Sunnyside, but will have to buy them out. The 
Whiskey Ridge area would have to go to a vote to take it over. He explained that 
this is a complicated and expensive process so they may leave it in the PUD 
service for now. The PUD has a major transmission line in the area and the 
capacity to support the area. 

Commissioner Voigt asked if the Everett transmission line along 71 st could be 
tied into. Mr. Nielsen responded that it definitely could There are several things 
that can be done, but there is just no revenue to do it now. 

Stormwater 

Mr. Nielsen stated that the Whiskey Ridge area is not conducive to regional 
detention. It is more practical for properties to do their own. He commented that 
infiltration rates are not very good in this area. 

Transportation 

Staff met with WSDOT. The City may be able to have break in access across 92. 
WSDOT may move access from 60th to 528. The City hopes to: 

Tie 40th to Sunnyside and Highway 9 
Straighten out 67th and carry it on to 71st. 
Utilize 83rd as primary north-south connector (consultant preference) 
Utilize 87th as another north-south connector 
Utilize 79th and 71 st and major roads 

Chairman Muller asked if the State has a philosophy of access to the highway. 
Mr. Nielsen explained that they have spacing requirements, but there is some 
flexibility if good traffic flow can be demonstrated. 

Chairman Muller asked about the process for determining where the roads are 
going to go. Ms. Hirashima replied that the City needs to lay it out in order to 
guarantee the availability of all the connections. There is an advantage to having 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 10

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 129 of 575



the engineering department map it and lay it out. She added that this will require 
coordination between approximately eight parcels. 

Chairman Muller asked about funding. Ms. Hirashima explained that the 
secondary impact fee will be credited for right-of-way dedication and 
construction. 

Commissioner Kvangnes asked if there are any houses in the way. Mr. Nielsen 
replied that there are not any from Highway 9 to 83rd. 

Commissioner Voigt asked how many lanes it would be. Mr. Nielsen said 
possibly three but they are still waiting for traffic counts. Commission Voigt asked 
about speed limits. Mr. Nielsen said that is still to be determined. 

Commissioner Voigt asked about the timeline. Gloria Hirashima explained that 
most of this will be developer driven. 

Comments on preferred alternatives: 

Chairman Muller said he preferred Alternatives I and 4. He referred to 
Alternative 4 and asked if it made more sense to run 44th down 87th or 
Densmore. Gloria Hirashima explained that there are actually more roads than 
are needed in the area. Staff believes it is better to identify some as major and 
minimize others. She added that Lake Stevens had commented that they liked 
the Mixed Use on their border on the north side of Soper Hill Road (as opposed 
to Commercial Business there). Chairman Muller suggested that Alternative 6 
might have too much Mixed Use. 

Vice Chair Voigt suggested a combination of Alternatives 4 and 6. He preferred 
the road configuration of 4, put into Alternative 6, but with less Mixed Use. 

Mr. Voigt requested a bar chart that compares dwelling units, population, and 
employment for the different alternatives. Ms. Hirashima pointed to a section in 
the Draft that addressed this in table form. 

There was some discussion about the City's vision for commercial in this area 
and its impact on traffic flow through the City. Ms. Hirashima stated that one of 
the goals of annexing this area was to get the commercial mix. Mr. Nielsen 
added that they are looking at many things to make the transportation successful. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

November 28 -Work Session 
December 12 - Public Hearing 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 11

Page 130 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Foster; seconded by Commissioner Kvangnes to adjourn at 
8:12 p.m. Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 12

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 131 of 575



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

November 14,2006 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the November 14, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:03 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes, Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky Foster 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Kevin Nielsen, City Engineer 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absences of Commissioners Steve Leifer and 
Toni Mathews. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

October 24, 2006 Minutes 

Motion made by Commissioner Mathews; seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve the October 24, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as presented. Motion 
passed unanimously (4-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

A. Preliminary Draft Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Director Hirashima continued discussion on the Preliminary Draft. She noted that 
it has six alternatives. Staff plans to whittle it down to a preferred alternative. 
There will be a hearing on December 12 and an open house this Thursday at 
Sunnyside Elementary. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page I of 4 

Current Business 11 - 13

Page 132 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Sewer 

Kevin Nielsen reviewed the Whiskey Ridge sewer basins, noting that there is 
plenty of sewer in this area. Chairman Muller asked about the timeline for 
installation. Mr. Nielsen replied that the 15" pipe is in; the 12" gravity is going in. 
Most of it is already in, but soon the sewer will be to 44th. Chairman Muller asked 
about recovering the costs. Vice Chair Dave Voigt asked if the existing pump 
station has adequate capacity. Mr. Nielsen replied that it does. He noted that 
they could swap out the pumps if needed. 

Mr. Nielsen then reviewed the water service in the area. He explained that it is 
currently served by Snohomish County PUD. The City has an agreement with 
them to take over from 83rd to Sunnyside, but will have to buy them out. The 
Whiskey Ridge area would have to go to a vote to take it over. He explained that 
this is a complicated and expensive process so they may leave it in the PUD 
service for now. The PUD has a major transmission line in the area and the 
capacity to support the area. 

Commissioner Voigt asked if the Everett transmission line along 71 st could be 
tied into. Mr. Nielsen responded that it definitely could There are several things 
that can be done, but there is just no revenue to do it now. 

Stormwater 

Mr. Nielsen stated that the Whiskey Ridge area is not conducive to regional 
detention. It is more practical for properties to do their own. He commented that 
infiltration rates are not very good in this area. 

Transportation 

Staff met with WSDOT. The City may be able to have break in access across 92. 
WSDOT may move access from 60th to 528. The City hopes to: 

Tie 40th to Sunnyside and Highway 9 
Straighten out 67th and carry it on to 71 st. 
Utilize 83rd as primary north-south connector (consultant preference) 
Utilize 87th as another north-south connector 
Utilize 79th and 71 st and major roads 

Chairman Muller asked if the State has a philosophy of access to the highway. 
Mr. Nielsen explained that they have spacing requirements, but there is some 
flexibility if good traffic flow can be demonstrated. 

Chairman Muller asked about the process for determining where the roads are 
going to go. Ms. Hirashima replied that the City needs to lay it out in order to 
guarantee the availability of all the connections. There is an advantage to having 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 14

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 133 of 575



the engineering department map it and lay it out. She added that this will require 
coordination between approximately eight parcels. 

Chairman Muller asked about funding. Ms. Hirashima explained that the 
secondary impact fee will be credited for right-of-way dedication and 
construction. 

Commissioner Kvangnes asked if there are any houses in the way. Mr. Nielsen 
replied that there are not any from Highway 9 to 83rd. 

Commissioner Voigt asked how many lanes it would be. Mr. Nielsen said 
possibly three but they are still waiting for traffic counts. Commission Voigt asked 
about speed limits. Mr. Nielsen said that is still to be determined. 

Commissioner Voigt asked about the timeline. Gloria Hirashima explained that 
most of this will be developer driven. 

Comments on preferred alternatives: 

Chairman Muller said he preferred Alternatives 1 and 4. He referred to 
Alternative 4 and asked if it made more sense to run 44th down 87th or 
Densmore. Gloria Hirashima explained that there are actually more roads than 
are needed in the area. Staff believes it is better to identify some as major and 
minimize others. She added that Lake Stevens had commented that they liked 
the Mixed Use on their border on the north side of Soper Hill Road (as opposed 
to Commercial Business there). Chairman Muller suggested that Alternative 6 
might have too much Mixed Use. 

Vice Chair Voigt suggested a combination of Alternatives 4 and 6. He preferred 
the road configuration of 4, put into Alternative 6, but with less Mixed Use. 

Mr. Voigt requested a bar chart that compares dwelling units, population, and 
employment for the different alternatives. Ms. Hirashima pointed to a section in 
the Draft that addressed this in table form. 

There was some discussion about the City's vision for commercial in this area 
and its impact on traffic flow through the City. Ms. Hirashima stated that one of 
the goals of annexing this area was to get the commercial mix. Mr. Nielsen 
added that they are looking at many things to make the transportation successful. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

November 28 - Work Session 
December 12 - Public Hearing 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 15

Page 134 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Foster; seconded by Commissioner Kvangnes to adjourn at 
8:12 p.m. Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
November 14, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 16

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 135 of 575



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

December 5,2006 6:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the December 5, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 6:00 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes (left at 6:40), Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky 
Foster, Steve Leifer 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary (arrived 6:40) 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absence of Commissioner Toni Mathews. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

November 14, 2006 Minutes 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster; seconded by Commissioner Voigt, to 
approve the November 14, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as presented. 
Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

A. Marysville, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School Districts' Capital Facility 
Plans 

Marvsville School District 

Jim Baker, Marysville School District, reviewed plan and highlights: 
2005 - 2% Growth 
6 yr - 10.3% increase 
30% growth projected from County OFM 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 17

Page 136 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Becky Foster had questions about how bond passage affects impact fees. 

Steve Muller thought 196,199 valuation number is outdated. Jim Baker stated 
that the entire unit inventory reflects an average assessed value of 196,199. 

Denise Stiffarm, attorney representing Marysville School District from Preston 
Gates Ellis explained that the average assessed value is used within the state, 
county and city ordinances because that is the easiest number to obtain. Steve 
Muller felt that the numbers are dated to probably 2004. Denise Stiffarm stated 
that the discount provides 25% measure to account for deficiencies and 
inaccuracies. The average assessed value is the norm. The alternative is to 
change the ordinance and then the District would request that the discount also 
be studied. 

Lakewood School District 

Fred Owyn explained that the impact fees have increased: 
Single family $4,148 
Multi-family $2,328 

They are using the County numbers from the comprehensive plan update. These 
reflect 25% student enrollment increase. Construction costs have been reviewed 
and updated to $1 1 million in school improvements. Student generation rates are 
up. The tax rate has increased which lowers the credit. 

Lake Stevens School District 

Helen Henderson reviewed the impact fees: 
Single family $6,614 .721 students per dwelling unit 
Multi-family $2,256 .298 students per dwelling unit 

The student generation rate shows an increase. Projections used for growth are 
conservative. Numbers are lower for 2006 enrollment than have occurred. 
Schools are full and any additional growth at middle/high school level will result in 
unhoused students. 

She explained that the State match estimated 40°h, but the actual is 33%. The 
current assessed value for a single family is $21 3,761. 

She noted that a new elementary school is needed within five years for the 
projected 500 additional unhoused students. 

Steve Leifer asked about the use of 10 years for tax credit. Ms. Henderson 
explained that the 10-year tax credit is based on average life of construction 
bond. This is the standard used in Washington State. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 18

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 137 of 575



The hearing was set for January 9,2007. 

B. Draft East SunnysideNVhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

Gloria Hirashima commented on the recent Whiskey Ridge open house. She 
noted that there is a lot of development speculation going on. Many people are 
planning on selling. Chairman Muller asked about comments on the proposed 
commercial zoning. Ms. Hirashima stated that there had not been much 
comment on that at the open house. 

Director Hirashima discussed the secondary impact fee. She explained that 
everyone in the Whiskey Ridge area would be paying a secondary fee on top of 
the regular impact fee, but property owners on the proposed alignments would be 
given credit for the secondary impact fees. 

Steve Leifer asked about the preferred alternatives. Ms. Hirashima distributed the 
preferred alternative. She noted that is close to Alternative 4. 

Steve Muller asked about the possibility of a regional park. Director Hirashima 
stated that they are trying to get a regional park on a voluntary basis. She 
discussed using density incentives as a way to achieve this. She distributed the 
Residential Density Incentives, noting that these are tools to get the 
improvements made. 

Steve Muller asked about requirements for gateways, screening, and 
landscaping. He commented that most people would like to see something nicer 
with more consistency. Gloria Hirashima agreed that it is important to have 
guidelines. She noted that the requirements would probably be in the form of 
common features or materials, but would not be required to be exactly alike. 

Director Hirashima then reviewed the preferred alternative and discussed 
planned arterials. Steve Leifer asked about the difference between mixed use 
and commercial zone. Ms. Hirashima explained this. Commissioner Leifer 
commented that this is a tremendous improvement to Alternative 4. He 
commended the staff for doing a great job as far as property owners' rights. 
Chairman Muller concurred. 

Vice Chairman Voigt questioned the transition between multi-family and single 
family high density on Sunnyside School Road and 6oth. Ms. Hirashima replied 
that they had received positive comments on this arrangement. 

She explained that there are two improvements that are eligible for the 
secondary impact fee credit. These are 67th Avenue and 4oth Street. Both will 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 19

Page 138 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



need to be partially city-aided and constructed. The impact fee total will be 
approximately $4,000 per PM Peak Hour Trip. 

Steve Leifer asked how this all fits in with the 6-year plan or the 20-year plan. Ms. 
Hirashima replied that the 67th to 71'' Street connection and 4oth Street would be 
approached in the plans. The rest would be developer driven. 

Commissioner Leifer addressed the inequity of owners not in those areas having 
to do frontage improvements and having to pay both impact fees. Ms. Hirashima 
replied that this is the price to change from a rural area to an urban area. She 
distributed Sunnyside Frontage Improvements, Fall 2006 and discussed 
pedestrian connections and bonus incentives for frontage improvements. 

Ms. Hirashima stated that the staff report would be out by the end of the week. 
The hearing will be held next Tuesday, December 12. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

December 12,2006 - Public Hearing 
January 9,2007 - Public Hearing 

ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Voigt; seconded by Commissioner Foster to adjourn at 7:30 
p.m. Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

Current Business 11 - 20

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 139 of 575



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

December 12,2006 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the December 12, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:00 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes, Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky Foster, Steve 
Leifer, Toni Mathews 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Kevin Nielsen, City Engineer 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

None. 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan, Zoning and Development Regulations 

Gloria Hirashima stated that the hearing had been advertised according to the 
requirements. She gave an overview of the Whiskey Ridge area as part of the 
City of Marysville's Comprehensive Plan Subarea Plan. The Draft Subarea Plan 
was issued in October. There have been open public workshops held with the 
Planning Commission. There was an public open house held at Sunnyside 
Elementary in November and public comments have been taken throughout the 
process. 

Staff's preferred alternative is reflected on the draft that was distributed tonight. It 
is very similar to Alternative 4. It includes all the key concepts as outlined on 
pages 4-1 6 and 4-1 7 of the Draft East Sunnyside -Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan. 
She explained that there would be a secondary impact fee of $3,094 per PM 
Peak Hour Trip. This would be in effect anywhere in the master plan area, 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 21

Page 140 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



including the expansion area. She noted that the expansion area is reflected in 
this final master plan. 

Director Hirashima reviewed Chapter 19.26, Residential Density Incentives. She 
noted that this provides a broader range of incentives for people to utilize in this 
area. She explained that the secondary impact fee would be creditable toward 
right-of-way construction and dedication costs in certain areas. 

Commissioner Leifer asked where the money from the secondary impact fee 
would be going. Director Hirashima explained that it would be going for the 
construction of two roads: 67th Avenue to 71'' and the 4oth Street Extension. 

Commissioner Foster asked how the development community responded to the 
credit. Ms. Hirashima replied that she had not heard. 

Commissioner Leifer asked if some of the funds would go to the acquisition of 
right of way. Ms. Hirashima affirmed that they would. 

Chairman Muller discussed the process for public testimony 

City Engineer Kevin Nielsen reviewed the factors that were considered in 
creating the draft. These included existing structures, topography and trying to 
split some property lines. 

Public Testimony: 

Brent Paylor, 3517 - 87'h Avenue NE, stated that he has five acres directly at the 
intersection of Highway 9 and 92. He noted that all of the alternatives require that 
is home be leveled. His biggest concern is the secondary impact fees and how 
they will be able to fairly compensate him for his property. He asked if an 
individual next to him chooses to develop his 10 acres would he be forced to 
develop his part of the road. Director Hirashima explained that they would look at 
this at a development level. A large project would probably be responsible for 
building the majority of the road. Kevin Nielsen explained the process of road 
development and secondary impact fees for this area. He assured Mr. Paylor that 
he would receive fair market value for his home. 

Mike Pattison, Master Builders Association, 335 - 1 16Ih Avenue SE. Bellevue, 
98004, expressed several concerns. His first concern was regarding the process. 
He claimed that there had been insufficient notice given to the public. His second 
concern regarded the ability of developers to provide affordable housing. His 
third concern was regarding the secondary impact fee. He strongly objects to this 
fee. He stated that it must be based on the TIP and must be based on the 
impacts of new development. The City must have a share of the costs and show 
how they intend to fund it. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 22

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 141 of 575



Commissioner Leifer asked him what his proposal might be to fill in the gap for 
that secondary fee related to costs incurred for right-of-way compensation and 
construction. Mr. Pattison stated that he had not had sufficient opportunity to 
review the plan and would need more time. 

Gloria Hirashima commented that an alternative could be the formation of a Road 
Improvement District. She explained the process for this. Kevin Nielsen thought 
that the secondary impact fee might actually be a better deal for the developers. 

Chris Bandoli, Barclavs North, 1051 5 - 2oth Street SE, Everett, WA 98204, 
expressed concerns about some parcels that are in the expansion area. The 
requirements of this plan are going to impact the viability of those parcels. He 
asked about projects that are already in process. 

Ms. Hirashima explained that the Master Plan would apply only if the property is 
not vested. Mr. Bondoli asked if there are any improvements that are going to be 
required of projects to contribute to the community-feel mentioned, such as 
arterial streetscape treatment. There was some discussion regarding Residential 
Density Incentives. Mr. Bandoli concluded by stating that he has major concerns 
about the plan. 

David Toyer, Barclays North, 1051 5 - 2oth Street SE, Everett, WA 98204, 
expressed concern regarding the secondary impact fee. He stated that this fee 
was shocking and amounts to a doubling of the impact fee for these projects. He 
is concerned about all of the combined fee increases. He is also opposed the 
base density going from 6 to 4.5 dwelling units per acres, saying that this is a 
downzoning. This combined with the increased fees is too much. He stated that 
he has legal issues associated with the secondary impact fees because it is an 
inequitable system. He recommended adding these to the TIP and making 
everybody in the city share in these costs. The Whiskey Ridge area should not 
have to pay for all these improvements by itself. 

Chairman Muller asked for his comments regarding the road alignments. Mr. 
Toyer replied that this is an engineering challenge. 

Vice Chairman Voigt asked if he was satisfied with the RDls. Mr. Toyer replied 
that he had not looked at them in detail. His main concern is with the downsizing. 
The additional requirements may not be worth the higher density. 

Shelly Thomas, 3626 -87th Avenue, commented that they did not have a chance 
to review the Subarea Plan until Saturday. Ms. Thomas asked about the timeline 
for road development. Ms. Hirashima explained that it would depend on 
development. Ms. Thomas suggested an alternative road alignment between 83rd 
and SR92. Kevin Nielsen said that this alignment would result in a backup on 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 23

Page 142 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Highway 9 and WSDOT would not allow it. Ms. Thomas summarized that any of 
these plans would greatly affect the quality of life for residents in the area. 

Dick Pederson, 7030 - 57'h Drive North, concurred with staff that the SR92 
connection is a very vital connection. 

Thomas Svkes, 3306 - 87th Avenue NE, stated that the impact is too great. 
Widening 87'h is excessive. Residents will not be fairly compensated for the loss 
of their property. This is too much commercialization and too many 
developments. None of the six alternatives would be acceptable. He asked about 
the differences between mixed-use, commercial business and commercial 
zoning. Gloria Hirashima explained this. Mr. Sykes requested more time for 
community input. He is concerned about what this will do to property taxes. 
Chairman Muller responded that property taxes would not really change until 
utilities are available. He discussed the Planning Commission's vision for this 
area. 

Duane Wiseman, 8805 East Sunnvside School Road, thinks that the Planning 
Commission has taken a pretty good path to get the pest possible alternative for 
everybody. He expressed concerns about single family housing adjacent to 
Highway 9. He suggested that more of a portion along Highway 9 have higher 
densities and commercial uses to help pay for some of the road improvements. 
He requested more time for this process. 

Lvnn Wiseman, 5716 - 83rd Avenue NE, concurred with many of the comments. 
She expressed appreciation for the work that has been done in terms of parks 
and trails. She also would like more time to look at the revisions. 

Gale Proutv, 5808 83rd Avenue NE, concurred with Lynn Wiseman. She stated 
that she also would like more time. 

Mark Hibbert, 5808 83rd Avenue NE, agrees with concerns about the timing of 
receiving this draft. He requested a glossary to help citizens wade through the 
massive information. He expressed concerns about the fees and how they can 
get paid. 

Tom King, 3103 East Sunnyside Blvd., expressed concerns about the parks and 
trails in the area. He is aware of a 5-acre piece and a 10-acre piece that could be 
used for a regional park. He encouraged the Planning Commission to consider 
this. 

Ken White, 3303- 87th NE, Marvsville, WA 98205, stated that he is opposed to 
the Plan, but appreciates the work that the Planning Commission has done and 
its vision. He reiterated that he is only opposed at this time because the process 
for citizen input has been inadequate. He wants residents to be more fully 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 24

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 143 of 575



recognized as stakeholders in this process and wants to help create a 
cooperative plan. He presented a petition on behalf of a new organization, the 
East Sunnyside Neighborhood Committee (representing the pink section on the 
map). There are 15 members who signed the petition and who support a delay in 
approving the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan. They are also requesting that 
developers participate in a Community Benefit Agreement with effected 
neighborhoods. 

Vice Chairman Voigt referred to pages 4-14 and 4-1 5 that lay out the vision that 
the Planning Commission has created. He questioned the use of a Community 
Benefit Agreement, stating that it seems redundant. Mr. White reiterated 
concerns about the process and the lack of community input in creating the 
vision. He agreed that the CBA might not be appropriate for this community. He 
was not aware that there had been previous workshops. He is concerned about 
the lack of notification. 

Kristin Kellv, Snohomish County Proqram Director for Future Wise, reviewed the 
history of the Growth Management Board regarding this area. She is concerned 
about the transportation element. She stated that the citizens need more time to 
have an input on their neighborhoods. She agrees with the secondary impact 
fees. She noted that growth costs money and if development does not pay then 
property owners will have to. 

Mark Hibbert, 8512 East Sunnvside School Road, asked if the expansion area is 
included in the current draft. Gloria Hirashima replied that it is. 

Becky Ableman, Planninq Director, Citv of Lake Stevens, expressed support for 
this draft. She noted that they will be sharing a common city boundary once the 
annexation occurs south of Soper. They are looking forward to working with the 
City of Marysville on this. 

Commissioner Discussion: 

Becky Foster noted the need for more time. 

Deirdre Kvangnes emphasized that they want to master plan this and that they 
want to be proud of the area. The Planning Commission is committed to this 
vision. She assured citizens that the Planning Commission wants and values 
their input. She agreed that they need more time. 

Jerry Andes concurred with the need for more time. 

Dave Voigt suggested looking at the legal issues surrounding the traffic impact 
fees. Gloria Hirashima said they could look into this. She noted that this is the 
mechanism by which these projects would be added to the TIP. She discussed 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 25

Page 144 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



examples of ranges of fees in other areas. Mr. Voigt felt that it was fair to give the 
citizens more time. 

Becky Foster supported a continuation of the hearing. The Planning Commission 
has been working on this for a long time and wants it to be very nice. They want 
the citizens to be proud of their neighborhood. 

Steve Leifer stated that the citizens would like to preserve what they have there. 
He would like to know how many residents would like to see their property 
remain at the single family low density. 

Toni Mathews agrees with the public that we need more time. She asked what 
could be done to give better notification of workshops and meetings. 

Gloria Hirashima explained that they had mailed to every house in the expanded 
master plan area for the open house and for this hearing. They also advertised in 
the paper. She suggested announcing the date for the continuance hearing so 
that those in attendance tonight would be informed. She would also like to have a 
more informal workshop between now and the continuance. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Kvangnes, 
to continue this hearing until January 23, the 4th Tuesday in January. Motion 
passed unanimously (6-0). 

COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

Chairman Muller thanked the public for their attendance and input. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

January 9, 2007 - Informal Workshop regarding the East SunnysideNVhiskey 
Ridge Subarea Plan; Public Hearing - Marysville, Lakewood and Lake 
Stevens School Districts' Capital Facilities Plans 
January 16,2007 - Planning Commission Workshop 
January 23,2007 - Continuance of the Public Hearing for the East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 26

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 145 of 575



ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Voigt to adjourn at 850  
p.m. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 12, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 27

Page 146 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

January 23,2007 7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the January 23, 2007 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:00 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes, Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky Foster, 
Steve Leifer, Toni Mathews 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Kevin Nielsen, City Engineer 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the presence of all commissioners. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

December 5,2006 

Motion made by Commissioner Voigt, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to 
approve the December 5, 2006 minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously 
(6-0). 

December 12,2006 

Motion made by Commissioner Kvangnes, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to 
approve the December 12, 2006 minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously 
(6-0). 

January 9,2007 

Motion made by Commissioner Mathews, seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve the January 9, 2007 minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously (6- 
0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 28

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 147 of 575



PUBLIC HEARING (continued from 12/12/06) 

East SunnysideNVhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan, Zoning and Development 
Regulations 

Chairman Muller opened the hearing at 7:08 p.m. Community Development Director 
Gloria Hirashima reviewed the purpose of the hearing and updated the Commission 
and the public on activity since the first part of this hearing on December 12, 2006. 
She explained that this would be a continuance of that first hearing. Ms. Hirashima 
read a memo that she had written to the Planning Commission, dated January 23, 
2007, entitled "Public Hearing on 111 1 and Master Plan Options." The memo outlined 
options for treatment of the expanded boundary area as follows: 

1. Leave the area in the Subarea Plan 
2. Remove from the Subarea Plan 
3. Leave the area in the Subarea Plan, but with modifications. 

Director Hirashima then reviewed staff's changes to the Residential Density 
Incentives (RDls). Staff was recommending a change in the ratios given to frontage 
improvements, pedestrian improvements and walkability since these costs had 
escalated. The option for a fee "in lieu of' had also been added. She noted that the 
Gateway Plan was approved by the City Council and this has been included in the 
incentive chart. 

Public Testimony: 

Steve Johnson, Pacific Ridqe Homes,I 7921 Bothell Everett Hiqhway, Bothell, WA 
9801 2 

Mr. Johnson reiterated that they were opposed to expansion of the Master Plan to 
the expansion area, however, if it is included he supported keeping the 6.5 zoning. 
He also suggested changing the base density in residential areas to 5.5 since it is 
extremely difficult to reach 6 - 6.5 units per acre. 

Lynn Eshleman, Pacific Ridge Homes,17921 Bothell Everett Hiqhway, Bothell, WA 
9801 2 

Ms. Eshleman felt that the cost of road improvements should be born by the entire 
City, not just the Whiskey Ridge area. She encouraged the City to add this to their 
TIP. She did not support the portion of the master Plan regarding road 
improvements. 

Chris Bandoli, Barclays North, 1051 5 2oth Street SE, Everett, WA 98205 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 29

Page 148 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Mr. Bandoli stated that he was strongly opposed to including the expansion area in 
the Master Plan. He also stated that mandating RDls increases prices beyond 
affordable housing. 

Mike Pattison, Master Builders' Association, 335 1 16Ih Avenue SE, Bellevue, WA 
98004 

Mr. Pattison spoke in opposition to the secondary impact fees. He encouraged the 
Planning Commission to highlight their concern about the legality of the secondary 
impact fee. 

Darlene Salo, 3620 - 87th Avenue NE, Marysville 

Ms. Salo spoke against Road Improvement Districts (RIDS). She encouraged an 
alternative road alignment utilizing 83rd Avenue. She stated that this would 
substantially reduce private property right-of-way easements and protect the 
watershed area. 

Ken White, 3303 87Ih Avenue NE, Marysville 

Mr. White spoke against the Subarea Plan since property rights are fundamental 
constitutional rights. He was opposed to the 4oth Street extension as not being in the 
interest of residents in the neighborhood. He supported the secondary impact fees to 
force developers to "pay their own way." He spoke against RIDS because he did not 
feel that property owners should be forced to pay. He requested further continuance 
of this process. 

Tom Sykes, 3306 87th Avenue NE, Marysville 

Mr. Sykes concurred with Darlene Salo and Ken White's comments. He was 
opposed to RIDS because homeowners should not be forced to pay for 
development. He felt that this should be paid in the form of impact fees. 

Aaron Hollinqberry, Camwest, 9720 NE 120'~ Place, Kirkland, WA 

Mr. Hollingberry felt that the impact fees were reasonable although he suggested a 
recalculation of those by utilizing either a single fee or establishing zones in the City. 
He was opposed to the secondary impact fee on top of the pre-annexation fee. 

Shelly Thomas, 3726 87th Avenue NE, Marysville 

Ms. Thomas spoke in opposition to the Highway 9 extension to 40Ih because the 
road would go through 20+ prime view properties and create dangerous 
intersections. She was opposed to the RIDS because property owners should not 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 30

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 149 of 575



have to pay for improvements that they do not want. She was in favor of developers 
paying for improvements. 

Aaron Metcalf, Belmark Homes, 505 Cedar Avenue, Suite B1, Marysville 

Mr. Metcalf recommended a provision that allows for master planning of projects that 
cover two different zones. He expressed concern about the right-of-way requests 
along 83rd Avenue NE and the 25' landscape buffer on Soper Hill Road. 

Mike Hansen, PO Box 1304, Marysville, Innovative Investments 

Mr. Hansen spoke regarding properties east of 75" and north of 44th and said he 
was opposed to being included in the expansion plan area. Their project had been 
based on the 6.5 zoning and he opposed the 4.5 zoning. He was in support of 
options 1, 3, or 4. Overall, he commended the work done by the Planning 
Commission. 

Ken Elsea, 541 8 87th Avenue NE 

Mr. Elsea spoke on behalf of his mother who lives at this property. He said they were 
having difficulty with the clarification of terms such as high density. He requested 
remaining at 6.5 zoning or giving a clear way that they can achieve that density. 

Matt Bolin, 25 Central, Suite 300, Kirkland, WA 98034 

Mr. Bolin stated that he has two properties in the expansion area and had purchased 
the property relying on the 6.5 zoning. The 4.5 zoning would represent a severe 
hardship to him. He spoke in opposition to downzoning of his property. He also 
commented that RDls are not relevant for small parcels. 

Seeing no further public testimony, Chairman Muller closed the public hearing at 
7:48 p.m. 

Commission Discussion 

Commissioner Andes asked about the effective date and vesting. Director Hirashima 
said that it would possibly be effective in March. As far as vesting, in the expansion 
area they would be vested if the development application is filed. For other areas 
they are undesignated until the Master Plan is complete so they are not able to be 
vested. 

Commissioner Voigt asked when the impact fee would normally be recalculated. 
Director Hirashima said that occurs every two years with the Transportation Plan 
Update. City Engineer Kevin Nielsen addressed TSAs. He said that those also have 
the same issues with dividing zones and fairness. He stated that the current impact 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 31

Page 150 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



fee is discounted as well as using old construction numbers. He feels that there is 
some urgency to recalculate this fee soon or change the discount. His opinion is that 
RIDS are not as fair as traffic impact fees. 

Commissioner Leifer asked if recalculation of the fee would impact the secondary 
impact fee. Mr. Nielsen stated that they would all be included. He discussed how 
some areas in Marysville are exempted now. He feels that the current method is the 
fairest for development. 

Commissioner Voigt asked when the secondary impact fee would expire. Kevin 
Nielsen said that once 4oth and 71'' are built it would probably go away. 

Commissioner Leifer stated that the options, as he sees them, are that the City 
might come up with a new fee; the Subarea might have an initial impact fee plus the 
secondary impact fee; or there might be one single fee in the Subarea. Director 
Hirashima stated that the funding needs come from portions of road that developers 
will not cover as well as credit for right-of-way. Commissioner Leifer thought that the 
secondary impact fee was a logical way of handling this. He did not think that RIDS 
are a good idea for this area. 

Commissioner Leifer asked Kevin Nielsen about the idea of bringing SR92 straight 
to 83rd. Mr. Nielsen explained that 83rd clogs up. It is primarily a north-south 
collector. 

Commissioner Leifer then asked about Aaron Metcalf's concern about right-of-way 
on 83rd. Mr. Nielsen replied that development on the west side had occurred in the 
county and more right-of-way will be required on the east side to meet road 
standards. 

Finally, Commissioner Leifer asked about leaving the 6.5 zoning in the expansion 
area. Ms. Hirashima replied that she thinks most people would see this as an 
acceptable compromise. 

Chairman Muller asked if the secondary fee calculation was based on the existing 
traffic mitigation fee. Mr. Nielsen explained that the secondary fee was based on 
new trips in that area and the construction costs for road improvements in that area. 
Chairman Muller asked about having a service area. Mr. Nielsen explained that this 
would be very difficult. Chairman Muller asked about a more equitable way to handle 
that service area. Mr. Nielsen replied that there are many ways to look at it. 
Commissioner Leifer stated that he thought a citywide impact fee would be a logical 
method. Commissioner Foster asked about those that had already paid for their 
roads. There was some discussion about how a citywide impact fee would impact 
residents. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 32

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 151 of 575



Commissioner Leifer asked about giving a credit to those that already paid into the 
RID. Director Hirashima said they have done some of that, but the RID fee is 
relatively small compared to the current impact fee. 

Chairman Muller asked about density incentives. Gloria Hirashima said that you 
would have to use several incentives to maximize density and use offsite incentives 
as well as onsite incentives. 

Commissioner Kvangnes suggested that it might be time to reevaluate the discount. 
Ms. Hirashima concurred. She said that this will be addressed with the 
Transportation Plan Update with a review of the overall impact fees. She expects 
that those will dramatically increase. 

Chairman Muller reviewed the Planning Commission's goals for the Master Plan in 
creating a different kind of development. He stated that it is very important to them 
that it look good and there may be some concessions that need to be made along 
the way. Another goal is to have a great traffic plan along with a mixed-use 
community that is walkable. 

Commissioner Andes was in favor of keeping the 4.5 zoning in the original Master 
Plan area and keeping 6.5 in the expansion area. He concurred with Commissioner 
Leifer that RIDS would not be best for this area. He spoke in support of a citywide 
assessment or the secondary impact fee. 

Commissioner Foster concurred with keeping the 6.5 zoning in the expansion area. 

Motion made by Commissioner Leifer, seconded by Commissioner Voigt, to forward 
the Preferred Alternative, Option 3, to the City Council for approval. The Planning 
Commission recommends that traffic impact fees would be the primary means for 
recovering improvements in the area and that 6.5 would remain the base zoning in 
the expansion area. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

Commissioner Kvangnes expressed concern about the debt. She recommended 
considering the citywide impact fee to adequately cover improvements. Mr. Nielsen 
stated that with the large retail the land value has gone through the roof. Costs have 
escalated the need for improvements. 

Motion passed by Commissioner Voigt, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to 
approve miscellaneous plan revisions per staff request. These include: 

1. Language allowing density averaging for properties over 15 acres. 
2. Change status of 54'h Street from minor arterial to collector status. 

Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 33

Page 152 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Andes, to 
approve Chapter 19.26, Residential Density Incentives, as amended and presented 
by staff Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

NEXT MEETINGS 

February 13 

ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Kvangnes to adjourn at 
8:38 p.m. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 23, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Current Business 11 - 34

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 153 of 575



- Î----- 

& j k E  & iE 1 p - - E  (BARCLAYS 
January 22,2007 I,, i t t b ,  ,,:  JAY^ 9 -, :;:<ij! L$ +NORTH'Nc 

I I 
*rui 

L-----A 
Marysville Planqing colrlrnissibn CiX~\,M 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysvilkt, 'vVA 9827'0 

RE: Opposition to Master Plan Expansion Area for Whiskey Ridge 

Dear Commissioners: 

On behalf of Barclays Ncrth, Inc., I arn writing to express our opposition to the 
inclusion of the expansion area within the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan, an 
approach ct.irre-7;ly being advocated by city staff in its preferred alternative. 

When .tho City of Marysville began the process of adding the Whiskey Ridge-East 
Sunnyside neighborhood to the City, our understanding was that this expansion 
area was nc.jt ~ r i t ~ n d e d  to be paA cf the Master Plan Area, but may be looked at 
to be included at a future date. Beyond a desire to have more control over 
development in the expansion area, no other reasoning has yet been put forth for 
the decision to change course and include the expansion area in the Master 
Plan. Further, of the plan alternatives circulated prior to the preferred alternative 
being released, nor-le showed the "potential" expatision area as a part of the 
subarea plal-.. The ii?cltlsio:~ of this area now impac).s the planning that new 
developrr!c-~-,t had already initiated for future projects in the expansion area. 

Arnong c:hcr prolii.:;ionrj cf the hA;xstel. Plan that will now be imposed upon the 
expansior ii1,2d, t l ~e  base cicrsity for t e  Single Fatvily High zone will be lowered 
from the County-approved level of 6.5 units per acre to 4.5 units per acre. To 
further w o w 2  the problen?, this preferred alternative plan, which already 
includes r-iurnerous mandatory street and fror~lage improvements, will allow the 
achievement of previous pianned for densities only if a developer subscribes to 
proposed Residential Density Incentives (RDI). > 

This change in density will have a profound negative impact on the viability of 
projects initiated under the assumptiofi of achieving densities far greater than 4.5 
units to tl-12 acre. /iddition.2lly, this change in density, coupled with the 
require men^ I(; use RDl .:o .g.chieve iiitended densities, will ,further push increases 
in new hclusing prices that have already been inflated by other fees increases. 
This nevv policy approach to encouraging design amenities in residential 
developmerrt will further increase the housir~g affordability gap. 

VISION. DEDICATION. INTEGRITY. 

Current Business 11 - 35

Page 154 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MMC 19.26.01 0 discusses that a prominent aspect: of the City's RDI intent is to 
create affordable housing. However the use of the RDI code in order to achieve 
assumed densities actually works against providing affordable housing, requiring 
developers to prov~tle addilior:al am~~ti i t ies in crder to achieve adequate urban 
densities. 

Another asrect of the preferred alternative that further erodes housing 
affordability in the subarea is the so-called "secondaty impact fee". We submitted 
a letter (Deceniber 22) and testimony (December 12 public hearing) expressing 
our opposition to this funding tactic and reiterate that opposition here. We ask 
that the Planning Coinrriission explore othcr more equitable alternatives to raise 
the desired fu~idir~g, sucli as including these projects within the existing 
transportatian i~npruverne~?f: plan cost hasis or utilizing a city initiated LID. 

In conclusior;, we ask ltie Plarrning Cornrnission to retnove the expansion area 
from the final adopted plan and strike the secondary impact fee from the Whiskey 
Ridge SuGsrea Ibl/lastei. 

Thank y O ( i  20s yodr time 3 r d  consideration. Should you have questions, please 
do not hesitate tr, contac;l: rr;e at any timz. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Bandcl! 
Governmcr I F:ffairs Ma~ager  

cc: Ho17oi-able Mayor Ke~idall 
Ms. Gloria Hirashi~~i;.~, Director of Cornmunity Development 
hlarysville City Council 

VISION. DEDICATION. INTEGRITY. 

Current Business 11 - 36

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 155 of 575



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Rtdge Master Plan 

Names: Tom and Elaine Sykes 
Address: 3306 87th Ave NE, Marysville, WA 98270 

3 55-436 z 3 

Please identify aspects of the alternatlves that you like or agree with, and 
why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree 
with, and why: 

We request that the Planning Commission take a strong stand against the 
use of Road Improvement Districts (RIDS) in our neighborhood. 
Homeowners such as ourselves who prefer to continue living in the 
neighborhood should not be forced to pay for infrastructure that benefits 
only the developers and real estate agents. This practice would force 
people to sell their property in order to pay the fees. Infrastructure costs 
should be covered in the form of "impact fees" and should be paid by 
developers and others who benefit from the development. 

Current Business 11 - 37

Page 156 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



January 23,2007 

TO: City of Marysville Planning Commission 

FROM: Pacific Ridge Homes 

RE: East Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge Sub-area Plan 

Master PlanIRDI Comments 

Oppose the proposed expansion area within the sub-area plan: 

o This area has been shown on the City comprehensive plan and 
zoning map as Single Family High R6.5. 

o If the overall density is lowered it will affect the previous land 
capacity analysis that was done for the recently updated 
Comprehensive plan. 

o Significant resources have been expended for planning and design 
of projects at the existing zoning designation of R 6.5. 

We have found it nearly impossible to achieve a density of 6.5 dulac using 
the proposed base density of 4.5 dulac and on-site RDI bonuses. We feel 
that a higher base density perhaps of 5.5 dulac in conjunction with the RDI 
options would help the City achieve their intent with the master plan area 
of developing an urban community with a mix of housing types and 
densities. 

Implementation of the RDI requirements will require more money spent or 
property lost to achieve the density incentives. With the overall cost of 
land and construction increasing it is difficult to add additional costs to the 
development and have it continue to work financially. These additional 
costs will affect the overall affordability of housing in the area. 

Sincerely, 

Kyle Lublin 
Pacific Ridge Homes 

Current Business 11 - 38

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 157 of 575



From: "Susan Babich" <susanb@carlson-vti.com> 
To: ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/23/2007 3:06:36 PM 
Subject: Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

Gloria, 
I am writing to you in regard to the RID tax proposed in our area. They way 
I look at it is that first.. I could never afford to pay the RID taxes that 
have been estimated to perhaps reach $18,000 per household and seems way off 
base that I pay money for someone else to profit. Second.. . the developers are 
the ones that should be paying these taxes via Impact Fees as they are the 
ones who benefit from development not me ! 

I cannot fathom how the Planning Commission could think this is an equitable 
and fair solution ... The homeowners pay the taxes and the developers make the 
money ??????? Not exactly what I had in mind. I'd like to stay where I am 
and not be forced to move because the Marysville Planning Commission is not 
listening to the land owners and citizens. 

I am OPPOSED to the RIDS plan. 

Sincerely, 
Susan Babich 
3614 87th Ave NE 
Everett, WA 98205 

CC: <goldtales7@comcast.net> 

Current Business 11 - 39

Page 158 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



From: ~stacidawn@comcast.net~ 
To: ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01 123/2007 8:32:06 AM 
Subject: Tonights Commision Meeting 

Ms. Hirashima, 
In regards to the Whiskey Ridge Annexation and the impact fees and RIDS, why do you (the Commision 
and whoever else is involved,) feel that the RIDS should be passed on to us, the homeowners? WE DID 
NOT CHOOSE to be annexed, we were FORCED, and WE DO NOT CHOOSE TO SELL our properties 
to have this area destroyed by the city of Marysville. 

Any RIDS should be passed on to the developers who are going to be building in this area. If they are so 
determined to destroy the natural beauty of this area, they should be held responsible for their actions. 
Why should the homeowners have to pay when we dont want to see any development (like you have 
already decided) to happen up here? If the developers cant pay, then they shouldnt build. If there isnt any 
city funds for development and they dont want to pay, it shouldnt happen. It seems like a no brainer to me. 

, All the cost should be put on them.We didnt ask for them to come and put in a bunch of cookie cutter 
looking homes and highways thru our homes. 

It is the Commisions responsibility to take a stand against the RIDS and to recommend that any road 
improvements should be paid with impact fees. Take the responsibility and dont pass it on to the City 
Council to make that decision. Any funding for any project in this area should be funded by the city of 
Marysville or the developers. It is you who want to see this area destroyed-that is what you are doing--so 
you should pay. 

Again, I know that none of these letters you receive or the number of people who stand up and state their 
anger against what the city is doing is really going to make any difference to any of you --because none of 
you making this decision are probably even affected by these decisions, and it is already a done deal, so 
all you really care about is out tax base, money is always the important factor. And the big MONSTER of 
MARYSVILLE always wins. 

Staci Garka 
stacidawn@comcast. net 

Current Business 11 - 40

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 159 of 575



From: "James Nice" ~JNice51355@aol.com~ 
To: "ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us" ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/22/2007 8: 10:02 PM 
Subject: Adopt Developer Impact Fees for Road Improvements, not Road Improvement Districts 

The City of Marysville will be setting a very unpopular precedent if you recommend 
adopting Road lmprovement Districts to pay for future development activity, rather 
than maintaining developer impact fees to pay for the impacts of development on 
our community. 

In my own words, here is my sentiment about the issue of Road lmprovement Districts. 
To vote for such constitutes a "major shift". This kind of "shift" would show 
the average homeowner exactly what you think of them. Should I be expected to 
make payments to allow developers to reap large financial rewards? 
I think not. 

The scales are definitely unbalanced. A small, lone, business owner can at 
times be expected to pay road mitigation fees when they decide to expand their 
business. However, the much larger developers, those with more "clout" spelled 
"money", will be offered a handout. 

This entire fiasco constituted an elaborate "pyramid scheme", of which the homeowners 
will always be at the "bottom". In case you didn't know, pyramid schemes are 
"illegal". 

We don't need to have a group of "appointees" and "hired guns" making these 
types of decisions, especially if they consistently choose to side with the big 
money. 

Sincerely 

James Nice 
JNice51355@aol.com 
1451 0 Timberbrook 
Drive 
Marysville, WA 98271 

Current Business 11 - 41

Page 160 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



. . _ .--r. - -. -.-r" ,,r.. ". . wVU , \VwU t ~ ~ l ~ l ~ ~ G 1 1 1 ~ 1 1 1 3 ,  IIUL r\uau II ~ ~ p ~ u v e l l l e l l l  UlStrlCIS rage 1 

From: "Nina Haynes" csultan@eskimo.com> 
To: "ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us" ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/22/2007 6:29:54 PM 
Subject: Adopt Developer Impact Fees for Road Improvements, not Road Improvement Districts 

The City of Marysville will be setting a very unpopular precedent if you recommend 
adopting Road lmprovement Districts to pay for future development activity, rather 
than maintaining developer impact fees to pay for the impacts of development on 
our community. 

It is not fair for existing homeowners to foot the bill for road improvements 
brought on by new developments, when it is the developers who profit from them. 
Please adopt larger impact fees to pay for needed road improvements to our community, 
and phase development until funding is available. Current homeowners cannot afford 
more taxes due to growth! 

Respectfully yours 

Nina Haynes 
sultan@eskimo.com 
11019 47th Ave NE 
Marysville, WA 98271 

Current Business 11 - 42

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 161 of 575



From: "Katherine Johnson" <katherine@earthlink.net> 
To: "ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us" ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/22/2007 3:30:06 PM 
Subject: Let developers pay for road improvements, not current residents! 

I recently moved into Marysville proper after living for 18 years on Getchell 
Road NE, east of Highway 9. When I first moved to the area, prior to the construction 
of SR 528, Whiskey Ridge was my bicycle route home from Marysville, to avoid pedaling 
(and walking!) up Getchell Hill. This was a wonderfully peaceful, wooded and 
pastoral, rural area. Between the City of Marysville and Snohomish County, it 
is half ruined .... and you recently annexed this area to allow more environmental 
and quality of life decimation. Forcing the existing residents to pay for this 
destruction is like asking a rape victim to pay his or her attacker. 

You made a nice, cushy bed for the developers by annexing rural Whiskey Ridge. 
Now let them lie in it .... Anyone who wants to build urbandensity housing here 
must be required to pay for the necessary infrastructure FIRST, prior to building! 

The only fair course of action is to use developer impact fees, not a Road Improvement 
District, to pay for the required roads. 

Sincerely 

Katherine Johnson 
katherine@earthlink.net 
927 Quinn Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Current Business 11 - 43

Page 162 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



From: "Lorraine Pedersen" <ridgebacksrule@mindspring.com> 
To: "ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us" ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/22/2007 5:09:56 PM 
Subject: Adopt Developer Impact Fees for Road Improvements, not Road Improvement Districts 

The City of Marysville will be setting a very unpopular precedent if you recommend 
adopting Road lmprovement Districts to pay for future development activity, rather 
than maintaining developer impact fees to pay for the impacts of development on 
our community. 

It is not fair for existing homeowners to foot the bill for road improvements 
brought on by new developments, when it is the developers who profit from them. 
Please adopt larger impact fees to pay for needed road improvements to our community, 
and phase development until funding is available. Current homeowners cannot afford 
more taxes due to growth! 

Sincerely 

Lorraine Pedersen 
ridgebacksrule@mindspring.com 
10626 25th PI NE 
Lake Stevens, WA 98258 

Current Business 11 - 44

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 163 of 575



January 22,2007 

Marysville Planning Commission 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

RE: Opposition to Master Plan Expansion Area for Whiskey Ridge 

Dear Commissioners: 

On behalf of Barclays North, Inc., I am writing to express our opposition to the 
inclusion of the expansion area within the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan, an 
approach currently being advocated by city staff in its preferred alternative. 

When the City of Marysville began the process of adding the Whiskey Ridge-East 
Sunnyside neighborhood to the City, our understanding was that this expansion 
area was not intended to be part of the Master Plan Area, but may be looked at 
to be included at a future date. Beyond a desire to have more control over 
development in the expansion area, no other reasoning has yet been put forth for 
the decision to change course and include the expansion area in the Master 
Plan. Further, of the plan alternatives circulated prior to the preferred alternative 
being released, none showed the "potential" expansion area as a part of the 
subarea plan. The inclusion of this area now impacts the planning that new 
development had already initiated for future projects in the expansion area. 

Among other provisions of the Master Plan that will now be imposed upon the 
expansion area, the base density for the Single Family High zone will be lowered 
from the County-approved level of 6.5 units per acre to 4.5 units per acre. To 
further worsen the problem, this preferred alternative plan, which already 
includes numerous mandatory street and frontage improvements, will allow the 
achievement of previous planned for densities only if a developer subscribes to 
proposed Residential Density Incentives (RDI). 

This change in density will have a profound negative impact on the viability of 
projects initiated under the assumption of achieving densities far greater than 4.5 
units to the acre. Additionally, this change in density, coupled with the 
requirement to use RDI to achieve intended densities, will further push increases 
in new housing prices that have already been inflated by other fees increases. 
This new policy approach to encouraging design amenities in residential 
development will further increase the housing affordability gap. 

Current Business 11 - 45

Page 164 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MMC 19.26.010 discusses that a prominent aspect of the City's RDI intent is to 
create affordable housing. However the use of the RDI code in order to achieve 
assumed densities actually works against providing affordable housing, requiring 
developers to provide additional amenities in order to achieve adequate urban 
densities. 

Another aspect of the preferred alternative that further erodes housing 
affordability in the subarea is the so-called "secondary impact fee". We submitted 
a letter (December 22) and testimony (December 12 public hearing) expressing 
our opposition to this funding tactic and reiterate that opposition here. We ask 
that the Planning Commission explore other more equitable alternatives to raise 
the desired funding, such as including these projects within the existing 
transportation improvement plan cost basis or utilizing a city initiated LID. 

In conclusion, we ask the Planning Commission to remove the expansion area 
from the final adopted plan and strike the secondary impact fee from the Whiskey 
Ridge Subarea Master. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. Should you have questions, please 
do not hesitate to contact me at any time. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Bandoli 
Government Affairs Manager 

cc: Honorable Mayor Kendall 
Ms. Gloria Hirashima, Director of Community Development 
Marysville City Council 

Current Business 11 - 46

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 165 of 575



From: "Lucie Johns" ~luciejohns@hotmail.com~ 
To: <ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us> 
Date: 01/22/2007 7:38:13 AM 
Subject: East SunnysideNVhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

I live in the affected area and I urge you to oppose the Road Improvement District in which the residents 
pay for roads. An impact fee paid by developers is the only fair way to develop infrastructure from which 
they will benefit. 

Lucie Johns 
3623 87th Ave NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Current Business 11 - 47

Page 166 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



I Gloria Hirashima - lmpact Fees! the only fair shake for landowners . .- - ~ 

page' 

From: "Duane Wiseman" ~duanew@exteriorservice.com~ 
To: ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 01/23/2007 5:41:26 PM 
Subject: Impact Fees! the only fair shake for landowners 

Gloria, 

I was not able to attend the last public meeting with regards to the issues 
of Road improvement districts (RIDS) -vs.- The establishment of lmpact fees 
for development. 

The only fair way to fund the roads and improvements is through the use of 
impactluser fees for the development! Those benefiting the most should 
carry the most burden! 

The developers and realastate speculators that have already purchased land 
in the area have purchased well below market values and this will not affect 
their bottom lines nearly as much as they have tried to convey. 

I plan to attend tonights meeting also 

Sincerely 

Duane Wiseman 

8805 E.Sunnyside School Rd 
Marysville, WA.98270 

CC: "Kim Youngren" ~kyoungren@cpmnw.com~, ~Ken@soundbuildingconsultants.com~, 
<jholtz@heraldnet.com>, <hcwhite22@comcast.net>, "everett herald" <letters@heraldnet.com>, 
<DKSALO@comcast.net>, ~dave.somers@co.snohomish.wa.us~, "GlazearQ@Aol.Com" 
<glazeart2@aol.com>, "Ken W White" <white-kenw@msn.com> 

Current Business 11 - 48

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 167 of 575



rC 
' . 

January 18,2007 

To: City of Marysville Planning Commission 
City Planner, Gloria Hiroshima 

Subject: City of Marysville Proposed Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 
East - West Corridor fiom Highway 92 to 1-5 via Marysville CBD 

The attached "Revised" Preferred Alternative is presented with the request that you will consider 
this option and the supporting criteria listed below. 

Construction Costs: Preferred Alternative: Resale values currently showing $250,000+ per acre 
would significantly increase the costs to acquire private properties for new 
road expansion. 
Revised Alternative: Would require reduced acquisition of private 
property, and a considerably faster completion date. 

Natural Resources: Preferred Alternative: Disrupts Lake Stevens Watershed, 4 Head Streams, 
Lake Stevens Sewer Dist and several wetlands. 
Revised Alternative: Requires less disruption, studies and opposition 
of the above. 

Location: Preferred Alternative: Corridor is located at the crest of the Sunnyside- 
Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood with sound views and the highest in land 
value. 
Revised Alternative: Located lower than the Ridge and not compromise 
view property in lieu of traffic. 

Redirecting Traffic: Preferred Alternative: Attempts to redirect traffic onto unimproved Roads; 
i.e. Sunnyside Blvd and 40' Street (approx 10-15 degree grade) 
Revised Alternative: Compensates for East- West traffic to I-5 without 
attempting to redirecting commuter travel patterns. 

Project Forecasting: Preferred Alternative: Will be delayed with property acquisition due to 
rising resale values and wetland mitigation. 
Revised Alternative reduces the need for several phases and advances 
the completion date. 

Side note: In 1992 I participated in a 12 member Traffic Corridor Committee in preparation for 
Naval Station Everett. After a 12 month study with the assistance of Parson Brinkerhoff Traffic 
Consultants it was determined, mitigating costs and redirecting traffic should be the decisive 
factors. It is my hope that the City of Marysville's Traffic Council and City Council also have 
this foresight to complete an economically and ecologically feasible traffic improvement. 

Darlene and Ken Salo Tim and Shelly Thomas Susan Babich 
3620 87' Avenue N E 3626 87th Avenue N E 361 8 ~7~ Avenue N E 
Marysville, Wa 98270 Marysville, Wa 98270 Marysville, Wa 98270 

Current Business 11 - 49

Page 168 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



- .-a 

City of Marysville 1 
Mary~ville City Limits C.-.a Proposed Arterials Preferred Alternative 120506 

DRAFT .,*A1 1,: *', cr . . .  
I Marysville Urban Growth Area - PRiNClPLE : , CotTImLInity Business kM w , .L w.. 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan ' ' L - r East Sunnyslde Neighborhood - MINOR Mixed Use 
East Sunnyside Neighborhood :-T,:\>J>':<<. ; : : ~a9f .r  Expansion Area - COLLECTOR Li>!j,?ji:, Multi-Fmily Medium 

Preferred Alternative 
Parcels j . . Multi-Family Low 

December 8,2008 N Note: Single Famlly High is 
R 4-8 inside Master Plan area and Slngle Family High 

Lmo - t R 5-7 outside Master Plan area. Recreation 

Current Business 11 - 50

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 169 of 575



January 23,2007 

The Marysville Planning Commission 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA. 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUANCE on the proposed East Sunnyside 
Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan, File Number PA06086 

Commissioners: 

As a property owner, citizen of Marysville, and resident of the East 
Sunnyside - Whiskey Ridge neighborhood, I oppose the currently 
proposed Subarea Plan. 

I believe that property rights are fundamental constitutional rights, and 
before the government may take property, it must prove the taking is  
for genuine public use and benefit. 

I oppose the Subarea Plan partly because the proposed extension of 
Highway 92 is  not in the interests of the property owners and residents of 
the neighborhood. It i s  a benefit for developers, and will ultimately hurt 
our neighborhood through things like loss of property and increased 
traffic congestion. 

The proposed road is a perfect example of allowing for growth without 
having the capital facility funding in place, of not respecting the rights of 
all property owners, and of not giving due consideration to the interests of 
the general citizens and residents of East Sunnyside -Whiskey Ridge. 

Consequently, I am also against any proposed funding of improvements 
through Road Improvement Districts (RIDs). RIDS spread the cost of 
improvements across all property owners. Whether I want the 
improvements or not, I will be forced to pay a share of the cost. I have 
heard that the proposed road improvements in the East Sunnyside - 
Whiskey Ridge area could cost about 22 million dollars, and that each 
property owner could be assessed a bill as high as $18,000. 

Property owners who did not want to sell for development purposes would 
either have to pay the $1 8,000 or would be forced to sell. 

I want the option to stay on my property. Consequently, I support Impact 
Fees as a more just and moral way to pay for infrastructure. Unlike RIDs, 
Impact Fees require developers to "pay their own way." They make the 

Current Business 11 - 51

Page 170 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



economic link between those paying for and those receiving benefits 
more clear, and promote economic fairness for all property owners. 

It is  the Commission's responsibility to take a stand against RIDS and 
recommend to the City Council that any road improvements should be 
paid by lmpact Fees. You have a moral responsibility to respect the rights 
of all property owners. Do not pass that decision on to the City Council. If 
developers don't want to pay the lmpact Fees and the city has no general 
funds for improvements, .the improvements shouldn't happen. Property 
owners should not pay because there are no city funds or because 
developers don't want to pay. 

I request that you recommend to the City Council that lmpact Fees, not 
RIDS, be the funding source. lmpact fees are a system used successfully 
in this county and by Marysville and should be maintained. 

Growth needs to pay for itself! 

This i s  complex issue that must involve the public to be at all successful, 
and this decision needs a lot more time and input from stakeholders 
before a decision should be made. I also request further continuance of 
this process. 

Sincerely, 
, 

Ken White 
3303 87th Av NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Current Business 11 - 52

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 171 of 575



City of Marysville 
East Sunnyside 1 Whiskey Ridge Draft Master Plan 

Open House - January 11,2007 

I COMMENTS 

THANK YOU! 

Current Business 11 - 53

Page 172 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Date: 

To: 

From: 

January 10,2007 

The Marysville Planning Commission 

Tom King 
3 1 13 Sunnyside Blvd. 
Marysville, WA 98270 
425-3 34-9 104 

Subject : East Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge Comp Plan 

Recently the City of Marysville annexed the East Sunnyside and Whiskey Ridge area and 
has been working to complete a master plan for it for future growth. I hope at this time 
the city leaders will allow and encourage future trails, open space/green belts, and 
recreational space for current and future generations. This could also connect these 
fbture amenities with the Centennial Trail and Deering Park. 

A facility similar to Jennings Park would be welcomed and well used There could be 
large grass areas for recreational use and concerts, a facility similar to Jennings Barn for 
meetings and events and perhaps something unique such as a BMX track. Families as 
well as groups would make great use of this. This is also the time to ensure that space is 
set aside for open space and green belts. 

Sincerely, 

Tom King 

Current Business 11 - 54

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 173 of 575



Parks and Recreation 
691 5 Armar Road 

Marysville, Washington 98270 
Phone (360) 363-8400 

Fax (360) 651 -5089 
ci.marysville.wa.us 

January 10,2007 

To: Gloria Hirashima - Community Development Director 
From: Jim Ballew - Director of Parks and Recreation 

Re: Whiskey Ridge Mater Plan Draft 

Cc: Marysville Park and Recreation Advisory Board 
Mike Robinson - Parks Maintenance Manager 

We have reviewed the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan and offer the following comments 
that represent recommendations from members of the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board and staff. 

Proposed Trail Systems 

The Master Plan identifies several trail system opportunities throughout the entire 
annexation area that promote connectivity to existing city wide trail plans. We support 
the endeavor to require developer driven trails that are contiguous to sidewalk(s) systems 
but independent when possible. If this is not feasible, we request that wider sidewalks be 
required and meander whenever possible through new development(s). 

Densmore Road 

Proposed installation of a trail utilizing the Densmore Road corridor should consider a 
full range of user groups including equestrian, cycling and pedestrian. Off-trail seating 
amenities and park furnishings should be considered as well. A ten-foot to twelve-foot 
(1 0'-12') wide trail standard should be considered in this area as we anticipate high use. 

With the proposed use of the Sunnyside School Road, we would recommend a focus on 
connectivity to the Deering Wildflower Park site and sighting of a potential dedicated 
parking area in the immediate vicinity as a trail head be explored. 

4oth Street NE Connection 

The Master Plan identifies that 4oth Street NE will be extended east to 83'" Avenue NE. 
This addition should be treated as an access opportunity for residents to the north and 
south providing connectivity. If a dedicated trail cannot be a part of this connection, the 
road should be wide enough to support a dedicated trail on both sides as this will become 
a key connection to the Kiwanis Park, Sunnyside School fields and potential Qwuloolt 

Current Business 11 - 55

Page 174 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



trail access. This connection will also cross the Whiskey RidgeIBajrview Trail corridor 
providing access to another 2.5 miles of trail that will allow access to a pedestrian 
corridor which will terminate at 84'h Street NE and potentially a future connection to the 
Centennial Trail. 

Neighborhood and Community Parks 

An estimated population increase of 9,000 is expected through the Whiskey Ridge 
annexation. Based on current Park standards within the 2006-201 1 Park and Recreation 
Comprehensive Plan, approximately 15 acres of community park space should be 
considered for both community and neighborhood park facilities and a total of 30 acres. 
Additionally the Comp Plan identifies a need of 5 miles of new trails for this area. 

The City's Parks and Recreation Department has been challenged to meet the 
maintenance needs of existing parks as funding for new maintenance personnel is not 
available. Additionally, we cannot support the addition of isolated neighborhood parks 
unless they are situated amongst several planned developments and can be shared by a 
larger service area by design and maintenance funding is increased. 

Our focus should target a larger conlmunity park with a combination of active open space 
and passive open space and parking for a minimum of 100 cars. Based on the increased 
level of service a facility similar to a Jennings Memorial Park (2 1 acres) or Jennings 
Nature Park (1 5 useable acres) should be considered for this area. 

Due to the proximity of this area to both Marysville schools and Lake Stevens schools, 
we recommend that development of city owned athletic type fields should be a lower 
priority in this Master Plan. 

 kin^ Lake 

The Draft Plan identifies the King Lake area as a potential community park site to 
service the annexation area. The location of King Lake could satisfy most new residents 
however the condition of this are may not be conducive to providing active open space. 
The King Lake area may also present a challenge to the city for development due to 
buffer requirements as well as cost to acquire the site. The site is contiguous to property 
currently owned by the City's Utility Department which may provide an opportunity for 
more active space use(s). 

This proposal also should recognize and include the 5 acre Kiwanis Park site which is 
under consideration as an off-leash dog park site located on 40"' Street NE below 7lSt 
Ave NE. This park is also accessible through the Wilderun West subdivision or by 40"'; 
however there are currently no sidewalks on either side of 40"' between Sunnyside Blvd 
and 71S'. Sidewalks or an asphalt path should be considered in this location for trail 
connectivity. 

Current Business 11 - 56

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 175 of 575



Additional areas located on the southern boundaries on Soper Hill Road and 71 St Ave NE 
should also be considered as they are contiguous to acreage transferred to the city by 
Snohomish County through the neighborhood parks program. While this area is 
substantially developed, some undeveloped tracts remain and connect to property the city 
owns for recreational uses. 

Regional Area Funding 

Staff would recommend that use of developer mitigation fees collected from the Whiskey 
Ridge be dedicated towards both trail and community park acquisition and development 
efforts with a priority towards trail development within the immediate region including 
connections to the Sunnyside area. 

One other facility element for consideration is the inclusion of public restrooms on or 
near public recreation sites. Public restrooms continue to be the number one priority 
amongst several surveys conducted by the Parks and Recreation Department. 

Current Business 11 - 57

Page 176 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Planning Commission Workshop & 
Public Hearing Continuance 

January 18,2007 

Names: Ken White and Holly White 
Address: 3303 87th Av NE, Marysville, WA 98270 

Names: Tom and Elaine Sykes 
Address: 3306 87th Av NE, Marysville, WA 98270 

Name: Shelly and Tim Thomas 
Address 3626 87th Av NE, Marysville, WA 98270 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or asree with, and 
why: 

We support a reduction in zoning from 6 to 4.5 homes per acre. We also support mixed 
use zoning for maximum development value, such as along the homes on the west side 
of 87th Av NE. We'd like mixed use zoning in some areas across the street instead of 
solely community business. 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree 
with, and why: 

A. We do not support an extension of Highway 92 as planned. It would cut through our 
neighborhood and unnecessarily create parcels of land with little or no value for 
development. It would hurt the interests of neighborhood members. 

We request that the Planning Commission staff consider re-doing the intersection of 
Highway 9 and East Sunnyside School Road (bus barn). If you straightened that road by 
moving the turn off north to make a 90 degree turn, it would be safer, encourage more 
traffic, and negate the need for the proposed extension of Highway 92. Access would be 
available at this intersection and Soper Hill. 

OR, you could extend Highway 92 by connecting with Densmore, running along 
Densmore until you hit East Sunnyside School Road and follow that route (44th St. NE). This 
would be less invaslve of our neighborhood, create far fewer useless parcels of land, and 
still allow access, along with Soper Hill. 

Fundamentally, we do not support an extension of Highway 92. We do not see the need. 
This may serve the needs of particular developers, but does not serve the needs of the 
neighborhood. 

B. If this is still the current proposal, we do not support the zoning of all land east of 87th 
Av NE from Soper Hill to East Sunnyside School Road (44th St NE) as community business. 

Current Business 11 - 58

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 177 of 575



We could support some of that area zoned community business but would prefer other 
parcels to be zoned mixed use. There is  some confusion about what community business 
entails exactly and would like an explanation at the January 18 workshopS 

C. We do not support any zoning that would allow compact or crammed housing 
developments such as those described as "air condos." For example, we are concerned 
about the LDMR (Low Density Multiple Residential) zone. We understand that the 
development community and cities call high-density small-lot single-family 
developments in the LDMR zone LDMR-type development. We are against high-density, 
small-lot single family developments. 

D. We are concerned that the City of Marysville is  not planning to improve the entire 
length of 87th AV NE by adding sidewalks, lighting, burying power lines, and adding 
complete bike lanes. We do not support an alternative that says developers will make 
those improvements only in the specific locations they develop. We want a consistently 
improved neighborhood. We want the City of Marysville to take complete responsibility 
for sidewalks and other road improvements since our property taxes are being diverted 
to Marysville. 

E. It is  hard to respond to a continually changing plan. We would like to see a "final 
draft" document that the City of Marysville will commit to, word-for-word, and that we 
can review and respond to, before any final vote of the Planning Commission or City 
Council. 

F. We continue to wonder why this process is  moving forward so quickly and request a 
further continuance. There are issues like the proposed Highway 9 extension that would 
seriously impact our neighborhood environment and we would like the opportunity to get 
second opinions from outside consultants. We appreciate the present continuance but 
the holidays interfered with our ability to give significant attention to all of the issues. 

Current Business 11 - 59

Page 178 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



&lmark - 
Homes 

Memo 505 Cedar Ave., Suite B - I  
Marysvi l le, WA 98270 

360-653-3634 
To: City of Marysville Planning Commission 360-653-9619 fax 

Cc: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
From: Aaron Metcalf 

Belrnark Land and Homes, LLC 
Date: January 16, 2007 
Re: East Sunnyside-Wkey Ridge Sub area Plan 

Belmark is currently under contract of lots 302, 306, 307, & 3 16 of the Sunnyside Five 
Acre Tract (see attached map). The two items in your sub area plan that need to be 
addressed: 

1. There is no place in the plan that addresses split zoning. The Mixed Use and Low 
Multi-Family zones split the property that we have under contract. This will 
make it difficult to create a transition between zones. 

Solution: Allow for a 15-acre master plan provision that has minimum and 
maximum zoning for the entire.master plan. Also, allow single-family development 
within the mixed-use zone. 

Additional RIW along 83rd Ave. NE and the 25' landscape buffer along Soper Hill 
Rd. are two major hardships that our property is responsible for. The R/W request 
is a standard request but only from the centerline and because the west side is 
already developed the east side will be required to do the build out to an arterial. 
The 25' landscape buffer along Soper Hill Rd. to match the Crosswater (Polygon 
Project) is not a proper comparison. The only reason Crosswater has that 
landscape strip is because there is a gas pipeline under it. The owner of that 
pipeline (Wilharns?) paid for the easement along the Crosswater frontage. 

Solution: Allow for rd mitigation credit for any property that goes beyond the 
normal requirements of R/W dedication and landscape buffas. 

Please review the two items I have addressed. The solutions are vague in description 
however, I wanted to volunteer a solution that can maintain your vision of the sub area 
plan but in doing so provide flexibility to the developers and reduce undue hardships. 

Aaron Metcalf 
Belmark Land & Homes, LLC. 

www. belrnarkhornes.corn 

Current Business 11 - 60

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 179 of 575



Current Business 11 - 61

Page 180 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



PLANNING COMMISSION 
SIGN IN SHEET 

- -  - - -- 

NAME 1 ADDRESS 

Current Business 11 - 62

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 181 of 575



PLANNING COMMISSION 

I SOUND BUILDING CONSULTANTS LLC. 
I 

Current Business 11 - 63

Page 182 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

Name: 

City of Marysville - WhiskeylRidge Master Plan - OpenHou e 
T- I)rc.lS L a d  e 

Address: TT0b &'~~~'&JLFEEA~$&~- 7"8za9 
Phone Number: Yz5- -36-76  3 
Email Address: ~ U ~ T Q A R R L - A ~ W -  

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

fl -fd 9/-f- +L) +& e r r r h 3  /;.hcounu j 

, 

Other comments: 

I I 
Please continue on the other side of this page, if needed ... 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

Current Business 11 - 64

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 183 of 575



Public Hearing on Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Comments 
Ken White, 3303 87'h Av NE 

December 12, 2006 

1. I speak in opposition to  E. Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge 
Subarea Plan a t  this time. As a resident o f  the 
neighborhood and a stakeholder, my immediate concern is 
not the details of the plan, but tha t  the process f o r  
citizen input through a minimal number o f  land use forums 
and discussions is inadequate. We want t o  be more fully 
recognized as stakeholders. 

2. I would like t o  read a petition signed by f i f teen central 
members o f  the newly formed East Sunnyside 
Neighborhood Committee (ESNC). 

We support zoning and development that  brings 
measurable, permanent improvements t o  the lives of 
affected residents, but adoption of  Whiskey Ridge 
Master Plan will f ast-track development. 
We want the Ci ty  of Marysville t o  play a leadership 
role by slowing down decision-making and involving 
affected residents so they have a real voice in 
development plans. 
We want a new model for the c i ty  and community 
development tha t  is more inclusive and transparent. 
The ESNC will encourage neighbors t o  share information 
and is ready to  si t  down with c i ty  officials t o  discuss 
rezoning options that  will benefit our neighborhood. 
We support the idea o f  Community Benefits Agreements 
(CBAs) tha t  are a tool f o r  negotiation among neighbors, 
t he  c i ty  and developers. For example, neighbors should 
have a say in the selection of commercial tenants and 

Current Business 11 - 65

Page 184 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



roads. (www .calif orniapartnership.orq) Project 
Developers like Daryl Vange of Seattle support this 
process, having scores of community meetings, including 
three in November. 

3. I do have questions about the proposed master plan: 

What is Community Business zoning? 
How does CB zoning work t o  protect the sensitive 
environmental areas? (like the wetlands, forest areas 
and wildlife next t o  my property?) 
What does "wider range o f  retail" mean? Wal -marts? 
What are some examples of personal services not found 
in Neighborhood Business zoning? 

Current Business 11 - 66

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 185 of 575



We, the citizens of the city of Marysville, Whiskey Ridge, petition the city to delay 
approval of a Whiskey Ridge Master Plan, and increase genuine efforts to involve 
neighborhood members in the decision-making process regarding rezoning and 
development projects. We are concerned about the integrity of our neighborhood, 
higher property taxes and losing rural culture. We fear that many of the Master 
Plan alternatives encourage development that will return little to our community 
beyond traffic congestion and displacement of our homes. 

We also propose that city planners consider facilitating a Community Benefit 
Agreement between developers and our neighborhood that would specify 
benefits to be provided to our neighborhood affected by a particular 
development. We understand that this will require more community meetings. 

Name Address Phone Number Signature 

Current Business 11 - 67

Page 186 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 68

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 187 of 575



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: * [  , fd .  
Phone Number: %,3 4 AS / 34 
Email Address: @ 6,&l4(a&$. h l $  

Please identify aspects of the altern~tives that you like or agree with, and why: 

d do vid a y a -  w W w  

Please identifv aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
I?92 C 

--/b-e-s be. d?y/~t~& uuie */so c d d & &  
lh ? 

Other comments: 

~J vld I o d W  ih @ U @ P & . ~ K S & ~  

Current Business 11 - 69

Page 188 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Page 1 of  1 

khtify q e c t r  ef the alteraacfves that you ttStitEe or da nat wtth, nad 
& 

Current Business 11 - 70

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 189 of 575



Name: 

Address: 

COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Phone Number: s'25- 397 -7373 
Email Address: f n m ~ a ~ h  K V ~  

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Mze Lu-hsLe 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
whv: 1 See ~h-il~iched. 

Other comments: 

Please continue on the other side of this page, ifneeded ... 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

Current Business 11 - 71

Page 190 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



- -- u r n  -. 

p7M ~ C l i i *  CC ~?!L%?J~Q 

! m m  W d  6. 

Current Business 11 - 72

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 191 of 575



mm~& ~ e l w  3 rn 
LM need 

Current Business 11 - 73

Page 192 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 74

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 193 of 575



4726 87th AVE NE 
Everett WA 98205 
November 26,2006 

Marysville City Council 
1049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Dear City Council, 

We are residents of 5 a m  in the Sunnyside Whiskey Ridge area that has currently been 
annexed to the city of Marysville. After reviewing the Draft Master Plan we would like to 
express our desire to have the base density for the proposed zoning to be increased to 6.5 
ddacre. The current proposed base density of 4.5 ddacre doesn't seem to fit with the 
growth management act. My understanding of the growth management act is to increase 
population densities in urban areas to better preserve the rural areas. I f  this area is going 
to be changed &om rural to urban, why not increase the base density as much as possible 
so that current rural areas, can stay that way long into the future? Part of living in 
Snohomish County is the beautiful rural areas. We enjoy our county community and if it 
is going to be changed into residential neighborhoods, please have the base density of 6.5 
ddacre. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Heather and Bill Izzard 

Current Business 11 - 75

Page 194 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: Ken W. White 

Address: 

Phone Number: 425-377-0282 

Email Address: white kenw@mn.com 

Please identifv asvects of the alternatives that vou like or agree with. and why: 

Plans 1-3 and 5-6 are less invasive than alternative mrmbe? four. The proposed road changes in alternative 
number four would affect more property owners and would create more parcels of land unavailable for 
development. 

Please identifv aspects of the alternatives that vou dislike or do not amee with, and 
why: 

I dislike all six alternatives regarding proposed changes in roads. Does it make sense financially to put in a 
brand new road? Widening Soper Hill and Hwy 528 would be less expensive, and less invasive of 
homeowners.. Widening existing roads would also leave the property in our area more desirable to the 
builders and developers, possibly resulting in more homes and more tax dollars. In addition, the proposed 
road would not alleviate the traffic. 

The proposed plan for the road, especially alternative number four, would break up, rendering useless, 
many parcels of land. What would become of small fractions of land? Would that be the "best bang for the 
buck?" People in our area have sale of their property pending and quite a few others have already sold to 
developers. Even developers stand to lose a p a t  deal of money if that road is put in on a parcel of land 
they have figured for development. 

In addition, are the builders on the West Side of 83rd Ave. aware that the proposed road might level the 
homes they have just built? Are the firnilies who have recently purchased homes aware of that? 

I don't see how this benefits the community. 1 urge the city to work with members of the neighborhood 
more and consider options like a Community Benefit Agreement (or CBA). A CBA is an agreement 
between developer@) and the community in and around the site where the proposed development is to take 
place. The agreement provides certain assurances and guarantees to the residents and government of the 
locale in the form of a binding contract negotiated by community leaders, developers and local politicians. 
A CBA reinforces and secures cooperation from the developer@) in improving or maintaining the standard 
of living inside the affected area Take advantage of the wisdom of community members and work with 
them to create plans that truly benefit the community and keep it viable. One informational meeting is not 
enough. We need a series of meetings where the neighborhood can be authentically involved, not in 
opposition to commercial rezoning and development, but consisting of a diverse set of viewpoints willing 
to compromise to maintain a community livable for all. Let's do something different this time and help 
create a model for more rational and democratic planning. 

Current Business 11 - 76

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 195 of 575



Other comments: 

On Wednesday evening, neighbors in the SunnysidelWhiskey Ridge neighborhood met at 7PM at 3303 87" 
Av NE to discuss the alternatives ofthe Whiskey Ridge Master Plan. At this meeting, we agreed to form a 
neighborhood committee and we agreed to the following petition: 

"We, the citizens of the city of Marysville, Whiskey Ridge, petition the city to delay approval of a Whiskey 
Ridge Master Plan, and increase genuine efforts to involve neighborhood members in the decision-making 
process regarding rezoning and development projects. We are concerned about the integrity of our 
neighborhood, higher property taxes and losing rural culture. 'We fear that many of the Master Plan 
alternatives encourage development that will return little to our community beyond traffic congestion and 
displacement of our homes. 

We also propose that city plannefs consider facilitating a Community Benefit Agreement between 
developem and our neighborhood that would specify benefits to be provided to our neighborhood affected 
by a particular development. We understand that t i is will require more community meetings." 

We plan to present this petition to the City Council on Dec. 12. 

Current Business 11 - 77

Page 196 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



December 11,2006 

COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Name: Shelly & Tim Thomas 
3 626 87th Ave NE 
Everett Wa 98205 
425-334-695 1 

ALTERNATIVE #1 
Appears to use good existing road surface on Densmore also appears that the proposed arterial runs on property 
lines which would benefit the neighborhood and not split parcels or go through the middle of existing houses. 

ALTERNATIVE #2 
Appears to have a lot of "Little" roads and cuts too many parcels. If does use Densmore which is a good usable 
road surface. 

ALTERNATIVE #3 
Also appears to create a lot of new road surface that could be eliminated or redrawn and still achieve the same 
outcome of directing traffic to Marysville densely populated neighborhoods. This also has a straight through road 
fiom 92 leading to a non-collector arterial which would be mean a dead stop for cars coming into Marysville. 

ALTERNATIVE #4 
Winding road, cutting through existing homes that are less than 10 years old. Cuts through parcels and makes 
small unusable parcels. The same effect could be achieved by using Densmore, then cutting straight west along 
property lines to new road 4 0 ~ .  This would not divide parcels or displace current residence. Currently on 87m 
Alternative #4 plan would virtually displace at least 6 homeowners. I feel my property value will plummet with 
this plan.. 

ALTERNATTVE #5 
This plan is acceptable except for the road going straight to 83rd. it would create too much flow of traffic to a 
non-collector arterial. 

ALTERNATIVE #6 
This plan need to utilize more of Densmore and connect 44"' through to Densmore. ~lim&ate the straight road to 
83* ave. Utilizes property lines and does not cut parcels in half or make small pieces. 

IN SUMMARY 
Alternative #4 is the most damaging to the existing area. This plan cuts through the most property and existing 
houses. This would create the most cupup parcels and displace the most existing property owners. Most options 
show a road going straight to a non-collector arterial which will create the most traffic goin to nowhere or P directly into a small housing development. I propose elimination of the straight road to 83 or make 83* the 
collector arterial. 
I think the planning commission should physically investigate the neighborhood as is right now and identify the 
exact pieces to be effected. I would hope the commission has done their due diligence and identified the parcels 
to be effected.. Why not use vacant land for the alternatives. 

Current Business 11 - 78

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 197 of 575



I am in agreement with Alternative #3 However I do not support any of the recommended choices. #3 would 
have the least negative impact on the neighborhood and still provide collector arterials to major housing and 
commercial areas of Marysville. It would not cut-up properties and would use existing Densmore rd. and displace 
the least number of existing homeowners. 

Current Business 11 - 79

Page 198 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



From: keith swezey ~keithswezey@yahoo.com~ 
To: ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: Mon, Dec I I, 2006 9:42 AM 
Subject: whiskey ridge 

As a resident and property owner within the proposed annexation area I would like to state my support of 
the proposed annexation, specifically alternative #6. 1 believe this plan provides the best use of land 
combined with the best street layout for the futuer of the city and the area. Alternative #6 also provides for 
the installation and maintenance of streets and utilities to be a smooth and easy transition. 

I will be unable to speak during the upcoming Public Hearing and would like for this e-mail to be 
considered in lieu of my oral presentation. 
Thank You, 

Keith Swezey 
4318 87 Ave NE 
Everett, WA 

--------------------------- 
Want to start your own business? Learn how on Yahoo! Small Business. 

Current Business 11 - 80

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 199 of 575



December 12,2006 

Marysville Planning Commission 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

RE: Proposed Secondary Traffic Impact Fee for Whiskey Ridge 

Dear Commissioners: 

On behalf of Barclays North, Inc., I am writing to express our opposition to the 
proposed secondary traffic impact fee for the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Area. 
We believe strongly that this proposed fee is unfair, unconstitutional and 
unreasonable. 

We base our objections on the following. 

The Proposed Fee is  Unfair to Development in Whiskey Ridge 

Development in the Whiskey Ridge planning area will be required to pay a 
disproportionate share of the transportation improvement throughout the city. 
Currently, new developments citywide are paying a transportation impact fee of 
approximately $3,000.00, which goes to support all the city's transportation 
needs as outlined in the city's Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP). This 
means that in paying the present fee, new development in Whiskey Ridge is 
supporting project improvements in Smokey Point/Lakewood. 

Under the proposed secondary traffic impact fee, new development in Whiskey 
Ridge will now be required to pay a second approximate $3,000.00 that will be 
used for two projects in the Whiskey Ridge Plan area that will still be to the 
benefit of other residents and developments of the city. 

In order to be fair, the city should be adding the two projects that are the basis for 
the fee to the city's transportation improvement plan and include them as part of 
the city's overall transportation impact fee cost basis. 

Further, residential and strip commercial development will bear an even more 
disproportionate and inequitable burden of paying the fee because of an 
ordinance enacted by the City last year that credits large commercial projects 

VISION. DEDICATION. INTEGRITY. 

Current Business 11 - 81

Page 200 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



50% of the value of their impact fees paid after three consecutive years of annual 
sales tax revenue to the city in excess of $200,000.00. 

The Proposed Fee is  Unconstitutional 

The proposed fee is unconstitutional because it violates an applicant's rights to 
be free from unconstitutional takings. Whether a condition imposed upon 
development passes constitutional muster or is an unconstitutional taking is 
governed by two principles. The first, commonly referred to as the "nexus" rule, 
provides that the exaction or condition imposed must be based on and used to 
solve a problem connected to the proposed development. Benchmark Land 
Company v. City of Battleground, 103 Wn. App. 721, 726, 14 P.3d 172 (2000). 
The essential question here is whether the new development alone drives the 
proposed improvements. The second principle, commonly referred to as the 
proportionality rule, provides that the exaction or condition must be roughly 
proportional to the development's impact upon the problem. Benchmark, 103 
Wn. App. at 726. The proposed impact violates both these principles. 

The city has already adopted a citywide impact fee system that apportions fees 
based upon the impacts of development. The city previously determined that this 
system would be the only manner in which it would collect transportation impact 
fees. If the city wishes to change or update its impact fee system, it must do so 
for the entire city, otherwise the city is placing a disproportionate burden upon 
development in Whiskey Ridge Plan area beyond what the city has already 
legislatively determined is roughly proportionate to the impacts of this future 
development. 

Further, the city's attempt to use the same discounting for the secondary impact 
fee as the citywide impact fee in an effort to treat it the same as the citywide fee 
neither makes the fee more defensible, nor automatically satisfies the legal 
requirements of RCW Ch. 82.02. RCW Ch. 82.02 requires that the fees be 
based on an adopted TIP, based on the impacts of new development and must 
be balanced with other sources of funding. 

In calculating this impact fee, the city has not adequately distinguished between 
the impacts of new development and any existing deficiencies that are 
associated with these projects and that are not solely resultant from new 
development. Moreover, the city has these projects as developer funded, city 
funded or a combination of both, but it has not identified fully nor accurately 
calculated under law the availability of other funding sources and any credits for 

VISION. DEDICATION. INTEGRITY 

Current Business 11 - 82

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 201 of 575



"past or future payments made or reasonably anticipated to be made by new 
development." RCW 82.02.060(1)(b)&(c). 

The Proposed Fees Violate an Applicant's Rights 

In order to avoid a violation of an applicant's right to substantive due process, a 
regulation (i.e. the secondary impact fee) must satisfy three criteria: (1) it must be 
aimed at a legitimate public purpose; (2) it must use means reasonably 
necessary to achieve this purpose; and (3) it must be unduly oppressive to the 
applicant. Christianson v. Snohomish Health District, 133 Wn .2d 647, 946 P.2d 
768 (1 997). 

In this situation, the proposed fee violates substantive due process for the 
following reasons. 

First, the city's public purpose is not entirely legitimate. The city can update its 
citywide traffic impact fee in order to assess new development its proportionate 
share of the cost of these projects. Furthermore, the proposed fee elevates the 
inequity and unfair imposition of fees between different types of development. 

Second, the proposed secondary impact fee is not a necessary means to fund 
these proposed transportation improvements. The city has an existing impact 
fee system upon which it relies to impose impact fees. The city does not have a 
legitimate reason to go beyond this system to impose additional fees where the 
city can simply add the project into the existing system. The city has not 
provided any legitimate rationale for not using the current impact fee system. 

Third, the proposed impact fees are clearly unduly oppressive. The proposed 
impact fees are exorbitant in comparison to impact fees collected from other 
development within the city, place an unfair burden on development in this area 
and impose a heavy and disproportionate burden on residential and small 
commercial developments. 

The Proposed Fee Discourages Affordable Housing 

Our region's housing affordability is suffering. Adding this additional fee to the 
cost of development will continue to create undue economic disparity between 
those that own homes and those that do not. In the past eighteen months that 
city has raised all its major development fees. Water fees have been increase by 
more than $2,000.00, sewer by more than $2,700.00, school fees by more than 
$3,000.00 and traffic fees by more than $1,300.00. This additional $3,000.00 will 

VISION. DEDICATION. INTEGRITY. 

Current Business 11 - 83

Page 202 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



bring the total increase for these fees to more than $12,000. This does not 
include increases to permit and review fees. 

As you have heard before, these fees are a pass through to the consumer and 
are apart of the cost of a home. The legislative decisions of the city have directly 
increased the cost of a home by more than $12,000.00 in the past eighteen 
months. The impact of this $12,000.00 is more than $71 .OO per month in a 
mortgage (based on a fixed six percent interest over a 30 year mortgage). 

In conclusion, we ask the Planning Commission to remove this secondary impact 
fee from the Whiskey Ridge Plan and direct staff to update the city's existing TIP, 
impact fee cost basis and fee to include these two projects. This is the most fair 
and logical approach. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

x v i d  K. Toyer 4 
/vice president for Government Affairs 

cc: Honorable Mayor Kendall, City of Marysville 
Ms. Gloria Hirashima, Director of Community Development, City of 
Marysville 
Mr. Mike Pattison, Snohomish County Director, Master Builders 
Association 

V I S I O N .  D E D I C A T I O N .  INTEGRITY. 

Current Business 11 - 84

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 203 of 575



I Glorla Hlrashima - Tonight's Meeting Paae 1 

From: "Tom DeDonato" <tjd@spro.net> 
To: "'Gloria Hirashima"' ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 1211 212006 6: 14:43 PM 
Subject: Tonight's Meeting 

Kenley East, LLC would like to go on record as disagreeing with the proposed 
Secondary Impact Fee referred to in the proposed Marysville Comprehensive 
Plan to be presented at tonight's meeting. 

Tom 

Thomas J. DeDonato 

10257 NE 64th Street 

Kirkland, WA 98033 

(425) 4 1 7-3455 

"Bobby Welcome " ~bobw@rrjwelcome.com~ 

Current Business 11 - 85

Page 204 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Page 1 

F m :  MARK W HIBBERT <rnarkhibbert@verizon.net> 
To: <g hirashima@ci.rnarysville.wa.us~ 
Date: 12/12/2006 501 :34 PM 
Subject: Whiskey Ridge I Master Plan 

Hi Gloria ... I live at 5808 83rd Ave NE, Everett, WA 98205 and feel strongly that our area (currently not 
included in the master Plan) should be represented in the Master Plan. I've spoken with several nieghbors 
(as recently as today) who feel the same way. 

Thanks, Mark Hibbert 

Current Business 11 - 86

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 205 of 575



I NAME ADDRESS 1 PHONE# 

Current Business 11 - 87

Page 206 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



NAME 
\ 

ADDRESS 1 PHONE# 
- - . ---- 

Current Business 11 - 88

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 207 of 575



I NAME ADDRESS 1 PHONE# 

Current Business 11 - 89

Page 208 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville -Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

1 )  Oseserve Q P ~ J )  S ~ C P  a i m 4  ceK//qfp 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

Other comments: 

~ Q O K '  

I I 

Please continue on the other side of this page, if needed,. . 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

Current Business 11 - 90

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 209 of 575



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville -Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: (evl1? 
Address: 34.11 g&d Av-Qv (< LA-+- , 

Phone Number: ~ ~ 3 3 ~ 0 + 0 ~  . 

Email Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
whv: 

V LJ 

Other comments: 

Please continue on the other side of this page, ifneeded ... 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

Current Business 11 - 91

Page 210 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



HI Dan, 

Here is the message that I sent to Gloria. 

Thanks, 

----Original Message---- 
From: Mike BicMord [mailto:mlkeb@bickford.net] 
Sent: Wednesday, November 15,2006 8:11 PM 
To: 'ghirashima@ci,marysville.wa.us' 
Subject: Whisky Ridge 

Hi Gloria, 

I met you ~ u e s d a ~  night at the Planning Commission meeting. Thank you for pointing me to the website to 
access the six different plans. 

I hope to attend tomorrow nights meeting, but I also need to pick my son up from the airport later in the evening. 
My son is obviously the higher priority. 

Is it possible to send an e-mail to the members of the Planning Commission? If it is, can you provide their e-mail 
addresses? 

I am not sure, but I believe you mentioned using roads, streams and other types of buffers to separate the 
differentuses when possible. I agree with that. Most of all, I believe that it is very important to protect (or 
separate) the single family properties from the other types of uses. Typically homeowners buy single family 
homes and these buyers really care about what is around their home. Few buyers of a single family home will 
want a home that backs up to a three story apartment complex. It would be far more desirable to have some 
distance between your home and the apartment complex. 

My point is that I believe an important priority should be to attempt to have the fewest number of multi-family 
parcels directly adjoining single family lots. For the most part, I like the way version 4 uses roads and streams to 
separate the different uses. There is one section however that has a significant number of single family lots 
adjoining multi-family lots. There are a many single family lots facing 83* that back up to multi-family lots that 
face 8p. Actually most all versions seem to show this same concept. 

I see a couple of ways to reduce this concern. One way would beto'have allthe parcels between 83 and 87 
zoned the same. Another way would be draw the line between the single family zoning and the multi-family 
zoning differently. Instead of running the dividing line north to south, it could run east to west. That way only two 
single family lots would be adversely impacted by the multi-family lots. 

I personally would zone all of the property east of 8p as neighborhood commercial or mixed use. I would then 
have all property between 83d and 87U zoned multi-family. Hwy 9 provides a unique opportunity as there is no 
need to worry about devaluing homes in a single family neighborhood. I believe that 8 p  provides an ideal 
boundary. between commercial businesses and multi-family property. I think most people who live in apartments 
or condos appreciate the convenience of nearby shops. 

Again, my primary concern is protecting the single family home that is (or will be) privately owned. 83d appears 
to serve as the best buffer to accomplish this. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Nit@ BicRford 
425-308-1443 Cell 

Bickford Motors 
General Manager 
P Wk: (425) 334-4045, 
A Fax: (360) 563-0903 
B' E-Mail: mikeb@bickford.net 

Current Business 11 - 92

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 211 of 575



November 30,2006 

Gloria Hirashima 
Community Development Director 
City of Marysville 
80 Columbia Ave 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Dear Gloria, 

Many of the property owners in the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan area have concerns they would 
like to share regarding the proposed zoning. Plan #4 offers the most forward thinking options 
with some adjustments. 

The city would like to see the area more pedestrian oriented with sidewalks, parks and walking 
trails but the densities are insufficient to make it feasible for a developer to go for the full 
incentives thus the landscape will be more of the same, housing development after housing 
development with sporadic large lots instead of a modem planned community. (Kirkland, 
Redmond and Mill Creek are great examples of progressive planned communities with high 
density pedestrian oriented urban areas.) 

The commercial looks good along HWY 9. It will offer services that will take away the need to 
travel to Frontier Village, Everett or Smokey Point for many items. Wall Mart at 528 and HWY 9 
will provide a food store, but to have a quality store, like Central Market at Mill Creek, densities 
would Have to be higher. This type of store would have a big draw because there are no markets 
offering their style of products. Residents from the surrounding communities of Lake Stevens, 
Granit Falls, Arlington and unincorporated Snohomish County will find this type of store 
desirable and will want to shop there also. This would be a benefit to the city's revenue base 
which will add to the overall quality of life for its citizens. 

The mixed use proposed is very appealing because it offers services on a community level, once 
again however the densities have to be higher to make it profitable for a developer to build this 
type of community retail structure. 

High density housing appeals to a broad age group when it is mix with convenient shopping 
dining and recreation options. The city's design standards insure longevity of a structure. The 
shopping allows for goods and services within walking distance of many people. This type of 
community would be a perfect match for all of the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan area because it is 
a large piece of land that is bordered by a major arterial. (Mill Creek has the Bothell Everett 
Hwy, Kirkland has Juanita Dr.) The area is a gateway to the city from the south west and can be 
used by planning commission to set a forward thinking image for the city. 

aura Lacev 
4427 83rd i v e  NE 

V 

Everett, WA 98205 

Current Business 11 - 93

Page 212 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Examples of high density mixed use that have uisual and lifestyle appeal. 

Pedestrian oriented 
pathways make 
access to shopping and 
dining easy 

Shopping on the edge of 
neighborhoods connected by 
sidewalks 

Open decks 4 stories 

Appealing architecture, low 
maintenance appeals to all ages 

Density, retail and appealing to the eye 

Current Business 11 - 94

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 213 of 575



To Whom It May Concern: 

My name is Mark Minor and I live at 8512 E. Sunnyside 
School Rd. I am writing this letter with the intent of providing you 
some inpuWeed back regarding the-draft .of-the-East--- - - - - - 

SunnysideMlhiskey Ridge Master Plan. 
Let me start by saying that I know I have conflicting interests 

and I'm uncertain of what's best or what I'd like to see happen in 
the Whiskey Ridge area. I understand and have similar thoughts 
with some people and completely different ideas from others. I 
don't know if my words can be read without a sense of bias, so 
please understand that I'm prepared to live with what the City 
approves, but I would appreciate you considering the following 
thoughts with regard to the Master Plan Draft. 

Q I was surprised with the amount of single family housing in all 
six proposals. 

+:* The entire area west of 83rd is zoned single family and most of 
the area north of Sunnyside School Road is zoned single 
family, so why put in more single family? 

8 1 had in my mind, that the plan for this area would be for more 
business, similar to State street or Frontier Village. 

8 If I want to go out for dinner, get a haircut, do some shopping, 
fill up my car with gas, etc. I must drive to Frontier Village, 
Everett, or Marysville. With the increase of single family 
residence in the surrounding areas, it's my belief that the 
current and future residences of this area and out lying areas 
will want convenience along with choices regarding services 
and retail. I believe this southeast corner of Whiskey Ridge 
would be the ideal area for more Business, Mixed Use, and 
Multi-Family to serve these needs. 

4'4 Perhaps multi-family homes along the East side of 83" make 
sense, because of the single family homes along the west side. * With traffic considerations, 87'" Densmore, Sunnyside School 
Rd. seams ideal for business. 

Current Business 11 - 95

Page 214 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



+:+ Some people are new to the area or just starting out and with 
the price of homes today, I believe there's a real need for multi- 
family housing. 

t The more you do to alleviate traffic congestion, the better the 
plan. 

If I were to pick the best proposal of the six proposals, I would 
pick #4. Everything considered, this seams the best-balanced 
plan. 

If I could revise a proposal, J would add a combination of 
business, mixed use, and multi-family along the East and West 
side of 87th, from Soper Hill Rd. to 528 and along the North and 
South side of E. Sunnyside School Rd. I believe people want 
convenience along with choices regarding services and retail. I 
don't see the need for additional single family homes vs. 
business, mixed use, and multi-family for this area. 

I hope this helps with the tough decisions you face that will 
undoubtedly affect so many in the community and surrounding 
areas. Please, let me know if there's anything further that I can 
do to help. 

Mark Minor 
851 2 E. Sunnyside School Rd. 
Everett, WA 98205 
Phone 425-377-1 108 

Current Business 11 - 96

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 215 of 575



COMMENT SIIEET 

city of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 25- 2-39- 2936 
Email Address: oazkec~q5iI  @ ~ ~ m c q s f . ~ e t  

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

(~/fer 'MJ+~#i &JA. eovte of ~ e c  I 

Current Business 11 - 97

Page 216 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 2.5- 33q- 2436 
Email Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 
1 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

b d  5Lp;ty & W&S;DW a+ 874 h p l - )  - 

s-5 Lf w;U &use mnpcf;&k Q.& v d ~ c - e  

Other comments: 

I I 

Please continue on thkother side of this page, ifneeded ... LJ 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

44& dKd 87& w e  & J  4 ,  q y  d6 0. 
nw/ fo *kange Stcny~rd~ S d o o /  so-- 

Current Business 11 - 98

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 217 of 575



,-a- 

City of Marysville 1 _ ,; Marysvllle City Limits Marysvllle Comprehenslve Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

:" ' " j  Marysvllle Urban Growth Area Communihl Business Urban Commerdai 
DRAFT :a-.& 

East Sunnyside Neighborhood ;:$% Mixed Use Urban Industrial 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan '" ' .. , 

j ,, ,, Master Plan Area 2;': e l 2  MuM-Family Low + Rural Residential 5 Acre 

Alternative #4 - 'w . - Proposed ~ollector ~rterlal !%% Nelghbohaod Business Rural Residentla1 5 Acre Baslc 
,/ 

Oatober 12,2006 .., , Comrnerclal 'g@j RIB MUM-Family Medium Urban High Density ResldenUaI 
, .. . 

N ,/c_;;;l MuitKamlly R6.5 Single Famny High !;+$a Urban Medlum Density Resldentlal 

Mlxed Use R4.5 Single Family Medlum Urban Low Denslty Residential 
Recreation ,'!:$fl Pubndlnsututional 

::{@ Open Space 

Current Business 11 - 99

Page 218 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
whv: 

Other comments: 

P~&Vdiy inu 44 PD$ sdro3wuh/& d ' fA l * luy  - 
Please continue on the other side of thisp&, ifneeded ... 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ' 

Current Business 11 - 100

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 219 of 575



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 33% $3744 Ad@- n ) 6  
Phone Number: 25- 2-39, 2936 
Emal Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

C .  L 

Other comments: 

Ids- L IW~ a{ devLIL3&6{& 
Please confinue on the other side of this page, ifneeded ... 

The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and id Thank You! 7 

Current Business 11 - 101

Page 220 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you like or agree with, and why: 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that you dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

b%eu vd3 e* waa -A. @.h+ 
The City of Marysville appreciates your comments and ideas. Thank You! 

a 

Current Business 11 - 102

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 221 of 575



/ Gloria Hirashima - homeowner in annexation area Page 1 / 

From: cgoldtales7@comcast net', 
To: ~ghirashima@ci.marysville.wa,us~ 
Date: 12/07/2006 252: 10 PM 
Subject: homeowner in annexation area 

Gloria, 

I understand you are the contact person in regards to some comments and concerns I have in regard to 
the proposed road and development in the "SunnysideNVhiskey Ridge" area. 

I reside at 3614 87th Ave NE and have lived there for 14 years. I have watched the area grow and yet it 
still has a bit of rural feel to it I do understand the developement of the area is inevitable yet would like to 
voice my opinion especially in regard to the proposed road ( six plans I understand) that would be a 
continuation of Hwy 92 heading west 

Following are some of my ideaslconcems: 

Does it make sense financially to put in a brand new road ? Why not widen Soper Hill & Hwy 528 as would 
be less money involved, less invasion of homeowners and maintain our area as is. Which in turn would 
leave the property in our area more desirable to the builders and developers and therefore result in more 
homes = more tax dollars. The proposed road would not alleviate the traffic. It would result in cars trying to 
avoid the traffic chosing alternative routes and driving too fast.. Are families that are looking for a home to 
purchase to going to be in favor of an area like that ? Children would have to cross a busy street to visit a 
friend who lived a 5 minute walk away. I overlook 83 rd Ave and for the past few years see cars driving 
very fast to get to where they are going thinking its shorter and quicker. From time to time I see police cars 
ticketing cars and doing a "emphasis" patrol. Its a residential area and I would bet some cars are 
exceeding 50 mph. Not conducive 
to ch 

ildren riding their bikes or people walking. Wouldn't it make more sense to keep cars on current main 
roads? 

The proposed plan for the road would end up breaking up (and rendering useless) many homeowners 
parcels of land. What would become of those small fractions of land ? Is that the "best bang for the buck" 
for revenue ? 1 understand many people in our area have sale of their property pending and quite a few 
others who have already sold to developers. Those developers stand to lose a great deal of money if that 
road is put in on a parcel of land they have figured would be homes ... IE: revenue for them and the city of 
Marysville would be lost. 

Are the builders that are putting in the homes on the west side of 83rd Ave. aware that the proposed road 
will level the homes they have just finished ? And I wonder if the families who have recently purchased 
homes there are aware of that ? Does that benefit the communiip I would imagine that would be huge 
detrament to the potential sale of houses that are currently under construction let alone a disclosure issue. 

I think there are a lot of valid issues at hand here and hope that you and your department might be able to 
bring to light these concerns with the City Council. There are homeowners, builders and developers who 
are all affected by this "road" plan which is not the best way to go for enhancing or developing the said 
area. Its really not going to benefit any entity as far as I can tell. 

Thank you for your time. 

Regards, 
Susan Babich 

Current Business 11 - 103

Page 222 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: Ken W. White 

Address: 3303 87thAv NE 98205 

Phone Number: 425-377-0282 

Email Address: white kenw@,msn.com 

Please identifv aspects of the alternatives that vou like or agree with. and why: 

Plans 1-3 and 5-6 are less invasive than altemative number four. The proposed road changes in altemative 
number four would affect more property owners and would create more parcels of land unavailable for 
development. 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that vou dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

I dislike all six alternatives regarding proposed changes in roads. Does it make sense financially to put in a 
brand new road? Widening Soper Hill and Hwy 528 would be less expensive, and less invasive of 
homeowners. Widening existing roads would also leave the property in our area more desirable to the 
builders and developers, possibly resulting in more homes and more tax dollars. In addition, the proposed 
road would not alleviate the traffic. 

The proposed plan for the road, especially alternative number four, would break up, rendering useless, 
many parcels of land. What would become of small fractions of land? Would that be the "best bang for the 
buck?" People in our area have sale of their property pending and quite a few others have already sold to 
developers. Even developers stand to lose a great deal of money if that road is put in on a parcel of land 
they have figured for development. 

In addition, are the builders on the West Side of 83rd Ave. aware that the proposed road might level the 
homes they have just built? Are the fsmilies who have recently purchased homes aware of that? 

I don't see how this benefits the community. I urge the city to work with members of the neighborhood 
more and consider options like a Community Benefit Agreement (or CBA). A CBA is an agreement 
between developer(s) and the community in and around the site where the proposed development is to take 
place. The agreement provides certain assurances and guarantees to the residents and government of the 
locale in the form of a binding contract negotiated by community leaders, developers and local politicians. 
A CBA reinforces and secures cooperation fkom the developer(s) in improving or maintaining the standard 
of living inside the affected area. Take advantage of the wisdom of community members and work with 
them to create plans that truly benefit the community and keep it viable. One informational meeting is not 
enough. We need a series of meetings where the neighborhood can be authentically involved, not in 
opposition to commercial rezoning and development, but consisting of a diverse set of viewpoints willing 
to compromise to maintain a community livable for all. Let's do something different this time and help 
create a model for more rational and democratic planning. 

Current Business 11 - 104

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 223 of 575



Other comments: 

On Wednesday evening, neighbors in the Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood met at 7PM at 3303 87' 
Av NE to discuss the alternatives of the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan. At this meeting, we agreed to form a 
neighborhood committee and we agreed to the following petition: 

"We, the citizens of the city of Marysville, Whiskey Ridge, petition the city to delay approval of a Whiskey 
Ridge Master Plan, and increase genuine efforts to involve neighborhood members in the decision-making 
process regarding rezoning and development projects. We are concerned about the integrity of our 
neighborhood, higher property taxes and losing rural culture. We fear that many of the Master Plan 
alternatives encourage development that will return little to our community beyond traffic congestion and 
displacement of our homes. 

We also propose that city planners consider Edcilitating a Community Benefit Agreement between 
developers and our neighborhood that would specify benefits to be provided to our neighborhood affected 
by a particular development. We understand that this will require more community meetings." 

We plan to present this petition to the City Council on Dec. 12. 

Current Business 11 - 105

Page 224 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



December 7,2006 

City of Marysville 
Attn: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
80 Columbia Ave. 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Subject: Draft East Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Dear Gloria, 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Draft East Sunnyside-Whiskey Ridge Master Plan. 
We look forward to our continued coordination and working relationship with your office on this 
issue. As you may know, the 60 percent annexation petition is circulating in the Soper Hill area 
in the City of Lake Stevens UGA just south of Whiskey Ridge. We are planning for the final 
annexation action to occur sometime in 2007. At that point, the City of Marysville and the City of 
Lake Stevens will share a common city limit boundary. 

Overall, the six alternatives+show an increase in land use intensity from the existing planned 
uses in the Master Plan area. 'we  anticipate impacts to the City of ~ a k e  Stevens transportation 
system and land use compatibility. The City of Lake Stevens supports a final master plan that 
addresses the items listed below. 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

1. There are five collector or minor arterial roadways directed onto Soper Hill Road from the 
City of Marysville's area to the north including the Master Plan area. The City of Lake 
Stevens wants to ensure that the level of service on Soper Hill is not diminished as a result 
of the impacts of traffic from this area. This, of course, involves timing and designation of 
appropriate roadway improvements from both cities. The County's designation of Soper Hill 
is "Minor Arteriai" that includes a road configuration of two lanes and bicycle lanes plus 
curbs, gutters, and sidewalks. However, upon annexation, the City of Lake Stevens intends 
to reevaluate whether or not this is an appropriate designation to support the expected 
development impacts. Coordination and collaboration on the roadway that will service our 
two cities in this area is important. 

2. The City of Lake Stevens supports coordination between our two cities and WSDOT on the 
improvements and impacts to SR9 and SR92. As you know, a corridor planning effort for 
SR9 by the State is currently active. 

3. Because of any potential increased densities in this area, the City of Lake Stevens would 
jointly supports additional Transit Service in the neighborhood. 

4. The City of Lake Stevens support the realignment of Densmore Road as shown in 
Alternative #4 of the Master Plan. As an extension of SR92, the realignment appears to 
benefit overall circulations systems of the area. 

5. The City of Lake Stevens supports any and all coordination of trail connections that would 
connect our communities and any regional areas to the neighborhoods in this area. 

1812 Main Street I P.O. Box 257 Lake Stevens, WA 98258-0257 (425) 334-1012 Fax (425) 334-0835 

Current Business 11 - 106

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 225 of 575



LAND USE AND DESIGN 

1. The City of Lake Stevens supports residential uses along Soper Hill Road at similar 
densities to the south within the City of Lake Stevens UGA. Although the current County 
designation of the property directly south of the Master Plan area is Urban Industrial, the 
area is being developed entirely as residential. 

2. The City supports limited non-residential uses that are compatible with neighborhood and 
complement the City of Lake Stevens Frontier Village commercial areas. 

3. We are aware that the City of Marysville has been involved in developing a plan for its 
gateways. The City of Lakes Stevens is in favor of coordinating on design in our joint 
gateway area. We encourage the opportunity for our cities to work together for the benefit 
of the citizens in this area. 

4. The City of Lake Stevens supports the Lake Stevens School District's interests in this area. 
The District indicates that you have made contact with them regarding the draft Master Plan. 
We encourage the City of Marysville to continue coordination with the District's future plans 
in this neighborhood. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide input on the plan. We would like to request a 
joint meeting to discuss coordination of potential joint implementation measures of the issues 
we have identified above. We look forward to seeing you at your Planning Commission public 
hearing on December 12, 2006. 

Rebecca Ableman 
Planning Director 

David Ostergaard, P.E 
Public Works Director 

Cc: Mayor Uern Little 
 an Berg, Director of Finance and Administration 
City Council 
Robb Stanton, Lake Stevens School District 

Current Business 11 - 107

Page 226 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Chapter I - Introduction 

Figure I .I - Annexation Areas 2006 - 201 1 

City of Lake Stevens 
Comprehensive Plan 

July 2006 

Current Business 11 - 108

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 227 of 575



4726 87th AVE NE 
Everett WA 98205 
November 26,2006 

Marysville City Council 
1 049 State Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Dear City Council, 

We are residents of 5 acres in the Sunnyside Whiskey Ridge area that has currently been 
annexed to the city of Marysville. After reviewing the Draft Master Plan we would like to 
express our desire to have the base density for the proposed zoning to be increased to 6.5 
dulacre. The current proposed base density of 4.5 ddacre doesn't seem to fit with the 
growth management act. My understanding of the growth management act is to increase 
population densities in urban areas to better preserve the rural areas. If this area is going 
to be changed from rural to urban, why not increase the base density as much as possible 
so that current rural areas, can stay that way long into the future? Part of living in 
Snohomish County is the beautiful rural areas. We enjoy our county community and if it 
is going to be changed into residential neighborhoods, please have the base density of 6.5 
du/acre. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Heather and Bill Izzard 

Current Business 11 - 109

Page 228 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Open House 
Thursday, November 16,2006 

Name: Ken W. White 

Address: 

Phone Number: 425-377-0282 

Email Address: white kenw@,msn.com 

Please identifv aspects of the alternatives that vou like or awee with, and why: 

Plans 1-3 and 5-6 are less invasive than alternative number four. The proposed road changes in alternative 
number four would affect more property owners and would create more parcels of land unavailable for 
development. 

Please identify aspects of the alternatives that vou dislike or do not agree with, and 
why: 

I dislike all six alternatives regarding proposed changes in roads. Does it make sense financially to put in a 
brand new road? Widening Soper Hill and Hwy 528 would be less expensive, and less invasive of 
homeowners. Widening existing roads would also leave the property in our area more desirable to the 
builders and developers, possibly resulting in more homes and more tax dollars. In addition, the proposed 
road would not alleviate the traffic. 

The proposed plan for the road, especially alternative number four, would break up, rendering useless, 
many parcels of land. What would become of small hctions of land? Would that be the "best bang for the 
buck?" People in our area have sale of their property pending and quite a few others have already sold to 
developers. Even developers stand to lose a great deal of money if that road is put in on a parcel of land 
they have figured for development. 

In addition, are the builders on the West Side of 83rd Ave. aware that the proposed road might level the 
homes they have just built? Are the families who have recently purchased homes aware of that? 

I don't see how this benefits the community. I urge the city to work with members of the neighborhood 
more and consider options like a Community Benefit Agreement (or CBA). A CBA is an agreement 
between developer(s) and the community in and around the site where the proposed development is to take 
place, The agreement provides certain assurances and guarantees to the residents and government of the 
locale in the form of a binding contract negotiated by community leaders, developers and local politicians. 
A CBA reinforces and secures cooperation from the developer(s) in improving or maintaining the standard 
of living inside the affected area Take advantage of the wisdom of community members and work with 
them to create plans that truly benefit the community and keep it viable. One informational meeting is not 
enough. We need a series of meetings where the neighborhood can be authentically involved, not in 
opposition to commercial rezoning and development, but consisting of a diverse set of viewpoints willing 
to compromise to maintain a community livable for all. Let's do something different this time and help 
create a model for more rational and democratic planning. 

Current Business 11 - 110

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 229 of 575



Other comments: 

On Wednesday evening, neighbors in the SunnysideNhkkey Ridge neighborhood met at 7PM at 3303 87' 
Av NE to discuss the alternatives of the Whiskey Ridge Master Plan. At this meeting, we agreed to form a 
neighborhood committee and we agreed to the following petition: 

"We, the citizens of the city of Marysville, Whiskey Ridge, petition the city to delay approval of a Whiskey 
Ridge Master Plan, and increase genuine efforts to involve neighborhood members in the decision-making 
process regarding rezoning and development projects. We are concerned about the integrity of our 
neighborhood, higher property taxes and losing rural culture. We fear that many of the Master Plan 
alternatives encourage development that will return little to our community beyond traffic congestion and 
displacement of our homes. 

We also propose that city planners consider facilitating a Community Benefit Agreement between 
developers and our neighborhood that would specify benefits to be provided to our neighborhood affected 
by a particular development. We understand that this will require more community meetings." 

We plan to present this petition to the City Council on Dec. 12. 

Current Business 11 - 111

Page 230 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



December 11,2006 

COMMENT SHEET 

City of Marysville - Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Name: Shelly & Tim Thomas 
3626 87'h Ave NE 
Everett Wa 98205 
425-334-695 1 
Shelly-thomas@,comcast.net - 

hLTERNATTVE #1 
Appears to use good existing road surface on Densmore also appears that the proposed arterial runs on property 
lines which would benefit the neighborhood and not split parcels or go through the middle of existing houses. 

ALTERNATIVE #2 
Appears to have a lot of "Little" roads and cuts too many parcels. If does use Densmore which is a good usable 
road surface. 

ALTERNATIVE #3 
Also appears to create a lot of new road surface that could be eliminated or redrawn and still achieve the same 
outcome of directing traffic to Marysville densely populated neighborhoods. 'This also has a straight through road 
from 92 leading to a non-collector arterial which would be mean a dead stop for cars coming into Marysville. 

ALTERNATIVE #4 
Winding road, cutting through existing homes that are less than 10 years old. Cuts through parcels and makes 
small unusable parcels. The same effect could be achieved by using Densmore, then cutting straight west along 
property lines to new road 40". This would not divide parcels or displace current residence. Currently on 8 7 ~  
Alternative #4 plan would virtually displace at least 6 homeowners. I feel my property value will plummet with 
this plan.. 

ALTERNATM #5 
This plan is acceptable except for the road going straight to 83'd. it would create too much flow of traffic to a 
non-collector arterial. 

ALTERNATIVE #6 
This plan need to utilize more of Densmore and connect 44" through to Densmore. ~l i rnkate  the straight road to 
~3~ ave. Utilizes property lines and does not cut parcels in half or make small pieces. 

IN SUMMARY 
Alternative #4 is the most damaging to the existing area. This plan cuts through the most property and existing 
houses. This would create the most cup-up parcels and displace the most existing property owners. Most options 
show a road going straight to a non-collector arterial which will create the most trafflc going to nowhere or 
directly into a small housing development. I propose elimination of the straight road to 831d or make 83rd the 
collector arterial. 
I think the planning commission should physically investigate the neighborhood as is right now and identify the 
exact pieces to be effected. I would hope the commission has done their due diligence and identified the parcels 
to be effected.. Why not use vacant land for the alternatives. 

Current Business 11 - 112

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 231 of 575



I am in agreement with Alternative #3 However I do not support any of the recommended choices. #3 would 
have the least negative impact on the neighborhood and still provide collector arterials to major housing and 
commercial areas of Marysville. It would not cut-up properties and would use existing Densmore rd. and displace 
the least number of existing homeowners. 

Current Business 11 - 113

Page 232 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City Of Marysville 
Gloria J Hirashima 
Community Development Director 

Dear Gloria, 

I am requesting that my property at 8909 E Sunnyside School Rd, Everett, WA 98205 
be zoned for commercial use. 

Commercial 

The Whiskey Ridge area is an entrance to Marysville fiom the West. There is a 
unique availability of undeveloped land with three accesses to Hwy 9. Two accesses 
already exist at Soper Hill Road and E Sunnyside Road. The third will be the extension 
of Hwy 92. This provides an opportunity for easy traffic flow and could possibly attract 
something like the Gateway project at 1 1 6th providing a variety of commercial, retail and 
housing. This would keep the residence retail purchasing dollars in the community where 
they live in and increase the tax dollars. 

Current Business 11 - 114

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 233 of 575



Current Business 11 - 115

Page 234 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



July 6,2006 

City of Marysville 
Community Development Department 
80 Columbia Ave, 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Gloria Hirashima 
Community Development Director 

Dear Gloria, 

I am requesting that my property at 8609 Soper Hill Rd, be zoned Multifamily High 
Density. I believe this will be a benefit to the community by using the land to its highest 
and best use. This zoning allows an assisted living facility with a conditional use permit 
and certain types of medical professional offices. A large segment of the population is 
over fifty five years old and getting older. Currently there is high demand for this type of 
facility and the need will increase. I will have my real estate agent market the property 
for this type of buyer. The connection of Soper Hill Road to Sunnyside Boulevard and 
Highway 9 allow for easy access to the area. I am a third generation resident of this 
land and I think it would be a fitting legacy for my family. 

Thank you, for considering my request. 

Sinc rely, 

~L~&AQ~ L55&&) 
P h l e e n  Wilco 

/ 
F. 

Current Business 11 - 116

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 235 of 575



Current Business 11 - 117

Page 236 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



June 30,2006 

City of Marysville 
Con~munity Development Department 
80 Columbia Ave, 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Gloria Hirashima 
Community Development Director 

Dear Gloria, 

I am requesting that my property at 3723 83rd Ave NE, Everett WA 98205, be zoned R12. 
I believe this will be a benefit to the community by using the land to its highest and best 
use. This zoning allows for single family affordable housing. The city's study on 
Cottage Housing shows that this density provides maxinlum use of the land while still 
allonring for a sense of community. 

Thank you, for considering my request. 

Sincerely, 

Alan G. Kallicott 

Current Business 11 - 118

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 237 of 575



Current Business 11 - 119

Page 238 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



July 6,2006 

City of Marysville 
Community Development Department 
80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Gloria Hirashima 
Community Development Director 

Dear Gloria, 

I am requesting that my properties with tax numbers 00590700030200, 
00590700030600,00590700030700,0059070003 1600 be zoned Multifamily High 
Density. This zoning allows for an assisted living facility with a conditional use permit. 
Certain types of medical professional offices can also be permitted. My family has lived 
in the Whiskey Ridge area for generations and I would like to continue living in my 
current home. I would like to have this type of facility as my neighbor. 

A large segment of the population is over fifty five years old and getting older. Currently 
there is high demand for this type of facility and the need will increase. The connection 
of Soper Hill Road to Sunnyside Boulevard and Highway 9 allow for easy access to the 
area. 

Please see attached map. 

Thank you, for considering my request. 

Sincerely, 

Everett, WA. 98205 

Current Business 11 - 120

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 239 of 575



Current Business 11 - 121

Page 240 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



XIII. GLOSSARY 
Accessory dwelling unit: 
An additional living unit, including separate kitchen, sleeping and bathroom facilities, 
attached or detached from the primary residential unit, on a single-family lot. 

Active recreational uses: 
Leisure time activities, usually of a more formal nature and performed with others, often 
requiring equipment and taking place at prescribed places, sites or fields. 

Adequate public facilities: 
Facilities that have the capacity to serve development without decreasing levels of service 
below locally established minimums. (WAC 365-1 95-210) 

Affordable housing: 
Residential housing that is  rented or owned by a person or household whose monthly gross 
housing costs, including utilities other than telephone, do not exceed thirty (30%) percent 
of the household's gross monthly income. (WAC 365-1 95-21 0) 

Agricultural Land: 
Land primarily devoted to the commercial production of horticultural, viticultural, 
floricultural, dairy, apiary, vegetable, or animal products or of berries, grain, hay, straw, turf 
and seed, Christmas trees not subject to the excise tax imposed by RCW 84.33.1 00 through 
84.33.1 40, or livestock, and has long-term commercial significance for agricultural 
production (RCW 36.70A.030). 

Annexation: 
The act of incorporating an area into the domain of a city. 

Arterial roadways: 
A class of roadway serving major movements of traffic not served by freeways. Arterial 
roadways are functionally classed depending on the degree to which they serve through 
traffic. 

Principal arterials are primarily for traffic movement and secondarily for access to 
abutting properties. lntersections are ordinarily at-grade with traffic control and 
geometric design features that expedite safe through traffic movement. This class of 
roadway tends to carry heavier traffic loads and therefore has four to seven lanes and 
extends for long distances. 
Minor arterials offer a balance between through traffic movement and direct access to 
abutting properties. lntersections are at-grade with traffic control and geometric design 
features that emphasize movement of traffic over access to land. This class of roadway 
tends to carry substantial traffic loads on two to five lanes and extends for significant 
distances. 
Collector arterials serve to collect and distribute traffic from and to neighborhoods and 
commercial areas and connect it to minor and major arterials. This class of road provides 
direct access to land and features more driveways and lower speeds. Traffic loads are 
ordinarily lower than on principal and minor arterials, therefore these roadways tend to 
have two lanes. 

Assisted housing: 
Owner-occupied or rental housing which is subject to restrictions on rents or sales prices as 
a result of one or more project based government subsidies. Assisted housing does not 
include holders of non-project based Section 8 Certificates. 

Glossary 

13-1 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FEIS 

Current Business 11 - 122

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 241 of 575



Available public facilities: 
Means that facilities or services that are in place or that a financial commitment is in place 
to provide the facilities or services within a specified time. In the case of transportation the 
specified time is six years from the time of development. (WAC 365-1 95-21 0) 

Best management practices: 
Physical, structural, or managerial practices which have gained general acceptance for 
their ability to prevent or reduce environmental impacts. 

B.O.D. 
Biochemical oxygen demand. A term used with regard to wastewater that indicates its 
strength or degree of pollution.. 

Buffer: 
An area contiguous with a critical area that is required for the integrity, maintenance, 
function, and stability of the critical area. 

Buildout 
The theoretical point at which all available sites have been built on or redeveloped to the 
full extent possible under this Comprehensive Plan. 

Candidate species: 
See Species classification. 

Capital facilities: 
Public structures, improvements, pieces of equipment or other major assets, including land, 
that have a useful life of at least 10 years. Capital facilities are provided by and for public 
purposes and services. 

Capital improvement: 
Land, improvements to land, structures (including design, permitting and construction), 
initial furnishings and selected equipment. 

Capital Facilities Program (CFP): 
A plan which matches the costs of capital improvements to anticipated revenues and a 
timeline. CFPs are usually prepared for six or more years, updated annually and 
coordinated with the comprehensive planning process. Also sometimes referred to as a 
Capital Improvement Program or Plan, CIP. 

Cluster development: 
A development design technique that concentrates buildings in specific areas on a site to 
allow the remaining land to be used for recreation, individual or jointly owned open space, 
and preservation of environmentally sensitive areas. 

Complete Mix (Aerated) Cells: 
Relating to wastewater treatment, the portion of the wastewater lagoons that contain 
numerous mechanical mixers and aerators that serve to accomplish initial treatment of the 
wastewater flow. 

Comprehensive plan: 
A generalized coordinated land use policy statement of the governing body of a county 
or city adopted pursuant to the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A.030). 

Concurrency: 
Means that adequate public improvements or strategies are in place at the time of 
development. For transportation improvements, concurrency means that a financial 
commitment is in place to complete the improvements or strategies within six years. (WAC 
365- 1 95-21 0) 

Glossary 

13-2 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 123

Page 242 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Conditional use: 
A land use permitted by the city zoning code in a particular zone after review by the city 
hearing examiner and the granting of a conditional use permit which imposes specific 
performance standards needed to ensure that the use will be compatible with other 
permitted uses in the vicinity. 

Conservation: 
The planned management of natural resources. 

Consistency: 
Means that no feature of a plan or regulation is incompatible with any other feature of a 
plan or regulation. (WAC 365-1 95-21 0) 

Cohousing: 
Developments in which households live in separate homes, but share such things as 
cooking and dining facilities, play areas, gardens, and workshops. 

Cottage housing: 
Planned development incorporating common open space and small homes on lots that 
are usually smaller than the underlying zoning or land use designation would indicate. 

Countywide: 
All of incorporated and unincorporated Snohomish County 

Countywide planning policies: 
Written policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which 
county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted. (RCW 36.70A.210) 

Cultural resources: 
Includes sites, structures, objects, or remains, which convey historical, architectural or 
archaeological information of local, state or national significance. On occasion, 
communities give recognition to respected elders and artists as "cultural resources" for 
their role in passing on the collective culture of the community. 

Commute Trip Reduction (CTR): 
The use of measures which reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and the proportion of 
single-occupancy vehicles (SOVs) for commuter travel, while promoting and marketing 
travel by alternative method. See also Transportation Demand Management (TDM). 

Critical areas: 
See Sensitive Areas. 

CWSP: 
Coordinated Water System Plan. It may replace the RUSA for water. The water service can 
extend past the Urban Growth Area for health and safety reasons. 

Density: 
The number of families, persons, or housing units per acre or square mile. Gross density uses 
total land without deductions for roads, sensitive areas, or public uses; that is: Gross Density 
= (families, persons, or dwelling units) + (acres or square miles). See Net Density and Density 
Calculations. 

Density Calculations: 
Calculation of density within County projects for the purpose of providing utility connection 
shall be in accordance with the City's comprehensive plan designations and density 
definitions. 

Glossary 

13-3 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 124

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 243 of 575



Development regulations: 
Any controls placed on development or land use activities by the city including, but not 
limited to zoning ordinances, subdivision ordinances, and binding site plan ordinances. 
(RCW 36.70A.030) 

Downtown portion of planning area 1: 
The downtown portion of Planning Area 1 is bounded by Grove St. on the north, Columbia 
Ave. on the east, Ebey Slough to the south, and 1-5 to the west. 

Dwelling Unit: 
An occupied or vacant house, apartment, condominium, etc ... that is intended as 
separate living quarters. See Household. 

Ecosystem: 
The complex of an ecological community and its environment functioning as a unit in 
nature. 

Effluent 
Relating to wastewater treatment, the liquid that is discharged after treatment to remove 
pollutants. 

Endangered species: 
See Species classification. 

Environmental impact statement (EIS): 
A document intended to provide impartial discussion of significant environmental impacts 
which may result from a proposed development project or programmatic action. The 
purpose of the EIS document is to provide the government decision makers with 
information to be considered prior to determining a project's acceptability. (197-1 1 WAC) 

Erosion: 
The removal and loss of soil by the action of water, ice, or wind. 

Erosion hazard areas: 
Areas containing soils which, according to the US Department of Agriculture Soil 
Conservation Service's Soil Classification System, may experience severe to very severe 
erosion. See the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Essential public facilities: 
Facilities that are typically difficult to site, such as airports, state education facilities, and 
state or regional transportation facilities, state and local correctional facilities, solid waste 
handling facilities, and in-patient facilities including substance abuse facilities, mental 
health facilities and group homes. (RCW 36.70A.200) 

Extremely low-income: 
A household whose income does not exceed thirty percent of the county median income. 

Facilities: 
The physical structure or structures in which a service is provided. 

Factory-Built housing: 
Factory-assembled parts that are transported to and assembled at the building site. The 
completed structure is not mobile and should not be considered a mobile/manufactured 
home. 

Glossary 

13-4 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 125

Page 244 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Fair housing: 
Access to housing unhindered by discrimination based on race or color, national origin, 
religion, sex, familial status, sexual orientation or handicap. 

Fair share housing: 
The concept that affordable and special needs housing should be proportionately 
distributed within the county, rather than concentrated in a few locations. An allocation 
methodology and guidelines were accepted by Snohomish County Tomorrow in January, 
1994. 

Family: 
Householder and one or more other persons living in the same household who are related 
by birth, marriage, or adoption. See Household. 

FAZ: 
Forecast Analysis Zone. Terminology used by the Puget Sound Regional Council. 

Fire flow: 
The amount of water volume delivery rate, and delivery duration needed to provide fire 
suppression. Adequate fire flows are based on industry and insurance standards. 

Fiscal impact: 
The fiscal costs and constraints of implementing policies or regulations. 

Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas: 
Areas identified as being of critical importance to the maintenance of fish, wildlife, and 
plant species, including: areas with which endangered, threatened, and sensitive species 
have a primary association; habitats and species of local importance; commercial and 
recreational shellfish area; kelp and eelgrass beds, herring and smelt spawning areas; 
naturally occurring ponds under twenty acres and their submerged aquatic beds that 
provide fish or wildlife habitat; waters of the state; lakes, ponds, streams, and rivers planted 
with game fish by a governmental or tribal entity, or private organization; state natural 
area preserves and natural re source conservation areas. (WAC 365-1 90-080) See the 
Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Floodplain: 
Land adjoining a river, stream, water course, ocean, bay or lake having a one percent 
chance of being inundated in any given year with flood waters resulting from the overflow 
of inland or tidal waters and/or the unusual and rapid accumulation of surface runoff from 
any source. 

Forest Land: 
Land primarily devoted to growing trees for long term commercial timber production on 
land that can be economically and practically managed for such production, including 
Christmas trees, subject to the excise tax imposed under RCW 84 33 100 through 84.33 140, 
and that has long term commercial significance for growing trees commercially.(RCW 
36.70A.030) 

Frequently flooded areas: 
See Floodplain. 

Frontage improvements: 
Refer to the construction, reconstruction or repair of the following facilities along the full 
abutting public street frontage of property being developed: (a) curbs, gutters and 
sidewalks; (b) underground storm drainage facilities; (c) patching the street from its 
preexisting edge to the new curb line; (d) overlayment of the existing public street to its 
centerline. 

Glossary 

13-5 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 126

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 245 of 575



Geologically hazardous areas: 
Areas that because of their susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earth quake, or other 
geological events, are not suited to the siting of commercial, residential, or industrial 
development consistent with public health and safety concerns. (RCW 36.70A.030) See 
the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Goal: 
A general condition, ideal situation or achievement that reflects societal values or broad 
public purposes. 

Green belt: 
A predominantly open area that may be cultivated or maintained in a natural state 
surrounding development or used to separate land uses. 

Gross housing costs: 
Rent and utility costs for renters and principal, interest, taxes, insurance, and homeowner's 
association fees (if applicable) for homeowners. 

Groundwater: 
All water that is  located below the surface of the land, including aquifer and permeable 
strata influenced by surface water or storm water. 

Groundwater recharge: 
The process of natural or man-made addition of water to an aquifer or permeable soil 
strata. 

Group housing: 
Group living arrangements for people with special needs such as developmental 
disabilities or mental illness. 

Growth Management Act (gma): 
Legislation passed in 1990, requiring all cities and counties in the state to plan; it calls for the 
fastest growing counties, and the cities within them, to plan extensively. See Chapter I: 
Introduction for more information. 

Hazardous waste: 
All dangerous and extremely hazardous waste, including substances composed of both 
radioactive and hazardous components. 

High capacity transit: 
Any transit technology that operates on separate right-of-way and functions to move large 
numbers of passengers at high speeds, such as busways, light rail, and commuter rail. 

High occupancy vehicle (HOV): 
A vehicle containing more than a single occupant such as an automobile with several 
passengers (carpool), a bus, vanpool, or a train. An HOV lane is a road lane dedicated for 
use of HOVs and transit vehicles only. 

Home occupation: 
Any activity carried out for gain by a resident, conducted as an accessory use in the 
resident's dwelling unit. 

Household: 
A household is a dwelling unit occupied by one or more persons. The occupants may be 
an individual, a family, or any group of related or unrelated persons who share living 
arrangements. See Dwelling Unit and Family. 

Glossary 

13-6 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 127

Page 246 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Housing need: 
Exists when a household whose income is less than 95 percent of county median household 
income and pays more than 30 percent of its gross income for gross housing costs. 

Housing Stock: 
A phrase referring to the supply of all types of housing in an area. 

HOV: 
High Occupancy Vehicle, such as bus, train, light rail, vans, and carpools. 

Hydroponic farming: 
Growing plants in nutrient solutions. 

Impact Fee: 
Charges levied by the city against new developments for a pro-rata share of the capital 
costs of facilities necessitated by the development. The Growth Management Act 
authorizes imposition of impact fees on new development and sets the conditions under 
which they may be imposed. They may only be applied to public streets and roads; 
publicly owned parks, open space, and recreation facilities; school facilities; and fire 
protection facilities in jurisdictions that are not part of a fire district. 

Implementation measure: 
Regulatory and non regulatory measures used to carry out the plan. 

Infill: 
Development of housing or other buildings on vacant sites in otherwise developed areas. 

Infrastructure: 
Facilities and services needed to sustain the functioning of an urban area, such as streets, 
transportation improvements, water, sewer, parks, schools, emergency services, and 
government. 

Joint use: 
Two or more parcels/developments share entrances from the street as well as parking 
areas. Entrances and parking areas are coordinated and combined, so that every parcel 
or business does not have a separate entrance or parking lot. This reduces the number of 
curb cuts, eases traffic flow along busy streets, and may reduce the area needed for 
parking. 

Land assembly: 
The combining of two or more adjoining lots into one large tract, usually done to allow 
construction of larger buildings than could otherwise have been built on the individual 
smaller lots. 

Land Capacity Analysis: 
A study of how land is currently being used within the community, and the capacity for 
accommodating future uses. The analysis determines how much vacant land, 
underutilized land, and sensitive areas there are as well as cataloging the types, extent, 
distribution, and intensity of the uses or activities found on parcels of land or in spaces 
within a building. 

Landslide hazard areas: 
Areas potentially subject to risk of mass movement due to a combination of geologic, 
topographic, and hydrologic factors. See the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Leap frog development: 
New urban development sited away from the existing urban area, bypassing vacant 
parcels that are suitable for development, and that are located in or closer to the urban 
area. 

Glossary 

13-7 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 128

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 247 of 575



Level of service (10s): 
A measure of public service or capital facility supply that frequently relates to a unit of 
public demand and is used to establish needs or targets for facility planning purposes 
(example: 1 courtroom per 25,000 population). Level of Service can vary between urban 
and rural areas 

Liquefaction: 
The act or process of liquefying, particularly soils taking on the characteristics of liquids due 
to seismic shaking. 

Local improvement district: 
A quasi-governmental organization formed by landowners to finance and construct a 
variety of physical infrastructure improvements beneficial to the landowners. 

Local road: 
A class of roadway with the primary function of providing access to abutting properties. 
Traffic control is usually limited with slow speeds and numerous driveways. This roadway 
class typically carries low traffic loads and usually has one or two paved or gravel lanes. 

Long-term commercial significance: 
Includes the growing capacity, productivity, and soil composition of the land for long-term 
commercial production, in consideration with the land's proximity to population areas, and 
the possibility of more intense uses of the land. (RCW 36.70A.030) 

Lot size averaging: 
A design technique which allows one or more lots in a residential subdivision to be 
undersized by a specified percentage or to a minimum lot size, provided that the overall 
density permitted by the minimum zoning is not exceeded. 

Low-income: 
A household whose income is between 50 percent and 80 percent of the county median 
Income. 

Median income: 
The income level that divides the income distribution into two equal parts, one having 
incomes above the median and the other having incomes below the median. For 
households and families, the median income is based on the distribution of the total 
number of units including those with no income. 

Middle income: 
A household whose income is between 96% and 120% of the county median in come. 

Mobile/Manufactured Home: 
A residential unit on one or more chassis for towing to the point of use and designed to be 
used with a permanent foundation as a dwelling unit on a year round basis. A recreational 
vehicle or motor home is not a mobile manufactured home. 

Moderate income: 
A household whose income is between 81 percent and 95 percent of the county median 
income. 

Multi-modal: 
Two or more modes or methods of transportation. Examples of transportation modes 
include bicycling, driving an automobile, walking, bus transit or rail. 

Native growth protection areas: 
Areas to be left in a substantially natural state, where clearing, grading, filling, building 
construction or placement, or road construction may not occur. Some fencing, 
construction and vegetation removal may be permitted. 

Glossary 

13-8 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 129

Page 248 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Natural resource: 
Naturally occurring components of the earth's surface, such as timber, soils, water, or a 
mineral deposit, which have potential for human use and enjoyment. 

Natural Resource Lands: 
Lands useful for agriculture, forestry, or mineral extraction or lands which have long-term 
commercial significance for these land uses. 

Net density: 
The net project area divided by the number of dwelling units. 

Net Project Area: 
Refers to the gross project area minus floodplains, utility easements cumulatively 30 feet 
wide or greater, publicly owned community facility land and right-of-way, stormwater 
detention facility tracts or easements, private roads or access easements, panhandles, 
and critical areas and buffers that are not eligible for density transfer in accordance with 
the Marysville Municipal Code. 

No Burn Zone: 
Areas officially designated by the Puget Sound Air Pollution Control Agency where outdoor 
burning is prohibited. 

Non-point source pollution: 
Pollution that cannot be traced to specific discharge points, including road runoff, 
agricultural runoff and disposal of household chemicals. 

Objective: 
A desired result of public action that is specific, measurable, and leads to the achievement 
of a goal. 

OFM: 
Office of Financial Management. Responsible for population projections. 

Open space corridor: 
A linear land use plan overlay or that may contain various types of uses that are 
characterized in the aggregate by the pre-eminence of natural or man-altered landscape 
features and a minimal amount of man-made building and other above-grade structures. 

Overlay: 
There are three types of overlay in the City of Marysville: Small Farms, Waterfront, and 
Mixed Use over General Commercial. 

Small Farms 
This overlay is for existing small farm lands. Because it is an existing use, it is applied 
through an administrative review process with public notification, and is  applied for by 
the property owner. Its purpose is to provide official recognition of the agricultural use 
and to require additional setbacks in adjacent development. It is available to any 
property that is undeveloped, except for a single family home and supporting accessory 
structures, in a residential zone. At the time that the Small Farm use is no longer desired 
and the property developed, the overlay shall be removed through notification of the 
City, and the property will revert to the underlying zoning. (See Small Farm, under 
Residential Land Uses, Chapter V.) 
Waterfront 
This overlay district is located along Ebey Slough adjacent to downtown, in Planning Area 
1 .  It is  identified on the land use maps by a dashed line. The waterfront overlay permits a 
wider range of uses than is  currently permitted in that area. It is applied for by the 
property owner; it is reviewed through the hearing examiner process, based on criteria 
established in the zoning code. 

Glossary 

13-9 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 130

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 249 of 575



Mixed Use over General Commercial 
The mixed use overlay district is located in Planning Area 1, along Interstate 5 between 
5th and 72nd Streets, Ash and Beach Avenues. It is identified on the land use maps by a 
dashed line. The mixed use overlay permits a wider range of uses than is currently 
permitted in that area. It is applied for by the property owner; it is reviewed through the 
hearing examiner process, based on criteria established in the zoning code. 

Parcel: 
A continuous quantity of land, in single ownership or under single control, and usually 
considered a unit for the purposes of development. 

Park-and-ride: 
A system in which commuters individually drive to a common location, park their vehicles, 
and continue travel to their final destination via public transit or carpool. 

Peak period traffic: 
The higher than average portion of daily vehicular traffic that occurs during distinct times 
of day. Peaks in daily traffic volumes usually occur during the morning (6:30-9:30 a.m.) and 
evening (3:30-6:30 p.m.) commuter periods. The one hour peaks during these three hour 
periods are referred to as a.m. or p.m. peak hour traffic. 

Pedestrian friendly development: 
Development designs that encourage walking by providing site amenities for pedestrians. 
Pedestrian friendly environments reduce auto dependence and may encourage the use 
of public transportation. 

Pensione: 
A small European style hotel that usually offers breakfast as part of the room cost. 

Planned residential development (PRD): 
A design technique which allows a land area to be planned and developed as a single 
entity containing one or more residential clusters or complexes which can include a wide 
range of compatible housing types. Appropriate small scale commercial, public or quasi- 
public uses may be included if such uses are primarily for the benefit of the residential 
development and the surrounding community. A residential density bonus is allowed in ' 

exchange for dedication of a minimum amount of passive and active open space for the 
use and enjoyment of the development's residents. 

Policy: 
Action-oriented procedure, activity or decision-making that defines the process by which 
an objective is achieved. 

Point source pollution: 
Pollution that can be traced to a specific discharge source. 

Portable Classrooms: 
Manufactured modular structures that are self-contained (though without rest rooms) and 
relocatable. They are used within a school site as interim classrooms to house students until 
funding can be secured to construct permanent classroom facilities or to accommodate 
fluctuations in the student population. 

Potable water: 
Water suitable for drinking. 

Primary corridor: 
Principal arterial roadways that serve designated centers and have design features to 
accommodate several modes of travel (i.e., transit, auto, bicycle and pedestrian). These 

Glossary 

13-10 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 131

Page 250 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



design features may include high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes, bus pullouts, walkways, 
bikeways, and signal priority for HOVs, carpools, vanpools and buses. 

Priority species: 
Wildlife species of concern to the state Department of Wildlife due to their population 
status and their sensitivity to habitat alteration. Priority species include those which are 
listed, or are candidates for listing, by the state as endangered, threatened or sensitive. 
Uncommon species, including monitored species and some game and non game species, 
that are considered to be vulnerable to habitat loss or change or to urbanizing influences 
are also identified as priority. Priority species lists and maps are maintained by the state 
Department of Wildlife. See the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

PSRC: 
Puget Sound Regional Council, formerly the Puget Sound Council of Governments. 

Public facilities: 
lncludes streets, roads, highways, sidewalks, street and road lighting systems, traffic signals, 
domestic water systems, storm and sanitary sewer systems, parks and recreational facilities, 
and schools. (RCW 36.70A.030) See Utilities. 

Public services: 
Includes fire protection and suppression, law enforcement, public health, education, 
recreation, environmental protection, and other governmental services. (RCW 36.70A.030) 

Public water system: 
Any system of water supply intended or used for human consumption or other domestic 
uses, including source, treatment, storage, transmission, and distribution facilities where 
water is being furnished to any community, collection, or number of individuals, but 
excluding a water system serving one single family residence. 

Purchase of development rights (PDR): 
The one time purchase of the right to develop resource lands for non-resource purposes. 
PDR is implemented through a deed restriction. 

Ranney collection well: 
A groundwater collection structure that consists of a series of horizontal perforated pipes 
extending radially from a central pumping structure. 

Regional service: 
A governmental service established by agreement among local governments that 
delineates the government entity or entities responsible for the service provision and allows 
for that delivery to extend over jurisdictional boundaries. 

Residential Density Incentives (RDI): 

A zoning tool to provide density incentives to developers of residential lands in exchange 
for public benefits to help achieve comprehensive plan goals of creation of quality places 
and livable neighborhoods, affordable housing, open space protection, historic 
preservation, energy conservation, and environmentally responsible design. 

Regional significance: 
This term describes growth planning issues and impacts which extend beyond the 
boundaries of an individual municipal government and require coordinated multi- 
jurisdictional supported planning solutions 

Resource lands: 
Forest, agricultural, or mineral lands that have long-term commercial significance. 

Glossary 

13-11 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 132

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 251 of 575



Ridesharing: 
Any type of travel where more than one rider occupies or "shares" the same vehicle, such 
as a carpool, vanpool, or transit vehicle. 

Right-of-way: 
Land owned by a government or an easement over the land of another, used for roads, 
ditches, electrical transmission lines, pipelines, or public facilities. 

Riparian: 
Means of, or pertaining to, the banks of rivers, streams, or lakes. 

Rural cluster subdivision: 
A form of development for single-family residential subdivisions in the rural portions of the 
county that permits a substantial reduction in lot area and bulk requirements, provided 
that the remaining undeveloped areas are devoted to open space for the purpose of 
preserving resource lands and environmentally sensitive features. A residential density 
bonus is allowed in exchange for dedication of additional open space area. 

Rural infrastructure: 
Facilities and services needed to sustain permanent settlement of rural land 

Rural land: 
All land located outside of UGAs and not designated as agricultural or forest lands of long- 
term commercial significance with existing or planned rural services and facilities such a 
domestic water systems (generally systems without fire flow), rural fire and police protection 
services and transit services along major arterial routes. New rural residential developments 
have a maximum net density of 1 dwelling unit per 2.3 acres. Maximum densities are lower 
in specific plan designations. 

RUSA: 
Rural Utility Service Area. Established in 1982, it is the boundary within which the City would 
provide water and sewer services. It may, for water, be replaced by the CWSP, 
Coordinated Water System Plan. See CWSP. Sewer service will be provided within the City 
of Marysville's Urban Growth Area. 

Sanitary sewer: 
Those sewers which carry water-borne wastes from household, industrial and commercial 
users from the point of origin to the treatment plants for treatment and disposal. 

Scenic resources: 
Features of the natural and man-made environment, and their associated viewpoints and 
sightlines that are or could be especially prominent and visually accessible to the general 
public. Such features may include selected forested areas, water bodies and shorelines, 
mountains and hill-side, wetlands or other wildlife habitat areas, pastoral settings, man- 
made structures, geological features, or other elements of the visual environment that 
enjoy prominence by virtue of special characteristics and/or location. 

Seismic hazard areas: 
Areas subject to severe risk of damage as a result of earthquake failure, settlement, or soil 
liquefaction. See the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Sensitive areas: 
Includes the following areas and ecosystems: wetlands; areas with critical recharging 
effect on aquifers used for potable water; fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas; 
frequently flooded areas; and geologically hazardous areas. Also known as critical areas. 
(RCW 36.70A.030) See Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Glossary 

13-12 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FEIS 

Current Business 11 - 133

Page 252 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Sensitive Areas Ordinance: 
A separate ordinance governing the uses and protection of sensitive areas. 

Sensitive species: 
See Species classification. 

Shadow Platting: 
In Snohomish County when lands outside of, but adjacent or close to, the Urban Growth 
Area are developed as rural land, a shadow plat is required. The shadow plat shows how 
its proposed development will permit urban density redevelopment, when and if the 
property is brought inside the Urban Growth Area in the future. 

Shoreline management master program: 
A comprehensive management program prepared by the county consisting, of goals, 
policies and regulations and used for review of permit applications for development along 
shorelines. 

Significant Vegetation: 
Significant vegetation occurs in three types of situations: 

Near or within environmentally sensitive areas where the vegetation is necessary to 
protect the sensitive area. For example, at the top or along the slope of a steep hill, or in 
a wetland. 
Vegetation containing significant plants, usually trees, based on size, species, etc .... A 
significant tree means any evergreen tree of eight inches in diameter or greater and any 
deciduous tree, other than red alder, willow, poplar, and cottonwood trees, ten inches in 
diameter or greater, measured one foot above the root crown. 
A significant cluster of plants (trees or shrubs) important to the visual character of an 
area. These might be at the top of a ridge or hill, along a roadway, along a creek, in a 
valley viewed from above, . ... 

slope 
The angle of a hillside. It is measured by percentage with a 100% slope representing a 45" 
angle (rise equals run) and 0% equals flat land. 

Small Farms: 
An overlay for small farm lands within the Urban Growth Area. See Overlay; see Chapter V, 
Residential. 

Snohomish County Tomorrow (sct): 
A joint planning process of the county, its cities and towns, and the Tulalip Tribes to guide 
effective growth management and to meet the requirements of the GMA for coordination 
and consistency among local comprehensive plans. 

Solid waste: 
A general term for discarded materials destined for disposal, but not discharged to a sewer 
or to the atmosphere. 

sov: 
Single Occupancy Vehicle. A passenger car with only one occupant 

Special needs housing: 
Affordable housing for persons that require special assistance or supportive care to subsist 
or achieve independent living, including but not limited to persons that are frail elderly, 
developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, physically handicapped, homeless, 
persons participating in substance abuse programs, persons with AIDS, and youth at risk. 

Glossary 

13-1 3 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 134

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 253 of 575



Specialty agriculture: 
Include uses such as specialty animal, vegetable and fruit farms, nursery and turf 
operations, greenhouse and hydroponic farming and related farm product processing, 
retail, and equipment repair in Upland Commercial Farmlands. 

Species classification: 
State listed species defined below are all native to the state of Washington. See, the 
Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Endangered: A species that is seriously threatened with extermination throughout all or a 
significant portion of its range within the state. Legally designated in WAC 232-1 2-01 4. 
Threatened: A species that is likely to become endangered in the foreseeable future 
throughout a significant portion of its range within the state without cooperative 
management or the removal of threats. Legally designated in WAC 232-1 2-001. 
Sensitive: A species that is vulnerable or declining and is likely to become endangered or 
threatened in a significant portion of its range within the state without cooperative 
management or the removal of threats. Legally designated in WAC 232-14-01 1. 
Candidate: These species are under review by the state department of wildlife for 
possible listing as endangered, threatened or sensitive. A species will be considered for 
state candidate designation if sufficient scientific evidence suggests that its status may 
meet the criteria for endangered, threatened or sensitive in WAC 232-1 2-297. They are 
listed in WDW Policy 4802. 
Monitor: State monitor species will be managed by the department of wildlife, as needed 
to prevent them from becoming endangered, threatened or sensitive. 

sprawl 
Scattered, poorly planned development that occurs particularly in urban fringe and rural 
areas. Urban sprawl typically manifests itself in one or more of the following patterns: leap 
frog development, strip development, and large expanses of low-density, single-family 
dwelling development. Low density development is defined as two units per acre to one 
unit per ten acres. (See Leap frog development, Strip development.) 

Sq. Ft.: 
Square Feet. It is a measurement of area. An acre contains 43,560 square feet 

Stormwater: 
Water that is generated by rainfall and is often routed into drain systems in order to prevent 
flooding. 

Strip commercial: 
An automobile oriented linear commercial development pattern on a major arterial with 
high volume traffic generating uses, vehicular entrances for each use, a visually cluttered 
appearance, and no internal pedestrian circulation system 

Study area: 
It is the area that was analyzed for this Comprehensive Plan. It is larger than the Urban 
Growth Area, and so encompasses rural and resource lands. Studying a larger area is 
necessary to appropriately determine the Urban Growth Area (UGA), include the City's 
sphere of influence and RUSA, and consider uses for lands that are outside the UGA. 
Studying lands outside the UGA provides the basis for interlocal agreements with the 
County and for preserving lands for future inclusion in the UGA. 

Surface waters: 
Streams, rivers, ponds, lakes or other waters designated as "waters of the state" by the 
Washington Department of Natural Resources in WAC 222-1 6-030. 

Glossary 

13-1 4 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 135

Page 254 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Sweat Equity Housing: 
A future owner's labor on improvements that increase the value of his future property. This 
is in lieu of a down payment or other financial commitment as determined by the 
sponsoring organization. 

Taking: 
The appropriation by government of private land for which compensation must be paid. 

TAZ: 
Transportation Analysis Zone. Used in the prediction of growth for traffic, as well as possibly 
dwelling units, population, and jobs. 

Threatened species: 
See Species classification. 

Transfer of development rights (TDR): 
Transfer of the potential right to develop, expressed in dwelling units per acre, from land in 
resource or environmentally sensitive area designations to land in an urban area where 
such density or development is permitted. 

Transit centers: 
Focal points for transit services which may allow connections with other routes. 

Transportation centers: 
Facilities providing connections between various modes of travel, particularly transit, 
serving different origins/destinations or routes. Examples of transportation centers are the 
current ferry terminals, Everett's proposed down town transit center or high-capacity transit 
stations along 1-5. 

Transportation demand management strategies (TDM): 
Strategies aimed at changing travel behavior rather than expanding the transportation net 
work to meet travel demand. Such strategies can include the promotion of work hour 
changes, ridesharing options, parking policies, and telecommuting. 

Upper income: 
A household whose income is greater than 120% of the county median income. 

Urban governmental services: 
Those governmental services historically and typically delivered by cities include the storm 
and sanitary sewer systems, domestic water systems, street cleaning services, fire and 
police protection services, public transit services, and other public utilities associated with 
urban areas and normally not associated with rural areas. 

Urban growth: 
Growth that makes intensive use of land for the location of buildings, structures, and 
impermeable surfaces to such a degree as to be incompatible with the primary use of 
such land for the production of food, other agricultural products or fiber, or the extraction 
of mineral resources. When allowed to spread over wide areas, urban growth typically 
requires urban governmental services. "Characterized by urban growth" refers to land 
having urban growth located on it, or to land located in relationship to an area with urban 
growth on it as to be appropriate for urban growth. (RCW 36.70A.030) 

Urban Growth Areas (UGAs): 
Areas designated by the county after consultation with cities, where urban growth will be 
encouraged and supported by public facilities and services. The urban growth areas 
include areas and densities sufficient to permit the urban growth that is projected to occur 
in the county for a 20 year period. Urban growth refers to growth that makes intensive use 
of land for the location of buildings, structures, and impermeable surfaces to such a 

Glossary 

13-1 5 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 136

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 255 of 575



degree as to be incompatible with the primary use of such land for the protection of food, 
other agricultural products or fiber, or the extraction of mineral resources. 

Urban growth boundaries: 
The boundary or line marking the limit between the UGAs and rural or resource land areas. 

Urban land: 
All land located within UGAs such as residential and employment land; land for public 
facilities and utilities; and critical areas, open space and greenbelts with existing or 
planned urban services and facilities such as storm and sanitary sewer systems, domestic 
water systems, street cleaning services, fire and police protection services, and public 
transit services. 

Urban reserve area: 
An area outside of and adjacent to an urban growth area that may have potential for 
future as an urban growth area. 

Utilities: 
Enterprises or facilities serving the public by means of an integrated system of collection, 
transmission, distribution, and processing facilities through more or less permanent physical 
connections between the plant of the serving entity and the premises of the customer. The 
Growth Management Act limits utilities to electricity, gas, telecommunications, and cable 
TV. See Public Facilities. 

Very low-income: 
A household whose income does not exceed 50% of the county median income. 

Watershed: 
The region drained by or contributing water to a stream, lake or other body of water. 

Wetland: 
Areas that are inundated or saturated by surface water or ground water at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a 
prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands 
generally include swamps, bogs, marshes, and similar areas. Wetlands do not include those 
artificial wetlands intentionally created from non-wetland sites, including, but not limited to 
irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention facilities, wastewater 
treatment facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities. However, wetlands may include 
those artificial wet lands intentionally created from non-wetland areas created to mitigate 
conversion of wetlands, if permitted by the city. (WAC 365-1 95-200) See the Sensitive 
Areas Ordinance. 

Wildlife habitat: 
Predominantly undisturbed areas of natural vegetation and/or aquatic system used by, 
and necessary for the survival of wildlife. See the Sensitive Areas Ordinance. 

Zero lot line: 
Subdivision technique that allows for the placement of a structure on the side yard 
property line. 

Zipper Lot 
In this lotting approach, the rear lot line jogs back and forth to vary the depth of the rear 
yard and to concentrate usable open space on the side of the lot. The other side of the lot 
is shallow and is located against the blank wall of an adjacent house. 

Zoning: 
The process by which the city legally controls the use of property and physical 
configuration of development upon tracts of land within its jurisdiction. Zoning is an exercise 

Glossary 

13-1 6 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 137

Page 256 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



of the police power and must be enacted for the protection of public health, safety, and 
welfare. 

Glossary 

13-17 
Marysville Integrated Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and FElS 

Current Business 11 - 138

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 257 of 575



East Sunnysidelwhiskey Ridge 
Key Master Plan Concepts 

I I 

l l l l l t l l  Proposed Trails c 1 Master Plan Area ,-.-* 
Poposed Arterials L.,) Marysville City Limits 

KEY CONCEPTS 

1. Ensure adequate public facilities are planned to 
serve the area. These facihties include: 

a. Southeast Marysville Fire Station 

b. Lake Stevens School District new 
elementary school 

c. Neighborhood Parks -1-2 (1.5-5 acres) 

d. Community Park - 1 [lo+ acres) 

e. Community Open Space - 1 [ 10+ acres) 

f. Trails - Whiskey Ridge Trail and 
extensions through neighborhoods 

2. Require that transportation impacts to this area 
are addressed through impact fees. Establish a 
secondary impact fee to supporl unfunded road 
projects needed for development within the 
master plan area. 

3. Provide for commercial uses along Highway 9. 
These uses while visible from Highway 9, should 
provide a community orientation with four-sided 
architecture. Sites and buildings should be 
attractive from Highway 9. as well as adjoining 
public streets such as 87'" Avenue NE and internal 
parking access. 

4. Commercial uses at Highway 9 should provide for 
opporlunities and building orientation towards 
surrounding neighborhoods. While visibility from 
Highway 9 may be important, the primary vehicle 
access and orientation should be from 
sunounding neighborhoods. 

5. Collector and minor arterials should provide 
substantial landscaping in keeping with the 
arterial streelscape plans for each arterial. 

6. A connection to Highway 9 at SR 92 should be 
provided to provide east-west connectivity 
between Sunnyside Boulevard and Hwy 9. 

7. The planned SR92 connection should be 
constructed as a boulevard, with substantial 
landscaping and streetscape improvements 
between SR 9 and 87'Wvenue NE. 

8. Densmore Road should be considered for a 
modified road standard with wide multi-use trail 
for connection to the planned Whiskey Ridge trail 
to provide pedestrian and bicycle connectivity 
through Marysville, and promote pedestrian 
activity from the residential neighborhoods to the 
commercial center. 

9. Plan Mixed use areas along Highway 9 adjacent 
to the commercial center. 

10. Develop design standards and guidelines to 
upgrade the quality of neighborhoods. 

, 1 1 .  Promote development of attractive streets by 
I requiring consistent fencing, walls and 

landscaping along arfenal street frontage. 

12. Promote development of attractive streets by 
requiring stormwater systems along arterial streets 
to be natural pond systems, underground vaults. 
or set back with additional landscaping to screen 
visibility from roadways. 

13. Provide for flex~ble zoning that allows for a mix of 
single family and multi-family uses within residential 
zones. 

14. Use incentive zoning as a tool to encourage 
higher quality higher density development and 
physical improvements to the neighborhood. 

15. Residential uses along Highway 9 will be 
protected from impacts of highway noise, visibility 
and future widening by construction of a 
decorative concrete wall. 

16. Power lines along artenal streefscape streets will 
be relocated underground to provide a clean 
visual line along the right of way frontage. 

17. Create a gateway at Hwy 92 and SR 9 and at 
Soper Hill Road and SR9. 

Proposed Bicycle EDDS 06 East Sunnyside Neighborhood 

0 Proposed Multi-uses EDDS 06 

Current Business 11 - 139

Page 258 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



EAST SUNNYSIDE-WHISKEY RIDGE 
MASTER PLAN 

City of Marysville 
Community Development Department 

October 2006 

Draft Date 1011 2106 

Page 1 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 140

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 259 of 575



A - - ,  2rq 
~ a r v s v i  lle 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-821 1 (360) 651 -5099 FAX 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 12,2006 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 

RE: Whisliey %dge hlaster Plan - Preliminary 
Draft document 

Attached please find a preliminan draft of the 1Vhiskey Ridge hIaster Plan. [Ye are currently 
developing additional charts, graphics and standards for inclusion within the plan. Road and 
streetscape standards for the arterials will be included fur reference within the master plan. We are 
also calculating traffic k e s  €or the area. I anticipate successir-e drafts in upcoming weelis - so 
formatting and numbering of tables & figures will also be corrected. This section is designed to 
replace the current Planning area 4 section within the RIar).sville Comprehensive Plan so will need to 
be renumbered accordingly. Thank )YIU. Call if you have any questions. 

Current Business 11 - 141

Page 260 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



PLANNING AREA #4: EAST SUNNYSIDE/WHISKEY RIDGE NEIGHBORHOOD 
This neighborhood is the southeasterly corner of Marysville. It is bounded by Soper Hill 
Road on the south, Highway 9 on the east, 64th Street NEISR 528 on the north, 67'h 
Avenue NE and 75h Avenue NE on the west, and 52nd Street NE. The East Sunnyside 
neighborhood is a beautiful area of westward views, steep hillsides, ravines, and woods. 

A special study area has been designated within this neighborhood called the East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge master plan. The master plan follows the general planning 
area discussion for this neighborhood. 

1. Land Uses 

The East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood includes approximately 1822 acres. 

a. Residential 
High density single family, permitting duplexes outright, is in a north-south swath as well 
as the central area. Medium density single family residential is located in the 
southeastern, southwestern, and northwestern portions since these areas have more 
topographic features making them difficult to serve with utilities. 

b. Commercial 
A potential Neighborhood Commercial location is at the intersection of 44th Street NE 
and 71st Avenue NE. Commercial and mixed use land uses are identified in the master 
plan area along Hwy 9, from the SR 92 connection south to Soper Hill Road. 

Table 4-25 details the land use distribution for this neighborhood, prior to addition of the 
master plan area to the UGA. Following selection of final alternative for the master plan, 
this section will be updated. 

Table 4-25 East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Neighborhood land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 
- - 

Land Use Designation CB M F M  S F H  SFH-SL S F M  Rec Pub Total 

Gross Buildable Acres 65.9 52.4 1277.9 0 
- -. 

1 10.9 30.3 47.9 1585.3 -- 
Builable Acres 58.4 47.7 1098 0 

- 
107.4 22.9 37.9 1372.3 

Existing DU's 2 14 678 0 208 1 0 9 10 
- -- -- 

Existing Pop. 0 0 0 1705 641 3 0 2349 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 34 
-.- - - - -- 

Additional DU's 0 41 9 2838 0 108 0 0 3365 - 
Additional Pop. 0 838 8230 0 313 0 0 938 1 

Additional Employees 699 0 0 0 0 0 0 699 

Total DU's 9 433 3516 0 31 6 1 0 4275 --- 
Total Population 0 838 8230 1705 954 3 0 1 1730 -- 
Total Employees 699 0 0 0 34 0 0 733 - 

Draft Date 1011 2/06 
Page 2 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 142

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 261 of 575



II. Housing 8, Employment Analysis 

Table 4-26 identifies existing and planned dwelling units, population, and employment 
for 2005 and 2025. Figure 4-55 shows the general land use distribution for this 
neighborhood prior to addition of the master plan area to the UGA. Following selection 
of final alternative for the master plan, this section will be updated. 

Table 4-26 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

Dwelling Units 910 -- .. - 4275 
Population Estimate 2349 1 1 730:: 
Employment Estimate 34 733 

East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Neighborhood 
Land Use 

Commercial 
Mul ti-Family r m  

Single-Family 
93% 

Figure 4-55 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood Land Use 

Ill. Transportation 

a. Street Inventory 
Streets and classifications providing access and circulation within the planning area 
and to surrounding neighborhoods and communities are listed in Table 4-27. 

Table 4-27 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood Streets and Classifications 

Street Classification Description/Comment 
64Ih Street/SR 528 (connecting Interstate 5 and Highway 9) Principal Arterial Arterial Streetscape 

SR 9 (north-south state route) Principal Arterial Arterial Streetscape 

SR 92 (East-west connector to Granite Falls) Principal Arterial Arterial Streetscape 
87Ih Avenue to SR 9 - .. .- - -- . - - - -- - 

Draft Date 10112106 
Page 3 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 143

Page 262 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Sunnyside Blvd. (connecting downtown to Soper Hill Road) Minor Arterial Arterial streetscape 

Soper Hill Road (connecting Sunnyside Blvd. and Hwy. 9) Minor Arterial Arterial streetscape 

83rd Avenue NE (connecting Soper Hill Road to potentially Minor Arterial Arterial Streetscape 

1 08Ih Street NE) 

44th Street(connecting 67lh Ave NE and 87th Avenue NE) Collector Arterial Arterial streetscape 

40th Street (connecting Sunnyside to 87th Avenue NE.) Collector Arterial Arterial Streetscape 

71'' Avenue NE (connecting 44lh Street NE and Soper Hill Collector Arterial 
Road) 
87th Avenue NE (connecting SR 528 to Soper Hill Road) Collector Arterial Arterial Streetscape 

Densmore Road (connecting Sunnyside School Road to Collector Arterial Arterial Streetscape 
Soper Hill Road) Standard modified for 

multi-use trail 
-- .- -. . - - - - - - -. - -- - - - -- 

The appropriate standard for classified roads is included for reference and 
information in Appendix A of the Whiskey Ridge master plan, however it should 
be noted that this standard can be revised through the Engineering Design and 
Development Standards (EDDS) amendment procedure through subsequent 
action by the City. 

b. Transportation Needs within the Neighborhood 
Projects listed here are ident i f ied transportat ion needs within the subarea. Project 
descriptions, need, cost, fund ing and timing are identified in the Table 4-28. 

Table 4-28 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Projects 

improvement Description Timing & Need Estimated Cost or 
Proponent if not City of 
Marysvllle project 

SR 528 (831d Avenue to Widen to 5 lanes with an Capacity WSDOT 
HwY 9) exclusive bicycle lane. Developer Frontage 

67Ih Avenue (40th St NE Dedicate additional 
to 881h St NE) right of way and 

Construct 8 foot 
shoulders lacking curb, 
gutter and sidewalk 

Sunnyside Blvd. (52nd Widen to 3 lanes with an 
Avenue NE to South exclusive bicycle lane. 
City limits) 

SR 92 connection (87Ih Dedicate right of way 
Avenue to SR 9) and construct 5 lanes 

1,mprovements. . 

Recommended 20 $300,000-6 year plan, 
year improvements funding anticipated within 

6 years from 
transportation revenues. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Recommended 6 $3,700,000 - 6 year plan, 
year improvements funding anticipated within 

6 years from 
-. transportation revenues. , , 

Identified in Whiskey $2,000,000 - City & 
Ridge Master Plan for Developer Frontage 
area circulation Improvements 

Draft Date 1011 2106 
Page 4 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 144

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 263 of 575



. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - . . . . .  . .  

44th Streetjconnecting Dedicate right bf way Identified in Whiskey $3,700,000 City & 
67th Ave NE and 87th and construct to Ridge Master Plan for Developer Frontage 
Avenue NE) standard area circulation Improvements 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  

40th Street (connecting Dedicate right of way Identified in Whiskey $10,600,000 City & 
Sunnyside to 87th and construct to Ridge Master Plan for Developer Frontage 
Avenue NE. standard area circulation Improvements 

71 st Avenue NE Construct to standard Identified in Whiskey Developer Frontage 
(connecting 44th Street Ridge Master Plan for Improvements 
NE and Soper Hill Road) area circulation 
83rd Avenue NE Dedicate additional Identified in Whiskey Developer Frontage - - 

(connecting Soper Hill right of way and Ridge Master Plan for Improvements 
Road to ~otentially Construct to standard area circulation 
108th street NE) , , 

87th Avenue NE Dedicate right of way Identified in Whiskey Developer Frontage 
(connecting SR 528 to and construct to Ridge Master Plan for Improvements 
Soper Hill Road) standard -- area circulation 
Densmore Road Construct to standard Identified in Whiskey $1.000.000 City & 
(connecting Sunnyside 
School Road to Soper 

Ridge Master Plan for Developer Frontage 
area circulation Improvements 

Hill Road) - 

c. Existing Public Transportation Facilities and Services 

There are no transit services within this neighborhood. 

d. Transportation Strategies and Issues 
TI-~ns~ortation Proiects 

A number of the projects listed above are unfunded. As a result, it will be especially 
important to work with property owners, citizens and outside agencies to explore 
opportunities for project financing. In many cases, along existing arterial right of way, 
developer frontage improvements will accomplish widening and construction of a full 
urban street standard. In other cases, a road improvement district (RID) may provide a 
mechanism for moving the projects forward. The master plan strategies for East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge also include recommendations for use of residential density 
incentives and creditable improvements (toward impact fees) to accomplish needed 
but unfunded projects within the immediate neighborhood. 

Sunnyside Boulevard has become a major thoroughfare for vehicles traveling to 
Interstate 5 and Everett as well as Highway 2 and Lake Stevens. Design for Sunnyside 
Boulevard, Third Street to 52"d Street NE, was moved to the 6 year transportation 
improvement program project list in 2006 as high growth within the subarea has 
increased traffic and urgency to construct an additional lane and a bike path for bike 
and pedestrian travel. Installation of the signal at 52"d Street NE & Sunnyside Boulevard 
(listed in Sunnyside Projects, Table 4-25) is a key priority for this area, as the intersection is 
currently below the accepted level of service. 

Draft Date 1011 2/06 

Page 5 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 145

Page 264 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



The growth in Sunnyside is occurring at much higher rates here than in other parts of the 
city. Currently the minor and collector arterial system is developed to rural standards 
with site specific developer improvements along development frontage. This leaves 
many unimproved and discontinuous sections along major roads. Growth must be 
accompanied by improvements to these rural roads to provide urban level street, 
stormwater and sidewalk improvements. Increases in residential densities should only 
be proposed if transportation facilities can be enhanced by concurrent passage of an 
RID, impact fee assessments or other mechanisms to fund needed road improvements. 
The transportation element identified key transportation connections that must be 
provided with new development. It is essential that these connections occur with new 
development. 

Non-motorized Svstem Im~rovements 

1)  Sunnyside Boulevard/Soper Hill Road Bike Lanes. Bike lanes are proposed on 
Sunnyside Boulevard to Soper Hill Road. This will provide a bicycle access route 
between Marysville and Lake Stevens. 

2)  67th Avenue NE/44'h Street NE Bicycle Lanes. A route is planned between 
Arlington to the north from SR 531 to 44th Street NE terminating at 83'd Avenue NE. This 
would provide a bicycle route between Arlington/Marysville and Lake Stevens. 

3) 40th Street NE Bicycle Lanes. This new collector arterial with planned bike lanes 
will provide a route between Sunnyside Boulevard and 83rd Avenue NE. 

4) 83rd Avenue NE Bicycle Lanes. Bike lanes are planned from 88'h Street NE 
extension to Soper Hill Road which will ultimately provide connection to the Centennial 
Trail to the north. This trail also provides connections to the towns of Arlington, Lake 
Stevens and Snohomish. 

5) Whiskey Ridge Trail. A proposed pedestrian/multi-purpose trail is proposed along 
the Puget Sound Energy transmission easement east of 79th Avenue NE. This trail will 
provide a separated walk path between the Getchell neighborhood and Southeast 
Marysville. This trail is planned to interconnect with the Centennial Trail. Additional 
interconnections should be planned from the Whiskey Ridge study area and new 
developments. Developments in Snohomish County were not consistently required to 
provide a recreation easement to the City of Marysville, therefore the southern portion 
of the trail should be rerouted south of 44th Street NE for future trail construction to 
provide a continuous route. The plan proposes designation of a trail link at 44th Street to 
Densmore Road. Densmore Road would be constructed as a modified road standard 
with multi-use trail for bicycles and pedestrians. This would connect to planned 
sidewalks and bike lanes on Soper Hill Road. 

Arterial Streetscawe and Gatewav treatments 

The majority of the principal, minor and collector arterials are identified as streetscape 
arterial within this plan. The City shall provide standards for plantings and medians 
along these arterials, and provide for attractive pedestrian crossings at key intersection 
and gateways to the City. The southern entrance to the City at Soper Hill Road and 
Highway 9 and the entrance at the proposed access at Hwy 92 and Hwy 9 is a 

Draft Date 1011 2/06 

Page 6 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 146

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 265 of 575



designated gateway to the City and subject to the Gateway master plan for design 
and construction of a gateway treatment. 

IV. Parks and Recreation 

This planning area has two existing park sites, Deering Wildflower Acres and a potential 
site at the Sunnyside Wells Reservoir, as listed in Table 4-29. There is potential for a trail 
along the power line easement and also potential connection to the Centennial Trail as 
well as the Ebey Waterfront Trail. Figure 9-2 in the Parks and Recreation Element 
illustrates existing and proposed trail systems in the UGA. 

Table 4-29 East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Neighborhood Park Facilities 

Park Location Size D e ~ c r l ~ t i ~ n  
(acres) 

Deering 4708-79Ih Avenue 30 This park offers trails, natural areas, a meeting room and 
Wildflower N E caretaker's quarters. 
Acres 

- - - -. - . 

Sunnyside Well 40th Street NE & 31 This site is undeveloped and owned by the Marysville 
site 71" Avenue NE utility fund. Planned uses include a fire station and new 

water reservoir. 

Additional public park sites should be provided to serve additional population 
anticipated in this subarea. Park facilities should include opportunities for active 
recreation. The following need has been identified for the subarea: 

Park Location Size Description 
- -- 

WalkingICycling Whiskey Ridge Trail and Dedication and construction of trails 
Trails improvements per Whiskey Ridge along PSE transmission line easement 

subarea plan; and along Densmore Road 
Densmore Road multi-use trail 

Community Park Whiskey Ridge subarea 10 Identify site, purchase and develop 
boundary 

Community Open East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge 1 O+ Potential acquisition alona Kina - - - 
Space Park . ~UPS!!~~CP!~! ------ _ -__- Creek 
Neighborhood Park Whiskey Ridge subarea 1.5-5 Identify site, purchase and develop 

boundary ~- ~ . . ... ... .- .~ . 

VI. Public Services and Facilities 
a. Schools 
Two school districts serve this neighborhood. The Marysville School District provides 
school service generally west of 7Sh Avenue NE and the Lake Stevens School District 
provides service east of 7Sth Avenue NE. 

The Marysville School District has one planned elementary school proposed for this 
subarea. The District plans to construct the facility within the next 6 years. The site has 
been identified south of 44th Street NE, east of 71st Avenue NE. 

Additional growth in the Lake Stevens School District is expected to result in need for an 
additional elementary school within the area. The Lake Stevens School District owns 

Draft Date 1011 2106 
Page 7 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 147

Page 266 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



property south of Sunnyside School Road, east of 87+h Avenue NE, which is used for their 
bus parking and maintenance facility. 

School Location Size Description 
(acres) 

Marysville School District 44th Street NE & 71s' Avenue NE 10 Planned element_ary school. 
Lake Stevens School ~istricf 10 Site to be identified. 

b. Water 
Figure 4-56 identifies water lines within the East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood. 

c. Sewer 
Figure 4-57 identifies sewer lines within the East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood. 

Annexation and Development Strategies L --  - - - . - - - 

UGA expansions within this neighborhood are subject to a master plan for area 
development. The master plan is adopted as part of the 2006 subarea update. The 
master plan should result in a land use mix consistent with the city housing mix goals and 
reflect a variety of housing types and densities. Property within UGA expansion areas 
shall be required to annex to the city of Marysville as a condition of urban service 
provision (sewer service) and development proposals must be consistent with the city's 
master plan for the area. 

Draft Date 1011 2106 

Page 8 of 25 

Current Business 11 - 148

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 267 of 575



City of Ma rysville 

DRAFT 
Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 

Potential Master Plan Expansion Area 
October 12,2006 

r--'-i Marysville City Limits L.-.- 
East Sunnyside Neighborhood - 

ebeCI 
Urban growth area 

t - x  

1 Master Plan Area 
'm - - ss2 Potential Master Plan Expansion Area 

Current Business 11 - 149

Page 268 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



WHISKEY RIDGE MASTER PLAN 

The master plan area, as identified in the 2005 City of Marysville comprehensive plan is 
bounded by 83 rd  Avenue NE on the west, 58+h Street alignment on the north, Highway 9 
on the east, and Soper Hill Road (28th Street NE) on the south. The master plan study 
area includes the entirety of the East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood area 
however, as the master plan includes an assessment of the surrounding area 
transportation and land uses with recommendations for additional modifications to 
zoning and development regulations for the entire neighborhood planning area. It is an 
area that forms the southeastern most edge of Marysville and is where the City abuts 
the city of Lake Stevens. This area provides a gateway into and out of Marysville and as 
a result, Marysville wishes to create a distinctive urban edge and facilitate the 
development of enduring and long- term neighborhoods for a growing community. 
Adoption of the master plan and accompanying development regulations will establish 
zoning for this area. 

1. Background 

The City of Marysville included the Whiskey Ridge area in the 2005 City comprehensive 
plan update. The Whiskey Ridge master plan area was added to the Urban Growth 
Area by Snohomish County in February 2006. The area will be annexed to the City of 
Marysville by December 2006. 

II. Land Use 

The Whiskey Ridge master plan area covers 444 total gross acres. It is largely 
undeveloped and property is held in large predominately 10+ acre tracts. The 
development of the master plan is based on several guiding principles and a vision for 
creation of enduring neighborhoods. These principles are adapted from Smart Growth 
policies, existing City of Marysville comprehensive plan goals & policies, and input of 
community leaders and citizens through land use forums and discussions~. 

Guidina Princi~les and Policies 

1. Mix Land Uses 
2. Take Advantage of Compact Building Design 
3. Create a Range of Housing Opportunities and Choices 
4. Create Walkable Communities and Five-Minute Neighborhoods 
5. Foster Distinctive, Attractive Communities with a Strong Sense of Place 
6. Preserve Open Space, Natural Beauty, and Critical Environmental Areas 
7. Increase Densities in Appropriate Locations 
8. Promote Higher Quality Density by Incentive Zoning 
9. Connect People to Places 
10. Create Opportunities for a Healthy Community with opportunities for Physical 

Activity 
1 1. Create Great Places for People 

Land Use Vision 
The vision for Whiskey Ridge is to create an urban community that provides an 
attractive gateway into Marysville and that becomes a prototype for developing 

Land Use Element 
4- 9 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 150

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 269 of 575



neighborhoods within the City. Marysville included the Whiskey Ridge area within its 
comprehensive plan and required annexation of the community prior to development 
application or approval for the primary reason of wanting to exert land use control. . 
Assignment of land uses and land use regulation provides the greatest tool for ensuring 
an area's long term vitality and productivity to the community at large. Marysville was 
interested in ensuring a land use mix within this area to balance the largely single family 
residential growth occurring throughout the Sunnyside area and also to ensure that new 
neighborhoods were created as long-term neighborhoods. 

The intent of the master plan is to ensure that and growth contributes to the community 
and to creation of a long-term neighborhood. Certainly new development within the 
UGA provides additional housing, some of which will be affordable in keeping with 
GMA goals. New residential developments in the Whiskey Ridge area should provide 
address site planning to integrate with the surrounding planned developments as well 
as provide attractive internal layout. What this means is that new neighborhoods 
should enhance rather than diminish the surrounding area. This might occur through 
provision of transportation improvements that promote neighborhood walkability, 
population at a density to support transit and commercial services in the surrounding 
area, support of new facilities stretched by continuing population growth, retention of 
open space or parks within developing neighborhoods. As the area's natural open 
spaces decreases, the substitution of quality urban places should fill the gap. While 
recognizing the importance of affordability, this plan encourages an appropriate mix of 
housing types meeting a range of income levels. "Starter" neighborhoods for low- 
income and first-time homebuyers should be well-designed so that singles and families 
might choose to continue living in these neighborhoods even when their income levels 
might allow alternative housing options due to the attractive neighborhood setting and 
well-proportioned building design. In addition, the City should encourage 
neighborhoods representing a diverse range of lot and unit types that provide a 
maximum array of housing choices for Marysville residents. This includes apartments for 
families as well as singles and seniors, convalescent care, group housing and ranging 
from low to upper-income single family homes. 

The Whiskey Ridge area provides a combination of beautiful westward views to the 
Snohomish river estuary, Everett and Sound, as well as steep hillsides, ravines, and 
woods. Within the greater area, there are creeks, wetlands and large ponds that will 
be preserved under critical areas ordinances and buffers. These provide larger tracts 
for protection of area habitat and wildlife. Some of these nature preserves could be 
acquired by nonprofit agencies or the City to provide access to the public for nature 
trails and passive recreation. The future will include full urban services, an active civic 
life for its residents built around distinct, strong residential neighborhoods, quality schools 
and other public buildings, convenient shopping and services, and areas of 
employment. Marysville is also committed to creation of a land use mix that provides 
both jobs and housing with commercial services in proximity the area's growing 
residential community throughout the Sunnyside (Planning Area 3) and East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge (Planning Area 4) neighborhoods. The urbanized Whiskey 
Ridge should have an outstanding system of public services and facilities, including 
schools, fire station, open spaces, active and passive recreation parks, trails, 
commercial plazas, gateway features, and streetscape corridors. The sensitive 
environmental areas of Whiskey Ridge (wetlands, forested areas, streams) are 
incorporated into the urban design of the area. Streams are buffered and protected 

Land Use Element 
4- 10 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 151

Page 270 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



from direct urban runoff. Trails for pedestrian, bicycle and other non-motorized use are 
incorporated into open space planning and buffers, where appropriate. These 
sensitive areas remain in native plantings to provide water quality and quantity 
protection. Development regulations require identification and protection of significant 
stands of trees. 

Shopping is concentrated around transportation corridors, specifically Highway 9. 
Accesses to shopping and employment areas are direct and efficient, capitalizing on 
the proximity to SR-9, SR-92, Soper Hill Road and SR528. Commercial areas emphasize 
pedestrian uses and have parking to the side of or in back of buildings. Commercial 
buildings relate to the street, and have features, such as plazas, windows on the street, 
distinctive entrances. Street cafes, street furniture, kiosks, and landscaping should 
provide attractive gathering places for area residents. Some small scale office and 
general services are located within neighborhoods providing convenient services such 
as daycare, medical/dental and personal care within the neighborhood. 

Higher density housing takes the form of small lot single family attached and detached, 
providing new opportunities for homeownership. Multiple family apartments are well 
designed to integrate with adjoining single family areas. All higher density housing is 
located within a 114 mile of an open space, park and/or trail system. Arterials in the 
higher density section are designed as boulevards, with a center planting area to 
provide additional green space and safe crossing for pedestrians. 

A variety of medium density detached housing opportunities fill in the spaces between 
the centers separated by boulevards, parks and/or trails. The community also has areas 
of mixed use, (housing, services and retail uses) which provide a place to live and work 
where one can walk or bike to homes, stores and services all located in a concentrated 
area. Mixed-use areas have a variety of public spaces, including village greens, public 
art spaces, street trees, furniture and plazas. 

Urban level roads are provided in a hybrid system of strong minor and collector arterials 
and neighborhood access streets. Residential developments are developed with good 
access and circulation to the collector/arterial system but developed in individual 
neighborhood clusters of 60-80 units per cluster. 

Urban level services include stormwater, roads, sewer and water. Stormwater systems 
are attractively designed so that the streets are not dominated by large concrete 
structures along the arterial frontage. Instead natural pond systems, underground 
vaults are used when feasible. If structures are placed along in view of public right of 
way, they are setback with substantial landscaping or construction is a decorative 
block wall with landscaping along the street frontage. 

Conclusions 
The Whiskey Ridge master plan area should provide a more balanced residential and 
commercial land use mix. To date, the growth in this and the adjoining neighborhood 
has been predominately housing - single family housing. Future uses should include a 
blend of high and medium density single and low to medium density multiple family 
housing. The master plan also includes accompanying development regulations to 
implement the land use plan vision, goals, and policies. These include incentives for 
providing additional community features including capital improvements, gathering 
places, gateway monuments and other amenities to enhance the growing 
neighborhood. 

Land Use Element 
4- 11 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 152

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 271 of 575



KEY CONCEPTS 

1. Ensure adequate public facilities are planned to serve the area. These facilities 
include: 

a. Southeast Marysville Fire Station 

b. Lake Stevens School District new elementary school 

c. Neighborhood Parks -1-2 (1.5-5 acres) 

d. Community Park - 1 (lo+ acres) 

e. Community Open Space - 1 ( 1  0+ acres) 

f. Trails - Whiskey Ridge Trail and extensions through neighborhoods 

2. Require that transportation impacts to this area are addressed through impact fees. 
Establish a secondary impact fee to support unfunded road projects needed for 
development within the master plan area. 

3. Provide for commercial uses along Highway 9. These uses while visible from Highway 
9, should provide a community orientation with four-sided architecture. Sites and 
buildings should be attractive from Highway 9, as well as adjoining public streets 
such as 87th Avenue NE and internal parking access. 

4. Commercial uses at Highway 9 should provide for opportunities and building 
orientation towards surrounding neighborhoods. While visibility from Highway 9 may 
be important, the primary vehicle access and orientation should be from 
surrounding neighborhoods. 

5. Collector and minor arterials should provide substantial landscaping in keeping with 
the arterial streetscape plans for each arterial. 

6. A connection to Highway 9 at SR 92 should be provided to provide east-west 
connectivity between Sunnyside Boulevard and Hwy 9. 

7. The planned SR92 connection should be constructed as a boulevard, with 
substantial landscaping and streetscape improvements between SR 9 and 87th 
Avenue NE. 

8. Densmore Road should be considered for a modified road standard with wide multi- 
use trail for connection to the planned Whiskey Ridge trail to provide pedestrian and 
bicycle connectivity through Marysville, and promote pedestrian activity from the 
residential neighborhoods to the commercial center. 

9. Plan Mixed use areas along Highway 9 adjacent to the commercial center. 

10. Develop design standards and guidelines to upgrade the quality of neighborhoods. 

11. Promote development of attractive streets by requiring consistent fencing, walls and 
landscaping along arterial street frontage. 

12. Promote development of attractive streets by requiring stormwater systems along 
arterial streets to be natural pond systems, underground vaults, or set back with 
additional landscaping to screen visibility from roadways. 

13. Provide for flexible zoning that allows for a mix of single family and multi-family uses 
within residential zones. 

14. Use incentive zoning as a tool to encourage higher quality higher density 
development and physical improvements to the neighborhood. 

Land Use Element 
4- 12 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 153

Page 272 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



15. Residential uses along Highway 9 will be protected from impacts of highway noise, 
visibility and future widening by construction of a decorative concrete wall. 

16. Power lines along arterial streetscape streets will be relocated underground to 
provide a clean visual line along the right of way frontage. 

17. Create a gateway at Hwy 92 and SR 9 and at Soper Hill Road and SR9. 

LAND USE ALTERNATIVES AND RECOMMENDED PLAN 

Staff prepared six land use alternatives for analysis. These alternatives propose different 
transportation and land use concepts. The land use concepts were developed to 
coincide with the various transportation concepts under review. For instance, where a 
higher classification arterial is proposed, the land use was intensified along the 
connection. 

The land use designations are also unique to the master plan, with density and 
dimensions for the residential zones defined in the plan. The zones dre constructed 
using a base density as well as maximum density. The goal is to provide for a mix of lot 
sizes within a specified range and land use type. Within the single family zone, a base 
density of 4 dulacre is established by this plan. A maximum density of 8 dulacre is 
achievable utilizing MMC 1 9.26, Residential Density Incentives. This allows projects to 
provide additional on-site and off-site neighborhood amenities to attain a higher 
project density. It will also create a mix of lot sizes within each zones. Within the 
multifamily zone, a base density of 6 is established for single family detached units, and 
10 dulacre for multifamily buildings. The Mixed Use zone has a base density of 12 
dulacre and a maximum of 18 dulacre. The density and dimensions for each zone are 
described in Section Vlll of this plan. 

The "Key Concepts" identified in this plan apply to each of the alternatives. Future 
development within the master plan will be required to meet the objectives of this plan 
and referenced standards. These concepts should also be expanded to a larger 
master plan boundary in order to ensure consistent development north of 40th Street NE. 

Table 4-25A-F details the land use distribution for each alternative. 

Table 4-25A Alternative 1 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB . MU MFL SFH Total 

Total Acres 48.5 16.4 94.1 219.5 378.4 

Builable Acres 43.7 16.4 85.0 216.7 361.7 

Existing DU's 7 12 30 64 113 

Existing Pop. 14 24 60 128 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 .. 0 
Additional DU's 0 9 1 394 550 

-- - 
1035 

Additional Pop. 0 264 1143 1100 2507 

Additional Employees 337 70 0 0 -- - - 
407 

Total DU's 7 103 424 614 1148 

Total Population 14 288 1203 1228 2733 

Total Employees 337 70 0 0 40 7 

Land Use Element 
4- 13 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 154

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 273 of 575



.-..I 

City of Ma rysvi//e L, Marysv~lle city L I ~ I ~ S  
Marysville Comprehensive Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

Commun~ty Busmess 
-- 7 

1 Marysv~lle Urban Growth Area Urban Cornrnerclal 

DRAFT Z z E a s t  Sunnyside Ne~ghborhood 7 M l ~ e d  Use Urban lndustrlal 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Proposed collector ~ r t ena l  ~ 1 2  M U I ~ I - F ~ ~ I I Y  LOW * Rural Res~dent~al 5 Acre * 
c Master Plan Area Ne~ghborhood Business Rural Resldentlal5 Awe Bastc 

Alternative #I 
Master Plan Designations 1 R18 Multi-Farn~ly Med~urn '1LII1 Urban Htgh Denstty Restdentla1 

October 12,2006 ' ' Commercial R6 5 Stngle Farnlly Hlgh Urban Med~urn Dens~ly Resldentlal 

, Multi-Farnlly R4 5 Slngle Farnlly Medlurn Urban Low Dens~ty Restdentla1 

F-l 1 M~xed Use Recreal~on Publtc/lnstttut~onal 

, sngle Fam~ly Open Space 

Current Business 11 - 155

Page 274 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



I-.. 
I-. J Marysville City Limits Marysville Comprehensive Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

City of Ma rysvi//e - .- Cornmun~ty Business Urban Commercial 
. . .! 

Marysv~lle Urban Growth Area 

DRAFT z; East Sunnyside Neighborhood 7 Mixed use Urban Industrial - Proposed Collector Arterial R12 Multi-Family Low + Rural Residential 5 Acre 
Whiskey Ridge Master Plan , , 

1, , Master Plan Area Neighborhood Business Rural Residential 5 Acre Basic 

Alternative #2 .- . 
Master Plan Designations 1 R18 Multi-Family Medium 41 Urban High Density Residential 

October 12.2006 ' , :' . / Commercial R6.5 Single Family High I Urban Medium Density Residential 

N / - Multi-Family R4.5 Single Family Medium Urban Low Density Residential 

' Mfxed Use 
'Om 

, S~ngle Family 

Recreation 

7 Open Space 

Current Business 11 - 156

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 275 of 575



.", 
City of Marysville . Marysvllle Clty Llmlts Marysv~lle Cornprehens~ve Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

L,- 
1 Marysvllle Urban Growth Area Communlty Business Urban Cornmerclal 

DRAFT ::East Eunnyslde N e g h b o h d  -7 Mixed Use Urban lndustr~al 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan - Proposed ~olleclor m e n d  R12 Multl-Famlly Low + 1 Rural Resldenbal 5Acre 
1 

Master Plan Area Nelghbwhood Busmess Rural Resldenbal 5 Acre Basic 
Alternative #3 - ' / Cornrnerc~al 1 R18 Multl-Farnlly Medlurn 7 Urban Hlgh Dens~ty Resldentlal 

October 12 2006 ' * Multl-Farnlly R6 5 Slngle Famlly Hlgh Urban Medlum Dens~ty Resldentlal 

N ' 1 M~xed Use R4 5 Slngle Famlly Medlum Urban Low Denslty Resldenbal 

F 1 , ' S~ngle Farnlly Recreation Publ~cllnst~tut~onal 

7 Open Space 

Current Business 11 - 157

Page 276 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table 4-25B Alternative 2 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MU MFL SFH Total 

Total Acres 23.1 25.4 105.3 224.6 378.4 
- 

Builable Acres 20.2 23.6 100.4 21 7.5 361.7 

Existing DU's 4 3 40 66 113 

Existing Pop. 8 6 80 132 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Additional DU's 0 1 43 485 550 - 1178 

Additional Pop. 0 415 1407 1100 2921 

Additional Employees 149 107 0 0 256 

Total DU's 4 146 525 616 1291 

Total Population 8 42 1 1487 1232 3147 

Total Employees 1 49 107 0 0 256 
- - - - - -- -- 

Table 4-25A Alternative 3 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MFL SFH Total 
- -- 

Total Acres 36.1 26.1 316.3 378.4 - 
Builable Acres 33.2 16.1 312.4 361.7 

Existing DU's 7 2 102 113 

Existing Pop. 14 4 204 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 

Additional DU's 0 68 752 820 

Additional Pop. 0 197 1504 1701 

Additional Employees 268 0 0 268 

Total DU's 7 72 854 933 

Total Po~ula t ion 14 205 1708 1927 

Total Employees 268 0 0 268 

Land Use Element 
4- 14 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 158

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 277 of 575



Current Business 11 - 159

Page 278 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City of Marys ville 
.-.'I 
I_. _: Marysville City Limits Marysville Comprehensive Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

7 .: 

DRAFT Marysville Urban Growth Area Community Business Urban Commercial 
a=. 

East Sunnyside Neighborhood - Mixed Use Urban lnduslrial 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 1- .a Master Plan Area ~ 1 2  ~ u ~ t i - ~ a m i ~ y  LOW + Rural Residential 5Acre 

Alternative #5 - Proposed Collector Arterial Neighbofiood Business Rural Residential 5 Acre Basic 
7.. 

October 12,2006 Master Plan Designations 7 R18 Multi-Family Medium 7 Urban High Density Residential 

/ ,,/ Commercial R6.5 Single Family High Urban Medium Density Residential 
N , .. 

Mulli-Fam~ly R4.5 Single Family Medium Urban Low Density Residential 

; Mixed Use Recreation IL.( Publidlnstitutional - Open Space ,. .., Single Family 

Current Business 11 - 160

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 279 of 575



Table 4-25C Alternative 4 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MU MFL SFH Total 

Total Acres 50.7 14 132.2 181.4 378.4 

Builable Acres 45.9 14 122.1 179.7 361.7 

Existing DU's 9 8 45 5 1 113 

Existing Pop. 18 16 92 102 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Additional DU's 0 98 624 447 1169 

Additional POD. 0 284 1810 894 2988 

Additional Em~loyees 393 69 0 0 462 

Total DU's 9 106 . 669 498 1282 

Total Population 18 300 1900 996 321 4 

Total Employees 
-- - 393 6 9 0 0 462 

- -- - 

Table 4-25D Alternative 5 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MU MFL SFH Total 

Total Acres 50.7 25.5 100.5 201.6 378.4 

Builable Acres 45.9 24.5 91.5 199.9 361.7 
- -. 

Existing DU's 9 9 3 7 58 113 

Existina POD. 18 18 74 116 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 . 0 

Additional DU's 0 127 455 505 1087 

Additional Pop. 0 368 1320 1010 2698 
- 

Additional Employees 354 9 2 0 0 446 - 
Total DU's 9 136 492 563 1 200 

Total Population 18 386 1394 1126 2924 

Total Employees 
----- 

354 92 0 0 446 

Land Use Element 
4- 15 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 161

Page 280 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



,-. -. 
1 - .; Marysv~lle Clty L~mits Marysville Comprehensive Plan County Future Land Use - March, 2006 

City of Marysville 
T - - ,  1 Marysville Urban Growth Area Community Business 

--., 
Urban Commercial 

DRAFT ,a % 
East Sunnys~de Neighborhood "7 Use Urban Industrial 

. I  - I  

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 7, ,Master R12 Multi-Family Low ' ' Rural Residential 5 Acre - Proposed Collector ~r ter ia l  Neighborhood Business Rural Residential 5 Acre Basic 

Alternative #6 Master Plan Designations 7 R18 Multi-Family Medium 7 Urban ~ l g h  Density Residential 

October 12. 2006 ', ',; Commercial R6.5 Single Family High ' Urban Medium Dens~ty Residential 

* ,  
1 Multi-Fam~ly 

' 9 M~xed Use 

, ' S~ngle Fam~ly 

R4.5 Single Family Medium Urban Low Density Residential 

Recreation Publ~cllnst~tutional 

7 Open Space 

Current Business 11 - 162

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 281 of 575



Table 4-25E Alternative 6 Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MU MFL SFH Total 

Total Acres 30.1 66.8 88.1 193.4 378.4 

Builable Acres 28.7 63.3 79.1 190.6 361.7 

Existing DU's 13 12 36 52 113 

Existing Pop. 26 24 72 104 226 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Additional DU's 0 38 1 39 1 474 1246 

Additional Pop. 0 1105 1134 948 3187 

Additional Employees 207 275 0 0 482 

Total DU's 13 393 427 526 1359 

Total Population 26 1129 1206 1052 3413 

Total Employees 207 275 0 0 482 
-- -. -- - 

Ill. Housinq & Employment Analysis 

Existing and 2025 planned dwelling units, population, and employment figures are listed 
in Table 4-30. 

Table 4-30A Alternative 1 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

2005 2025 

Dwelling Units 113 1148 
Population Estimate 226 2733 
Employment -- Estimate 0 40 7 - . - - . - - - - . - . 

Table 4-308 Alternative 2 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

2005 2025 
Dwelling Units 113 1291 
Population ~stirnate 226 31 47 
~ m ~ l o ~ m e n f  Estimate 0 256 - 

Table 4-30C Alternative 3 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

2005 2025 
Dwelling Units 113 933 
Population Estimate 226 1927 
Employment Estimate 0 - 268 - - - - - -. - . 

Land Use Element 
4- 16 

Matysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 163

Page 282 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table 4-30D Alternative 4 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

Dwelling Units 113 1282 - -- -- - -- - - 
Population Estimate 226 - 3214 - - - . . . . - - -. 

Employment . ...- .~ .-~ Estimate - . .. . .. 0 . ~ .... ~ ..- . ~- 

Table 4-30E Alternative 5 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

Dwelling Units 113 1 200 - - - - -- -. - 
Population Estimate . .  226 . -~ 2924 ~ 

Employment Estimate 0 
. ~~ 446 . - 
Table 4-30F Alternative 6 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

Dwelling Units 113 1359 
Population Estimate - .  226 3413 -~ ~ ----- 
Employment Estimate 0 

--.-- ~ ~. . - 482 - - . . .  

Figure 4- (Insert pie chart of general land use composition of the neighborhood) 

IV. Transportation 

a. Street Inventory 
Fortunately this planning area has multiple existing north-south arterial right of ways on 
the east side of the study area. The addition of new east-west collectors and 
completion of designated collectors will strengthen area circulation. Due to rather 
extensive wetland and stream systems in the Sunnyside neighborhood (Planning Area 
3), Development of the area immediately west of the master plan did not include 
planning for through arterials (minor or collector). This places more urgency on 
development of a more effective circulation system on East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge 
to allow traffic to move through the community at least impact to individual 
neighborhoods and to serve area growth for future decades. 

Many of the existing right of ways were developed as access to farms and rural 
homesites. The majority of the road network consists of rural roadway sections with 
weathered asphalt pavement, narrow gravel shoulders if any and ditches for storm 
water collection. 

The area streets are identified and classified in Section Ill of the Planning Area 4 -East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge plan discussion. 

d. Existing Public Transportation Facilities and Services 

There is no local bus service within the master plan area. Transit service for this area is 
provided by Community Transit. Closest transit service is  provided by Route 221, which 

Land Use Element 
4- 17 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 164

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 283 of 575



provides service between QuilCeda and Lake Stevens traveling along SR 528 (64th 
Street NE) and Highway 9 along the east edge of the master plan area . 

e. Transportation Strategies and Issues 
Tran~~ortation Proiects. 

Primary transportation strategies and projects within the study area include the 
following: 

1 )  Intersection improvement on the west side of Highway 9 at SR 92 to provide for 
connection to Marysville. This connection is expected to provide alternative 
access from Sunnyside/Soper Hill Road to Highway 9. 

2) Dedication and Construction of 35'h Street NE extension from SR 92 and Hwy 9 

3) Dedication and Construction of 40th Street NE, an east-west collector arterial that 
will interconnect properties between Sunnyside Blvd and 87th Avenue NE. 

4) Dedication and Construction of 67th Avenue NE extension between 44'h Street NE 
and 40th Street NE. 

5) Widening to 3 lanes and rebuild of Sunnyside Blvd between 52"d Street NE and 
Soper Hill Road. 

6 )  Widening and frontage improvements for existing arterial streets within the study 
area, including 83'd Avenue NE, 87'h Avenue NE. 

The City will collect a seconddry traffic impact fee to fund necessary road projects 
within the master plan area. Construction costs associated with these projects listed in 
Table 4-31 are creditable towards the master plan traffic impact fee, which applies as a 
secondary traffic impact fee within the master plan area. 

Projects included in the secondary traffic impact fee are as follows: 

Table 4-31 Whiskey Ridge Master Plan Road Projects (subset of Planning Area 4 
projects) 

Improvement Description Timing & Need Estimated Cost or 
Proponent if not City of 
Marysville project 

SR 92 connection (87Ih Dedicate right of way Identified in Whiskey City and Developer 
Avenue to SR 9) and construct 5 lanes Ridge Master Plan for Frontage Improvements 

44th Street(83rd Avenue ~ e d k a t e  right of way 
to Densmore Road) and construct to 

standard - 

40th Street (connecting Dedicate right of way 
Sunnyside to Densmore and construct to 
Road). standard 
Densmore Road (40th Dedicate right of way 
Street to SR 92) and construct to 

standard 

area circulation -.  $?.PPO!OqO , . . . . 

ldentified in Whiskey City and Developer 
Ridge Master Plan for Frontage Improvements. 
area circulation $3.700t000 , , . .  . . 

ldentified in Whiskey City and Developer 
Ridge Master Plan for Frontage lmprovements 
area circulation . $1 $,SPP!Om . , . . , , . . . . . 
ldentified in Whiskey City and Developer 
Ridge Master Plan for Frontage lmprovements 
area circulation $1,000,000 

Land Use Element 
4- 18 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 165

Page 284 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City of Marysville 
DRAFT ARTERIAL 

I I 
CONNECTOR c I Master Plan Area 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan PRINCIPLE ---, PRINCIPLE --.-. L.,! Marysville city limits 

Arterial Functional Classifications MINOR ==-a MINOR East Sunnyside Neighborhood 

and Street Connectors - COLLECTOR - - - I  COLLECTOR 
October 12.2006 - STREET - - - STREET 

1.WO Feel 

Current Business 11 - 166

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 285 of 575



Transit Facilities and Services within the Neiuhborhood. 

Due to the lack of existing transit service in the study area. the City should work with 
Community Transit to identify new opportunities for transit stops, shelters and routes to 
serve the area as it develops. Potential for additional stops may emerge at the 
intersection of SR 92 and Hwy 9 as Route 221 currently travels along Hwy 9. 

Non-motorized Svstem lm~rovements 

1 )  Sunnyside Boulevard - Soper Hill Road, 83rd Avenue, and 44+h Street NE Bike 
Lanes. Bike lanes are proposed on Sunnyside Blvd to Soper Hill Road, 83rd 
Avenue NE, and 44th Street NE. . 

Whiskey Ridge Trail. A separated multi-use trail is planned along the Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE) corridor west of 79+h Avenue NE. While west of the master plan area, new 
developments should provide connectors to planned trails. Development of the trail is 
a transportation project within this subarea The trail standard is included for reference 
and information in Appendix A of the Whiskey Ridge master plan, however it should be 
noted that this standard can be revised through the Engineering Design and 
Development Standards (EDDS) amendment procedure through subsequent action by 
the City. Arterial Streetscape 

Densmore Road Trail (with connection to Whiskey Ridge trail). A separated multi-use 
trail is proposed as part of the collector arterial road standard. 

Table 4-27 identifies streetscape arterials within this plan. The City shall provide 
standards for plantings and medians along these arterials, and provide for attractive 
pedestrian crossings at key intersection and gateways to the City. These standards are 
included for reference and information in Appendix A of the Whiskey Ridge master 
plan, however may be updated through the Engineering Design and Development 
Standards (EDDS) procedure through subsequent action by the City. Gateway 
treatments are proposed at Soper Hill Road/Hwy 9 and also at planned SR 92 
connection1SR 9. 

The identified standard is included for reference and information in Appendix A of the 
Whiskey Ridge master plan, however it should be noted that this standard can be 
revised through the Engineering Design and Development Standards (EDDS) 
amendment procedure through subsequent action by the City. 

Land Use Element 
4- 19 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 167

Page 286 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City of Ma rysville 
DRAFT 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 
Parks, Routes, and Trails 

October 12.2006 

I - m 

1, - , Master Plan Area Schools 
C.-.- 

Marysville city limits l-.-.l P Parks 
East Sunnyside Neighborhood A Community Transit Stops 

- - - -  Existing Trails - Community Transit Routes 

. . . . . . . . . Proposed Trails - Proposed Bicycle EDDS 06 - Proposed Multi-uses EDDS 06 

Current Business 11 - 168

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 287 of 575



V. Parks and Recreation 

Existing and needed facilities are identified in Section IV of the East Sunnyside/Whiskey 
Ridge Planning Area 4 discussion. There are no active park facilities within the master 
plan or larger planning area 4 boundary. Needed facilities are as follows: 

Additional public park sites should be provided to serve additional population 
anticipated in the master plan and subarea. Park facilities should include opportunities 
for active recreation. The following need has been identified for the subarea: 

Park Location Size Description 
(acres) 

Walking/Cycling Whiskey Ridge Trail and improvements Dedication and construction of 
Trails per Whiskey Ridge subarea plan trails 
Community Park Whiskey Ridge subarea boundary 10 Identify site, purchase and 

develop active recreation 
facility 

Community Open East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge subarea 10 Potential pond acquisition for 
Space bounda - natural area 
Neighborhood Park Whiskey :idge siiarea boundary 1.5-5 Identify site, purchase and 

An open space network with parks and bicycle, pedestrian and other non-motorized 
access shall be integrated into development of this area. The alignment, along the PSE 
easement, called the Whiskey Ridge trail would provide a linear park throughout the 
East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge subarea. 

VI. Environmental and Resource Management 
a. Surface Water 
The master plan area is within three drainage basins. From north to south, the northwest 
corner is in the Allen/Munson Creek drainage basin draining to Ebey Slough; the 
northeast and east portion of the master plan area drains to Stephens Creek and Lake 
Stevens; the central and western part of the master plan includes King Creek and the 
Sunnyside basin draining to Ebey Slough, and the southeast portion includes Hulbert 
Creek, also in the Sunnyside basin. 

b. Stormwater Management 
Various studies have been prepared for surface water management within these 
basins. One project was identified in the vicinity of the master plan by Snohomish 
County SWM in the County's 2001 Lake Stevens UGA Plan. The project ID is HUL4 on 
Figure 6-1 of the Plan. It is described as roadway flooding due to the culvert at 83rd  
Avenue NE. The proposed improvement is to replace the existing 12-in diameter culvert 
with a 30-in diameter culvert at a cost of $23,000. 

Regulatory controls for managing surface water with new development include 
adoption by the local jurisdiction of stringent storm water standards and critical areas 
regulations. To this end, the City of Marysville has adopted the latest edition of the 
Department of Ecology's Stormwater Management Manual for the Puget Sound Basin. 
The Ecology Manual sets forth requirements for water quality treatment, source control 

Land Use Element 
4- 20 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 169

Page 288 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



for pollution-generating sites, and stormwater detention. Proposed new construction 
projects are required to obtain the City's approval for stormwater management plans 
before any construction begins. In addition, in early 2005 the City adopted updated 
requirements for critical areas protection using best available science in compliance 
with GMA requirements. 

Recommended Stormwater Desian Considerations 

The following are some further recommendations for the design of stormwater facilities 
for the subarea plan: 

1 ) Where depth to groundwater allows, stormwater infiltration is recommended 
2) Minimize use of constructed facilities by utilizing low impact development 
techniques through site planning and development. 
3) Provide aesthetic design of visible pond facilities. Facilities along arterial streetscape 
roadways should utilize ground-level open pond systems, as opposed to above ground 
construction of detention facilities that are visible from arterials. Facilities should be 
either natural looking ponds and swales or underground vaults. Where there is no 
alternative to above ground concrete block facilities, walls must be constructed to 
provide and aesthetically pleasing design or the facility must provide an additional 
landscaping setback from roadways to screen the facility from public view. 
4) Provide adequate access for maintenance of drainage easements and detention 
ponds 
5) Provide pretreatment and source control for all applicable land uses. 

c. Wetlands and Streams 
The City of Marysville regulates developments that affect critical areas, including 
streams and wetlands. These regulations have been reviewed within the 
comprehensive plan and development regulations for best available science. No 
construction is permitted in these buffers except for low impact uses such as pedestrian 
trails, viewing platforms, utility lines, and certain stormwater management facilities such 
as grass-lined swales provided they do not have a negative effect on the stream or 
wetland. 

VII. Public Services and Facilities 

a. Schools 
The Lake Stevens School District provides school services to the master plan area. The 
District owns property south of Sunnyside School Road, east of Densmore Road, and 
west of Highway 9. The site is used for the District's bus barn facility. The District has 
identified a need for an additional elementary school to serve this growing area. 
Elementary school sites are typically 1 1-1 5 acres. 

b. Water 
Snohomish County PUD # 1  provides water service to this area. The City of Marysville is 
currently in negotiations with PUD to purchase their existing facilities. 

c. Sewer 
Sewer service to the Whiskey Ridge area will require sewer improvements as identified in 
the Whiskey Ridge Sewer Plan. 

Land Use Element 
4- 21 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 170

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 289 of 575



City of Marysville P - -  Waster Plan Area Water - PUD 

DRAFT 
L,,  r--.-. ---  - ! Marysville city limits 10" and under 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan L--.- 

Water Svstem East Sunnyside Neighborhood ' ' Over O" - 
October 12.2006 

Water - Marysville 
- 10" and under - over 10"- 

Current Business 11 - 171

Page 290 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



I ' 

/ 
' 64TH 

\ 

- 

- 
I 

-A- 

i ?,;T:< - i 
I 

i 
I 
I 

W i  

'? LL -.- ! T-- ,> , 
, . , I ; . I 7 '? 'YS-=- < , 

i -., . j , 1 .  1 i _C t \ . ri- i ! i:. 
v .,-- ! Fi 5 ! . -  c 1 

.- . 
-.> L' -. b.? ' 

I 
I I r 

3 ' ! I I.-., 
I 

1 -.-. I 
C.-.-.-.-.-.-.-. 1 
I ! -.-.-.-.-.-. ' ! I 

1 

I 

' 1 . 
- . 

7 - 
L . ' , i  - 1 '  \di! 

IMRDAVE 

8 Y 

31ST ST PIE 

City of Marys ville 
DRAFT - - -  

1 Master Plan Area - 
1,- Existing Sewer Lines 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan C.'.' 

i Marysville city limits L.,. Proposed Sewer Lines Whiskey Ridge Sewer Plan 
East Sunnyside Neighborhood - -. GRAVITY 

October 12,2006 a Sewer Basins FORCE MAIN 

+ 

Current Business 11 - 172

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 291 of 575



VIII. Development Strategies 

This plan includes a more specific subarea plan for the Whiskey Ridge master plan area 
that shall be the basis for review of development proposals. It includes a conceptual 
road plan, and open space and trail network as shown in Figure 4-. Street standards, 
including streetscape and improvement standards are herein incorporated. 1 All of the 
Key Concepts identified in the land use discussion of the master plan shall be enforced 
as regulatory controls on the development of land within the master plan. In the event 
of conflict with the City's development regulations, the master plan ordinance shall 
control. 

In addition to the above development controls and requirements, the plan 
recommends the use of zones with a broader range of base density. This will allow for a 
mix of lot sizes, dependent on use of MMC 19.26, Residential Density Incentives. 

The following density and dimensional controls shall apply: 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan zones. 

(1) Densities and Dimensions. 

Referenced standards can be subsequently amended by the City utilizing the Engineering 
Design and Development Standards procedure for updates. 

Density: Dwelling unitlacre (6) 

Maximum density: Dwelling unitlacre 
( 1  1 
Minimum street setback (3) (1  8) 

Minimum side yard setback (3) 

Minimum rear yard setback (3) 

Base height 

Maximum building coverage: 
Percentage (5) 

Maximum impervious surface: 

Land Use Element 
4- 22 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

R-4.5 

4 du/ac 

8 

20 ft (8) 

5 ft (10) 

20ft 

30 ft 

40% 

50% 

R-12 (1 5) 

6 dulac 
(detached) 

10 dulac 
(attached) 

18 dulac 

20 ft 

10 ft (10) 

25ft 

35 ft (4) 

40% 

70% 

MU (16) 

12 
dulac 

18 
du/ac 

20 ft 

None 
(20) 

None 
(20) 

45 ft. 

- 

85%,75% 

CB 

-- 

None 
( 1  9 )  

25 ft. 
(18) 

25 ft. 

( 1  8) 

55 ft. 

- 

85% 

Current Business 11 - 173

Page 292 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Percentage (5) 

Minimum lot area 

Minimum lot area for duplexes (2) 

Minimum lot width (3) 

Minimum lot frontage on cul-de-sac, 
sharp curve, or panhandle ( 1  6) 

1. a. The maximum density for multiple-family zones may be achieved only through the 
application of residential density incentive provisions outlined in Chapter 19.26 MMC. 

(22) 

None 

- 

None 

WCF height ( 1  7) 

b. The maximum net density for the single-family zones is the same as the base density; 
provided, that for PRD developments the maximum density may be increased by up to 
20 percent only through the application of residential density incentive provisions 
outlined in Chapter 19.26 MMC. 

None 

- 

None 

5,000 
sq. ft 

7,200 
sq. ft 

40ft 

20 ft 

2. The minimum lot sizes for duplexes apply to lots or parcels which existed on or before 
the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter. All new duplex lots created 
through the subdivision or short subdivision process shall be a minimum of 7,200 square 
feet in size, must include a "duplex disclosure," and comply with the density 
requirements of the comprehensive plan (six units per acre for the R-4.5 zone and eight 
units per acre for the R-6.5 and R-8 zones). 

- 

- 

70ft 

(2) Development Conditions. 

60 ft 

3. These standards may be modified under the provisions for zero lot line and townhome 
developments. 

- 

4. a. Height limits may be increased when portions of the structure which exceed the 
base height limit provide one additional foot of street and interior setback beyond the 
required setback for each foot above the base height limit: provided, that the 
maximum height may not exceed 60 feet. 

60 ft 

b. Multiple-family developments, located outside of Planning Area 1, abutting or 
adjacent to areas zoned as single-family, or areas identified in the comprehensive plan 
as single-family, may have no more floors than the adjacent single-family dwellings, 
when single-family is the predominant adjacent land use. 

- 

5. Applies to each individual lot. Building coverage and impervious surface area 
standards for: 

- 

120ft 

a. Regional uses shall be established at the time of permit review; or 

120ft 

b. Nonresidential uses in residential zones shall comply with MMC 19.12.200. 

6. a. The densities listed for the single-family zones are maximum net densities. 

Land Use Element 
4- 23 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 174

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 293 of 575



b. Mobile home parks shall be allowed a maximum density of eight dwelling units per 
acre, unless located in the R-4.5 or R-6.5 zones, in which case they are limited to the 
density of the underlying zone. 

7. The standards of the R-4.5 zone shall apply if a lot is less than 15,000 square feet in 
area. 

8. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced to 10 feet; provided, 
that at least 20 linear feet of driveway is provided between any garage, carport, or 
other fenced parking area and the street property line, or the lot takes access from an 
alley. The linear distance shall be measured in a straight line from the nearest point of 
the garage, carport or fenced area to the access point at the street property line. In 
the case of platted lots, no more than two consecutive lots may be reduced to 10 feet. 

9. Residences shall have a setback of at least 50 feet from any property line if adjoining 
an agricultural zone either within or outside the city limits. 

10. For townhomes or apartment developments, the setback shall be the greater of: 

a. 20 feet along any property line abutting R-4.5 through R-8, and RU zones; or 

b. The average setback of the R-4.5 through R-8 zoned single-family detached dwelling 
units from the common property line separating said dwelling units from the adjacent 
townhome or apartment development, provided the required setback applied to said 
development shall not exceed 60 feet. The setback shall be measured from said 
property line to the closest point of each single-family detached dwelling unit, 
excluding projections allowed per MMC 19.1 2.160 and accessory structures existing at 
the time the townhome or apartment development receives approval by the city. 

1 1 .  On any lot over one acre in area, an additional five percent may be used for 
buildings related to agricultural or forestry practices. 

12. The maximum building coverage shall be 10 percent where the lot is between 1.0 
and 1.25 acres in area. The maximum shall be 15 percent where the lot is less than one 
acre in area. 

13. The impervious surface area shall be: 

a. Twenty percent when the lot is between 1.0 and 1.25 acres; and 

b. Thirty-five percent when the lot is less than one acre in area. 

14. Outside Planning Area 1, in the single-family high density zone, the small lot zone will 
be allowed through the PRD process with the minimum lot size being 5,000 square feet. 

15. Single-family lots within the R-12-28 zones shall utilize the dimensional requirements of 
the R-8 zone, except the base density. 

16. Provided that the front yard setback shall be established as the point at which the 
lot meets the minimum width requirements. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback 
may be reduced to the minimum of 20 feet; provided, that the portion of the structure 
closest to the street is part of the "living area," to avoid having the garage become the 
predominant feature on the lot. 

17. Heights may be increased to 160 feet on nonresidential land uses in R zones, 
including publicly owned facilities, if co-location is provided. 

Land Use Element 
4- 24 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 175

Page 294 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



18. A 25-foot setback only required on property lines adjoining residentially designated 
property, otherwise no specific interior setback requirement. 

19. Subject to sight distance review at driveways and street intersections. 

20. A 20-foot setback is required for multifamily structures. A 20-foot setback is only 
required for commercial structures on property lines adjoining residentially designated 
property, otherwise no specific interior setback requirement. 

21. A 10-foot setback is only required for multiple-family structures on property lines 
adjoining single-family residentially designated property, otherwise the minimum 
setback is five feet. 

22. The 85 percent impervious surface percentage applies to commercial 
developments, and the 75 percent rate applies to multiple-family developments. 

Getting to Smart Growth: 100 Policies for Implementation, ICMA (International CityICounty 
Management Association. 
Getting to Smart Growth 11: 100 More Policies for Implementation, ICMA. 
Best Development Practices: A Primer for Smart Growth, Reid Ewing. 
Pedestrian-and Transit-Friendly Design: A Primer for Smart Growth, Reid Ewing. 
Creating Great Neighborhoods: Density in Your Community, Local Government Commission in 
cooperation with U.S. EPA 
Density by Design-New Directions in Residential Development, Stephen Fader, ULI. 

Land Use Element 
4- 25 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 176

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 295 of 575



EAST SUMMYSIDE-WHISKEY RIDGE 
SUBAREA PLAN 

City of Marysville 
Community Development Department 

December 9,2006 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 1 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 177

Page 296 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



-.-. 
City of Ma rysville . l  L.,.; Marysville City Limits Proposed Arterials Preferred Alternative 120506 

,- - ,- 
DRAFT Marysville Urban Growth Area - PRINCIPLE Community Business --*. 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan ; ' ' ,as, sunnyside Neighborhood - MINOR Mixed Use 
a=; Preferred Alternative , Master Plan Expansion Area - COLLECTOR Multi-Family Medium 

December 6,2006 
Parcels Multi-Family Low 

N Note: Single Family High is 
R 4-8 inside Master Plan area and Single Family High 

Mafisville '. - R 5-7 outside Master Plan area. 
o sao lorn 2 OW Recreation 

Current Business 11 - 178

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 297 of 575



-.-. 
City of Marysville Marysville City Limits Proposed Arterials Preferred Alternative 120506 L.-.a 

DRAFT 
1 - -  

Marysville Urban Growth Area - PRINCIPLE Community Business 
7 --, 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan ' ' ' East Sunnyside Neighborhood - MINOR Mixed Use 
L - r 

East Sunnyside Neighborhood : : :   aster Plan Expansion Area - COLLECTOR ' Multi-Family Medium 

Preferred Alternative 
Parcels Multi-Family Low 

December 6, 2006 N Note: Single Family High is 
R 4-8 inside Master Plan area and Single Family High 
R 5-7 outside Master Plan area. - 

2.0.m Recreation 

Current Business 11 - 179

Page 298 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



PLANNING AREA #4: EAST SUNNYSIDE/WHISKEY RIDGE NEIGHBORHOOD 
This neighborhood is the southeasterly corner of Marysville. It is bounded by Soper Hill 
Road on the south, Highway 9 on the east, 64th Street NEISR 528 on the north, 67th 
Avenue NE and 75h Avenue NE on the west, and 52nd Street NE. The East Sunnyside 
neighborhood is a beautiful area of westward views, steep hillsides, ravines, and woods. 

A special study area has been designated within this neighborhood called the East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge subarea plan. The subarea plan follows the general planning 
area discussion for this neighborhood. 

1. Land -- Uses 

The East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood includes approximately 1595 acres. 

a. Residential 
Residential uses include high density single family and medium density single family 
uses. High density single family, permits duplexes outright. 

b. Commercial 
A potential Neighborhood Commercial location is at the intersection of 44th Street NE 
and 71st Avenue NE. Larger Community Commercial uses are located along Hwy 9, 
from the SR 92 south to Soper Hill Road. Mixed use commercial areas are also proposed 
along the west side of 83rd Avenue, serving as a transition use between adjoining 
Community Commercial and Multifamily land uses. 

Table 4-25 details the land use distribution for this neighborhood under the preferred 
alternative. 

Table 4-25 East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Neighborhood Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation CB MU MFM MFL SFH SFM Rec Total 

Total Acres 
- 

69 47.1 
. . . . 

32.6 

Builable Acres 58.2 46.0 30.9 
. - - . - .- 

Existing DU's 10 17 12 

Existing Pop. 20 49 35 

Existing Employees 0 0 0 

Additional DU's 0 247 245 

Additional Pop. 0 71 6 71 1 

Additional Emplovees 480 177 0 

Total DU's 10 264 
. - -- . 257 

Total Po~ulation 20 766 745 

Total Employees 
. .- 

480 177 0 
. .. . . - -. - - 

Draft Date 12109106 
Page 3 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 180

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 299 of 575



I I .  Housing & Employment Analysis 

Table 4-26 identifies existing and planned dwelling units, population, and employment 
for 2005 and 2025. Figure 4-55 shows the general land use distribution for this 
neighborhood. 

Table 4-26 Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

Dwelling Units 896 - - 4698 - 

Multi Family DU's 1262 
Single Family DU's . 3245 - - .  - 

Population Estimate 1864 - 10532 - 

Employment -- - Estimate - 0 657- 

Figure 4-55 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood Land Use 

East SunnysideMlhiskey Ridge Neighborhood 
Land Use (By Total Acreage) 

Commercial 

78% 

Table 4-26 and Figure 4-55 depict the future land use mix by acreage and dwelling 
units. The preferred alternative would produce a Multi-family to Single Family ratio of 
72% single family and 28% multifamily unit distribution within the planning area. It is 
anticipated that the resulting single family may be higher than reflected in these figures, 
as developers may propose to construct single family units in multiple family zones. 

Draft Date 12/09/06 
Page 4 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 181

Page 300 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Ill. Transportation 

a. Arterial Street Inventory 
Streets and classifications providing access and circulation within the planning area 
and to surrounding neighborhoods and communities are listed in Table 4-27. 

Table 4-27 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood Streets and Classifications 

Street Classification Lanes Description/Comrnent 
64Ih StreetISR 528 Principal Arterial 5 Arterial Streetscape 

4Ih Street to SR-9 

35Ih/4Oth Street (SR 92 extension) Principal Arterial 
[83'd Street to SR- 

- ... - .....-...-.-. 
Sunnyside Blvd. Minor Arterial 

(3'd Street to 
soper Hill R.d) . . .  .. - . .  -. .... 

Soper Hill Road Minor Arterial 
(Sunnyside to SR- 
9)- . . . - . .  

83'"venue NE Minor Arterial 
(64Ih Street to 
Soper Hill Road) - . . . . . . . . .  

67Ih Avenue Minor ~ r te i i a l  - -  

(64Ih Street to 44Ih 
Street) 

.................. 

44Ih Street Minor Arterial 
(8Jd Avenue to 
SR-9) 

52"d Street NE collector ~r t& ia l  
(Sunnyside to 75Ih 
Avenue) 

............ 
44Ih Street ~oi lector  Arterial 

(67th Avenue to 
83'd Avenue) 
.- ..-  ......... 

351p/401h Street (SR 92 extension) Collector Arterial 
(Sunnyside to 83rd 
Avenue) 

.-... - ....... - ....... . . . .  
67Ih/7 1 s t  Avenues Minor Arterial 

(44Ih Street to 
Soper Hill Road) 

............. , .... -- . .  

44Ih Street Collector Arterial 
(Sunnyside to 83'd 
Avenue) 

79Ih Avenue Collector Arterial 
(40th Street to 
Soper Hill Road) 
- . - - -. - - - - 

87Ih Avenue NE (Soper Hill to SR 528) Collector Arterial 

Arterial Streetscape 

Arterial streetscape 
Bicycle lanes 

......... - - - ..... 
Arterial streetscape 
Bicycle lanes 

Arterial Streetscape 
Bicycle lanes (parts) 

.. -- .... 
Arterial streetscape 
Bicycle lanes 

Arterial Streetscape 

- - .......... -- ... 

Bicycle lanes 

. -- -. . - .- 
Bicycle lanes 

Arterial Streetscape 

.- 

Arterial Streetscape 
Bicycle lanes (parts) 

The appropriate standard for classified roads is included for reference and information 
in Appendix A of the Whiskey Ridge subarea plan, however it should be noted that this 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 5 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 182

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 301 of 575



standard can be revised through the Engineering Design and Development Standards 
(EDDS) amendment procedure through subsequent action by the City. 

b. Arterial Street Facility Needs within the Neighborhood 
Projects listed here are identified transportation needs within the subarea. Project 
descriptions, need, cost, funding and timing are identified in the Table 4-28. 

Table 4-28 East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge Major Road Projects 

Improvement Description Timing L?. Need Estimated Cost or 
Proponent if not City of 
Marysville project 

SR 528 (83rd Avenue to Widen to 5 lanes with an Capacity WSDOT 
HwY 9) exclusive bicycle lane. Developer Frontage 

- Improvements 
35'b/40th Street (SR 92 Dedicate right of way ldentified in Whiskey $2,000,000 -City 8 
extension) from 83'* and construct 5 lanes Ridge Subarea Plan Developer Frontage 
Ave to SR-9 for area circulat~on Improvements 

- - 
Sunnys~de Blvd. (52nd W~den to 3 lanes with an Recommended 6 $3,700,000 - 6 year plan, 
Avenue NE to South exclusive bicycle lane. year improvements funding anticipated within 
City limits) 6 years from 

- transportation revenues. 
Soper Hill Road Construct to standard Identified in Whiskey Developer Frontage 

Ridge Subarea Plan lmprovements 

83rd Avenue NE (64Ih Dedicate additional 
Street to Soper Hill Rd) right of way and 

Construct to standard 
67" Avenue (40th St NE Dedicate additional 
to 88Ih St NE) right of way and 

Construct 8 foot 
shoulders lacking curb, 
gutter and sidewalk 

44th Street(connecting Dedicate right of way 
67th Ave NE to SR-9) and construct to 

standard 

f o r r e q  circulatipn-_-. 
ldentified in Whiskey 
Ridge Subarea Plan 
for area c i rcu la t io~_ . - -  

Recommended 20 
year improvements 

Developer Frontage 
lmprovements 

$300,000-6 year plan, 
funding anticipated within 
6 years from 
transportation revenues. 

ldentified in Whiskey 
Ridge Subarea Plan 
for area circulation 

$3,700,000 City 8 
Developer Frontage 
lmprovements 

- 

40th Street (connecting Dedicate right of way ldentified in whiskey-..' $10,600,000 City & 
Sunnyside to 83'd and construct to Ridge Subarea Plan Developer Frontage 
Avenue NE. standard for area circulation Improvements 

67Ih /71st Avenue NE Dedicate right of way ldentified in whiskey-' Developer Frontage 
(connecting 44th Street and construct to Ridge Subarea Plan Improvements 
NE clnd S ~ P ~ L  HillRoad) -%!!td!dd for area circulat@n - - - . - - .. 

c. Transit Facilities and Services 

Currently, Community Transit Route 221 is the primary transit service in the 
neighborhood. It operates on SR 9 and 64th Street (SR-528) connecting Lake Stevens to 
Quil Ceda Village via downtown Marysville. Service is provided all day long at a 
frequency of about one bus per hour. Two commuter routes (CT-421 and CT-821) pass 
by the corner of SR 528 and 67+h Street. Service is limited to the morning and afternoon 
commuter hours. 

Draft Date 12109106 
Page 6 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 183

Page 302 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Transit service areas are usually defined as the properties within 1,500 feet of a bus route 
where stops are made. There are currently bus stops on 64+h Street, which limits effective 
coverage to East Sunnyside residents within 1,500 feet of 64'h Street. 

As the East Sunnyside / Whiskey Ridge Community grows to its capacity of nearly 12,000 
residents, it will require additional public transit services. The future transit routes should 
be designed to provide service to within 1,500 feet of as many residents as possible. It is 
likely, for example, that CT-221 could be rerouted from SR-9 to a collector or minor 
arterial street within the Whiskey Ridge community, such as 83'd Avenue, to allow more 
frequent stops and improved coverage. 

It is prudent therefore, for the City to design streets to support future bus routes to serve 
future residents and employees. Street design considerations should include providing 
additional right-of-way for bus stop locations, bus shelter (pad) locations, and improved 
sidewalk or trail access. This infrastructure should be considered a mitigation expense in 
the same manner as road facilities and non-motorized facilities. 

It is recommended that design of the following streets should include provisions for 
future bus routes as shown on Figure 4-56: 

Sunnyside Boulevard 
Soper Hill Road 
40th / 3Sh Street / SR-92 
83rd Avenue 
67'h / 7 1 s t  Avenues 

Assuming that bus routes will continue to operate on 64th Street, this will provide very 
good coverage of the East Sunnyside / Whiskey Ridge Community as shown on Figure 
4-56. 

d. Non Motorized Facilities 

Multi-purpose trails, bike lanes, sidewalks and other non-motorized facilities should be 
provided for recreational purposes and to encourage commuters to use modes other 
than automobiles to travel to work places and schools. In this regard, it is important to 
locate these facilities near parks, schools, higher density residential, and bus routes. 

It is also important to maintain a grid system of non-motorized facilities so that 
pedestrians and cyclists are not discouraged by long winding routes. Sidewalks should 
be provided on all arterial roads unless a road-side multi-purpose trail is provided. 

A network of trails and bike lanes is shown on Figure 4-57. 

Multi-purpose Trails are recommended in the following corridors: 
Densmore / Sunnyside School Road right-of-way should be converted to a north- 
south trail or a local access road with a road-side trail. 

Draft Date 12/09/06 

Page 7 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 184

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 303 of 575



City of Marysville 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan 
Arterial Functional Classifications 

! 
an1  P ~ N E  - - I ! 

i l i T H  ST 
! 

GJKD f'L N t  . ~ ~. 
--.-- ---. f7 

I 

1 
I 

I 

1 

I 

I 

1 

7 1  

December 8.2006 

.8Tll FL 'IF 1.M PL EIE 

W L 11:- ~- 

I 
II 

z 
x /. 

t 
I!"~'" I - 

t. 
3 

I 3 5 T H S T N E  2 -. 

k2+&i,le\ 0 0 ?,OW Feel - 

5 1 

I I I l H S i N c  I i 
I 1 

i 

3;:H S1 Pit hzk, 1 

t 

3 5 i u  PL EIE ysn, 1 

' ",,' 8 I 

" - 
ARTERIAL - 1 Master Plan Area 

-"" PRINCIPAL c'_'i Marysville city llrnlts - MINOR East Sunnyside Neighborhood - COLLECTOR 

a. 
' ~ T w  PL hlk .'-..d 

1 
' 0- SR B! 

W l l l  5 7  t.E I 1 n 
I I 1 

? d ' I  1 
.n Z 
; 5 ' 1  I 

? 
1 

srht  2 
Yi 

1 

z I 
A 
3. I 1. 

fit ( 1  1 

- 1 
I 

I /  
" bL\PEH HI1 L HD 1 

d 

I7W R "vE 

Figure 2 

Current Business 11 - 185

Page 304 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



4n.1 P L N ~  - .L 

r5 
--73 - --MUST 

, . ! 
7 

i U1 
I 

62ND PLNE + 
L ! 

i 
5 GIST PLNE 

5 

I I 

I 
n13TST1IE 

- <--\. 
'i 

J 

I - - ~ O T H  ri ME 7 - - ~  - - T. ,-a ... 
I 

I 

1" I 
a 

i n k !  STNF 
I 

! 

t 
551H 51 FIE 

I. 
I 

S5rH PL NE ;; 2 $ 
I 

\".. I ." !$ 2 - 
' ITH 5 T  PIE r , ,w ' -. 2 I 

0 $ % t H  PL NE -I I. 2 - - . - 
I 5 ,? 3 I: -, L -- I w d -  - 8  

B 
W 

SCTH S ~ N E  'U i 

I 
-. . 

3 ,, ~ T H  PL LiE 

> 

,. 
u g. !d I  
-2- & 0. ."I'-- 

r b ~ ~  PC*' 
Y CC 
- 1  1QrH ST'NE - , . - 8 

I 
v ,  ' . a ,lsnq 5T %r C W I I / I ~  Wildf7owerAcr.s 

'8 "J Z 
. , I  - Z h 

[*I 
W 5 1.: 7 I I 

I! 3 - 
x r . - h 

I " D 

g~~~~ NE % 46TH EjE i I I 
J * ,  rl PL FIE r' 

3 I 

1 

, $  - - - - 1  JJlH S I N E  

- 
I s r 

-- .. - - 
-I?_ , 

S unnyside Schooi 
L I 

I *-,. J 
\ 

*.  , 
- iU 'C "  - 'kt- u...-.-,--:- .-.*--.-%..- . -. .--- -...- .. -- .- J'!'t.",NL -.A?, -.--,-,,-. --.. 

I Po:enriaI w, 
I % -  

I *% 
w 

--Pa,* 1 - 
MY P: NE I  - .- "ITH PL hE z' JSlH 51 N t  Are9 1 I 

I  W y. 1 % I a fl* 

z 
S ~ n r ~ y s i d e  Elernenta~y Schoolg 

I 
:",'fH<Tnt ' "" ' ' 

C 
- J ! i . .  

" 1 

'! 
. i ' r i ~  S ~ N E  ? 1 J 

I 
35TH PL NE ': JSIHSrElt 2 

> I C ~ , V $  35TH ST PIC 

> WTH PL NE 1 . d 
I n ", "Ro PI N~ 5 ,aL ultl STNE i ] w '  g 1 :?% J IHU PL IIE 

t, &KD STNE 1 
$1. hE -- --. 2 ;  

\ t- L" z 
I 

'.> 
i 1 I 0 2 4 '  

I 

i 7 S l S r N E  I] I 
11 

~ o r n s r r ~ t  
I 

5 13 
I 

? 

* 7 
I  

,:.---~=- -- F- ' 

I 
I 

- - - . - , + ~ c , P E H , H ~ ~ ~ ~  q_,q_,q_,-q_,q_,q_, 

- - E 

City of Marysville I---m- 

i . - . - I  Marysville city limits ---=w+ Existing Community Transit Routes 

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan S C ~ O O I S  A Existing Community Transit stops 

Transit Service 
December 8. 2006 

P Parks - .-' Potential Transit Streets 

Potential Transit Service Coverage Area 

Figure 3 

Current Business 11 - 186

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 305 of 575



A PSE Corridor runs parallel and west of 79th Avenue from Soper Hill Road to 64th 
Street and beyond. Proposed as the Whiskey Ridge Trail it would provide 
excellent north-south connections to homes, parks, shops and bus routes 
52nd Street would provide an excellent east-west opportunity to connect 
Sunnyside Boulevard to Deering Wildflower Acres and the potential Whiskey 
Ridge (PSE) Trail. 

Bike Lanes (or multi-use road-side trails) are recommended in the following corridors: 
Sunnyside Boulevard / Soper Hill Road corridor should include bike lanes and 
sidewalks or a multi-use road-side trail. 
67th / 71~t Avenues from 64th Street to Sunnyside/Soper Hill Road should include 
bike lanes or a multi-use road-side trail. 
44th Street could be a preferably route to 40th Street for bike lanes from 67th 
Avenue to SR-9 and the Densmore/School Road Trail. A connection west of 67th 
Avenue to Sunnyside Boulevard would be desirable. 
54th Street/55th Place could use bike lanes or a trail to provide continuity of the 
52"d Street trail east to the Whiskey Ridge (PSE) Trail and SR-9. 
87'h Avenue would be a preferable north-south route to 83rd Avenue for bike 
lanes or a multi-use road-side trail due to the proximity of 83'd Avenue to the 
potential Whiskey Ridge Trail. 87'h Avenue would also provide continuity of the 
Densmore / Sunnyside School Trail. 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 8 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 187

Page 306 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



d. Transportation Strategies and Issues (Arterial Streets, Transit, and Non- 
motorized Facilities) 
Trans~ortation Proiects 

A number of the projects listed above are unfunded. As a result, it will be especially 
important to work with property owners, citizens and outside agencies to explore 
opportunities for project financing. In many cases, along existing arterial right of way, 
developer frontage improvements will accomplish widening and construction of a full 
urban street standard. In other cases, a road improvement district (RID) may provide a 
mechanism for moving the projects forward. The subarea plan strategies for East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge also include recommendations for use of residential density 
incentives and creditable improvements (toward impact fees) to accomplish needed 
but unfunded projects within the immediate neighborhood. 

The growth in Sunnyside is occurring at much higher rates here than in other parts of the 
city. Currently the minor and collector arterial system is developed to rural standards 
with site specific developer improvements along development frontage. This leaves 
many unimproved and discontinuous sections along major roads. Growth must be 
accompanied by improvements to these rural roads to provide urban level street, 
stormwater and sidewalk improvements. Increases in residential densities should only 
be proposed if transportation facilities can be enhanced by concurrent passage of an 
RID, impact fee assessments or other mechanisms to fund needed road improvements. 
The transportation element identified key transportation connections that must be 
provided with new development. It is essential that these connections occur with new 
development. 

1 )  Sunnyside Boulevard has become a major thoroughfare for vehicles traveling to 
Interstate 5 and Everett as well as Highway 2 and Lake Stevens. Design costs for 
Sunnyside Boulevard, Third Street to 52nd Street NE, were moved to the 6 year 
transportation improvement program project list in 2006 as high growth within the 
subarea has increased traffic and urgency to construct an additional lane (3-lane 
section) and a bike path for bike and pedestrian travel. 

2) Installation of the signal at 52nd Street NE & Sunnyside Boulevard (listed in Sunnyside 
Projects, Table 4-25) is a key priority for this area, as the intersection is currently below 
the accepted level of service. 

3) 35th/40th Street (SR 92 Extension). The Whiskey Ridge subarea plan identified creation 
of a new road alignment at 40th Street/35th Street to SR-9. This proposed road would 
provide a connection to SR-9 at the intersection of SR-92. It would provide another 
east-west arterial other than Sunnyside Boulevard to serve the growing southwest 
portion of the Marysville UGA. It will likely alleviate the need to widen Sunnyside Blvd 
and Soper Hill Road, south of 52nd Street to 5 lanes, which would have affected many of 
the new developments and existing facilities along Sunnyside Blvd. 

4) 67th Avenue/7lSt Avenue connection. Due to topographic, critical area, and 
County approved development patterns, 67th Avenue NE cannot be continued south 
as an arterial south of 44'h Street NE. This significantly reduces the arterial system 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 9 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 188

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 307 of 575



functionality for the southeast portion of the UGA. The City is recommending that 67th 
Avenue NE be connected to 7lSt Avenue NE between 40th Street NE and 44th Street NE 
to provide a southern connection for 67th Avenue NE to Soper Hill Road. This 
connection would also extend 67th Avenue NE to 40th Street NE, and also improve the 
intersection at 44th Street NE and 67th Avenue NE which is a 90 degree arterial turn. 

5) Sunnyside BoulevardlSoper Hill Road Bike Lanes. Bike lanes are proposed on 
Sunnyside Boulevard to Soper Hill Road. This will provide a bicycle access route 
between Marysville and Lake Stevens. 

6) 67'h Avenue NE/71St Avenue Bicycle Lanes. A route is planned between Arlington to 
the north from SR 531 to 44th Street NE connecting to SunnysideISoper Hill Road. This 
would provide a bicycle route between Arlington/Marysville and Lake Stevens. 

7) 44'h Street NE Bicycle Lanes. This will provide a route between 67th Avenue to SR-9 
and the Densmore/School Road Trail. 

8) 83'd/87th Avenue NE Bicycle Lanes. Bike lanes would be constructed on 83rd 
Avenue, north of 44th Street NE and along 87th Avenue, south of 44th Street NE. This 
would also provide continuity of the Densmore / Sunnyside School Trail Bike lanes are 
planned from 88th Street NE extension to Soper Hill Road which will ultimately provide 
connection to the Centennial Trail to the north. This trail also provides connections to 
the towns of Arlington, Lake Stevens and Snohomish. 

9) Whiskey Ridge (PSE) Trail. A proposed pedestrian/multi-purpose trail is proposed 
along the Puget Sound Energy transmission easement east of 79th Avenue NE. This trail 
will provide a separated walk path between the Getchell neighborhood and Southeast 
Marysville. This trail is planned to interconnect with the Centennial Trail. Additional 
interconnections should be planned from the Whiskey Ridge study area and new 
developments. Developments in Snohomish County were not consistently required to 
provide a recreation easement to the City of Marysville, therefore the southern portion 
of the trail should be rerouted south of 44th Street NE for future trail construction to 
provide a continuous route. 

10) Densmore/Sunnyside School Road right of way. The plan proposes designation of a 
trail link at 44th Street to Densmore Road. Densmore Road should be converted to a 
local access road with a modified road standard with multi-use trail for bicycles and 
pedestrians. This would connect to planned sidewalks and bike lanes on Soper Hill 
Road. 

11)52"d Street NE. This collector arterial would provide an excellent east-west 
opportunity to connect Sunnyside Boulevard to Deering Wildflower Acres and the 
potential Whiskey Ridge (PSE) Trail. 

12) 54th Street/55+h Place could use bike lanes or a trail to provide continuity of the 52"d 
Street trail east to the Whiskey Ridge (PSE) trail and SR-9. 

Arterial Streetscape and Gateway treatments 

The majority of the principal, minor and collector arterials are identified as streetscape 
arterial within this plan. The City shall provide standards for plantings and medians 
along these arterials, and provide for attractive pedestrian crossings at key intersection 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 10 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 189

Page 308 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



City of Marysville 
1 - m  

Whiskey Ridge Master Plan .L - Master Plan Area .: Schools 
I.-.- 

Parks, Routes, and Trails Marysville city limits [-.-.I P Parks 

December 8. 2006 East Sunnyside Neighborhood - Multi-use PathITrail 

B i c y c l e  Lanes 

Figure 4 

Current Business 11 - 190

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 309 of 575



and gateways to the City. The southern entrance to the City at Soper Hill Road and 
Highway 9 and the entrance at the proposed access at Hwy 92 and Hwy 9 is a 
designated gateway to the City and subject to the Gateway master plan for design 
and construction of a gateway treatment. 

IV. Parks and Recreation -- 

This planning area has two existing park sites, Deering Wildflower Acres and a potential 
site at the Sunnyside Wells Reservoir, as listed in Table 4-29. There is potential for a trail 
along the power line easement and also potential connection to the Centennial Trail as 
well as the Ebey Waterfront Trail. Figure 9-2 in the Parks and Recreation Element 
illustrates existing and proposed trail systems in the UGA. 

Table 4-29 East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge Neighborhood Park Facilities 
Park Location Size Description 

(acres) 
Deering 4708-79Ih Avenue 30 This park offers trails, natural areas, a meeting room and 
Wildflower NE caretaker's quarters. 
Acres 
Sunnyside Well 40t4treet NE &- 31 This site is undeveloped and owned by the Marysville 
site 71" Avenue NE utility fund. Planned uses include a fire station and new 

-- -.-A  a at el reservoir:^ . . ~_ - .. 

Additional public park sites should be provided to serve additional population 
anticipated in this subarea. Park facilities should include opportunities for active 
recreation. The following need has been identified for the subarea: 

Park Location Size Description 
(acres) 

Walking/Cycling Whiskey Ridge Trail and Dedication and construction of trails 
Trails improvements per Whiskey Ridge along PSE transmission line easement 

subarea plan: and along Densrnore Road 
Densmore Road multi-use trail 

Community Park Whiskey Ridge subarea 10 Identify site, purchase and develop 
boundary 

Community Open East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge 1 O+ Potential acquisition along King 
Space Park ._ suba!eo.~!an _. . ~ .. ... .. .. . . .. Creek .- . - . 
Neighborhood Park Whiskey Ridge subarea 1.5-5 Identify site, purchase and develop 
--- -. _ boundary - .- .- -. - 

VI. Public Services and Facilities 

a. Schools 
Two school districts serve this neighborhood. The Marysville School District provides 
school service generally west of 75th Avenue NE and the Lake Stevens School District 
provides service east of 75th Avenue NE. 

The Marysville School District has one planned elementary school proposed for this 
subarea. The District plans to construct the facility within the next 6 years. The site has 
been identified south of 44th Street NE, east of 71" Avenue NE. 

Draft Date 12109106 

Page 11 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 191

Page 310 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Additional growth in the Lake Stevens School District is expected to result in need for an 
additional elementary school within the area. The Lake Stevens School District owns 
property south of Sunnyside School Road, east of 87th Avenue NE, which is used for their 
bus parking and maintenance facility. 

School Location Size Description 

Marysville school District 44'"treet NE & 71 Avenue NE 10 - P!anneclele.mentary.school, -_- 
10 Lake Stevens School District -.pp-.-..-..-----. ~ -. ~ -- Site -. to .- --- be~~identjfm: - 

b. Water 
Figure 4-56 identifies water lines within the East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood. 

c. Sewer 
Figure 4-57 identifies sewer lines within the East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood. 

VII. Annexation and Development Strate* 

UGA expansions within this neighborhood are subject to a subarea plan for area 
development. The subarea plan is adopted as part of the 2006 subarea update. The 
subarea plan should result in a land use mix consistent with the city housing mix goals 
and reflect a variety of housing types and densities. Property within UGA expansion 
areas shall be required to annex to the city of Marysville as a condition of urban service 
provision (sewer service) and development proposals must be consistent with the city's 
subarea plan for the area. 

Draft Date 12109106 
Page 12 of 29 

Current Business 11 - 192

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 311 of 575



WHISKEY RIDGE SUBAREA PLAN 

The subarea plan area is a subset of Planning Area 4. The preferred alternative 
recommends an expansion of the original subarea plan and is reflected in Figure . The 
expansion would result in a boundary of SR 528 on the north, Highway 9 on the east, and 
Soper Hill Road (28th Street NE) on the south and a westerly boundary generally west of 
75'h Avenue NE. The subarea plan study area includes the entirety of the East 
SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge neighborhood area however, as the subarea plan includes an 
assessment of the surrounding area transportation and land uses with recommendations 
for additional modifications to zoning and development regulations for the entire 
neighborhood planning area. It is an area that forms the southeastern most edge of 
Marysville and is where the City abuts the city of Lake Stevens. This area provides a 
gateway into and out of Marysville and as a result, Marysville wishes to create a 
distinctive urban edge and facilitate the development of enduring and long- term 
neighborhoods for a growing community. Adoption of the subarea plan and 
accompanying development regulations will establish zoning for this area. 

1. Background 

The City of Marysville included the Whiskey Ridge area in the 2005 City comprehensive 
plan update. The Whiskey Ridge subarea plan area was added to the Urban Growth 
Area by Snohomish County in February 2006. The area was annexed to the City of 
Marysville in December 2006. 

. -- II. Land Use- - . -- 

The Whiskey Ridge subarea plan area covers 444 total gross acres. The preferred land 
use plan is shown in Figure 4-58. It is largely undeveloped and property is held in large 
predominately 10+ acre tracts. The development of the subarea plan is based on 
several guiding principles and a vision for creation of enduring neighborhoods. These 
principles are adapted from Smart Growth policies, existing City of Marysville 
comprehensive plan goals & policies, and input of community leaders and citizens 
through land use forums and discussions. 

Guidina Principles and Policies 

1. Mix Land Uses 
2. Take Advantage of Compact Building Design 
3. Create a Range of Housing Opportunities and Choices 
4. Create Walkable Communities and Five-Minute Neighborhoods 
5. Foster Distinctive, Attractive Communities with a Strong Sense of Place 
6. Preserve Open Space, Natural Beauty, and Critical Environmental Areas 
7. Increase Densities in Appropriate Locations 
8. Promote Higher Quality Density by Incentive Zoning 
9. Connect People to Places 
10. Create Opportunities for a Healthy Community with opportunities for Physical 

Activity 
1 1. Create Great Places for People 

Land Use Element 
4- 13 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 193

Page 312 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Land Use Vision 
The vision for Whiskey Ridge is to create an urban community that provides an 
attractive gateway into Marysville and that becomes a prototype for developing 
neighborhoods within the City. Marysville included the Whiskey Ridge area within its 
comprehensive plan and required annexation of the community prior to development 
application or approval for the primary reason of wanting to exert land use control. . 
Assignment of land uses and land use regulation provides the greatest tool for ensuring 
an area's long term vitality and productivity to the community at large. Marysville was 
interested in ensuring a land use mix within this area to balance the largely single family 
residential growth occurring throughout the Sunnyside area and also to ensure that new 
neighborhoods were created as long-term neighborhoods. 

The intent of the subarea plan is to ensure that and growth contributes to the 
community and to creation of a long-term neighborhood. Certainly new development 
within the UGA provides additional housing, some of which will be affordable in keeping 
with GMA goals. New residential developments in the Whiskey Ridge area should 
provide address site planning to integrate with the surrounding planned developments 
as well as provide attractive internal layout. What this means is that new 
neighborhoods should enhance rather than diminish the surrounding area. This might 
occur through provision of transportation improvements that promote neighborhood 
walkability, population at a density to support transit and commercial services in the 
surrounding area, support of new facilities stretched by continuing population growth, 
retention of open space or parks within developing neighborhoods. As the area's 
natural open spaces decreases, the substitution of quality urban places should fill the 
gap. While recognizing the importance of affordability, this plan encourages an 
appropriate mix of housing types meeting a range of income levels. "Starter" 
neighborhoods for low-income and first-time homebuyers should be well-designed so 
that singles and families might choose to continue living in these neighborhoods even 
when their income levels might allow alternative housing options due to the attractive 
neighborhood setting and well-proportioned building design. In addition, the City 
should encourage neighborhoods representing a diverse range of lot and unit types 
that provide a maximum array of housing choices for Marysville residents. This includes 
apartments for families as well as singles and seniors, convalescent care, group housing 
and ranging from low to upper-income single family homes. 

The Whiskey Ridge area provides a combination of beautiful westward views to the 
Snohomish river estuary, Everett and Sound, as well as steep hillsides, ravines, and 
woods. Within the greater area, there are creeks, wetlands and large ponds that will 
be preserved under critical areas ordinances and buffers. These provide larger tracts 
for protection of area habitat and wildlife. Some of these nature preserves could be 
acquired by nonprofit agencies or the City to provide access to the public for nature 
trails and passive recreation. The future will include full urban services, an active civic 
life for its residents built around distinct, strong residential neighborhoods, quality schools 
and other public buildings, convenient shopping and services, and areas of 
employment. Marysville is also committed to creation of a land use mix that provides 
both jobs and housing with commercial services in proximity the area's growing 
residential community throughout the Sunnyside (Planning Area 3) and East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge (Planning Area 4) neighborhoods. The urbanized Whiskey 
Ridge should have an outstanding system of public services and facilities, including 
schools, fire station, open spaces, active and passive recreation parks, trails, 

Land Use Element 
4- 14 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 194

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 313 of 575



-.-. 
City of Ma rysville 1 Marysville City Limits L.-.a Proposed Arterials Preferred Alternative 120506 

DRAFT 
7 -  - , 

Marysville Urban Growth Area - PRINCIPLE Community Business 
4C))li 

Whiskey Ridge Master Pian ; ' ' East Sunnyside Neighborhood - MINOR Mixed Use 
= a 

Preferred Alternative a I  aster Plan Expansion Area - COLLECTOR Multi-Family Medium 
December 6,2006 

+I. 

Parcels Multi-Family Low 
Note: Single Family High is 

/A, R 4-8 inside Master Plan area and Single Family High 
lkik$&iltc \s - R 5-7 outside Master Plan area. - Yio lorn 

.... 
>.OM - Recreation 

Current Business 11 - 195

Page 314 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



commercial plazas, gateway features, and streetscape corridors. The sensitive 
environmental areas of Whiskey Ridge (wetlands, forested areas, streams) are 
incorporated into the urban design of the area. Streams are buffered and protected 
from direct urban runoff. Trails for pedestrian, bicycle and other non-motorized use are 
incorporated into open space planning and buffers, where appropriate. These 
sensitive areas remain in native plantings to provide water quality and quantity 
protection. Development regulations require identification and protection of significant 
stands of trees. 

Shopping is concentrated around transportation corridors, specifically Highway 9. 
Accesses to shopping and employment areas are direct and efficient, capitalizing on 
the proximity to SR-9, SR-92, Soper Hill Road and SR528. Commercial areas emphasize 
pedestrian uses and have parking to the side of or in back of buildings. Commercial 
buildings relate to the street, and have features, such as plazas, windows on the street, 
distinctive entrances. Street cafes, street furniture, kiosks, and landscaping should 
provide attractive gathering places for area residents. Some small scale office and 
general services are located within neighborhoods providing convenient services such 
as daycare, medicalldental and personal care within the neighborhood. 

Higher density housing takes the form of small lot single family attached and detached, 
providing new opportunities for homeownership. Multiple family apartments are well 
designed to integrate with adjoining single family areas. All higher density housing is 
located within a 114 mile of an open space, park and/or trail system. Arterials in the 
higher density section are designed as boulevards, with a center planting area to 
provide additional green space and safe crossing for pedestrians. 

A variety of medium density detached housing opportunities fill in the spaces between 
the centers separated by boulevards, parks and/or trails. The community also has areas 
of mixed use, (housing, services and retail uses) which provide a place to live and work 
where one can walk or bike to homes, stores and services all located in a concentrated 
area. Mixed-use areas have a variety of public spaces, including village greens, public 
art spaces, street trees, furniture and plazas. 

Urban level roads are provided in a hybrid system of strong minor and collector arterials 
and neighborhood access streets. Residential developments are developed with good 
access and circulation to the collector/arterial system but developed in individual 
neighborhood clusters of 60-80 units per cluster. 

Urban level services include stormwater, roads, sewer and water. Stormwater systems 
are attractively designed so that the streets are not dominated by large concrete 
structures along the arterial frontage. Instead natural pond systems, underground 
vaults are used when feasible. If structures are placed along in view of public right of 
way, they are setback with substantial landscaping or construction is a decorative 
block wall with landscaping along the street frontage. 

Conclusions 
The Whiskey Ridge subarea plan area should provide a more balanced residential and 
commercial land use mix. To date, the growth in this and the adjoining neighborhood 
has been predominately housing - single family housing. Future uses should include a 
blend of high and medium density single and low to medium density multiple family 
housing. The subarea plan also includes accompanying development regulations to 
implement the land use plan vision, goals, and policies. These include incentives for 
providing additional community features including capital improvements, gathering 
places, gateway monuments and other amenities to enhance the growing 
neighborhood. 

Land Use Element 
4- 15 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 196

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 315 of 575



KEY CONCEPTS 

1. Ensure adequate public facilities are planned to serve the area. These facilities 
include: 

a. Southeast Marysville Fire Station 

b. Lake Stevens School District new elementary school 

c. Neighborhood Parks -1  -2 ( 1  .5-5 acres) 

d. Community Park - 1 ( 1  0+ acres) 

e. Community Open Space - 1 (lo+ acres) 

f .  Trails - Whiskey Ridge Trail and extensions through neighborhoods 

2. Require that transportation impacts to this area are addressed through impact fees. 
Establish a secondary impact fee to support unfunded road projects needed for 
development within the subarea plan area. 

3. Provide for commercial uses along Highway 9. These uses while visible from Highway 
9, should provide a community orientation with four-sided architecture. Sites and 
buildings should be attractive from Highway 9, as well as adjoining public streets 
such as 87th Avenue NE and internal parking access. 

4. Commercial uses at Highway 9 should provide for opportunities and building 
orientation towards surrounding neighborhoods. While visibility from Highway 9 may 
be important, the primary vehicle access and orientation should be from 
surrounding neighborhoods. 

5. Collector and minor arterials should provide substantial landscaping in keeping with 
the arterial streetscape plans for each arterial. 

6. A connection to Highway 9 at SR 92 should be provided to provide east-west 
connectivity between Sunnyside Boulevard and Hwy 9. 

7. The planned SR92 connection should be constructed as a boulevard, with 
substantial landscaping and streetscape improvements between SR 9 and 87th 
Avenue NE. 

8. Densmore Road should be considered for a modified road standard with wide multi- 
use trail for connection to the planned Whiskey Ridge trail to provide pedestrian and 
bicycle connectivity through Marysville, and promote pedestrian activity from the 
residential neighborhoods to the commercial center. 

9. Plan Mixed use areas along Highway 9 adjacent to the commercial center. 

10. Develop design standards and guidelines to upgrade the quality of neighborhoods. 

1 1. Promote development of attractive streets by requiring consistent fencing, walls and 
landscaping along arterial street frontage. 

12. Promote development of attractive streets by requiring stormwater systems along 
arterial streets to be natural pond systems, underground vaults, or set back with 
additional landscaping to screen visibility from roadways. 

13. Provide for flexible zoning that allows for a mix of single family and multi-family uses 
within residential zones. 

14. Use incentive zoning as a tool to encourage higher quality higher density 
development and physical improvements to the neighborhood. 

Land Use Element 
4- 16 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 197

Page 316 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



15. Residential uses along Highway 9 will be protected from impacts of highway noise, 
visibility and future widening by construction of a decorative concrete wall. 

16. Power lines along arterial streetscape streets will be relocated underground to 
provide a clean visual line along the right of way frontage. 

17. Create a gateway at Hwy 92 and SR 9 and at Soper Hill Road and SR9. 

LAND USE ALTERNATIVES AND RECOMMENDED PLAN 

Staff prepared six land use alternatives for analysis prior to recommending a preferred 
alternative. These alternatives reflected different transportation and land use 
concepts. The land use concepts were developed to coincide with the various 
transportation concepts under review. For instance, where a higher classification 
arterial is proposed, the land use was intensified along the connection. 

The land use designations are also unique to the subarea plan, with density and 
dimensions for the residential zones defined in the plan. The zones are constructed 
using a base density as well as maximum density. The goal is to provide for a mix of lot 
sizes within a specified range and land use type. Within the single family zone, a base 
density of 4.5 dulacre is established by this plan. A maximum density of 8 dulacre is 
achievable utilizing MMC 19.26, Residential Density Incentives. This allows projects to 
provide additional on-site and off-site neighborhood amenities to attain a higher 
project density. It will also create a mix of lot sizes within each zones. Within the 
multifamily zone, a base density of 6 is established for single family detached units, and 
10 dulacre for multifamily buildings. The zone allows a maximum density of 18 dulacre. 
Single famly and multiple family units are allowed within multi-family zones. The Mixed 
Use zone has a base density of 12 dulacre and a maximum of 18 dulacre. The Mixed 
use zone allows multi-family developments, commercial uses, and mixed 
commercial/multi-family projects. Single family development is not permitted within 
the Mixed Use zone. The density and dimensions for each zone are described in Section 
Vlll of this plan. 

Following Planning Commission workshops, public open house, agency comment, and 
technical review of transportation issues, a preferred alternative was developed. The 
preferred alternative will implement the "Key Concepts" identified in this plan. Future 
development within the subarea plan will be required to meet the objectives of this 
plan and referenced standards. 

Table 4-25details the land use distribution for each alternative. 

Table 4-25 Preferred Alternative Land Capacity, 2005 - 2025 

Land Use Designation C B MU MFM MFL SFH R EC Total 

Total Acres 69.0 47.1 32.6 

Builable Acres 58.2 46.0 30.9 
- -. 

Existing DU's 10 17 
-- 

12 

Existing Pop. 20 49 
- . .. . - - 35 

Existing Employees 0 0 . 0 

Additional DU's 0 247 
-. . -- . - - 

245 

Additional Pop. 0 71 6 71 1 

Additional Employees 480 177 0 - 

Land Use Element 
4- 17 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 198

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 317 of 575



- -- -- 
Total DU's 10 264 25 7 74 1 1183 1 2456 - - 
Total Population 20 766 745 2149 2366 2 6048 - 
Total Employees 

-- 
480 177 0 0 0 0 657 

- -  - 

Following workshops with the Planning Commission, public open house, and solicitation 
of public comment, Community Development staff is recommending a preferred 
alternative. The preferred alternative most closely resembles Alternative 4, of the initially 
identified six alternatives. The preferred alternative is shown in Figure 4-58. 

Ill. Housing & Employment Analysis 

Existing and 2025 planned dwelling units, population, and employment figures are listed 
in Table 4-30. 

Table 4-30 Preferred Alternative Housing and Employment, 2005 and 2025 

2005 2025 
Dwelling Units 21 0 2456 --- 
Multi family DU's 1262 
Single ~ a m i l ~  DU's - 1183 . - 
Population Estimate 492 6048 - - - - - - - . -. - - 
Employment Estimate 0 - 657 . - 

Figure 4-56 Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan Land Use 

Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 
Land Use (By Total Acreage) 

Commercial 
16% 

Single Family 
57% 

Table 4-30 and Figure 4-56 depict the future land use mix by acreage and dwelling 
units. The preferred alternative would produce a Multi-family to Single Family unit ratio 
of 48% single family and 52% multifamily unit distribution within the subarea plan. 
However, it is anticipated that the resulting single family unit distribution may be higher 

Land Use Element 
4- 18 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 199

Page 318 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



than reflected in these figures, as developers may propose construction of single family 
units in multiple family zones. 

- IV. Transportation 

a. Street Inventory 
Fortunately this planning area has multiple existing north-south arterial right of ways on 
the east side of the study area. The addition of new east-west collectors and 
completion of designated collectors will strengthen area circulation. Due to rather 
extensive wetland and stream systems in the Sunnyside neighborhood (Planning Area 
3), Development of the area immediately west of the subarea plan did not include 
planning for through arterials (minor or collector). This places more urgency on 
development of a more effective circulation system on East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge 
to allow traffic to move through the community at least impact to individual 
neighborhoods and to serve area growth for future decades. 

Many of the existing right of ways were developed as access to farms and rural 
homesites. The majority of the road network consists of rural roadway sections with 
weathered asphalt pavement, narrow gravel shoulders if any and ditches for storm 
water collection. 

The area streets are identified and classified in Section llla of the Planning Area 4 -East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood summary. The following table identifies 
transportation segments addressed within the subarea plan. 

Land Use Element 
4- 19 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Table 4-31 
Recommended Arterial Road System 

From To 1 Lanes - 

Principal Arterials 
SR 528 (64th St.) 
35th / 40th Street (SR92 
extension) 
Minor Arterials 
Sunnyside Boulevard 
Soper Hill Road 
83rd Avenue 
67th Avenue 
52nd Street 
54th Street 
44th Street 
40th Street 
67th / 71st Avenues 

4th Street 
83rd Street 

3rd Street 
Sunnyside 
64th Street 
64th Street 
Sunnyside 

83rd Avenue 
83'd Avenue 
Sunnyside 
44th Street 

Collector Arterials 

SR-9 

44th Street 
79th Avenue (parts) 
87'h Avenue (parts) 

5 
SR-9 5 

2 
2 
2 

67'h Avenue 
40th Street 
64:h Street 

Soper Hill Road 
SR-9 

Soper Hill Road 
44+h Street 

75'h Avenue 
SR-9 
SR-9 

83rd Avenue 
Soper Hill Road 

83rd Avenue 
Soper Hill Road 
Soper Hill Road 

3 

3 
3 
3 
3 

3 
3 
3 

Current Business 11 - 200

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 319 of 575



b. Transit Facilities and Services 

Transit facilities and services are described in Section lllc of the Planning Area 4 East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood summary. Recommendations from lllc to 
provide transit routes along identified streets shall be implemented with this plan. 

Identified streets should be designed to support future bus routes to serve future 
residents and employees. Street design considerations should include providing 
additional right-of-way for bus stop locations, bus shelter (pad) locations, and improved 
sidewalk or trail access. This infrastructure should be considered a mitigation expense in 
the same manner as road facilities and non-motorized facilities. 

It is recommended that design of the following streets should include provisions for 
future bus routes as shown on Figure 4-56: 

Sunnyside Boulevard 
Soper Hill Road 
40th / 35th Street / SR-92 
83rd Avenue 
67th / 7 1 st Avenues 

Assuming that bus routes will continue to operate on 64th Street, this will provide very 
good coverage of the East Sunnyside / Whiskey Ridge Community as shown on Figure 
4-56. 

c. Transportation Strategies and Issues 

This plan provides for a secondary impact fee to construct certain identified road 
projects. It also provides for the use of residential density incentives (RDI) to assist with 
construction of missing pedestrian and bicycle facilities within the community. New 
development is also required to construct frontage improvements (curb, gutter, 
sidewalks) along project frontage. The combination of these fees and regulatory 
mechanisms will provide necessary transportation facilities for proposed new 
construction. 

T rc ln~~~r ta t i ~n  Proiects. 

Primary transportation strategies and projects within the study area include the 
following: 

1 )  Intersection improvement on the west side of Highway 9 at SR 92 to provide for 
connection to Marysville. This road connection, 35th/40th Street (SR 92 extension) 
is expected to provide alternative access from Sunnyside Boulevard to Highway 
9. 

2 )  Dedication and Construction of 3Sh Street NE/40th Street extension from SR 92 
and Hwy 9. 

3) Dedication and Construction of 67'h Avenue NE extension to 71s' Avenue NE 
between 44th Street NE and 40th Street NE. 

Land Use Element 
4- 20 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 201

Page 320 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



4) Widening to 3 lanes and rebuild of Sunnyside Blvd between 52nd Street NE and 
Soper Hill Road. 

5) Widening and frontage improvements for existing arterial streets within the study 
area, including 83rd Avenue NE, 87+h Avenue NE. 

The City will collect a secondary traffic impact fee to fund necessary road projects 
within the subarea plan area. Right of way and construction costs associated with 
these projects listed in Table 4-31 are creditable towards the subarea plan traffic 
impact fee, which applies as a secondary traffic impact fee within the subarea plan 
area. Right of way dedications for these arterials may be included in net project area. 

Projects included in the secondary traffic impact fee are as follows: 

Table 4-31 Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan Road Projects (subset of Planning Area 4 
projects) 

Improvement Description Timing & Need Estimated Cost or 
Proponent if not City of 
Marysvllle project 

35Ih/40th Street (SR 92 Dedicate right of way Identified in Whiskey City and Developer 
extension between and construct to Ridge Subarea Plan Frontage Improvements 
Sunnyside Blvd and SR- standard for area circulation $20,000,000 
9 ) .  . . . - - ~ ~ . 

67MhAve/71st Avenue Dedicate right of way Identified in Whiskey City and Developer 
(between 44Ih And 40th and construct to Ridge Subarea Plan Frontage Improvements 
Street NEJ standard fo~~area  circulation _'Ee$oo 

The total project road improvement cost is $22,400,000. Land uses within the subarea 
plan are projected to generate an additional 3426 PM peak hour trips by build-out. 

The secondary impact fee has been calculated at $5,837 per peak hour trip. Using the 
47% applied discount that was reached in the City's transportation element for the 
original impact fee calculations, this results in a fee of $3,094/PMPHT. This secondary 
impact fee applies to new development within the subarea plan area. New 
development is also subject to the city-wide impact fee amount of $31 75/PMPHT. 

Transit Facilities and Services within the Neiqhborhood. 

Due to the lack of existing transit service in the study area, the City should work with 
Community Transit to identify new opportunities for transit stops, shelters and routes to 
serve the area as it develops. Potential for additional routes and stops may emerge at 
the intersection of SR 92 and Hwy  9 as Route 221 currently travels along Hwy 9. In 
addition, streets identified as potential transit streets, Section IVc above, shall be 
designed to accommodate future bus routes. 

Non-motorized System Im~rovements 

Non-motorized facilities are described in Section IVd of the Planning Area 4 East 
Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge neighborhood section. Recommended facility 
improvements including construction of bicycle lanes and multi-use trails shall be 
implemented with this plan during road design and development review. 

Land Use Element 
4- 21 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 202

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 321 of 575



V. Parks and Recreation .- - 

Existing and needed facilities are identified in Section IV of the East Sunnyside/Whiskey 
Ridge Planning Area 4 discussion. There are no active park facilities within the subarea 
plan or larger planning area 4 boundary. Needed facilities are as follows: 

Additional public park sites should be provided to serve additional population 
anticipated in the subarea plan and subarea. Park facilities should include 
opportunities for active recreation. The following need has been identified for the 
subarea: 

Park Location Size Description 
(acres) 

Walking/Cycling Whiskey Ridge Trail and improvements Dedication and construction of 
Trails per Whiskey Ridge subarea plan trails 
Community Park Whiskey Ridge subarea boundary 10 Identify site, purchase and 

develop active recreation 
facility 

Community Open East SunnysideIWhiskey Ridge subarea 10 Potential pond acquisition for 
Space boundary ~ ~ natural a x a  
Neighborhood Park Whiskey Ridge subarea boundary 1.5-5 Identify site, purchase and 

.. . . . . - . de"-doe 

An open space network with parks and bicycle, pedestrian and other non-motorized 
access shall be integrated into development of this area. The alignment, along the PSE 
easement, called the Whiskey Ridge trail would provide a linear park throughout the 
East Sunnyside/Whiskey Ridge subarea. 

VI. Environmental and&source Management 

a. Surface Water 
The subarea plan area is within three drainage basins. From north to south, the 
northwest corner is in the Allen/Munson Creek drainage basin draining to Ebey Slough; 
the northeast and east portion of the subarea plan area drains to Stephens Creek and 
Lake Stevens: the central and western part of the subarea plan includes King Creek 
and the Sunnyside basin draining to Ebey Slough, and the southeast portion includes 
Hulbert Creek, also in the Sunnyside basin. 

b. Stormwater Management 
Various studies have been prepared for surface water management within these 
basins. One project was identified in the vicinity of the subarea plan by Snohomish 
County SWM in the County's 2001 Lake Stevens UGA Plan. The project ID is HUL4 on 
Figure 6-1 of the Plan. It is described as roadway flooding due to the culvert at 83'd 
Avenue NE. The proposed improvement is to replace the existing 12-in diameter culvert 
with a 30-in diameter culvert at a cost of $23,000. 

Regulatory controls for managing surface water with new development include 
adoption by the local jurisdiction of stringent storm water standards and critical areas 
regulations. To this end, the City of Marysville has adopted the latest edition of the 
Department of Ecology's Stormwater Management Manual for the Puget Sound Basin. 
The Ecology Manual sets forth requirements for water quality treatment, source control 
for pollution-generating sites, and stormwater detention. Proposed new construction 

Land Use Element 
4- 22 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 203

Page 322 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



projects are required to obtain the City's approval for stormwater management plans 
before any construction begins. In addition, in early 2005 the City adopted updated 
requirements for critical areas protection using best available science in compliance 
with GMA requirements. 

Recommended Stormwater Desisn Considerations 

The following are some further recommendations for the design of stormwater facilities 
for the subarea plan: 

1 )  Where depth to groundwater allows, stormwater infiltration is recommended 
2) Minimize use of constructed facilities by utilizing low impact development 
techniques through site planning and development. 
3) Provide aesthetic design of visible pond facilities. Facilities along arterial streetscape 
roadways should utilize ground-level open pond systems, as opposed to above ground 
construction of detention facilities that are visible from arterials. Facilities should be 
either natural looking ponds and swales or underground vaults. Where there is no 
alternative to above ground concrete block facilities, walls must be constructed to 
provide and aesthetically pleasing design or the facility must provide an additional 
landscaping setback from roadways to screen the facility from public view. 
4) Provide adequate access for maintenance of drainage easements and detention 
ponds 
5) Provide pretreatment and source control for all applicable land uses. 

c. Wetlands and Streams 
The City of Marysville regulates developments that affect critical areas, including 
streams and wetlands. These regulations have been reviewed within the 
comprehensive plan and development regulations for best available science. No 
construction is permitted in these buffers except for low impact uses such as pedestrian 
trails, viewing platforms, utility lines, and certain stormwater management facilities such 
as grass-lined swales provided they do not have a negative effect on the stream or 
wetland. 

-- VII. Public Services . - and Facilities 
a. Schools 
The Lake Stevens School District provides school services to the subarea plan area. The 
District owns property south of Sunnyside School Road, east of Densmore Road, and 
west of Highway 9. The site is used for the District's bus barn facility. The District has 
identified a need for an additional elementary school to serve this growing area. 
Elementary school sites are typically 1 1 -1  5 acres. 

b. Water 
Snohomish County PUD # 1  provides water service to this area. The City of Marysville is 
currently in negotiations with PUD to purchase their existing facilities. 

c. Sewer 
Sewer service to the Whiskey Ridge area will require sewer improvements as identified in 
the Whiskey Ridge Sewer Plan. 

VIII. Development Strategies 

This plan includes a more specific subarea plan for the Whiskey Ridge subarea plan 
area that shall be the basis for review of development proposals. It includes a 

Land Use Element 
4- 23 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 204

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 323 of 575



conceptual road plan, and open space and trail network as shown in Figure 4-. Street 
standards, including streetscape and improvement standards are herein incorporated. 
1 All of the Key Concepts identified in the land use discussion of the subarea plan shall 
be enforced as regulatory controls on the development of land within the subarea 
plan. In the event of conflict with the City's development regulations, the subarea plan 
ordinance shall control. 

In addition to the above development controls and requirements, the plan 
recommends the use of zones with a broader range of base density. This will allow for a 
mix of lot sizes, dependent on use of MMC 19.26, Residential Density Incentives. 

The following density and dimensional controls shall apply: 

Whiskey Ridge Subarea Plan zones. 

(1 ) Densities and Dimensions. 

Referenced standards can be subsequently amended by the City utilizing the Engineering 
Design and Development Standards procedure for updates. 

Land Use Element 
4- 24 

Density: Dwelling unitlacre 
(6) 

Maximum density: Dwelling 
unitlacre ( 1  ) 

Minimum street setback (3) 
(18) 

Minimum side yard setback 
(3) 

Minimum rear yard setback 
(3) 

Base height 

Maximum building coverage: 
Percentage (5) 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Multi-Family, R6- 
18 

(1  5) 

6 du/ac 
(detached single 
family) 

10 dulac 
(attached multi 
family) 

18 dulac 

20 ft (23) 

10 ft ( 1  0) 

25 ft 

35 ft (4) 

40% 

Single 
Family 
High, R4-8 

4.5 du/ac 

8 

20 ft (8) 

5 ft ( 1  0) 

20 ft 

30 ft 

40% 

Mixed Use 
MU (16) 

12 du/ac 

18 dulac 

20 ft (23) 

None (20) 

None (20) 

45 ft. 

- 

CB 

-- 

None 
(19, 23) 

25 ft. 
(18) 

25 ft. 

(18) 

55 ft. 

- 

Current Business 11 - 205

Page 324 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Maximum impervious surface: 
Percentage (5) 

Minimum lot area for 
duplexes (2) 

50% 

I I I I 

I~inimum lot width (3) 140 ft 170 ft 

Minimum lot area 

I I 

WCF height (1  7) 160 ft  160 ft 

5,000 sq. f t  

Minimum lot frontage on cul- 
de-sac, sharp curve, or 
panhandle ( 1  6) 

(2) Development Conditions. 

1 .  a. The maximum density for may be achieved only through the application of 
residential density incentive provisions outlined in Chapter 19.26 MMC. 

- 

20 ft 

2. The minimum lot sizes for duplexes apply to lots or parcels which existed on or before 
the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter. All new duplex lots created 
through the subdivision or short subdivision process shall be a minimum of 7,200 square 
feet in size, must include a "duplex disclosure," and comply with the density 
requirements of the comprehensive plan (eight units per acre for the Single Family 
zone). 

- 

3. These standards may be modified under the provisions for zero lot line and townhome 
developments. 

None 

4. a. Height limits may be increased when portions of the structure which exceed the 
base height limit provide one additional foot of street and interior setback beyond the 
required setback for each foot above the base height limit: provided, that the 
maximum height may not exceed 60 feet. 

None 

b. Multiple-family developments, located outside of Planning Area 1, abutting or 
adjacent to areas zoned as single-family, or areas identified in the comprehensive plan 
as single-family, may have no more floors than the adjacent single-family dwellings, 
when single-family is the predominant adjacent land use. 

5. Applies to each individual lot. Building coverage and impervious surface area 
standards for: 

a. Regional uses shall be established at the time of permit review; or 

b. Nonresidential uses in residential zones shall comply with MMC 19.12.200. 

6. a. The densities listed for the single-family zones are net densities. 

b. Mobile home parks shall be allowed a maximum density of eight dwelling units per 
acre, unless located in the SF, R-4.5 or R-6.5 zones, in which case they are limited to the 
density of the underlying zone. 

Land Use Element 
4- 25 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 206

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 325 of 575



7. The standards of the R-4.5 zone shall apply if a lot is less than 15,000 square feet in 
area. 

8. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback may be reduced to 10 feet; provided, 
that at least 20 linear feet of driveway is provided between any garage, carport, or 
other fenced parking area and the street property line, or the lot takes access from an 
alley. The linear distance shall be measured in a straight line from the nearest point of 
the garage, carport or fenced area to the access point at the street property line. In 
the case of platted lots, no more than two consecutive lots may be reduced to 10 feet. 

9. Residences shall have a setback of at least 50 feet from any property line if adjoining 
an agricultural zone either within or outside the city limits. 

10. For townhomes or apartment developments, the setback shall be the greater of: 

a. 20 feet along any property line abutting R-4.5 through R-8, and RU zones: or 

b. The average setback of the R-4.5 through R-8 zoned single-family detached dwelling 
units from the common property line separating said dwelling units from the adjacent 
townhome or apartment development, provided the required setback applied to said 
development shall not exceed 60 feet. The setback shall be measured from said 
property line to the closest point of each single-family detached dwelling unit, 
excluding projections allowed per MMC 19.12.1 60 and accessory structures existing at 
the time the townhome or apartment development receives approval by the city. 

1 1 .  On any lot over one acre in area, an additional five percent may be used for 
buildings related to agricultural or forestry practices. 

12. The maximum building coverage shall be 10 percent where the lot is between 1.0 
and 1.25 acres in area. The maximum shall be 15 percent where the lot is less than one 
acre in area. 

13. The impervious surface area shall be: 

a. Twenty percent when the lot is between 1 .O and 1.25 acres; and 

b. Thirty-five percent when the lot is less than one acre in area. 

14. Outside Planning Area 1, in the single-family high density zone, the small lot zone will 
be allowed through the PRD process with the minimum lot size being 5,000 square feet. 

15. Single-family lots and units within the MF, R-12-28 zones shall utilize the dimensional 
requirements of the R-8 zone, except the base density. 

16. Provided that the front yard setback shall be established as the point at which the 
lot meets the minimum width requirements. On a case-by-case basis, the street setback 
may be reduced to the minimum of 20 feet; provided, that the portion of the structure 
closest to the street is part of the "living area," to avoid having the garage become the 
predominant feature on the lot. 

17. Heights may be increased to 160 feet on nonresidential land uses in R zones, 
including publicly owned facilities, if co-location is provided. 

18. A 25-foot setback only required on property lines adjoining residentially designated 
property, otherwise no specific interior setback requirement. 

Land Use Element 
4- 26 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 207

Page 326 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



19. Subject to sight distance review at driveways and street intersections. 

20. A 20-foot setback is required for multifamily structures. A 20-foot setback is only 
required for commercial structures on property lines adjoining residentially designated 
property, otherwise no specific interior setback requirement. 

21. A 10-foot setback is only required for multiple-family structures on property lines 
adjoining single-family residentially designated property, otherwise the minimum 
setback is five feet. 

22. The 85 percent impervious surface percentage applies to commercial 
developments, and the 75 percent rate applies to multiple-family developments. 

23. Required landscaping setbacks for developments on the north side of Soper Hill 
Road are 25 feet from edge of sidewalk. 

Land Use Element 
4- 27 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 208

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 327 of 575



EXHIBIT A 

Engineering Design and Development Standards for Area Roads and Multi-Use Trails 

Land Use Element 
4- 28 

Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

Current Business 11 - 209

Page 328 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



w 
'I 

2 
a 
a 
0 

1s 
Q 
m 

12'  11' * 6' - 
TRAVEL LANE 

SLOPE 2% 

NOTES F MINIMUM 3" COMPACTED DEPTH 

1. CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE CEMENT CONCRETE CLASS 13 ASPHALT CONCRETE 

BARRIER CURB & GUTTER PER SECTION 3-514.  
MINIMUM 6" COMPACTED DEPTH ASPHALT 

2. CURB AND SIDEWALK JOINTS AS PER MARYSVILLE TREATED BASE COURSE (A.T.B.) 

SECTION 3 - 5 1  5. 

3. REFER TO SECTION 3 - 3 0 3  FOR DRIVEWAY DETAILS. 

4. CURB RAMP DETAILS AS PER SECTION 3-516. * SEE APPENDIX B FOR NUMBER OF 
LANES AND RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTHS 

5 .  THIS DRAWING ILLUSTRATES A MINIMUM ASPHALT CONCRETE 
ROAD SECTION. ACTUAL SURFACING DESIGN FOR ARTERIALS ** 6 ' - 0 "  ADJACENT TO CURB, 5'-0" ADJACENT 
AND COMMERCIAL ACCESS STREETS SHALL BE BASED ON SOILS TO PLANTER STRIP 
AND TRAFFIC: ANALYSIS. 

- 
0.5 '  

\ 

TRAVEL LANE 

SLOPE 2% 

6.  ARTERIAL STREETS DESIGNATED AS A STREETSCAPE ROUTE SHALL 
PROVIDE PLANTER STRIP. SEE APPENDIX B. 

7. A MINIMUM SEVEN FOOT SIDEWALK SHALL BE USED IN THE DOWNTOWN 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

8. THE RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH SHALL BE WIDENED AN ADDITIONAL 5 FT MIN 
FOR PLACEMENT OF FIRE HYDRANTS AND MAILBOX CLUSTERS. 

9. DRAINAGE REQUIRED BEHIND WALK IN CUT AREAS. 

L A S T  REVISED 1 0 / 0 4 / 0 6  

- 
LEFT TURN LANE 

OR 
MEDIAN 

APPROVED BY 

MARYSVILLE CITY ENGINEER DATE 

PRINCIPAL & MINOR 
ARTERIAL 

c ry i3t COMBINED CURB, 

GUTTER 
& SIDEWALK 

STANDARD PLAN 3 - 2 0 1  -001 

Current Business 11 - 210

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 329 of 575



Current Business 11 - 211

Page 330 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 212

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 331 of 575



Current Business 11 - 213

Page 332 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 214

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 333 of 575



Current Business 11 - 215

Page 334 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 216

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 335 of 575



Current Business 11 - 217

Page 336 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 218

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 337 of 575



Current Business 11 - 219

Page 338 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 220

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 339 of 575



Current Business 11 - 221

Page 340 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 222

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 341 of 575



Current Business 11 - 223

Page 342 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 224

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 343 of 575



Current Business 11 - 225

Page 344 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 226

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 345 of 575



Current Business 11 - 227

Page 346 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 228

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 347 of 575



Current Business 11 - 229

Page 348 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 230

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 349 of 575



Current Business 11 - 231

Page 350 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 232

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 351 of 575



Current Business 11 - 233

Page 352 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 234

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 353 of 575



Current Business 11 - 235

Page 354 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 236

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 355 of 575



Current Business 11 - 237

Page 356 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 238

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 357 of 575



Current Business 11 - 239

Page 358 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 240

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 359 of 575



Current Business 11 - 241

Page 360 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 242

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 361 of 575



Current Business 11 - 243

Page 362 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 244

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 363 of 575



Current Business 11 - 245

Page 364 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 246

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 365 of 575



Current Business 11 - 247

Page 366 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 248

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 367 of 575



Current Business 11 - 249

Page 368 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 250

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 369 of 575



Current Business 11 - 251

Page 370 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 252

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 371 of 575



Current Business 11 - 253

Page 372 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 254

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 373 of 575



Current Business 11 - 255

Page 374 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 256

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 375 of 575



Current Business 11 - 257

Page 376 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 258

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 377 of 575



Current Business 11 - 259

Page 378 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 260

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 379 of 575



Current Business 11 - 261

Page 380 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 262

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 381 of 575



Current Business 11 - 263

Page 382 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 264

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 383 of 575



Current Business 11 - 265

Page 384 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 266

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 385 of 575



Current Business 11 - 267

Page 386 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 268

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 387 of 575



Current Business 11 - 269

Page 388 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 270

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 389 of 575



Current Business 11 - 271

Page 390 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 272

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 391 of 575



Current Business 11 - 273

Page 392 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 274

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 393 of 575



Current Business 11 - 275

Page 394 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 276

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 395 of 575



Current Business 11 - 277

Page 396 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 278

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 397 of 575



Current Business 11 - 279

Page 398 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 280

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 399 of 575



Current Business 11 - 281

Page 400 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 282

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 401 of 575



Current Business 11 - 283

Page 402 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 284

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 403 of 575



Current Business 11 - 285

Page 404 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Current Business 11 - 286

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 405 of 575



Current Business 11 - 287

Page 406 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXE CUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: February 26,2007 
AGENDA ITEM: (File Nurnbels PA 06050, PA 06051, PA 06052) 1 AGENDA SECTION: 

Gloria Hirashuna, Community Development Director 

ATTACHMENTS: - APPROVED BY: 
1 .  Planning Commission Minutes dated 12/5/06 & 1/9/07 
2. Marysville School District Capital Facility Plan (2006-201 1) 
3. Lakewood School District Capital Facility Plan (2006-201 I) 
4. Lake Stevens School District Capital Facility Plan (2006-20 1 I) 

Planntng ~mmiss ibn  Recommendation to Approve Comprehensive 
Plan amendment updating Capital facility plan element for 
Marysville, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School Districts. 
PREPARED BY: 

New Business 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

The Planning Commission has recommended approval to amend the Civs Comprehensive Plan to 
incorporate updated capital facilrty plans for the Marysville, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School 
Districts. The Planning Commission held a public workshop on December 5, 2006 and a public 
hearing on January 9,2007. 

5. Current Impact Fees Per Title 18 of the MMC 

Adoption of 2006-201 1 capital facility plans for the Marysville, Lakewood, and Lake Stevens School 
Districts will update impact fees consistent with Title 18A of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

BUDGET CODE: 

Impact fees reflected in each school district's capital facility plan for the city of Maqsville, are as 
follows: 

AMOUNT: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve P h  Commission recommendation to adopt 2006- 
201 1 capital facility plans for Mayville, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School Districts. 
COUNQL ACI'ION: 

School District 

Marysville 
Lakewood 
Lake Stevens 

Single Family 
Impact Fee 

$8,434 
$4,148 
$6,614 

Multiple Family 
(1 Bedroom) 

N/ A 
$0 
$0 

Multiple Family 
(2 + Bedroom) 

$6,880 
$2,328 
$2,256 

New Business 14 -1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 407 of 575



MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

December 5,2006 City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the December 5, 2006 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 6:00 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes (left at 6:40), Jerry Andes, Dave Voigt, Becky 
Foster, Steve Leifer 

Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary (arrived 6:40) 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absence of Commissioner Toni Mathews. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

November 14.2006 Minutes 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster; seconded by Commissioner Voigt, to 
approve the November 14, 2006 Planning Commission minutes as presented. 
Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

A. Marysville, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School Districts' Capital Facility 
Plans 

Marvsville School District 

Jim Baker, Marysville School District, reviewed plan and highlights: 
2005 - 2% Growth 
6 yr - 10.3% increase 
30% growth projected from County OFM 

Marysvi//e Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

New Business 14 -2

Page 408 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Becky Foster had questions about how bond passage affects impact fees. 

Steve Muller thought 196,199 valuation number is outdated. Jim Baker stated 
that the entire unit inventory reflects an average assessed value of 196,199. 

Denise Stiffarm, attorney representing Marysville School District from Preston 
Gates Ellis explained that the average assessed value is used within the state, 
county and city ordinances because that is the easiest number to obtain. Steve 
Muller felt that the numbers are dated to probably 2004. Denise Stiffarm stated 
that the discount provides 25% measure to account for deficiencies and 
inaccuracies. The average assessed value is the norm. The alternative is to 
change the ordinance and then the District would request that the discount also 
be studied. 

Lakewood School District 

Fred Owyn explained that the impact fees have increased: 
Single family $4,148 
Multi-family $2,328 

They are using the County numbers from the comprehensive plan update. These 
reflect 25% student enrollment increase. Construction costs have been reviewed 
and updated to $1 1 million in school improvements. Student generation rates are 
up. The tax rate has increased which lowers the credit. 

Lake Stevens School District 

Helen Henderson reviewed the impact fees: 
Single family $6,614 .721 students per dwelling unit 
Multi-family $2,256 .298 students per dwelling unit 

The student generation rate shows an increase. Projections used for growth are 
conservative. Numbers are lower for 2006 enrollment than have occurred. 
Schools are full and any additional growth at middlethigh school level will result' in 
unhoused students. 

She explained that the State match estimated 40%, but the actual is 33%. The 
current assessed value for a single family is $213,761. 

She noted that a new elementary school is needed within five years for the 
projected 500 additional unhoused students. 

Steve Leifer asked about the use of 10 years for tax credit. Ms. Henderson 
explained that the 10-year tax credit is based on average life of construction 
bond. This is the standard used in Washington State. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

New Business 14 -3

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 409 of 575



The hearing was set for January 9, 2007. 

B. Draft East SunnysideWhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

Gloria Hirashima commented on the recent Whiskey Ridge open house. She 
noted that there is a'lot of development speculation going on., Many people are 
planning on selling. Chairman Muller asked about comments on the proposed 
commercial zoning. Ms. Hirashima stated that there had not been much 
comment on that at the open house. 

Director Hirashima discussed the secondary impact fee. She explained that 
everyone in the Whiskey Ridge area would be paying a secondary fee on top of 
the regular impact fee, but property owners on the proposed alignments would be 
given credit for the secondary impact fees. 

Steve Leifer asked about the preferred alternatives. Ms. Hirashima distributed the 
preferred'alternative. She noted that is close to Alternative 4. 

Steve Muller asked about the possibility of a regional park. Director Hirashima 
stated that they are trying to get a regional park on a voluntary basis. She 
discussed using density incentives as a way to achieve this. She distributed the 
Residential Density Incentives, noting that these are tools to get the 
improvements made. 

Steve Muller asked about requirements for gateways, screening, and 
landscaping. He commented that most people would like to see something nicer 
with more consistency. Gloria Hirashima agreed that it is important to have 
guidelines. She noted that the requirements would probably be in the form of 
common features or materials, but would not be required to be exactly alike. 

Director Hirashima then reviewed the preferred alternative and discussed 
planned arterials. Steve Leifer asked about the difference between mixed use 
and commercial zone. Ms. Hirashima explained this. Commissioner Leifer 
commented that this is a tremendous improvement to Alternative 4. He 
commended the staff for doing a great job as far as property owners' rights. 
Chairman Muller concurred. 

Vice Chairman Voigt questioned the transition between multi-family and single 
family high density on Sunnyside School Road and 60". Ms. Hirashima replied 
that they had received positive comments on this arrangement. 

She explained that there are two improvements that are eligible for the 
secondary impact fee credit. These are 67' Avenue and 4oth Street. Both will 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

New Business 14 -4

Page 410 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



need to be partially city-aided and constructed. The impact fee total will be 
approximately $4,000 per PM Peak Hour Trip. 

Steve Leifer asked how this all fits in with the 6-year plan or the 20-year plan. Ms. 
Hirashima replied that the 67' to 71'' Street connection and 40" Street would be 
approached in the plans. The rest would be developer driven. 

Commissi~ner Leifer addressed the inequity of owners not in those areas having 
to do frontage improvements and having to pay both impact fees. Ms. Hirashima 
replied that this is the price to change from a rural area to an urban area. She 
distributed Sunnyside Frontage Improvements, Fall 2006 and discussed 
pedestrian connections and bonus incentives for frontage improvements. 

Ms. Hirashima stated that the staff report would be out by the end of the week. 
The hearing will be held next ~uesday, December 12. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

December 12,2006 - Public Hearing 
January 9, 2007 - Public Hearing 

ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Voigt; seconded by Commissioner Foster to adjourn at 7:30 
p.m. Motion passed unanimously (4-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
December 5, 2006 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

New Business 14 -5

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 411 of 575



January 9,2007 

MARYSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 p.m. City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Muller called the January 9, 2007 meeting of the Marysville Planning 
Commission to order at 7:04 p.m. The following staff and commissioners were noted 
as being in attendance. 

Chairman: Steve Muller 

Commissioners: Deirdre Kvangnes, Dave Voigt, Becky Foster, Steve Leifer, Toni 
Mathews 

Staff: Gloria Hirashima, Community Development Director 
Kevin Nielsen, City Engineer 
Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Chairman Muller noted the excused absence of Commissioner Jerry Andes. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

None. 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

None. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Amendment to the Capital Facilities Element of the City of Marysville 
Comprehensive Plan for the biennial update of School District Capital 
Facilities Plans (CFP) for: 

I) Marysville School District 
2) Lakewood School District 
3) Lake Stevens School District 

Chairman Muller opened the hearing at 7:06 p.m. Gloria Hirashima explained that all 
three plans have been approved by their respective school district boards. 
Snohomish County has also reviewed the plans and adopted them. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 9, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

New Business 14 -6

Page 412 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



I. Marysville School District. 

Jim Baker, and Denise Stiffarm were present to represent the Marysville School 
District. 

Chairman Muller stated that he felt that the assessed value for single family 
residential seems low. Mr. Baker responded that it was the number give to them by 
the County. Ms. Stiffarm stated that the number of the average assessed value was 
given to the district by the county in the 2006 update cycle. The noted that it 
represents the average assessed value of all homes in the district, not just in 
Marysville. Chairman Muller stated that it was not possible to buy a house in 
Marysville for $200,000. Ms. Stiffarm clarified that the average was built on averages 
and that is the reason that the discount is built in. 

Public Comment: 

Chris Bandoli, Barclays North, 1051 5 - 20' Street SE, Everett, WA 98204, 

Mr. Bandoli discussed the increasing cost of doing business in Marysville and urged 
the Planning Commission to consider a 50% discount. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Kvangnes, to 
forward the Marysville School District's Capital Facilities Plan on to the City Council. 
Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

2. Lakewood School District 

Fred Owen, Director of Operations, was present to answer questions. 

Chairman Muller asked him if they had received many calls on this. Mr. Owen 
replied that they had not. He stated that the number is not out of the ballpark even 
though it is a significant increase. 

Public Comment - none. 

Motion made by Commissioner Kvangnes, seconded by Commissioner Voigt, to 
forward the Lakewood School District's Capital Facilities Plan on to the City Council. 
Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

3. Lake Stevens School District 

Rob Stanton, Director of Facilities and Operations, from Lake Stevens School 
District was present to answer questions. 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 9, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

. Page 2 of 4 

New Business 14 -7

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 413 of 575



Commissioner Foster asked Mr. Stanton about the 50% discount. Mr. Stanton 
replied that the jurisdictions of Lake Stevens and the County do give a 50% 
discount. Gloria Hirashima added the Marysville's ordinance gives a 250h discount. 

Public Comment - none. 

Motion made by Commissioner Voigt, seconded by Commissioner Mathews, to 
forward the Lake Stevens School District's Capital Facilities Plan on to the City 
Council. Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

The hearing was closed at 7:20 p.m. 

COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

Chairman Muller thanked asked if there would be information about the improvement 
districts available at the next meeting. Ms. Hirashima replied that there would be. 

Director Hirashima gave an update on the Wal-Mart matter. 

Chairman Muller stated that he has received a lot of calls about traffic congestion up 
north. Director Hirashima said they have hired a consultant to look at the Lakewood 
over-crossing project. 

Commissioner Foster recommended doing a better job of marking u-turn areas on 
172nd and Smokey Point Blvd. and also near Costco. 

Commissioner Leifer asked if the extension of SR92 is on the 6-year plan. Ms. 
Hirashima explained that they are proposing adding it to the Capital Facilities Plan. 
She discussed how the construction would be financed. 

Commissioner Leifer asked if there was any further news regarding a regional pond 
on 128th. Ms. Hirashima said she had not heard. 

NEXT MEETINGS 

January 18,2007 - Planning Commission Workshop (7:30) 
January 23,2007 - Continuance of the Public Hearing for the East 
SunnysideNVhiskey Ridge Subarea Plan 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 9, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

New Business 14 -8

Page 414 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



ADJOURNMENT 

Seeing no further business, Chairman Muller solicited a motion to adjourn. Motion 
made by Commissioner Kvangnes, seconded by Commissioner Foster to adjourn at 
7:32 p.m. Motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

Laurie Hugdahl, Recording Secretary 

Marysville Planning Commission 
January 9, 2007 Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

New Business 14 -9

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 415 of 575



MARYSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 25 

CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 

"Marysville School District . . . developing seIf-directed, l&6elong learners. " 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Vicki Gates, President 

Cindy Erickson 
Don Hatch, Jr. 

Carol Jason 
Michael Kundu 

SUPElU.NTENDENT 
Dr. Lany Nyland 

New Business 14 -10

Page 416 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Tdle  of Contends 

Page 

Introduction ..... .... .. .. ........... .,. ................. . ... .. .. . ., . . . . .. .... . ...... ... 1 

Educational Program Standard ..,....... .. ........ ....,. ................................... ...... ... ...... .. , .. .,. .......... .......... 5 

Capital Facilities Inventory. ....... . .. .... ................................. .., ...,..... , .., ... . . . ., . ........................... . ......... 8 

Student Enrollment Projections . . .. . .. . . .. ... . . .. . . . .. ........ ... . . .. . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . ... . ... . . .. . . .. . . , .. ... . . . .. . . . . I3  

Capital Facilities Projections ... .... ... .. . . ... . . .. . . ... . ., ... . . .. . . . . . . . . , . .. . ... ... . .. . . . . . . ... . .. . . . ... .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . .. 16 

Financing Plan .......,.....................................+ ............................................................. .................... 19 

School Impact Fees ..................... .. ....... ...... , . . . , ...................... . .  , , ,, , .. ., ... .. ,,. .. ...., ...... 22 

Appendix A .................................................................................... Population and Enrollment Data 

Appendix B ................ , ...... ,., . ,... ......................................... . . . ..School Impact Fee Calculations 

Appendix C .............................................................................................. S e n t  G a d o n  Rates 

For information regarding the Macysville School District 2006-201 1 Capital Facilities Plm, contact Jim 
Baker, ~arysville School District No. 25, 4220 80th Street N.E., Marysville, Washington 98270-3498. 
Telephone: (360) 653-7058. 

New Business 14 -11

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 417 of 575



SECTION ONE.. INTRODUCTION 

Purpose of the Capital Facilities PIan 

The Washington State Growth. Management Act (the "GMA") outlines 13 broad goals including 
adequate provision of necessary public facilities and services. Schools are among these 
nedessary facilities and services, School districts have adopted capital facilities plans to satisfy 
the requirements of RCW 36.70A.070 and to identify additional school facilities necessary to 
meet the educational needs of the growing student populations anticipated in their districts. 

The Marysville School District (the "District") has prepared this Capital Facilities Plan (the 
"CFP") to provide Snohomish County (the "County"), the City of Marysville (the "City"), and 
the City of Everett ("Everett'') with a schedule and financing program for capital improvements 
over the next six years (2006-201 1). 

In accordance with the Growth Management Act, adopted County policy, Snohomish County 
Ordinance Nos. 97-095 and 99-107, and the City of Marysville Ordinance Nos. 2306 and 2213, 
this CFP contains the following required elements: 

Future enrollment forecastk for each grade span (elementary schools, 
middle level schools, and high schools). 

An inventory of existing capital facilities owned by the District, showing 
the locations and capacities of the facilities. 

A forecast of the future needs for capital facilities and school sites. 

The proposed capacities of expanded or new capital facilities. 

A six-year plan for financing capital facilities within projected fbnding 
capacities, which clearly identifies sources of public money for such 
purposes. The financing plan separates projects and portions of projects 
which add capacity from those which do not, since the latter are generally 
not appropriate for impact fee funding. 

A calculation of impact fees to be assessed and support data substantiating 
said fees. 

In developing this CFP, the District followed the following guidelines set forth in Appendix F of 
Snohomish County% General Policy Plan: 

Districts should use information fiom recognized sources, su66 as the U.S. 
Census or the Puget Sound Regional Council. School districts may 

New Business 14 -12

Page 418 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



generate their own data if it is derived through stgtistically reliable 
methodologies. Information must not be inconsistent with Office of 
Financial Management (OFM) population forecasts. Student generation 
rates must be independently calculated by each school district. 

The CFP must comply with the GMA. 

The methodology used to calculate impact fees must comply with Chapter 
82.02 RCW. The CFP must identify alternative funding sources in the 
event that impact fees are not available due to action by the state, county 
or cities within the District. 

Overview of the Maiysville School District 

The District encompasses most of the City of Mmysville, a small portion of the City of Everett, 
and portions of unincorporated Snohomish County. ' The District's boundaries also include the 
Tulalip Indian Reservation. The District encompasses a total of 72 square miles. 

The District currently serves an approximate student population of 1 1,08 1 (October 1,2005 FTE 
enrollment) with ten elementary schools (grades K-5), four middle level schools (one with grades 
6-7, one with grades 8-9, and two with grades (6-8), and one comprehensive high school (grades 
9-12). In addition, the District operates several specialized schools and one alteraative high 
school. For the purposes of facility planning, this CFP considers grades K-5 as elementary 
school, grades 6-8 as middle level school, and grades 9-12 as high school. In 1999, the District 
moved approximately 400 9' graders to Marysville Pilchuck High School and approximately 
500 9" graders remain at Marysville Junior High School. The District plans to shift all 
remaining 9~ graders h m  the middle level schools to the high school level when a second high 
school is ready for occupancy. This is anticipated to be in 201 1 if the high school constsuction 
proceeds as expected. 

The District currently hces significant challenges related to the capacity and the condition of i t .  
facilities. Of particular concern is the capacity of its schools to accommodate growth at the 
elementary school level in cabin areas of the District, and at the middle level and high school 
level throughout the District. Also of concern is the condition of its facilities. All schools need 
technology support upgrades (electrical and network). Eight elementary schools (Cascade, 
Kellogg Marsh, Liberty, Marshall, Marsh, Pinewood, Shoultes, Sunnyside and Tulalip), one 
middle level school (Marysville Middle School), and the high schml (MarysvillePilchuck High 
School) need to be remodeled. In addition, support facilities need additional space. 

Significant Issues 

The District faces significant issues, as do other districts, with regard to matters affecting the 
capital facilities planning process. Affordable housing (as compared to Seattle and adjacent 
cities) in the District tends to draw young families, which puts demands on the school facilities. 

New Business 14 -13

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 419 of 575



In addition, the 2005 amendments to the Snohomish County Comprehensive Plan expanded the 
Marysville urban growth boundary to include an additional 560.4 acres zoned for residential 
development. Also, a significant amount of acreage already within the Marysville UGA was 
rezoned to accommodate more density in housing developments. The dramatic modifications to 
land use priorities will have a significant impact on schools. Capacity impacts are obvious. In 
addition, locating and purchasing suitable property and agreement on scope and amount of future 
bond measures are of concern. 

In February of 2006, the District's voters approved a school construction bond for approximately 
$1 18 million. The bond will help pay for a second high school in the District, as well as a new 
elementary school. The District also will use the bond proceeds to acquire futwe school sites. 

New Business 14 -14

Page 420 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



A? ,, School L o c ~  m I v R m  s 
Administrative Offices: Grades 6-7 
Marysvjlle wwal District No. 25 
4220 80m Skeet NE, Marysvllle, WA 98270 10. Marysvlile Middle 
360-653-7058 FAX 360-653-9707 4923 -6P St. W, 98270 

Rfneipal, Pere Lundberg 
Schools of the DWIct: 
Grades K-5 Grades 6-8 

9. Allen Creek Elamtnlary 
6505 - 60" M e  NE, W270 
Wndpal,SwttMn 

Z Kellogg Marsh Elemenray 
6329 - 91" Ave. NE, 98270 360-653- 
Prinbpal, MCWhun 

3. Llbarty Elementary 
1919 - 1 6  SL NE, 98270 360aU-0625 

4. Marshall Uemen&q 
4407 116 St. NE, 98271 360.6534630 
Prlndpal, Mkhclle Gunee 

5. PineWood Elementary 
5 115 &rp SL NE 98UO 
Prindpal, CMZine &sere WWaams 

17. Qull Ceda Elementary 
nts - 7r A= w 9~1271 
Pfinelpal, kawe Tennls 

6. S h o u b  aemenbry 
L3R5 - 51" Ave. NE, 98Ut 
Rlndpal, hhn W a l d ~  

7. Sunnyolde Qemantmry 
3619 SuMyslde NE 98270 
Mndpal, Jane ColriM, 

8. Tulalip Ucmantiuy 
7739 - 36" A w l  NW, 98271 
m, Teresa tymntos 

12 Tanth Skeet Program 
M10 Be& %, 982m 
Pfif~W, John Laobardl 

Grades 6-1 2 

13. TulaUp HerlBge 
7707 36" A% NW, 9827l 
Prtndpd, Y v m  Ryans 

Grades 8-9 

Grades 9-12 

La MarysuIMe Ark RTechnology Optfan Schaal 
6330 3P A*. ME, 98270 3M1-65346W 
Rfndpal, John LDmmardi 

IS. Marysvllle Alternative High Schoal 
4317 7e St, NE, 9 W O  360-653-0626 
PttMpal, Dawn &Mhak!t 

New Business 14 -15

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 421 of 575



SECTION 2 - &DUCATZONAL PROGRAM STANDARDS 

The District acknowledges and realizes that classroom population impacts the quality of 
instruction provided. School facility and student capacity needs are dictated by the types and 
amounts of space required to accommodate the District's adopted educational program. The 
educational program standards which typically drive facility space needs include grade 
configuration, optimum facility size, class size, educational program offerings, classroom 
utilization and scheduling requirements, and use of relocatable classrooms (portables). 

In addition to student population, other factors such as collective bargaining agreements, 
government mandates, and community expectations also affect classroom space requirements. 
Traditional educational programs are often supplemented by programs such as special education, 
remediation, alcohol and drug education, computer labs, music, art, and other programs. These 
programs can have a significant impact on the available student capacity of school facilities. 

District educational program standards may change in the future as a result of changes in the 
program year, special programs class sizes, grade span configurations, and use of new 
technology,. as well as other physical aspects of the school facilities. The school capacity 
inventory will be reviewed periodically and adjusted for any changes to the educational program 
standards. These changes will also be reflected in future updates of this CFP. 

Within the context of this topic, there are at least three methodologies that can be applied to 
capacity forecasting. Those include a maximum class size based on contractual obligations, a 
maximum class size target, and a minimum service level. 

The District has internal targets, which predicate staffing decisions. These internal targets me 
the District's preferred capacity levels. In comparison, class size based on a maximum number 
of students is predicated on contractual language in the contract with the Marysville Education 
Association. This contract specifies a maximum number of students in a classroom above which 
the District must fund additional classroom assistance. Finally, the minimum service level 
represents the capacity level that the District will not exceed. This is determined by an average 
maximum number of students in a classroom by grade (for K-8 classes) or by a course of study 
(for the 9-12 grade level).. For example, grade 8 may have an average class size (and minimum 
level of senrice) of 32 students. Some classrooms might have.less than 32 students and some 
classrooms might have more than 32 students; however the average of grade 8 classrooms 
district-wide will not exceed 32 students. At the secondary school level, some classes will 
exceed 34 students (band, physical education, etc.). This minimum service level is defined for 
core classes'md is an average of all core classes for the secondary level. Table 1 compares class 
size methodologies. 

New Business 14 -16

Page 422 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



T ' l e  I 
Class Size Methodologies 

Educational Program Stantlards Based Upon Internal Targets 

Grade Level 

Kindergarten 
Grades 1 - 3 
Grades 4 - 5 
Grades 6 - 8 
Grades 9 - 12 

Elementary Schools: 

Average class size for Kindergarten should not exceed 23 students. 
Average class size for grades 1-3 should not exceed 23 students. 
Average class size for grades 4-5 should not exceed 26 students. 
Special education for students may be provided in regular classes when 

' 

inclusion is possible and in self-contained classrooms when this is the 
most appropriate option available. 

Middle and Junior High Schools= 

Minimum Service Level 

27 
29 
30 
32 
34 

D;istricf Targets 

23 
23 
26 
25 
26 

Average class size far grades 6-8 should not exceed 25 students. 
It is not possible to achieve 100% utilization of all regular teaching 
stations throughout the day. Therefore, classroom capacity is adjusted 
using a utilization actor of available teaching stations depending on the 
physical characteristics of the facility and program needs. 
Special education for students may be provided in regular classes when 
inclusion is possible and in self-contained classrooms when this is the 
most appropriate option available. 
Identified students will also be provided other programs in "resource 
rooms (i.e., computer labs, study rooms), and program specific classrooms 
(i.e., music, drama, art, home and family education). 

M h u m  
(Per Co~Iraca') 

24 
24 
27 
30 
30 

High Schook 

Average class size for grades 9-12 should not exceed 26 students. 
It is not possible to achieve 100% utilization of all regular teaching 
stations throughout the day. Therefore, classroom capacity is adjusted 

New Business 14 -17

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 423 of 575



using a utilization fator of available teaching stations depending on the 
physical characteristics of the fiicility and program needs. 
Special education for students may be provided in regular classes when 
inclusion is possible and in self-contained classrooms when this is the 
most appropriate option available. 
Identified students will also be provided other programs in "resowce 
rooms (i.e., computer labs, study rooms), and program specific class~ooms 
(i.e., music, drama, art, home and family education). 

New Business 14 -18

Page 424 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTION THmE: CAPITAL FA CIWlTES LWENTOR Y 

Under the GMA, public entities are required to inventory capital facilities used to serve existing 
development. The purpose of the facilities inventory is to establish a baseline for determining 
what facilities will be required to accommodate future demand (student enrollment) at acceptable 
levels of service. This section provides an inventory of capital facilities owned and operated by 
the District including schools; relocatable classrooms (portables), un&veloped land, and support 
facilities. School facility capacity was inventoried based on the space required to accommodate 
the District's adopted educational program standards. See Section Two: Educational Program 
Standards. A map showing locations of District facilities is provided on page 4. 

Schools 

See Section Ow for a description of the District's schools and programs. 

School capacity was determined based on the number of teaching stations within each building 
and the space requirements of the District's adopted educational program and internal targets. It 
is this capacity calculation that is used to establish the District's baseline capacity, and to 
determine fitwe capacity needs based on projected student enrollment. The school capacity 
inventory is summarized in Tables 2,3, and 4. 

Relocatable C l ~ o o r n s  (Poptables) 

Relocatable classrooms (portables) are used as interim classroom space to house students until 
funding esn be secured t o  const&ct permanent classrooms. The-~istrict currently uses 115 
relocatable classrooms at various school sites throughout the District to provide additional 
interim capacity. A typical relocatable classroom can provide capacity for a full-size class of 
students. Current use of relocatable classrooms throughout the District is summarized in 
Table 5. 

New Business 14 -19

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 425 of 575



Table 2 
Elementary School Inventory 

Table 3 
Middle Level School Inventoty 

Permanent 
Capacity 

* Teaching Station Definition: A space designated as a classroom. Other stations include spaces designated 
for special education and pull-out programs. 

Elementary School 

** The Tulalip Heritage School is located in relocatable facilities. Some, but not all, of the reiocatables are 
owned by the District. See Table 5. Tbe facility i s  located on sites that are not owned by the District. 

Buikting 
A m  (sg fi) 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

Middk Level School 

Cedarcrest (6-8) 

Marysville Jr Hi (8-9) 

Marysville Mid (6-7) 

Teaching 
Stations* 

Allen Creek 

Cascade 

Teaching 
Stations* 

21.5 

35.0 

33.0 

* Teaching Station Definition: A space designated as a classroom. Other stations include spaces designated 
for special education and pull-out programs. 

47,594 

38,923 

47,8 1 6 

' 40,459 

53,063 

40,073 

47,594 

40,050 

39,121 

41,530 

436,223 

11.0 

9.5 

Sitesize 
(Acres) 

27.0 

15.2 

21 .O 

Permanent 
Capace 

53 8 

893 

825 

Building 
Area (sq ji) 

83,128 

124,822 

99,6 17 

Tenth St. School (6-8) 

Tulalip Heritage 
School (6-12) 

TOTAL 

22.0 

18.0 

19.0 

17.0 

17.0 

19.0 

Kellogg Mmh 
Liberty 
Marshall 

Pinewood 

Quil Ceda 
Shoultes 

Sunnyside 

Tulalip 

TOTAL - 

2.9 
t* 

66.1 

528 

432 

456 

408 

408 

456 

12,8 

9.1 

13.7 

10.5 

10.0 

9.5 

10.4 

10.0 

106.5 

50 
** 

2,306 

12,971 
** 

320,538 

2.0 
drlc 

91.5 

19.0 

16.5 

22.0 

12.0 

181.5 

456 

396 

528 

288 

4,356 
A 

New Business 14 -20

Page 426 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table 4 
High School Inventoiy 

* Teaching Station Definition: A space designated as a classroom. Other stations include spaces designated 
for special education and pull-out programs. 

** The Arts & Technology School is included in the inventory; however, the building square footage should 
not be included in the total capacity plan because it is leased space. A new Arts & Technology School, built on 
land owned by the District, is proposed as a part of this Plan. 

Pemanertt 
CapaciQ 

1,680 

286 

*** 

1,966 

Teaching 
Stationse* 

64.6 

11.0 

* *X  

75.6 

Building 
Area (sq f) 
259,033 

18,350 

+t* 

277,383 

High School 

Marysville- 
Pilchuck . 

Marysville 
Alternative 

Arts & Technology 
School 

TOTAL 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

83 .O 

2.4 

*** 

85.4 

New Business 14 -21

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 427 of 575



Table 5 
Relocatable Classroom (Portable) Inventory 

Interim Capaciljr 

120 

72 

120 

144 

48 

72 

72 

Middle Level School 

Cedarcrest (6-8) 

Marysville Jr Hi (8-9) 

Marysville Mid (6-7) 

Tenth Street School 

SUBTOTAL 

Other 
Relocatables* * 

2 

3 

2 

2 

3 

4 

2 

Elementary School 

Allen Creek 

Cascade 

Kellogg Marsh 

Liberty 

Marshall 

Pinev$ood 

Quil Ceda 

High School 

Marysville-Pilchuck 
Marysville Alt. 

Tulalip Heritage School 

SUBTOTAL 

Relocatables* 

5 

3 

5 

6 

2 

3 

3 

Shoultes 

Relocatables 

12' 

0 

8 

5 

25 

Sunnyside 

Tulalip 
SUBTOTAL 

Relocatables 

15 

0 

4 

19 

39 TOTAL 

Other 
Relocrrtables 

2 

0 

5 

0 

7 

I 1,887 I 
*Used for regular classroom capacity. 
*The relocatables referenced under "other relocatables" are used for special pull-out 

76 

.4 

0 

32 

Interim Capacity 

300 

0 

200 

125 

625 

- Other 
Relocata bles 

0 

0 

1 

1 

5 

1 

3 1 

Interim Capacity 

390 

0 

1 04 

494 

96 

0 

768 

New Business 14 -22

Page 428 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Support Facilities 

In addition to schools, the District owns and operates additional facilities which provide 
operational support functions to the schools. An inventory of these facilities is provided in 
Table 6.  

Table 6 
Support Facility Inventory 

Land Inventory 

The District owns a number of undeveloped sites. An inventory of these sites is provided in 
Table 7. 

Ttzble 7 
Undeveloped Site Inventory 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

11.35 

Facility 

Service Center 
Administration 
Grounds 
Maintenance 
Engineering 
Warehouse 

Development on some of these sites is restricted due to significant wetlands, limited site sizes, 
high utility costs, andlor inappropriate locations. 

Building Areu 
(Square Feet) 

33,028 
3,43 1 

12,361 
7,783 

16,641 

The District plans to acquire an additional elementary site in anticipation of growth needs. The 
District plans to use the Getchell site for the second high school and the Quil Ceda Road site for 
the new Options School. 

The District does not own any sites which are developed for uses other than schools. 

New Business 14 -23

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 429 of 575



SECTION FOUR: STUDENT ENROLLMENT TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS 

Historical: 

The District has experienced an annual average growth rate of approximately 1.65% during the 
past 10 year period. See Appendix A for complete enrollment history. Table 8 breaks down the 
average growth per grade level: 

Table 8 
Historical Growth Averages by Grade Level 

Recent: 

Elementary School Level 
Middle School Level 
High School Level 

During the last four years, this growth rate has substantially declined due to a number of factors. 
First, the effect of a slowing United States economy and specifically in the reduced employment 
at the Boeing Aircraft Company and supporting companies in and around the Everett/Marysville 
areas. Second, the prolonged teachers' strike in Marysville during September and October 2003 
resulted in a n  exodus of students to neighboring districts and into home school programs. The 
effect of these combined events coupled with other exogenous variables significantly affected 
this trending; however, as a sign of recovery, some enrollment gains were experienced in the fall 
of 2004 and the fall of 2005. During the past six years, an annual average growth rate of 0.5% 
was experienced. Table 9 breaks down the average growth per grade level for the past five years 
and the past year: 

10 year 
0.71 
1.60 
2.80 

Table 9 
Recent Growth Averages by Grade Level 

Elementary School Level 
Middle School Level 
High School Level 

(1.10) 
(0.70) 
0.52 

3.00 
(4.00) 
2.90 

New Business 14 -24

Page 430 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Projected Student Enrollment 2006-2011 

Generally, enrollment projections using historical calculations are most accurate for the initial 
years of the forecast period. Moving finther into the future, more assumptions about economic 
conditions, land use, and demographic trends in the area affect the projection. Monitoring birth 
rates in the County and population growth for the area are essential yearly activities in the 
ongoing management of the CFP. In the event that enrollment growth slows, plans for new 
facilities can be delayed. It is much more difficult, however, to initiate new projects or speed 
projects up in the event enrollment growth exceeds the projections. 

The District has developed its own methodology for forecasting future enrollments. This 
methodology, a modified cohort survival method, considers the cumulative effect of the 
economic situation, the 2003 teachers' strike, and the projected residential development within 
the District. The District methodology uses the cohort projections developed by the Office of the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction as a baseline and then applies a growth factor for each year 
through 2019. See Appendix A. The average growth factor applied for the six year period of this 
CFP is 1.48% of enrollment growth per year. This growth factor was determined using an 
analysis of historic average housing development in the District and past enrollment growth 
within the last six years (with the exception of the year 2003, which was the year of the District- 
wide teachers' strike), knowledge of active known and proposed.future housing developments, 
and an assessment of the recent amendments to the Snohomish County Comprehensive Plan, 
which expanded the existing urban growth boundaries. Future updates to this CFP .urill include 
more specific information related to the Comprehensive Plan amendments. 

Using the modified cohort survival projections, a total enrollment of 12,225 (FTE) is expected in 
201 1. In other words, the District expects the enrollment of 1,144 additional students betweeri 
2006 and 201 1. See Table 10. 

OFM population-based enrollment projections were estimated for the District using OFM 
population forecasts for the Couniy. Between 1990 and 2001, the District's enrollment 
constituted approximately 19.77% of the District's total population. Assuming that, between 
2006 and 2011, the District's enrollment will continue to constitute 19.77% of the District's 
population, king OFWCounty data, the District projects a total enrollment of 14,390 students in 
201 1. See Table 10. 

Table 10 
P~ojected Student Enrollment 

2006-201 1 

ProJ'ection 

OMCounty 

District 

* Actual enrollment (October 1,2005). 

, 

2005* 

11,081 
11,081 

2006 

11,632 
2008 

12,734 

2007 

12,183 

11,389 

2009 

12,285 
11,905 

2010 

13,846 

11,613 12,085 11,758 

2011 

14,390 
12,225 

Actual 
C'hange 

3,309 

Percent 
Change 

29.9% 

1,144 10.3% 

New Business 14 -25

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 431 of 575



Based upon the immediate dynamics of the Disbict, as discussed above, the District has chosen 
to follow the more conservative District estimates as opposed to the OFM/County projections 
during this planning period. This decision will be revisited in future updates to the CFP. . 

2025 Enrollment Projections 

Student enrollment projections beyond 201 1 and to the future are highly speculative. The 
District projects a total enrollment of 14,191 students in 2025. This is based on the District's 
enrollment projections for 2005 and an estimated 1.19% average annual increase in the student 
population. See Appendix A. The total enrollment estimate was then broken down by grade span 
to evaluate long-term site acquisition needs for elementary, middle level, and high school 
facilities. 

Projected enrollment by grade span for the year 2025 is provided in Tables 1 I-A and 11-B. 
Again, these estimates are highly speculative and are used only for general planning purposes. 

Table I1-A 
Projected Student Enrollment - District 

2025 

Assuming that the District's enrollment will continue to constitute 19.77% of the District's 
population through 2025, the projected enrollment by grade span based upon the County/OFM 
projections is as follows: 

.. 
Grade Span 

Elementary (K-5) 

Middle Level School (6-8) 

High School (9-12) 

TOTAL (R-12) 

Table 11-B 
Pmjected Student EPrrollment - County/OFM 

2025 

Projected Enrollment 

6,258 

3,491 

4,442 

. 14,191 

Grade Spun P~ojected Enrollment 

Elementary (K-5) 8,044 

Middle Level School (6-8) 4,487 

High School (9-12) 5,709 

TOTAL (K-12) 18,240 

New Business 14 -26

Page 432 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTION FIVE: CAPITAL FACILITIES PROJECTIONS FOR FUTURE NEEDS 

Projected available student capacity was derived by subtracting projected student enrollment 
fkom existing school capacity (excluding relocatable classrooms) for each of the six years in the 
forecast period (2006-201 1). Capacity needs are expressed in terms of "unhoused students" 
Table 12 identifies the District's current capacity needs (based upon information contained in 
Table 14): 

Table 12 
Unhoused Students - Bmed on October 2005 EnrollmeniYCapacity 

The method used to define future capacity needs assumes that: 

Grade Span 
Elementary Level (K-5) 
Middle Level (6-8) 
High School Level (9-12) 

e The gth grade students remaining at the middle level schools, approximately 500 students, 
will shift fiom the middle level schools to the high schools in 201 1, assuming that High 
School No. 2 is opened in 201 1. 
High School No. 2, housing approximately 1,600 students, starts construction in 2007 and 
opens in 201 1. 
A new elementary school, housing 550 students, starts construction in 2006 and opens in 
2009. 
A new Options Alternative School, housing 200 students in grades 7-8 and 500 students 
grades 9-12, starts construction in 2007 and opens in 2008. 

Unhoused Students 
524 
922 

1,005 

Assuming these capacity additions, Table 1 3  identifies the additional permanent classroom 
capacity that will be needed in 201 1, the eqd of the six year forecast period: 

Table 13 
Unhoused Stlrdenkr - 2011 

Grade Span 
Elementary Level 6 - 5 )  

1 

Unhoused Sfurients J 
485 
579 

High School Level (9-12) 

New Business 14 -27

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 433 of 575



Projected future capacity needs, shown in Table 14, are derived by applying the projected 
number of students to the projected capacity. Grade reconfigurations and planned improvements 
by the District through 201 1 are included in Table 14. Due to varying configurations in the 
District's schools, the capacity noted in Table 14 is by grade level, not by individual schools. It 
is not the District's policy to include relocatable classrooms when determining future capita1 
facility needs; therefore, interim capacity provided by relocatable classrooms is not included. 
(Information on relocatable classrooms and interim capacity can be found in Table 5. 
Information on planned construction projects can be found in the Financing Plan, Table 15.) 

Table 14 
Projected Student Capacity - 2006 through 2011 

Elementary School - SurpludDe$cieficy 

Middle School Level - SrsrplusDeficiency 

-----.-, 
Existing Capacity 2,306 2,306 2,306 2,306 2,506 2,506 

I 

Added Permanent Capacity 0 0 0 200 0 0 

Existing Capacity 

Added Permanent Capacity 

Total Capacity*" 

Enrollment 

Surplus (Deficiency)** 

I I I I I I 
*Actual October 2005 FTE enrollment 

* ~ c & a l  October 2005 FTE enrollment 
**Does not include added relocatable capacity 

2007 

4,356 

0 

4,356 

5,109 

(753) 

** Assumes shifting of remaining grade 9 students from middleljunior hi& schools to high school in 201 1. 
***Does not include added relocatabIe capacity 

2005" 2006 2008 

4,356 

0 

4,356 

5,199 

(843) 

4,356 

0 

4,356 

4,880 

(524) 

2009 

4,356 

550 

4,906 

5,268 

(362) 

4,356 

0 

4,356 

4,959 

(603) 

New Business 14 -28

Page 434 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



High School Level - SurphsLDeficiency 

DEstPict Summary - Surplus/Z)eficiency 

2011 

2,466 

1,600 

4,066 

3,766* 

300 

*Actual October 2005 FTE enrollment 
** Assumes shifting of remaining grade 9 students from middldjunior high schools to high school in 2010. 
***Does not include added relocatable capacity. 

2010 

2,466 

2,466 

3,235 

(769) 

2009 

2,466 

0 

2,466 

3,245 

(779) 

2008 

1,966 

500 

2,466 

3,230 

(764) 

*Actual October 2005 FTE enrollment 
**Depending on capacity needs, the District may purchase portables during the six years of this Plan. 
However, the chart does not reflect any such increased portable capacity. 

Existing Capacity 

Added Pemanent Capacity 

Added Relocatables** 

Total Permanent Capacity 

Relocatable Capacity*" 

Total Capacity 

Enrollment 

Surplus (Deficiency) 

2007 

1,966 

0 

1,966 

3,289 

(1,323) 

2011 

9,878 

1,600 

0 

11,478 

1,887 

13,365 

12,227 

1,138 

2007 

8,628 

0 

0 

8,628 

1,887 

10,515 

11,613 

(1,098) 

2009 

9,328 

550 

0 

9,878 

1,887 

11,765 

11,905 

(140) 

2006 

1,966 

0 

1,966 

3,179 

(1,213) 

Existing Capacity 

Added Permanent 

Capacity 

Total Capacity*** 

Enrollment 

Surplus 

(Deficiency)* ** 

2008 

8,628 

700 

0 

9,328 

1,887 

11,215 

11,757 

(542) 

2010 

9,878 

0 

0 

9,878 

1,887 

11,765 

12,085 

(320) 

2005" 

8,628 

0 

0 

8,628 

1,887 

10,515 

11,081 

(566) 

2005 

1,966 

0 

1,966 

2,971 

(1,005) 

2006 

8,628 

0 

0 

8,628 

1,887 

10,515 

11,389 

(874) 

New Business 14 -29

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 435 of 575



SECTION SIX: FINANCING PLAN 

Planned Improvement3 

The District plans to address projected enrollment increases by constructing a 550 student 
elementary school, which will open in the fall of 2009, and a 1,200 to 1,600 student high school 
(opening fall of 201 1). The District will also open a new Options School (grades 7-12) in 2008. 

Financing for Planned Improvements 

Funding for planned improvements is typically secured from a number of sources including 
voter-approved bonds, State match funds, and impact fees. 

General Obligation Bonds: Bonds are typically used to fund construction of new 
schools and other capital improvement projects, and require a 60% voter approval. The 
District's voters approved funding for the new high school and new elementary school in 
February of 2006. Future bond issues will require input fiom community and staff, substantial 
exploration of facility options, and critical decisions by the Board of Directors. 

State Madch Funds: State Match Funds come fiom the Common School Construction 
Fund, which is composed of revenues accruing predominantly from the sale of renewable 
resources (i,e., timber) fiom State school lands set aside by the Enabling Act of 1889. If these 
sources are insufficient to meet needs, the Legislature can appropriate funds or the State Board of 
Education can establish a moratorium on certain projects. School districts may qualify for State 
match funds for specific capital projects based on a prioritization system. While the District 
currently qualifies for State match funds, decreasing enrollment during the past three years has 
resulted in a significant decrease in potential matching funds. Actual growth in k r e  years 
should reverse this trend. 

Impact Fees: Impact fees are a means of supplementing traditional funding sources for 
construction of public facilities needed to accommodate new development. School impact fees 
are generally collected by the permitting agency a t  the time plats are approved or building 
permits are issued. See Section 7 School Impact Fees. 

The Six-Year Financing Plan shown on Table 15 demonstrates how the District intends to fund 
new construction and improvements to school facilities for the years 2006-201 1. The financing 
components include bonds, State match funds, and impact fees. The Financing Plan separates 
projects and portions of projects which add capacity from those which do not, since the latter are 
generally not appropriate for impact fee funding. 

New Business 14 -30

Page 436 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Tabb 15 
Capitol Facilities Financing Plan 

Improvements Adding Permanent Capacity (Costs in Millions) 

Total Capacity Improvements - (Costs in millions) 

Project 

Elementary 

Fees in this column are based on amount of fees collected to date and estimated fees on fature units. Estimated fees are based on mxnt fee collections and a review of projected fee amounts and 
known or anticipated future growth. 

Includes capacity for grades 7-8. 
Includes capacity for grades 9-1 2. 

State 
Match 

32.70 

Impact 
F,l 

3 1 .OO 
$1.33 

Impact 
Fecs 

$2.33 
53.00 

$1 1.00 
Si.00 
S17.33 

2006 

State 
Match 

a 7 0  

912.00 

$14.70 

Elementary 
Middie Lwel 

2011 

Elementary No. 1 1 (Construction) 1 $1.50 $18.00 
51.33 

2007 

$14.30 

Total 
Cost 

Elementary No. 1 1 Site Acquisition 51.33 1 1 
$6.50 1 $5.00 

2006 

$2.83 
$1.51 

Bonds1 
Local 
Funds 

$5.00 

2008 

2007 

$6.50 
$2.00 

High School I $8.00 
Land Parchase 1 
TOTALS 1 $1234 

$5.00 
$4.00 

$17.50 

2008 

2009 

$73.06 
$7.00 

$96.87 

Total 
Cost 

$28.86 ( $35.00 
1 $4.00 

$35.86 1 $61.00 

2010 

Bonds/ 
Local 
h n d s  

2009 

$14.30 
$2.51 

$5.00 
$2.00 

$19.20 
0 

$19.20 

$96.06 
1 $8.00 
1 $128.90 

2010 

$5.00 

2011 

0 
0 

$19.33 
$5.51 

New Business 14 -31

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 437 of 575



Table I5 
Capital Facilities Fhancing Plan 

Improvements Not Adding New Permanent Capacity (Costs in Millions) 

New Business 14 -32

Page 438 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTIONSE VEN: SCHOOL IMPACT FEES 

The GMA authorizes jurisdictions to collect impact fees to supplement funding of additiona1 
public facilities needed to accommodate new development. Impact fees cannot be used for the 
operation, maintenance, repair, alteration, or replacement of existing capital facilities used to 
meet existing service demands. 

School Impact Fees 2n Snohomkh County, the City of Marysville, and the City of Everett 

The Snohomish County General Policy Plan ("GPP") which implements the GMA sets certain 
conditions for school districts wishing to assess impact fees:, 

The District must provide support data including: an explanation of the 
calculation methodology, description of key variables and their 
computation, and definitions and sources of data for all inputs into the fee 
calculation. 

Data must be accurate, reliable, and statistically valid. 

Data must accurately reflect projected costs in the Six-Year Financing 
Plan. 

Data in the proposed impact fee schedule must reflect expected student 
generation rates from the following residential unit types: single family; 
multi-family/studio or one-bedroom; and multi-fmilyltwo or more- 
bedroom. 

Snohomish County established a school impact fee program in November 1997, and amended 
the program in December 1999. This program requires school districts to prepare and adopt 
Capital Facilities Plans meeting the specifications of the GMA. Impact fees calculated in 
accordance with the formula, which are based on projected school facility costs necessitated by 
new growth and are contained in the District's CFP, become effective following County Council 
adoption of the District's CFP. 

The City of Marysville also adopted a school impact fee program consistent with the Growth 
Management Act in November 1998 and amended the program in December 1999, and in 
August 2000. 

Methodology Used to Calculate School Impact Fees 

Impact fees in Appendix B have been calculated utilizing the formula in the Snohomish County 
Code and the Municipal Code for the City of Marysville. The resulting figures are based on the 

New Business 14 -33

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 439 of 575



District's cost per dwelling unit to purchase land for school sites, make site improvements, 
construct schools, and purchase/install relocatable facilities (portables). As required under the 
GMA, credits have also been applied in the formula to account for State Match Funds to be 
reimbursed to the District and projected f?uture property taxes to be paid by the dwelling unit. 

The District's cost per dwelling unit is derived by multiplying the cost per student by the 
applicable student generation rate per dwelling unit. The student generation rate is the average 
number of students generated by each housing type -- in this case, single family dwellings and 
multi-family dwellings. Multi-family dwellings were broken out into one-bedroom and two-plus 
bedroom units. Pursuant to the Snohomish County and the City of Marysville School Impact Fee 
Ordinances, the District conducted student generation studies within the District. This was done 

' 

to "localize" generation rates for purposes of calculating impact fees. Student generation rates 
for the District are shown on Table 16. See also Appendix C. 

Table I6 
Student Generation Rates 

I 
I 

Single Family 

1 Multi-Family 
(1 Bedroom) 

Multi-Family 
(2+ Bedrooms) 
(Source: Browning Consulting, April 2006) 

8lementa y 

.322 

No Data 

.2& 

M M e  Level 

.I91 

No Data 

.I50 

High School 

.lo4 

No Data 

.068 

TOTAL 

,617 

No Data 

,482 

New Business 14 -34

Page 440 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Proposed MarymiIZe School District Impact Fee Schedule for Snohomish County and the Ci@ 
of Everett 

Using the variables and formula described, impact fees proposed for the District in Snohomish 
County andin the City of Everett, using the County's discount rate of SO%, are summarized in 
Table 17. See also Appendix B. 

Table 17 
School Impact Fees 

2006 

Proposed Marysviile School District Impact Fee Schedule for the City of Marysville 

Housing Qpe 

Single Family 

Multi-Family (1 Bedroom) 

Multi-Family (24- Bedroom) 

Using the variable and formula described, impact fees proposed for the District in the City of 
Marysville, assuming the City's discount of 25%, are summarized in Table 14. See also 
Appendix B. 

Impact Fee Per Dwelling Unit 

$5,623 

NIA 

$4,586 

Table 18 
School Impact Fees 

2006 

1 Multi-Family (2+ Bedroom) I $6,880 I 

Housing Type 

Single Family 

Multi-Family (1 Bedroom) 

Impact Fee Per Dwelling Unit 

$8,434 

N/A 

New Business 14 -35

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 441 of 575



FACTORS FOR ESTIMATED IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

Student Generation Factors - Single Family 
Elementary .322 
Middle ,191 
Senior .I04 

Total .617 

Average Site CosttAcre 
Elementary 
Senior 

Temporary Facility Capacity 
Capacity 
Cost 

Student Generation Factors - MUM Family (1 Bdrm) 
Elementary ,000 
Middle .OOO 
Senior .OOO 

Total .OOO 
State Match Credit 

Current State Match Percentage 

Student Generation Factors - Multi Family (2+ Bdrm) Area Cost Allowance 
Elementary .264 Current ACA 
Middle .I50 
Senior .068 District Average Assessed Value 

Total .482 Single Family Residence 

Projected Student Capacity per Facility 
Elementary School 
Middle (Options) 
Senior (New & Options) 

District Average Assessed Value 
Multi Family (1 Bedroom) 

District Average Assessed Value 
Multi Family (2+ Bedroom) 

Required Site Acreage per Facility 
Elementary 
Senior 

SPI Square Footage per Student 
Elementary 
Middle 
High 

Facility Construction CosffAverage 
Elementary 
Middle (Options) 
Senior (New & Options) 

District Debt Service Tax Rate 
Currentl$l,OOo 

General Obligation Bond Interest Rate 
Current Bond Buyer Index Permanent Facility Square Footage 

Elementary 
Middle 
Senior 

Total 92.85% 

Developer Provided SitesWacilities 
Value 
Dwelling Units 

Temporary Facility Square Footage 
Elementary 33,600 
Middle 26,250 
Senior 19,950 

Total 7.15% 79,800 

Total Fatuity Square Footage 
Elementary 469,823 
Middle 346,788 
Senior 300,276 

Total 100.00% 1,116,887 

Note: The total costs of the school construction projects 
and the total capacities are shown in the fse calculations. 
However, new development will only be charged for the 
system improvements needed to save  new growth. 

New Business 14 -36

Page 442 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX A 

POPULATION AND ENROLLMENT DATA 

New Business 14 -37

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 443 of 575



AMNUPU. GRBWTH FACTOR 
4.3% 27% 4.0% 2.9% 4.1% 5.0% 2.7% 24% 2.?% 3.046 25% 6- 2.3% 533% 1.8% 2% t.4% -1.W 4.196 4.- 

AVeRAOE GROWTH FACMA FROM 7987 

scum SP1 dade i d e s  

New Business 14 -38

Page 444 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



MARYSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ENROLLMENT moJEcnm 
INDNtOUAL GRADE L N E L  

2006 TO 2009 

COHORT 
GROWTH 
FACTOR 

PER YEAR 
2008 2007 2008 m 
836 813 849 850 

New Business 14 -39

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 445 of 575



MARYSVILLE SCH W L  DISTRICT 
ENROLLMENT PROJECTlON 
INDNIDUAL GRADE LEVEL 

2010 TO 2020 

New Business 14 -40

Page 446 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX B 

SCHOOL LMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

New Business 14 -41

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 447 of 575



New Business 14 -42

Page 448 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX C 

STUDENT GENERA TION RA TES (SGR) 

New Business 14 -43

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 449 of 575



ROWING, M.A. 

April 25,2006 

Student Generation Rate - MarysviJle School District 

This document describes the methodology used by Larry Browning, M.A. to calculate student generation 
rates for the Marysville School.District, and provides results of the calculations. 

Using data files from the Metroscan database, Snohomish County Planning and Development Services 
staff provided addresses and land use codes of all new construction between the years 1998 to 2004 
within the Marysville school district. This data was "cleaned up" by eliminating any records that did not 
contain sufficient information (such as a missing site address) to generate a match from the student record 
data. 

Using data files from the Marysville student records database, District staff provided student addresses 
and grade levels of K-12 students attending the District as of April 2006. The student addresses were 
cleaned up and refbnnatted to be consistent with the Metroscan method of storing addresses. 

Data from the two sources was electronically matched to obtain the following student generation rates: 
Single Family Rates: The records of 3,552 single family units were compared with 11,543 registered 
students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated rates were found. (calculated 
rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding): 

New Business 14 -44

Page 450 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Multifamily Rates (0-1 Bedrooms): The Meloscan database contained twelve 0-1 bedroom 
multifamily construction records for the study time period, and no student matches were found. 

Multifamily Rates (%plus Bedrooms): The records of 614 2-plus bedroom units were compared 
with 11,543 registered students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated 
rates were found (calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding): 

New Business 14 -45

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 451 of 575



LAKEWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 306 

New Business 14 -46

Page 452 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



LAKEWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 306 

CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 

2006-2011 

For information regarding the Lakewood School District Capital Facilities Plan, contact Fred Owyen, Director of Operations, at 
17 1 10 1 6Ih   rive NE, P.O. Box 220, North Lakewood, WA 98259-0220. Tel: (360) 654-21 36 or Fax: (360) 652-4528; or the 
Office of the Superintendent, Lakewood School District, 171 10 16Ih Drive NE, P.O. Box 220, North Lakewood, WA 
98259-0220. Tel: (360) 652-4500 or Fax: (360) 652-4502. 

New Business 14 -47

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 453 of 575



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Section 1 . 

Section 2 . 

Section 3 . 

Section 4 . 

Section 5 . 

Section 6 . 

Section 7 . 

Appendix A 

Appendix I3 

Appendix C 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 1 

................................. ................................ District Educational Program Standards ; 4 

...................................................................................... Capital Facilities Inventory 8 

............................................................................. Student Enrollment Projections 11 

Capital Facilities Needs ......................................................................................... 13 

. . .  
Capital Fac~litles Financing Plan ........................................................................... 16 

School Impact Fees ................................................................................................ 19 

.Population and Enrollment Data ........................................................... 

Student Generation Factor Review ......................................................... 

..School Impact Fee Calculations ........................................................... 

New Business 14 -48

Page 454 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



INTRODUCTION 

A. Purpose of the Capital Facilities Plan 

The Washington State Growth Management Act (the "GMA") includes schools in the 
category of public facilities and services. School districts have adopted capital facilities plans to 
satisfy the requirements of the GMA and to identify additional school facilities necessary to meet 
the educational needs of the growing student populations anticipated in their districts. 

The Lakewood School District (the "District") has prepared this Capital Facilities Plan 
(the "CFP") to provide Snohomish County (the "County") and the cities of Arlington and 
Marysville with a description of facilities needed to accommodate projected student enrollment 
and a schedule and financing program for capital improvements over the next six years 
(2006-201 1). 

In accordance with the Growth Management Act, adopted County Policy, the Snohomish 
County Ordinance Nos. 97-095 and 99-107, the City of Arlington Ordinance No. 1263, and the 
City of Marysville Ordinance Nos. 2306 and 2213, this CFP contains the following required 
elements: 

Future enrollment forecasts for each grade span (elementary, middle, and 
high school). 

An inventory of existing capital facilities owned by the District, showing 
the locations and capacities of the facilities. 

A forecast of the future needs for capital facilities and school sites. 

The proposed capacities of expanded or new capital facilities. 

A six-year plan for financing capital facilities within projected fiinding 
capacities, which clearly identifies sources of public money for such 
purposes. The financing plan separates projects and portions of projects 
which add capacity from those which do not, since the latter are generally 
not appropriate for impact fee funding. 

A calculation of impact fees to be assessed and supporting data 
substantiating said fees. 

In developing this CFP, the District followed the following guidelines set forth in the 
Snohomish County General Policy Plan: 

Districts should use information from recognized sources, such as the U.S. 
Census or the Puget Sound Regional Council. School districts may 
generate their own data if it is derived through statistically reliable 
methodologies. Information must not be inconsistent with Office of 
Financial Management ("OFM") population forecasts. Student generation 
rates must be independently calculated by each school district. 

The CFP must comply with the GMA. 

New Business 14 -49

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 455 of 575



The methodology used to calculate impact fees must comply with the 
GMA. The CFP must identify alternative funding sources in the event that 
impact fees are not available due to action by the state, county or cities 
within the District. 

The methodology used to calculate impact fees also complies with the 
criteria and the formulas established by the County. 

B. Overview of the Lakewood School District 

The Lakewood School District is located along Interstate 5, north of Marysville, 
Washington, primarily serving unincorporated Snohomish County and a part of the City of 
Arlington and the City of Marysville. The District is bordered on the south by the Marysville 
School District, on the west and north by the Stanwood School District, and on the east by the 
Arlington School District. 

The District serves a student population of 2,358 (October I ,  2005 FTE Enrollment) with 
three elementary schools, one middle school, and one high school. 

New Business 14 -50

Page 456 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -51

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 457 of 575



SECTION 2 
DISTRICT EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM STANDARDS 

School facility and student capacity needs are dictated by the types and amounts of space 
required to accommodate the District's adopted educational program. The educational program 
standards which typically drive facility space needs include grade configuration, optimum 
facility size, class size, educational program offerings, classroom utilization and scheduling 
requirements, and use of relocatable classroom facilities (portables), as well as specific and 
unique physical structure needs required to meet the full access needs of students with special 
needs. 

In addition to factors which affect the amount of space required, government mandates 
and community expectations may affect how classroom space is used. Traditional educational 
programs offered by school districts are often supplemented by nontraditional, or special 
programs such as special education, expanded bilingual education, remediation, migrant 
education, alcohol and drug education, AIDS education, preschool and daycare programs, 
computer labs, music programs, and others. These special or nontraditional educational 
programs can have a significant impact on the available student capacity of school facilities, and 
upon planning for future needs. 

Special programs offered by the District at specific school sites include, but are not limited to: 

Lakewood Elementary School (Preschool through 2nd Grade) 
Bilingual Education Program 

Chapter I Remedial Services Program 

. P - 2nd Grade Counseling Services 

. Speech and Language Disorder Therapy Program 

Early Childhood Education and Assistance Program (ECEAP) 

Developmentally Delayed Preschool Program - Ages 3 to 5 

K-2nd Grade Special Education Resource Room Program 

Learning Assistance Program - -Remedial Services (Learning Lab) 
Occupational Therapy Program 

K-2nd Grade Autism Program 

. Kindergarten Boost Program 

English Crossing Elementary School (3rd through 5th Grades) 
. 3rd through 5th Grade Special Education Resource Room Program 

After School Tutoring Program 

Bilingual Education Program 

. 3rd - 5th Grade Counseling Services 

New Business 14 -52

Page 458 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Speech and Language Disorder Therapy Program 

Title /Learning Assistance Program - Tutorial Services 

Occupational Therapy Program 

Cougar Creek Elementary School (Kindergarten through 5th Grades) 

Bilingual Education Program 

Chapter I Remedial Services Program 

Speech and Language Disorder Therapy Program 

Learning Assistance Program - Remedial Services (Learning Lab) 

Occupational Therapy Program 

After School Tutoring Program 

K - 51h Grade Special Education Resource Room Program 

K - 5'h Grade Special Education Life Skills Program 

K - 5' Grade Special Education SBD Program 

K - 5' Grade Counseling Services 

Lakewood Middle School (6th through 8th Grades) 

Speech and Language Disorder Therapy Program 

6th-8th Grade Special Education Resource and Inclusion Program 

After School Tutoring Program 

Bilingual Education Program 

Title I /Learning Assistance Program - Tutorial Services 

. Occupational Therapy Program 

61h - 8th Grade Counseling Services 

Lakewood High School 

9th-12th Grade Special Education Resource Room and Transition Program 

6th-12th Grade Special Education Life Skills Program 

Bilingual Education Program 

Occupational Therapy Program 

. Speech and Language Disorder Program 

9Ih - 1 2 ' ~  Grade Counseling Program 

New Business 14 -53

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 459 of 575



Variations in student capacity between schools may result from the special or 
nontraditional programs offered at specific schools. Some students, for example, leave their 
regular classroom for a short period of time to receive instruction in these special programs. 
Schools recently added to the District's inventory have been designed to accommodate many of 
these programs. However, existing schools often require space modifications to accommodate 
special programs, and in some circumstances, these modifications may affect the overall 
classroom capacities of the buildings. 

District educational program standards may change in the future as a result of changes in 
the program year, special programs, class sizes, grade span configurations, use of new 
technology, and other physical aspects of the school facilities. The school capacity inventory 
will be reviewed periodically and adjusted for any changes to the educational program standards. 
These changes will also be reflected in future updates of this Capital Facilities Plan. 

The District educational program standards which directly affect school capacity are 
outlined below for the elementary, middle, and high school grade levels. 

Educational Program StandarcLr For Elementary Schools 

Class size for grades K - 4th will not exceed 26 students. 

. Class size for grades 5th - 8th will not exceed 28 students. 

All students will be provided librarylmedia services in a school library. 

Special Education for students may be provided in self-contained or specialized 
classrooms. 

. All students will be provided music instruction in a separate classroom. 

. All students will have scheduled time in a computer lab, or time in which a mobile lab 
will be assigned to each classroom, for those buildings that have mobile computer labs. 
Each classroom will have access to computers and related educational technology. 

. Optimum design capacity for new elementary schools is 475 students. However, actual 
capacity of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 

. All students will be provided physical education instruction in a gym or in a multipurpose 
room. 

Educational Program Standards For Middle and High Schools 

Class size for middle school grades will not exceed 28 students. 

Class size for high school grades will not exceed 30 students. 

As a result of scheduling conflicts for student programs, the need for specialized rooms 
for certain programs, and the need for teachers to have a work space during planning 
periods, it is not possible to achieve 100% utilization of all regular teaching stations 
throughout the day. Therefore, classroom capacity should be adjusted using a utilization 

New Business 14 -54

Page 460 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



factor of 86% to reflect the use of one-period per day for teacher planning. Special 
Education for students will be provided in self-contained or specialized classrooms. 

All students will have scheduled time in a computer lab, or time in which a mobile lab 
will be assigned to each classroom, for those buildings that have mobile computer labs. 
Each classroom with access to computers and related educational-technology. 

Identified students will also be provided other nontraditional educational opportunities in 
classrooms designated as follows: 

Counseling Offices 

Resource Rooms (i.e. computer labs, study rooms) 

Special Education Classrooms 

Program Specific Classrooms (i.e. music, drama, art, home-economics, 

physical education, Industrial Arts and Agricultural Sciences). 

Optimum design capacity for new middle schools is 600 students. However, actual 
capacity of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 

Optimum design capacity for new high schools is 800 students. However, actual capacity 
of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 

Minimum Educational Service Standards 

The District will evaluate student housing levels based on the District as a whole system 
and not on a school by school or site by site basis. This may result in portable classrooms being 
used as interim housing, attendance boundary changes or other program changes to balance 
student housing across the system as a whole, while meeting the District's paramount duties 
under the State Constitution. A boundary change or a significant programmatic change would 
be made by the District's Board of Directors following appropriate public review and comment. 

The District has set minimum educational service standards based on several criteria. 
Exceeding these minimum standards will trigger significant changes in program delivery. If 
there are 26 or more students per classroom in a majority of K-4 classrooms, 28 or more students 
in a majority of 5-8 classrooms, or 30 or more students in a majority of 9-12 classrooms, the 
minimum standards have not been met. For purposes of this determination, the term "classroom" 
does not include special education classrooms or special program classrooms (i.e. computer labs, 
art rooms, chorus and band rooms, spaces used for physical education, and other special program 
areas). Furthermore, the term "classroom" does not apply to special programs or activities that 
may occur in a regular classroom. 

The minimum educational service standards are not District's desired or accepted 
operating standard. 

New Business 14 -55

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 461 of 575



SECTION 3 
CAPITAL FACILITIES INVENTORY 

The facilities inventory serves to establish a baseline for determining the facilities necessary to 
accommodate future demand (student enrollment) at acceptable levels of service. This section 
provides an inventory of capital facilities owned and operated by the District including schools, 
relocatable classrooms, undeveloped land, and support facilities. Facility capacity is based on 
the space required to accommodate the District's adopted educational program standards. See 
Section 2. Attached as Figure 1 is a map showing locations of District facilities. 

A. Schools 

The District maintains three elementary schools, one middle school, and one high school. 
Lakewood Elementary School accommodates grades K-2, Cougar Creek Elementary School 
accommodates grades K-5, and English Crossing Elementary School accommodates grades 3-5. 
Lakewood Middle School serves grades 6-8, and Lakewood High School serves grades 9-12. 

School capacity was determined based on the number of teaching stations within each 
building and the space requirements of the District's adopted educational program. It is this 
capacity calculation that is used to establish the District's baseline capacity, and to determine 
future capacity needs based on projected student enrollment. The school capacity inventory is 
summarized in Table 1.  

Relocatable classrooms are not viewed by the District as a solution for housing students 
on a permanent basis. Therefore, these facilities were not included in the school capacity 
calculations provided in Table 1. 

Table 1 
School Capacity Inventory 

Elementary School 

English Crossing 

Cougar Creek 

Lakewood 

TOTAL 

Middle School 

Lakewood Middle 

High School 

Lakewood High 

*Note: All facilities are located on one 89-acre campus 
**The Cougar Creek site is approximately 22 acres; however, the presence of critical areas on the site does not 
allow full utilization. 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

* 

lo** 

* 
* 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

* 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

* 

Building Area 
(Square Feet) 

4 1,954 

33,217 

38,301 

113,472 

Building Area 
(Square Feet) 

62,835 

Building Area 
(Square Feet) 

79,422 

Teaching 
Stations 

18 

19 

16 

53 

Teaching 
Stations 

25 

Teaching 
Stations 

24 

Permanent 
Capacity 

479 

500 

416 

1,395 

Permanent 
Capacity 

602 

Permanent 
Capacity 

619 

Year Built o r  
Remodeled 

1994 

2003 

19981 1997 

Year Built o r  
Remodeled 

1971, 1994, 
and 2002 

Year Built o r  
Remodeled 

1982 

New Business 14 -56

Page 462 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



B. Relocatable Classrooms 

Relocatable classrooms are used on an interim basis to house students until funding can 
be secured to construct permanent classrooms. The District currently uses 29 relocatable 
classrooms at various school sites throughout the District to provide additional interim capacity. 
A typical relocatable classroom can provide capacity for a full-size class of students. Current use 
of relocatable classrooms throughout the District is summarized in Table 2. Table 2 includes 
only those relocatable classrooms used for regular capacity purposes. 

Table 2 
Relocatable Classroom (Portable) Inventory 

Interim 

High School Relocata bles Capacity 

Lakewood High 

SUBTOTAL 175 

TOTAL 29 742 I 

Interim 
Capacity 

135 

0 

182 

317 

Elementary School 

English Crossing 

Cougar Creek 

Lakewood 

SUBTOTAL 

Interim 

Middle School Reloca tables Capacity 

Lakewood Middle 

SUBTOTAL 250 

Relocatables 

5 

0 

7 

12 

New Business 14 -57

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 463 of 575



C. Support Facilities 

In addition to schools, the District owns and operates additional facilities which provide 
operational support functions to the schools. An inventory of these facilities is provided in 
Table 3. 

Table 3 
Snpport Facility Inventory 

D. Land Inventory 

Facility 

Administration 

Business and Operations 

Storage 

Bus Garage 

Maintenance Shop 

Stadium 

The District does not own any sites which are developed for uses other than schools 
and/or which are leased to other parties. 

Building Area 
(Square Feet) 

1,384 

1,152 

2,456 

5,2 16 

4,096 

14,500 

New Business 14 -58

Page 464 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTION 4 
STUDENT ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS 

The District's October 1, 2005 FTE enrollment was 2,358. Enrollment projections are 
most accurate for the initial years of the forecast period. Moving further into the future, more 
assumptions about economic conditions and demographic trends in the area affect the projection. 
Monitoring birth rates in Snohomish County and population growth for the area are essential 
yearly activities in the ongoing management of the capital facilities plan. In the event that 
enrollment growth slows, plans for new facilities can be delayed. It is much more difficult, 
however, to initiate new projects or speed projects up in the event enrollment growth exceeds the 
projection. 

A. Six Year Enrollment Projections 

Two eniollment forecasts were conducted for the District: an estimate by OSPI based 
upon the cohort survival method; and an estimate based upon County population as provided by 
OFM ("ratio method"). 

Based on the cohort survival methodology, a total of 2,577 FTE students are expected to 
be enrolled in the District by 201 1, an increase of 219 over October 2005 enrollment levels. 
Notably, the cohort survival method does not anticipate new students from new development. 

OFM population-based enrollment projections were estimated for the District using OFM 
population forecasts for the County. The County provided the District with the estimated total 
population in the District by year. Between 1999 and 2001, the District's student enrollment 
constituted approximately 19.6% of the total population in the District. Assuming that between 
2004 and 2009, the District's enrollment will constitute 19.6% of the District's total population 
and using OFMJCounty data, OFMfCounty methodology projects a total enrollment of 2,957 
FTEs in 201 1 .  

Table 4 
Projected Student Enrollment 

2006-201 1 

* Actual FTE, October 2005 
**Based upon the cohort survival methodology; complete projections located at Appendix A. 

Projection 

OFMICounty 

District*" 

Oct. 
2005* 
2,358 

2,358 

Fall 
2006 

2,458 

2,401 

2007 

2,558 

2,424 

2008 

2,658 

2,477 

2009 

2,758 

2,514 

2010 
2,858 

2,544 

2011 
2,957 

2,577 

Change 
2006-11 

599 

219 

Percent 
Change 
2006-11 
25.4% 

9.3% 

New Business 14 -59

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 465 of 575



In addition to the OFM population-based enrollment projections, the City of Marysville 
indicates that there currently are 1,487 pending lots located within the District's portion of the 
City. This estimate is based on development applications filed with the City and does not 
consider additional projects that may be submitted to the City within the six years of this plan 
period. Given the relative uncertainty of these pending developments, the District has chosen to 
rely on the OFM population-based enrollment projections for purposes of planning for the 
District's needs during the six years of this plan period. Future updates to the Plan may revisit 
this issue. 

B. 2025 Enrollment Projections 

Student enrollment projections beyond 201 1 are highly speculative. Using OFMICounty 
data as a base, the District projects a 2025 student FTE population of 3,860. This is based on the 
OFM/County data for the years 1999 through 2001 and the District's actual fulltime equivalent 
enrollment for the corresponding years (for the years 1999 to 2001, the District's actual 
enrollment averaged 19.6% of the OFMICounty population estimates). The total enrollment 
estimate was broken down by grade span to evaluate long-term needs for capital facilities. 

Projected enrollment by grade span for the year 2025 is provided in Table 5. Again, 
these estimates are highly speculative and are used only for general planning purposes. 

Table 5 
Projected Student Enrollment 

2025 

*Assumes that percentage per grade span will remain constant through 2025 

Grade Span 

Elementary (K-5) 

Middle School (6-8) 

High School (9-12) 

TOTAL (K- 12) 

Note: Snohomish County Planning and Development Service provided the underlying data for 
the 2025 projections. 

FTE Enrollment - 
October 2005 

1,060 

630 

668 

2,358 

Projected Enrollment 2025" 

1,787 

969 

1,104 

3,860 

New Business 14 -60

Page 466 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTION 5 
CAPITAL FACILITIES NEEDS 

The projected available student capacity was determined by subtracting projected FTE 
student enrollment from permanent school capacity (i.e. excluding portables) for each of the six 
years in the forecast period (2006-201 1). 

Capacity needs are expressed in tenns of "unhoused students." 

Projected future capacity needs are depicted on Table 6-A and are derived by applying 
the projected enrollment to the capacity existing in 2006. The method used to define future 
capacity needs assumes no new construction. For this reason, planned construction projects are 
not included at this point. This factor is added later (see Table 7). 

This table shows actual space needs and the portion of those needs that are "growth 
related" for the years 2006-201 1. 

Table 6-A 
Additional Capacity Needs 

2011-12 1 Pct. 1 
2004-2009 - 

Grade Span 
I 

Elementary (K-5) 

Total 

Growth Related 

Middle School (6-8) 

Total 

Growth Related 

High School 

Total 

Growth Related 

Total 

Total Growth Related 

0 
-- 

140 

1 13 

227 

178 

367 

291 
*Actual October 2005 FTE Enrollment 

2005" 

0 
-- 

27 
-- 

49 
-- 

76 
-- 

Growth 
Related 

0% 

80.7% 

78.4% 

79.3% 

2005-06 

0 
-- 

15 
-- 

84 

3 5 

99 

35 

2006-07 

0 
-- 

4 0 

13 

113 

64 

153 

77 

2007-08 

0 

-- 

65 

38 

14 1 

92 

206 

130 

2008-09 

0 
-- 

90 

63 

170 

121 

260 

184 

2010-11 

0 
-- 

115 

8 8 

198 

149 

313 

237 

New Business 14 -61

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 467 of 575



By the end of the six-year forecast period (201 l), additional permanent classroom 
capacity will be needed as follows: 

Table 6-A 
Unhoused Students 

It is not the District's policy to include relocatable classrooms when determining future 
capital facility needs; therefore interim capacity provided by relocatable classrooms is not 
included in Table 6-A. However, Table 6-B incorporates the District's current relocatable 
capacity (see Table 2) for purposes of identifying available capacity. 

Grade Span 

Elementary (K-5) 

Middle School (6-8) 

High School (9-12) 

TOTAL UNHOUSED 
(K- 12) 

Table 6-B 
Utihoused Students - Mitigated with Relocatables 

Unhoused Students 

0 

140 

227 

367 

Importantly, Table 6-B does include relocatable adjustment that may be made to meet 
capacity needs. For example, the relocatable classrooms currently designated to serve 
elementary school needs could be used to serve high school capacity needs. Therefore, assuming 
no permanent capacity improvements are made, Table 6-B indicates that the District will have 
adequate interim capacity with the use of relocatable classrooms to house students during this 
planning period. 

Grade Span 

Elementary (K-5) 

I High School (9-12) 

Projected permanent capacity needs are depicted in Table 7. They are derived by 
applying the District's projected number of students to the projected capacity. Planned 
improvements by the District through 201 1 are included in Table 7 and more fully described in 
Table 8. 

Relocatable Capacity 

182 

201 1 Unhoused Students 

0 

Unhoused Students" 
----- 

*Parentheses denote available capacity in relocatable classrooms. 

227 175 52 I 

New Business 14 -62

Page 468 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table 7 
Projected Student Capacity 

2006-201 1 

Elen 

Existing 
Capacity* 

Added Capacity 

Surplus 
(Deficiency) 1 335 1 257 

Actual 
October 

2005 

1,395 

Total Capacity 

Enrollment* 

Existing 
Capacity* 

1,395 1,395 

1,060 1,138 

Added Capacity 

Total Capacity 

Enrollment 
~ ~- 

Surplus 
(Deficiency) 

Middle School Surplus/Deficiency 

See Appendix A for complete breakdown of enrollment projections. 

See Table 6-A for a comparison of  additional capacity needs due to growth versus existing deficiencies. 

High School Surplus/Deficiency 

2007 2008 2009 

602 602 602 

Actual 
October 

2005 

602 

Existing Capacity 

Added Capacity 

Total Capacity 

Enrollment 

2006 

602 

I Surplus 
(Deficiency) 

Actual 
October 

2005 

6 19 

6 19 

668 

2006 

619 

6 19 

703 

2007 

619 

619 

732 

2008 

619 

619 

760 

2009 

6 19 

619 

789 

2010 

6 19 

619 

817 

201 1 

619 

165 

784 

846 

New Business 14 -63

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 469 of 575



SECTION 6 
CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCING PLAN 

A. Planned Improvements 

In March 2000, the voters passed a $14,258,664 bond issue for school construction and 
site acquisition. A new elementary school and a middle school addition were hnded by that 
bond measure. These projects are complete. The District is considering a request for voter 
authorization of a bond issue within the six-years of this Plan to fund the following projects: 

Projects Adding Capacity: 

Acquisition of new 10 to 15 acre Elementary School site, within the 
District's service boundaries and dependent on growth needs; 

. An eighty-five (85) student expansion at the Lakewood Middle School; 
and 

. A one hundred sixty-five (1 65) student expansion at Lakewood High 
School. 

Non-Capacity Adding Projects: 

. High School modernization and improvements; 

Middle School modernization and improvements; 

Lakewood Elementary School modernization; 

. English Crossing Elementary School modernization; 

Bus Garage improvements; 

Replace Administration Building; and 

. Replace Business Office Building. 

In the event that planned construction projects do not fully address space needs for 
student growth and a reduction in interim student housing, the Board could consider various 
courses of action, including, but not limited to: 

alternative scheduling options; 

. changes in the instructional model; 

grade configuration changes; 

. increased class sizes; or 

. modified school calendar 

Funding for planned improvements is typically secured from a number of sources 
including voter approved bonds, State Match fiinds, and impact fees. Each of these funding 
sources is discussed in greater detail below. 

New Business 14 -64

Page 470 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



B. Financing for Planned Improvements 

1. General Obligation Bonds 

Bonds are typically used to fund construction of new schools and other capital 
improvement projects. A 60% voter approval is required to approve the issuance of bonds. 
Bonds are then retired through collection of property taxes. In March 2000, District voters 
approved a $14,258,664 bond issue for school construction and site acquisition, which included 
funding of the recently completed elementary school. The District is considering a request for 
voter authorization of a bond issue within the six-years of this Plan to fund the school 
construction projects identified in this plan. Additional details regarding the bond issue will be 
included in future updates. 

2. State Match Funds 

State Match funds come from the Common School Construction Fund (the "Fund"). 
Bonds are sold on behalf of the Fund, and then retired from revenues accruing predominantly 
from the sale of timber from common school lands. If these sources are insufficient, the 
Legislature can appropriate funds or the State Board of Education can change the standards. 
School districts may qualify for State Match funds for specific capital projects based on a 
prioritization system. The District is eligible for State Match funds for new schools at the 
54.17% match level. 

3. Impact Fees 

Impact fees are a means of supplementing traditional funding sources for construction of 
public facilities needed to accommodate new development. School impact fees are generally 
collected by the permitting agency at the time plats are approved or building permits are issued. 

4. Six Year Financing Plan 

The Six-Year Financing Plan shown in Table 8 demonstrates how the District intends to 
fund new construction and improvements to school facilities for the years 2006-201 1. The 
financing components include a bond issue, impact fees, and State Match funds. Projects and 
portions of projects which remedy existing deficiencies are not appropriate for impact fee 
funding. Thus, impact fees will not be used to finance projects or portions of projects which do 
not add capacity or which remedy existing deficiencies. 

New Business 14 -65

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 471 of 575



Table 8 
Capital Facilities Plan 

Improvements Adding Permanent Capacity (Costs in M i l l i o n s ) l  
I I 1 1 I I Total 

T o t a l s  ( C o s t s  in Millions) 

TOTAL 
2006 2007 2010 

$19.0254 
2008 

$1.5000 
201 1 

$21.7859 
2009 

Total 
Cost 

$42.3113 

Bonds1 
Levy 

X 

State 
Match 

X 

Impact 
Fees 
X 

New Business 14 -66

Page 472 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



SECTION 7 
SCHOOL IMPACT FEES 

The GMA authorizes jurisdictions to collect impact fees to supplement funding of 
additional public facilities needed to accommodate new development. Impact fees cannot be 
used for the operation, maintenance, repair, alteration, or replacement of existing capital facilities 
used to meet existing service demands. 

A. School Impact Fees in Snohomish County 

The Snohomish County General Policy Plan ("GPP") which implements the GMA sets 
certain conditions for school districts wishing to assess impact fees: 

The District must provide support data including: an explanation of the 
calculation methodology, a description of key variables and their 
computation, and definitions and sources of data for all inputs into the fee 
calculation. 

Such data must be accurate, reliable and statistically valid. 

Data must accurately reflect projected costs in the Six-Year Financing 
Plan. 

Data in the proposed impact fee schedule must reflect expected student 
generation rates from the following residential unit types: single family; 
multi-family/studio or l-bedroom; and multi-familyl2-bedroom or more. 

Snohomish County established a school impact fee program in November 1997, and 
amended the program in December 1999. This program requires school districts to prepare and 
adopt Capital Facilities Plans meeting the specifications of the GMA. Impact fees calculated in 
accordance with the formula, which are based on projected school facility costs necessitated by 
new growth and are contained in the District's CFP, become effective following County Council 
adoption of the District's CFP. 

B. Methodology and Variables Used to Calculate School Impact Fees 

Impact fees have been calculated utilizing the formula in the Snohomish County Impact 
Fee Ordinance. The resulting figures are based on the District's cost per dwelling unit to 
purchase land for school sites, make site improvements, construct schools, and purchaselinstall 
relocatable facilities that add interim capacity needed to serve new development. As required 
under the GMA, credits have also been applied in the formula to account for State Match funds 
to be reimbursed to the District and projected future property taxes to be paid by the dwelling 
unit. The costs of projects that do not add capacity are not included in the impact fee 
calculations. Furthermore, because the impact fee formula calculates a "cost per dwelling unit", 
an identical fee is generated regardless of whether the total new capacity project costs are used in 

New Business 14 -67

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 473 of 575



the calculation or whether the District only uses the percentage of the total new capacity project 
costs allocated to the Districts growth-related needs, as demonstrated in Table 6-A. For purposes 
of this Plan, the District has chosen to use the full project costs in the fee formula. Furthermore, 
impact fees will not be used to address existing deficiencies. See Table 8 for a complete 
identification of funding sources. 

The following projects are included in the impact fee calculation: 

A capacity addition at Lakewood Middle School; and 

A capacity addition at Lakewood High School. 

Please see Table 8 and page 2 1 for relevant cost data related to each capacity project. 

New Business 14 -68

Page 474 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



FACTORS FOR ESTIMATED IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

Student Generation Factors - Single Family Average Site Cost/Acre 
Elementary .268 
Middle .I65 
Senior .158 

Total -591 
Temporary Facility Capacity 

Student Generation Factors - Multi Family (1 Bdrrn) Capacity 
Elementary .OOO Cost 
Middle .OOO 
Senior .OOO State Match Credit 

Total -000 Current State Match Percentage 

Student Generation Factors - Multi Family (2+ Bdrm) Boeckh Index Factor 
Elementary .4 18 Current Boeckh Index 
Middle .I33 
Senior ,068 District Average Assessed Value 

Total .618 Single Family Residence 

Projected Student Capacity per Facility 

Required Site Acreage per Facility 

Facility ConstructionICost Average 
Middle (Addition) $2,264,640 
High School (Addition) $8,730,2 16 

Permanent Facility Square Footage 
Elementary 
Middle 
Senior 

Total 93.15% 

Temporary Facility Square Footage 
Elementary 
Middle 
Senior 

Total 6.85% 

Total Facility Square Footage 
Elementary 

Middle 
Senior 

Total 1 OO.OOO/~ 

District Average Assessed Value 
. Multi Family (I Bedroom) 

Multi Family (2+ Bedroom) 

SPI Square Footage per Student 
Elementary 
Middle 
High 

District Debt Service Tax Rate 
Current/$] ,000 

General Obligation Bond Interest Rate 
Current Bond Buyer Index 

Developer Provided Sites/Facilities 
Value 
Dwelling Units 

The total costs of the school construction projects 
122,432 and the total capacities are shown in the fee calculations. 
69,107 However, new development will only be charged for the 
86,590 system improvements needed to serve new growth. 

274,545 

New Business 14 -69

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 475 of 575



C. Proposed Lakewood School District Impact Fee Scltedule 

Using the variables and formula described in subsection B, impact fees proposed for the 
District are summarized in Table 9A and 9B. See also Appendix C. 

Table 9A 
School Impact Fees 

Snohomish County and City of Arlington 

Table 9B 
School Impact Fees 
City of Marysville 

Housing Type 

Single Family 

Multi-Family (1 Bedroom) 

Multi-Family (2+ Bedroom) 

Impact Fee Per Dwelling Unit 

$2,765 

SO 

$1,552 

Housing Type 

Single Family 

Multi-Family (1 Bedroom) 

Multi-Family (2+ Bedroom) 

Impact Fee Per Dwelling Unit 

$4,148 

$0 

$2,328 

New Business 14 -70

Page 476 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX A 

POPULATION AND ENROLLMENT DATA 

New Business 14 -71

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 477 of 575



Table A-1 

HISTORICAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 1997-2005 
ACTUAL ENROLLMENTS ON OCTOBER lst* 

* FTE enrollment. 

New Business 14 -72

Page 478 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table A-2 

PROmCTED STUDENT ENROLLMENT 2006-2011 
Based on OSPI Cohort Survival* 

* The cohort survival method of predicting future enrollment does @consider enrollment attributable to new development in the District. Enrollment 
projections are most accurate for the initial years of the forecast period. 

Total 
Enrollment 2,358 2,401 2,364 2,477 2,514 2,544 2,577 

New Business 14 -73

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 479 of 575



Table A-3 

AVERAGE PERCENTAGE ENROLLMENT BY GRADE SPAN 
(OSPI Enrollment Projections) 

Average Percentage 
by Grade Span 
Elementary (K-5) 46.3% 
Middle School (6-8) 25.1% 
High School (9-12) 28.6% 
TOTAL 100% 

New Business 14 -74

Page 480 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table A-4 

AVERAGE PERCENTAGE ENROLLMENT BY GRADE SPAN 
(COUNTYIOFM Enrollment Projections)*** 

*Actual October 2005 Enrollment. 
**  Totals may vary due to rounding. 
***Using average percentage by grade span. 

New Business 14 -75

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 481 of 575



APPENDIX B 

STUDENT GENERATION FACTOR REVIEW 

New Business 14 -76

Page 482 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



LARRY 
BROWNING, M.A. 

STUDENT GENERATION RATE CALCULATIONS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS 

March 17,2006 

Student Generation Rate Study - Lakewood School District 

This document describes the methodology used by Larry Browning, M.A. to calculate student generation 
rates for the Lakewood School District, and provides results of the calculations. 

Using data files from the Metroscan database, Snohomish County Planning and Development Services 
staff provided addresses and land use codes of all new construction between the years 1998 to 2004 
within the Lakewood School District boundaries. This data was "cleaned up" by eliminating any records 
that did not contain sufficient information (such as a missing site address) to generate a match from the 
student record data. 

Using data files from the Lakewood student records database, District staff provided student addresses 
and grade levels of K-12 students attending the District as of February 2006. The student addresses were 
cleaned up and reformatted to be consistent with the Metroscan method of storing addresses. 

Data from the two sources was electronically matched to obtain the following student generation rates: 

Single Family Rates: The records of 631 single family detached units were compared with 2,488 
registered students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated rates were found*: 

*Calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding. 

B- 1 

New Business 14 -77

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 483 of 575



Multifamily Rates (0-1 Bedrooms): No 0-1 bedroom multifamily units were found to be 
constructed within the Lakewood Scllool District boundaries during the study data period. 

Multifamily Rates (2-plus Bedrooms): The records of 474 2-plus bedroom units were compared 
with 2,488 registered students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated rates 
were found*: 

"Calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding. 

New Business 14 -78

Page 484 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX C 

SCHOOL IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS 

New Business 14 -79

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 485 of 575



SiOOClMPACT FEE-CALCULATIONS i 
I 

Snohomish CountylCity of Arlington , 

-- . - 

((AcresxCost per 

Cost/ cost7 

capacity 
0 268 0 000 B 4 j 8  $0 . 

85 0.165 0 000 a 133 - - $ _  --- Middle -. .- 
H ~ g h  165 0 158 0 000 $0 

I I 

- -. -- .L 

$0 $0 

School Construct~on Cost: 

Elementary 9315% 0 
M~ddle  93.15% $- 2.264.640 85 
H ~ g h  93.15% $ 8 730.21 6 1 65 $0 I $3.351 

1 - I $ I  1.882 $0 I $6 652 

Temporary Fac~ l~ ty  Cost- I 
((Foc~l~ty Cost/Fac~lqy Capoc~ty)xStudent ! 

1 - - -  COSI/ -jCast/ 
!%smp/ ~ F ~ C I I I ~ ~  SFR MFR (I) IMFR (2+) 
l ~ o t a l  Sq F l  / ~ o s t -  I 

Elementary 6 85% $ 26 $0 ' $0 i @ 
M~ddle  685% $ 29 0.000 $0 80 
H ~ g h  685% $ $0 1 $0 
. - 30 - - - -  , 

TOTAL 
-- - 

$0 I $0 I $0 
State Matchlng Cred~t 

Boeckh lndex X SPI Square Footage X Dtstr~ct Match % 
I 

Boeckh l~lstrlct Cost/ Cost/ (Cost/ 

Index Footage ~ a t c h %  MFRj2.1 
Elementary $ 154 22 90 0 00% $0 

Mlddle $ 154 22 108 54.17% _ 
Sr Hlgh $ 154 22 130 5417% $739 

I 
I I $3 205 1 $0 
I 1 $1 938 

I 
I I 

Tax Paymen! Credtt 1 I 
1 Average Assessed \/a!ue $222 779 $77,591 $ I  14,024 

Copltol Bond Interest Rate ! I 
- 

I 
. . - 4.57% 4 57% 4 57% 

Net Presenl Value of Average Dwelllng 
I I I : $1,758,313 1 $61 1.848 $899,143 

Years Arnorl~zed I 10 10 10 
I - . -. . 

Property Tax Levy Rate I i $1.79 $1 79 $1 79 
\Present Value of Revenue Stream 

-- - - - -- - - - I $3.147 1 $1.095 1 $1 609 
/Fee Summary iS~ngle -- -. 1 MUIII- - - IMultl- I 

I- - 

i 8~orn!~y l~~~~~ ( 1 )  ; F p r 3 ~ 2 + )  , I 
i 

iS~te Acqulstion Costs $0 I $0 $0 g 

[Permanent Facll~ly Cost 1 $11.882 - - I $0 1 $6 652 I 

;Temporary Fac~t~ty Cost 
I 

$0 ; $0 / 
/State Molch Cred~l  I $0 / ($1 938) i 

I 

'Tax Payment Credit ( $ 1  095)' ( $ 1  609) 
I I I 

FEE (AS CALCULATED) $5 530 $0 I $3 104 / 
! 
I 

FEE (AS DISCOUNTED) $2 765 $0 i $1 552 
I I 

IFEE (CITY OF MARYSVILLE) $4 148 1 $2 328 

New Business 14 -80

Page 486 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -81

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 487 of 575



LAKE STEVENS 
SCHOOL DISTFUCT NO. 4 

CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 
2006-201 1. 

Adopted ,by the Board ofDirectors 
August 23,2006 

Lake Sfevens School District 

Prepared by: 
Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -82

Page 488 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -83

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 489 of 575



CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 
LAKE STEVENS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Janice Thompson, President 
Rod Mace, Vice President 

Bob Bernethy 
Gail Manahan 
Mari Taylor 

SUPERINTENDENT 

Dr. David C. Burgess 

For information on the Lake Stevens School District Capital Facilities Plan contact Robb 
Stanton at the Lake Stevens School District, 12309 - 22nd Street NE, Lake Stevens, WA, 
98258. Phone: (425) 335-1506. 

Lake Stevens School Dktrici Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -84

Page 490 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



. . 
List of Figures 

............ ...................................................... ................... . Figure 1 Map of District Facilit~es 1-3 
.......................................................... Figure 2 -Lake Stevens School District Enrollment 5-1 

List of Tables 

Table 1 . School Capacity Inventory .................................................................................... 4-1 
Table 2 . Portable Classrooms ............................................................ ............................. 4-2 

..................... ................................................................... Table 3 - Support Facilities ......... 4-3 
Table 4 -Comparison of Enrollment Projections 2006-201 1 ............................................... 5-1 

..................................................  able 5 -Projected Enrollment by Grade Span 2006-2011 5-2 
...... Table 6 -Projected 2014 & 2025 Enrollment (Ratio Method . OFM) ......................... - 5 3  

Table 7 -Projected Additional Capacity Needs 2006- 201 1 ................................................. 6-2 
Table 8 - 20 1 1 Additional Capacity Needed ........... ..; ........................................................... 6-2 
Table 9 - Capital Facilities Plan 2006 - 201 1 .................................-...T............................... 6-4 
Table 10 - Projected Capacity Surplus (Deficit) After Programmed Improvements ............ 6-7 
Table 1 1 - Student Generation Rates .................................................................................... 6-9 
Table 12 - Calculated Impact Fees (No Discount) .......... ; ........ ; ....................... ......... . 6-11 
Table 13 - Calculated Impact . Fees (50% Discount) ........................................................... 6- 11 
Table 14 - Calculated Impact Fees (25% Discount) ....................................................... 6-11 

Lake Stevens School Dhtrict Capital Facilities PIan 

New Business 14 -85

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 491 of 575



3 

Purpose of the Capital Facilities Plan 

The Washington Growth Management Act (GMA) outlines thirteen broad goals including 
adequate provision of necessary public facilities and services. Schools are among this necessary 
facilities and services. The public school districts serving Snohomish County residents have 
developed capita1,facilities plans to satisfjr the requirements of RCW 36.70A.070 and to identify 
additional school facilities necessary to meet the educational needs of the growing student 
populations anticipated in their districts. 

This Capital ~ a c i k i e s  Plan (CFP) is intended to provide the Lake Stevens School District 
(District), Snohomish County, the City of Lake Stevens, the City of Marysville and other 
jurisdictions a-description of facilities needed to accommodate projected student enrollment at 
acceptable levkls of service over the next twelve years, with more detailed schedule and 
financing program for capital improvements over the next six years (2006-201 1). 

The CFP for the District was first prepared in 1994 in accordance with the specifications set in 
Snohomish County Code. When Snohomish County adopted its GMA Comprehensive Plan in 
1995, it addressed future school capital facilities plans in Appendix F of the General Policy Plan. 
This part of the plan establishes the criteria for all hture updates of the District CFP, which is to 
occur every two years. This CFP updates the GMA-based Capital Facilities Plan last adopted by 
the District in 2004. 

In accordance with GMA mandates, and Snohomish County Chapter 30.66C, this CFP contains 
the following required elements: 

Future enrollment forecasts for each grade span (elementary, middle and high). 
An inventory of existing capital facilities owned by the District, showing the locations and 
student capacities of the facilities. 
A forecast of the future needs for capital facilities and school sites; distinguishing between 
existing and projected deficiencies. 

. . 

The proposed capacities of expanded or new capital facilities. 
A six-year plan for financing capital facilities within projected funding capacities, which 
clearly identifies sources of public money for such purposes. The financing plan separates 
projects and portions of projects that add capacity from those which do not, since the latter 
are generally not appropriate for impact fee knding. The financing plan andfor the impact 
fee calculation formula must also differentiate between piojects or portions of projects that 
address existing deficiencies (ineligible for impact fees) and those which address future 
growth-related needs. 
A calculation of impact fees to be assessed and support data substantiating said fees. 

In developing this CFP, the guidelines of Appendix F of the General Policy Plan were used as 
follows: 

Information was obtained fiom recognized sources, such as the U.S. Census or the Puget 
Sound Regional Council. School districts may generate their own data if it is derived through 

Lake Stevens School District 1-1  Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -86

Page 492 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



statistically reliable methodologies. Information is to be consistent with the State Office of 
Financial Management (OFM) population forecasts and those of Snohomish County. 
Chapter 30.66C requires that student generation rates be independently calculated by each 
school district. Rates were updated for this CFP. 
The CFP complies with RCW 36.70A (the Growth Management Act) and, where impact fees 
'are to be assessed, RCW 82.02. 
The calculation methodology for impact fees meets the conditions and test of RCW 82.02. 
Districts which propose the use of impact fees should identify in future plan updates 
alternative funding sources in the event that impact fees are not available due to action by the 
state, county or the cities within their district boundaries. , 

Adoption of this CFP by reference by the County and Cities constitutes approval of the 
methodology used herein by the Council(s). 

Unless otherwise noted, all enrollment and student capacity data in this CFP is expressed in 
terms of FTE (Full Time ~~uivalent ) ' .  

Overview of the Lake Stevens School District 

The Lake Stevens School District is located six miles east of downtowti Everett, and 
encompasses all of the City of Lake Stevens as well as portions of unincorporated Snohomish 
County and a small portion of the City of Marysville. The District is located south of the 
Marysville School District and north of the Snohomish School District. 

The District currently serves a student population of 7,365 (October 1,2005 headcount) with six 
elementary schools, two middle schools, one high school, two alternative schools (Prove High. 
School and HomeLink). Elementary schools provide educational programs for students in 
kindergarten through grade five. Middle schools serve grades six through eight, and the high 
schools serve grades nine through twelve. HomeLink provides programs for students from 
kindergarten through grade twelve. 

Significant Issues Related to Facility Planning in the Lake Stevens ~ c h o o l  District 

The most significant issues facing the Lake Stevens School District in terms of providing 
classroom capacity to accommodate existing and projected demands are: 

rapid growth of enrollment continuing at a rate of 2.8% - 8.6% per year during the past 
fourteen years; - 

i aging school facilities (e.g. portions of Mt. Pilchuck and Hillcrest Elementaries which 
were constructed in the 1950's); and Sunnycrest Elementary constructed in 1969. 

the need for additional property with land costs continuing to escalate dramatically; 

the need for additional infrastructure such as on-campus fire hydrants, electrical services, 
telephone, data, fire alarms etc. that are drivingsthe costs of portables up significantly; 

' Full Time Equivalents (FTE) include half the students attending kindergarten and all students enrolled in 
grades 1 - 12. 

Lake Stevens School District 1-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -87

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 493 of 575



. gymnasium and athletic fields that are not adequate to handle the student population; and 

limited local resources to hire maintenance and grounds personnel. 

These issued are addressed'in greater detail in this Capital Facilities Plan. 

Figure 1 - Map of District Facilities 

Lake Stevens School District 1-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -88

Page 494 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -89

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 495 of 575



Note: Definitions of terms proceeded by an asterisk (*) are provided in Chapter 30.9SCC. 
They are included here, in some cases with further clarification to aid in the understanding of 
this CFP. Any such clarifications provided herein in no way affect the legal definitions and 
meanings assigned to them in Chapter 30.9SCC. 

*Appendix F means Appendix F of the Snohomish County Growth Management Act (GMA)' 
Comprehensive Plan, also referred to as the General Policy Plan (GPP). 

*Area Cost Allowance (Boeckh Index) means the current OSPI construction allowance for 
construction costs for each school type. 

*Average Assessed Value means the average assessed value by dwelling unit type of all 
residential units constructed within the District. 

*Boeckh Index means the number generated by the E.H. Boeckh Company and used by OSPI as 
a guideline for determining the area cost allowance for new school construction. 

*Board means the Board of Directors of the Lake Stevens School District ("School Board ).' 

*Capital Facilities means school facilities identified in the District's capital facilities plan and are 
"system improvements as defined by the GMA as opposed to localized "project improvements. 

*Cavital Facilities Plan (CFP] means the. District's facilities plan adopted by its school board 
consisting of those elements required by Chapter 30.66C and meeting the requirements of the 
GMA and Appendix F of the General Policy Plan. The definition refers to this document.. 

. . 

*& meanscity of Lake Stevens andor City of Marysville. . . 
.. , 

*Council means the Snohomish ~ounty '~ounci1.  

*Countv means Snohomish County. 

*DCTED means the Washington State Department of Community, Trade and Economic 
Development. 

*Develover means the proponent of a development activity, such as any person or entity that 
owns or holds purchase options or other development control over property for which 
development activity is proposed. 

*Development means all subdivisions, short subdivisions, conditional use or special use permits, 
binding site plan approvals, rezones accompanied by an official site plan, or building permits 
(including building permits for multi-family and duplex residential structures, and all similar 
uses) and other applications requiring land use permits or approval by Snohomish County. 

Lake Stevens School Dktrict 2-1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -90

Page 496 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



*Development Activitv means any residential construction or expansion of a building, structure 
or use of land or any other change of building, structure or land that creates additional demand - 

and need for school facilities, but excluding building permits for attached or detached accessory 
apartments, and remodeling or renovation permits which do not result in additional dwelling ' 

units. Also excluded fiom this definition is "Housing for Older Persons as defined by 46 U.S.C. 
5 3607, when guaranteed by a restrictive covenant, and new single-family detached units 
constructed on legal lots created prior to May 1, 199 1. 

*Development Approval means any written authorization fi-om the County, which authorizes the 
commencement of a development activity. 

*Director means the Director of the Snohomish County Department of Planning and 
Development Services (PDS), or the Director's designee. 

District means Lake Stevens School District No. 4 whose geographic boundaries are within 
Snohomish County. 

*District Property Tax Levy Rate means the District's current capital property tax rate per 
thousand dollars of assessed value. - 

' 

"Dwelling Unit T m e  means (1) single-family residences, (2) multi-family one-bedroom 
apartment or condominium units and (3) multi-family multiple-bedroom apartment or 
condominium units. 

*Encumbered means school impact fees identified by the District to be committed as part of the 
funding for capital facilities for which the publicly funded share has been assured, development 
approvals have been sought or construction contracts have been let. 

"Estimated Facility Construction Cost means the planned costs of new schools or the actual 
construction costs of schools of the same grade span recently constructed by the District, 
including on-site and off-site improvement' costs. If the District does not have this cost 
information available, construction costs of school facilities of the same or similar grade span 
within another District are acceptable. 

FTE (Full Time Equivalent) is a means of measuring student enrollment based on the number of 
hours per day in attendance at the District's schools. A student is considered one FTE if he/she is 
enrolled for the equivalent of a full schedule each full day. Kindergarten students attend half-day 
programs and therefore are counted as 0.5 FTE. For purposes of this Capital Facilities Plan, all 
other students are counted as h l l  FTE. (This is in line with OSPI's Capital Facilities Section, 
FTE measurements and projections.) 

GFA (per student) means the Gross Floor Area per student. 

*Grade Span means a category into which the District groups its grades of students (e.g., 
elementary, middle or junior high, and high school). 

Lake Stevens School District 2-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -91

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 497 of 575



*Growth Management Act (GMA) means the Growth Management Act, Chapter 17, Laws of the 
State of Washington of 1990, 1'' Ex. Sess., as now in existence or as hereafter amended. 

*Interest Rate means the current interest rate as stated in the Bond Buyer Twenty-Bond General 
Obligation Bond Index. 

*Land Cost Per Acre means the estimated average land acquisition cost per acre (in current 
dollars) based on recent site acquisition costs, comparisons of comparable site acquisition costs 
in other districts, or the average assessed value per acre of properties comparable to school sites 
located within the District. 

1 ( ~  

*Multi-Family Dwelling Unit means any residential dwelling unit that is not a single-family unit 
a s  defined by ordinance Chapter 3 0 . 6 6 ~ . ~  

, *OFM means Washington State OEce of Financial Management. 

*OSPI means Washington State Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 
I 

*Permanent Facilities means school facilities of the District with a fixed foundation. 

*R.C.W. means the Revised Code of Washington (a state law). 

* Relocatable Facilities (also referred to as Portables) means factory-built structures, 
transportable in one or more sections, that are designed to be used as an education spaces and are 
needed to prevent the overbuilding of school facilities, to meet the needs of service areas within 
the District, or to cover the gap between the time that families move into new residential 
developments and the date that construction is completed on permanent school facilities. 

*Relocatable Facilities Cost means the total cost, based on actual costs incurred by the District, 
for purchasing and installing portable classrooms. 

*Relocatable Facilities Student Capacity means the rated capacity for a typical portable 
classroom used for a specified grade span. 

*School Impact Fee means a payment of money imposed upon development as a condition of 
development approval to pay for school facilities needed to serve the new growth and 
development. The school impact. fee does not include a reasonable permit fee, an application fee, 
the administrative fee for collecting and handling impact fees, or the cost of reviewing 
independent- fee calculations. 

SEPA means the State Environmental Policy Act. 

*Single-Family Dwellinn Unit means any detached residential dwelling unit designed for 
occupancy by a single-family or household. 

* For purposes of calculating Student Generation Rates, assisted living or senior citizen housing is not included in- 
this definition. 

Lake Steve& School District 2-3 Capital ~acilit'ies Plan. 

New Business 14 -92

Page 498 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



*Standard of Service means the standard adopted by the District which identifies the program 
year, the class size by grade span and taking into account the requirements of students with 
special needs, the number of classrooms, the types of facilities the District believes will best 
serve its student population and other factors as identified in the District's capital facilities plan. . 
The District's standard of service shall not be adjusted for any portion of the classrooms housed 
in relocatable facilities that are used as transitional facilities or fiom any specialized facilities 
housed in relocatable facilities. 

*State Match Percentage means the proportion of funds that are provided to the District for , 

specific capital projects from the State's Common School Construction Fund. These h d s  are 
disbursed based on a formula which calculates district assessed valuation per pupil relative to the 
whole State assessed valuation per pupil to establish the maximum percentage of the total project . 
eligible to be paid by the State. 

*Student Factor [Student Generation Rate (SFR)I means the nurriber 6f students of each grade 
span (elementary, middleljunior high, high school) that the District determines are typically 
generated by different dwelling unit types within the District, Each District will use' a survey or 
statistically valid methodology to derive the specific student generation rate, provided that the 
survey or methodology is approved by the Snohbmish County Council as part of the .adopted ' 
capital facilities plan for each District. 

*Subdivision means all small and large lot subdivisions as defined in Title 19 of the Snohomish 
County Code, and all short subdivisions as defined in Title 20, which are within the definition of 
"development above. T 

1 

*Teaching Station means a facility space (classroom) specifically dedicated to implementing the 
District's educational program and capable of accommodating at any one time, at least a full 
class of  up to 30 students. In addition to traditional classrooms, these spaces can include 
computer labs, auditoriums, gymnasiums, music rooms and other special education and resource . 
rooms. 

*Unhoused Students means District enrolled students who are housed in portable or temporary. 
classroom space, or in permanent classrooms in which the maximum class size is exceeded. 

*WAC means the Washington Administrative Code, . . 

. . . . . . . .  . . , .. ~ 

. .: . ' .. 
. . , . - .  

. .  ., 

. ., . 
. . , 

Lake Stevens School District 2-4 . Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -93

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 499 of 575



School facility and student capacity needs are dictated by the types and amounts of space 
required to accommodate the District's adopted educational program. The educational program 
standards which typically drive facility space needs include grade configuration, optimum 
facility size, class size, educational program offerings, classroom utilization and scheduling 
requirements, and use of relocatable classroom facilities (portables). 

In addition, government mandates and community expectations may affect how classroom space 
is used. Traditional educational programs offered by school districts are often supplemented by , 
nontraditional, or special programs such as special education, English as a second language, 
remediation, migrant education, alcohol and drug education, AIDS education, preschool and 
daycare programs, computer labs, music programs, .etc. These special or nontraditional 
educational programs can have a significant impact on the available student capacity of school 
facilities 

Examples of special programs offered by the Lake Stevens School District at specific school 
sites include: 

Bilingual Program 

Title I 

Title 2 . . 

Community Education 

Conflict Resolution 

Drug Resistance Education 

ECEAP 

Highly Capable 

Independent Ed 

Language Assistance Program (LAP) 

Mentor Program 

Middle School Alternative 

Multi-Age Instruction 

PROVE Alternative High School 

Running Start 

Senior Project (volunteer time as part of course work) 

Vocational Education 

Lake Stevens School District 3-1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -94

Page 500 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Variations in student capacity between schools are often a result of what special or nontraditional 
programs are offered at specific schools. These special programs require classroom space, which 
can reduce the permanent capacity of some of the buildings housing these programs. Some 
students, for example, leave their regular classroom for a short period of time to receive 
instruction in these special programs. Newer schools within the District have been designed to 
accommodate most of these programs. However, older schools often require space modifications 
to accommodate special programs, and in some circumstances, these modifications may reduce 
the overall classroom capacities of the buildings. 

District educational program requirements will undoubtedly change in the future as a result of 
changes in the program year, special programs, class sizes, grade span configurations, and use of 
new technology, as well as other physical aspects of the school facilities. The school capacity - 
inventory will be reviewed periodically and adjusted for any changes to the educational program 
standards. These changes will also be reflected in future updates of this Capital Facilities Plan. 

The District's minimum educational program requirements, which directly affect school 
capacity, are outlined on page 3-3 for the elementary, middle and high school grade levels. 

~ d u c ~ t i o n a l  Program Standards for Elementary Grades 

Average class size for grades K-3 should not exceed 20 students. 
Average class size for grades 4- 5 should not exceed 24 students. 
Special Education for students may be provided in a self-contained classroom. The practical 
capacity for these classrooms is 12 students. 
All students will be provided music instruction in a separate classroom. 
Students may have a scheduled time in a computer lab. 
Optimum design capacity for new elementary schools is 500 students. However, actual 
capacity of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 

Educafional Program Standards for Middle and High Schools 

Class size for middle school grades should not exceed 27 students. The District assumes a 
practical capacity for high school and middle school classrooms of 30 students. 
Class size for grades 9-12 should not exceed 30 students. 
Special Education for students may be provided in a self-contained classroom. The practical 
capacity for these classrooms is 12 students. 
As a result of scheduling conflicts for student programs, the need for specialized rooms for 
certain programs, and the need for teachers to have a workspace during planning periods, it is 
not possible to achieve 100% utilization of all regular teaching stations throughout the day. 
Therefore, classroom capacity is adjusted using a utilization factor of 90%. 
Some Special Education services for students will be provided in a self-contained classroom. 
Identified students will also be provided other nontraditional educational opportunities in 
classrooms designated as follows: 
+ Resource Rooms (i.e. computer labs, study rooms). 
+ Special Education Classrooms. 

~ a k e s t e v e n s  School District 3-2 Capital Futilities Plan 

New Business 14 -95

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 501 of 575



. Program Specific Classrooms, for example: (i.e. music, drama, art, home-economics, 
physical education) 

Music 
Drama 
Art 
Physical Education 
Family and Consumer Sciences 
Career and Technical Education 

Optimum design capacity for new middle schools is 750 students. However, actual capacity 
of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 
Optitnum design capacity for new high schools is 1500 students. However, actual capacity 
of individual schools may vary depending on the educational programs offered. 

Minimum Educational Service Standards 

The Lake Stevens School District will evaluate student housing levels based on the District as a 
whole system and not on a school by school or site by site basis. This may result in portable 
classrooms being used as interim housing, attendance boundary changes or other program 
changes to balance student housing across the system as a whole. 

The Lake Stevens School District has set minimum educational service standards based on 
several criteria. Exceeding these minimum standards will trigger significant changes in program 
delivery. If there are 25 or more students per classroom in a majority of K-5 classrooms, 28 or 
more students in a majority of 6-8 classrooms, or 31 or more students in a majority of 9-12 
classrooms, the minimum standards have not been met. 

Although they may meet the number criteria above, double shifting with reduced hours of "Year 
Round Education programs adopted for housing reasons would also not meet the minimums. 

It. should be noted that the minimum educational standard is just that, a minimum, and not the 
desired or accepted operating . . standard. 

' Lake Stevens School District 3-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -96

Page 502 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -97

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 503 of 575



1 Capital Facilities 

I Under GMA, public entities are required to inventory capital facilities used to serve the existing 

1 . populations. Capital facilities are defined as any structure, improvement, piece of equipment, or 
other major asset, including land that has a useful life of at least ten years. The purpose of the 

I facilities inventory is to establish a baseline for determining what facilities will be required to 

1 accommodate future demand (student enrollment) at acceptable or established levels of service. 
This section provides an inventory of capital facilities owned and operated by the Lake' Stevens 

I School District including schools, portables, developed school sites, undeveloped land and 
support facilities. School facility capacity was inventoried based on the space required to 

I 

accommodate the District's adopted educational program standards (see Section 3). A map 
showing locations of District school facilities is provided as Figure 1. 

Table 1 - School Car>aciW ~nventory 

-- 

Elementary Schools 
Cilenwood Elementary 9 42,737 23 549 645 1992 NO 
Hillcrest Elementary 15 47,966 23 549 669 1977 No 
Highland Elementary 8.7 49,727 21 512 608 1999 No 
Mt. Pilchuck Elementary 22 49,068 23 549 573 1977 No 
Skyline Elementary 15 42,737 23 549 645 1992 No 

Middle Schools 
Lake Stevens Middle School 25 86,374 3 1 732 1,029 1996 No 

Lake Stevens High School 38 204,844 69 1,614 2,184 1995 No 

Source: Lake Stevens School Ilistrict 
* Note: Student Capacity figure is exclusive of portables and adjustments for special programs. 

Schools 

The Lake Stevens's School District includes: six elementary schools grades K-5, two middle 
schools grades 6-8, one high school grades 9-12,' one' alternative high school (Prove) serving 
grades 9-12, and an alternative K-12 school (HomeLink). 

The District does not currently lease any facilities. 
The State (OSPI) calculates school capacity by dividing gross square footage of a building by a 
standard square footage per student. This method is used by the State as a simple and uniform 
approach for determining school capacity for purposes of allocating available State Match Funds 
to school districts for school construction. However, this method is not considered an accurate 
reflection of the capacity required to accommodate the adopted educational program of each 

Lake Stevens School District 4-  1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -98

Page 504 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



individual district. For this reason, school capacity was determined based on the number of 
teaching stations within each building and the space requirements of the District's adopted 
education program. These capacity calculations were used to establish the District's baseline 
capacity and determine fbture capacity needs based on projected student enrollment. The school 
capacity inventory is summarized in Table 1. 

Relocatable classrooms (portables) are not viewed by the District as a solution for housing 
students on a permanent basis. Therefore, these facilities were not included in the permanent 
school capacity calculations provided in Table 1. 

Relocatable Classroom Facilities {Portables) 

Portables are used as interim classroom space to house students until finding can be secured to 
construct permanent classroom facilities. Portables are not viewed by the District as a solution 
for housing students on a permanent basis. The Lake Stevens School District currently uses 75 
portables at various school sites throughout the District to provide interim capacity. This figure 
includes 3 portables purchased in 2004 and 4 portables purchased in 2005 to accommodate 
interim student housing. A typical portables classroom can provide capacity for a kll-size class 
of students. Current use of portables throughout the District is summarized in Table 2. 

Table 2 - Portable Classrooms 

Lake Stevens Middle 

Stevens High School 

In addition to the portables listed above, the District purchased a portable in 2005 to house the 
Technology Support Group, a District-wide support group. The portable is located at North Lake 
Middle School, across fiom the District Administration Office. It does not add space for interim 
student housing. 

Lake Stevens School District 4-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -99

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 505 of 575



The District will continue to purchase or move existing portables, as needed, to cover the gap 
between the time that families move into new residential developments and the time the District 
is able to complete construction on permanent school facilities. 

Some of the District's existing portables are beyond their serviceable age and are no longer able 
to be moved. Upon completion of additional school facilities, the probability exists these units 
will be demolished. 

Support Facilities 

In addition to schools, the Lake Stevens School District owns and operates additional facilities 
that provide operational support functions to the schools. An inventory of these facilities is 
provided in Table 3. 

Table 3 - Suooort Facilities 

Land Inventory 

The Lake Stevens School District owns five undeveloped sites described below: 

Ten acres located. in the northeast area of the District (Lochsloy area), west of Highway 92. This 
site will eventually be used for an elementary school (beyond the year 2007). It is presently used 
as an auxiliary sports field. 

An approximately 35-acre site northeast of the intersection of Highway 9 and Soper Hill Road, 
bordered by Lake Drive on the east is being sold having been declared surplus property'by the 
District. 

A parcel of approximately 23 acres, of which 1 1 acres are usable as an elementary site, i s  located 
at approximately Hewitt Avenue and ~ 3 ' ~  Street. The remainder' of this parcel is classified as a 
wetland and is, therefore, unusable. 

A site of approximately 37.7 acres is located approximately 300 yards south of Hewitt Avenue. 
This site is the site for the new mid-high school currently under construction and scheduled to 
open in fall 2007. 

A 2.42 acre site (Bond Field), located in an area north of Highway #92, is used as a small softball 
field. It is not of sufficient size to support's school, 

Lake Stevens School District 4-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -100

Page 506 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Lake Stevens School District Enrollment Patterns 

a,WO 

8.000 

7.- 

6.000 

1 Sr000 

E rpoo 
E 

3.000 

2pw 

1,- 

school Year 

BJ Elementary llMiddle High 

Figure 2 - Lake stevens School District Enrollment 

, Historic Trends and Projections 

Student enrollment records dating back to 1973 were available from Snohomish County and 
OSPI. Student enrollment in the Lake Stevens School District remained relatively constant 
between 1973 and 1985 (15%) and then grew significantly from 1985 through 2005 (120%). 
The October 1,2005 enrollment was 7,637 (7,365 FTE) students. 

Actual enrollment by year is shown in Figure 2. Average annual growth between 1974 and 2005 
was 4.18%, more than double the countywide average of 1.75% per year. Between 1994 and 
2005 average annual growth was 4.47% compared to a countywide average of 1.71%. Since- 
1992, the Lake Stevens School District has been one of the fastest growing districts in 
Snohomish County. 

Table 4 - Comparison of Enrollment Projections 2006-2011 

l ~ a t i o  7,365 7,637 7,880 8,122 8,370 8,613 8,857 1,492 20.3% 
Source: Lake Stevens School District, OSPI 
* Actual ETE student enrollment (0ct-ober 1,2005) 

Enrollment projections are most accurate for the initial years of the forecast period. Moving 
fUrther into the future, more assumptions about economic conditions and demographic trends in 
the area affect the projections. Monitoring birth rates in Snohomish County and population 

Lake Stevens School Dktrict 5-1 . Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -101

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 507 of 575



growth for the area are essential yearly activities in the ongoing management of the capital 
facilities plari. In the event that enrollment growth slows, plans for new facilities can be delayed. 
It is much more difficult, however, to initiate new projects or speed projects up in the event 
enrollment growth exceeds the projections. 

Table 5 - Projected Enrollment by Grade Span 2006-2011 

l ~ i d d l e  school 1,868 1,859 1,906 1,909 1,97 1 2,006 2,0591 

-- 

Source: OSPI data: Report dates 11105 
* Actual FTE Student Enrollment (October 1,2005)' 

Two enrollment f ~ ~ a s ' t s  were conducted for the Lake Stevens School District. The first is an 
estimate by the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI). OSPI estbhates future enrollment 
using a modified cohort sufiival methodr This method. estimates how many students in one year 
will attend the next grade in the following year. The methodology is explained in Appendix D. 

The second method is an estimate based upon Snohomish County population estimates as 
provided by the State Office of Financial Management (OFM). Section 11 of ESHB 2929 (The 
Growth Management Act) requires that planning for public facilities be based on the 20-year 
population projections developed by the OFM. OFM population based enrollment projections 
have been estimated using the revised Draft Population Forecast by School District prepared by 
the Snohomish County Department of Planning and Development Services, and OFM population 
forecasts for Snohomish County. 

The ratio method traces the ratio of student enrollment to total population and assumes what this 
ratio will be in future years. On.average, for the period 1998 - 2005, 21.54% of  thd population 
in the Lake Stevens School District was students. 

Combining the OSPI enrollment projections with historic OFM population relationships, the 
average student population ratio through 201 1 is 20.1 1%. The District finds that this is a 
reasonable assumption and therefore assumes that the OSPI and OFM ratio methods are 
comparable. See Appendix C - Enrollment Data, Table C-3 for historical trends in 
enrollment/population ratios. 

OSPI estimates that enrollment will total 8,451 student FTEs in 201 1. This is a 14.7% increase 
over 2005. The Ratio Method estimates that enrollment will total 8,857 student FTEs in 201 1, 
which is a 20.3% increase over 2005. 

The OSPI enrollment forecast has been used to determine facility needs inasmuch as it the most 
conservative and most closely relates to the District's internal projections. 

2014 and 2025 Enrollment Projections 

Although student enrollment projections beyond 201 1 are highly speculative, they are useful for 
developing long-range comprehensive facilities plans. These long-range enrollment projections 
may also be used in determining hture site acquisition needs. 

Lake Steve& Sthool District 5-2 Capital ~aci f i f ies  Plan 

New Business 14 -102

Page 508 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



I 
i 

The District projects a 2014 student FTE enrollment of 9,435 based on the "ratio method. 
(OSPI does not forecast enrollments beyond 201 1) The forecast is based on the County's OFM- 
based population forecast and applies the student-to-population ratio of 21.54 % estimated for 
201 1. Assuming the County forecasts are correct, there is an assumed upward turn in the student- 

I to-population ratio through 2014. The 2 1.54% ratio is considered reasonable. The 2014 estimate 

I represents a 28.1% increase over existing 2005 enrollment levels. The total enrollment estimate 
was broken down by grade span to evaluate long-term site acquisition needs for elementary, 

I middle and high school facilities. Enrollment by grade span was determined based on recent and 

I 
projected enrollment trends at the elementary, middle and high school levels. Projected 
enrollment by grade span for the year 2014 is provided in Table 6. 

I 

Using the County's OFM-based population forecast and continuing the average 21.54 % student- 
to-population ratio experienced over the past several years, a student population of 12,672 FTE is 
projected for 2025. Projected enrollment by grade span for 2025 is provided in Table 6. 

Should projected enrollment materialize as described in Table 6, it is estimated that the District 
would require an additional 95 classrooms at the elementary level, 55 classrooms at the middle 
school level and 83 classrooms at the high school level. These additional classrooms could take 
the form of relocatable classrooms (portables), additional classrooms at existing schools or new 
campuses. In addition, it is possible that the District would require additional support facilities, 
like a maintenance building, technology center, warehouse space or additional bus service 
facilities, to serve the projected enrollment. 

Again, these estimates are highly speculative and are used only for general planning purposes. 
Analysis of future facility and capacity needs is provided in Section 6 of this Capital Facilities 
Plan. 

Table 6 - Prsiected 2014 & 2025 Enrollment (Ratio Method - OFM) 

I Middle, 6-8 
High. 9-12 

Lake Stevens School District 5-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -103

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 509 of 575



New Business 14 -104

Page 510 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Existing Deficiencies 

Current enrollment at each grade level is identified in Appendix C-3. The District is currently 
under capacity at the elementary level by 19 students, over capacity at the middle school level by 
376 students and over capacity at the high school by 85 1 students. 

The District expects that 0.721 students will be generated from each new single family home in 
the District and that 0.298 students will be generated fiom each new two-plus bedroom multi- 
family unit. These numbers are based upon the District's student generation rates. 

The District's enrollment projections, in Table 5, have been applied to the existing capaciGand 
the-District will be over capacity at the elementary level by 473 students, over capacity at the 
middle school level by 576 students and over capacity at the high school by 1,048 students if no 
capacity improvements are made by the year 20 1 1. 

The District's six-year capital improvement plan (Table 9) includes capacity projects to address 
existing and fbture needs. 

The "base year for determining growth related needs in the 2006 CFP is 2005. 

Facility Needs (2006 - 201 7) 

Projected available student capacity was derived by subtracting projected FTE student 
enrollment from existing permanent school capacity (excluding portables) for each of the six 
years in the forecast period (2006 - 201 1). 

Capacity needs are expressed in terms of "un-housed students. Un-housed students are defined 
as students expected to be housed in portable classrooms or classrooms where class size exceeds 
State standards or contractually negotiated agreements within the local school district. 

The method used to define hture capacity needs assumes no new construction. For this reason 
planned construction projects are not included at this point. This factor is added later (see Table 
9). 

Projected hture capacity needs are depicted on Table 7. The table shows actual space needs and 
the portion of those needs that are "growth related. By ordinance, new development cannot be 
assessed impact fees to correct existing deficiencies. Thus, any capacity deficiencies existing in 
the District in 2005 must be deducted fiom the total projected deficiencies before impact fees are 
assessed. 

Forecast of Future Facility Needs for the Next Twenty Years 
Additional elementary, middle and high school classroom space will need to be constructed 
between 20 14 and 2025 to meet the projected student population increase. The District will have 
to purchase additional school sites to facilitate growth during this time frame. 

Lake Stevens School District 6- 1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -105

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 511 of 575



Table 7 - Projected Additional Capacity Needs 2006- 2011 

Elementary (K-5) 
Total 0 0 69 150 '270 383 473 

Growth Related 0 0 69 150 270 383 473 100.00% 
Middle School (6-8) 

Total 385 376 423 426 488 523 576 
Growth Related 0 -9 38 41 103 138 191 33.16% 

High School (9-12) 
Total 768 851 857 949 929 972 1048 

Growth Related 0 83 89 181 161 204 280 26.72% 
, . 

By the end of the six-year forecast period (201 l), additional permanent student capacity will be 
needed as follows: 

Table 8 - 2011 Additional Capacity Needed 

I Middle School 1,483 1,483 
1.614 1.614 1.048 Hi& School 

These figures do not reflect any planned improvements by the District through 2011. Planned 
improvements are discussed in the sections that follow. 

Planned Improvements (2006 - 2011) 

The following is a brief outline of those projects likely needed to accommodate un-housed 
students in the Lake Stevens School District through the Year 201 1 based on OSPI enrollment 
projections. The District placed a successful bond issue before the voters in February 2005 for 
$65,500,000. This amount represents the District (local) portion of projects totaling 
approximately $102,520,000. Mitigation fees are also included in the local portion of entitled 
projects. 

Elementary Schools: Based upon current enrollment estimates, elementary student population 
will increase to the level of requiring a new elementary school. However, the construction of 
new elementary schools by 2011 is not included in the District's planning at this time. 
Renovation of Mt. Pilchuck, Hillcrest and Sunnycrest Elementary Schools is planned. 

Middle Schools: The District needs additional space to facilitate middle school students. At this 
time, the District is in the process of constructing an 8-9 secondary school scheduled for 
completion in the fall of 2007. 

High Schools: The District needs additional space to facilitate high school students. At this 
time, the District is in the process of constructing an 8-9 secondary school scheduled to open in 

Lake Stevens School District 6-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -106

Page 512 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



the fail of 2007. ü he District will receive matching funds on this project. It should be noted, 
however, that while the state indicates a matching ratio of 67.81%, based upon several factors, 
the District has historically received an approximate 40% matching ratio on its school 
construction projects and will receive on this project a state,match not to exceed $20,280,000 or 
approximately 3 3%. 

Interim Classroom Facilities (Portablesl: Additional portables will be purchased in future 
years, as needed. However, it remains a District goal to house all students in .permanent 
facilities. 

Site Acquisition and Improvements: f i e  Di&ict may elect to acquire an elemenfary sch7Eol 
site between 2006 and 201 1. The District did acquire sites for an elementary school and a high 
school in 2001. Because these past purchases were accounted for in the District's 2000 CFP, the 
District can continue to assign the acquisition costs ($1.23 million) to the impact fee formula. 

Support Facilities 
The District does not project the need for additional support facilities during period of the six- 
year finance plan. 

Capital Facilities Six Year Finance Plan 

The Six Year Finance Plan shown on Table 9 demonstrates how the District intends to h d  new 
construction and improvements to school facilities for the years 2006-201 1. The frnancing 
components include bond issuets), school mitigation and impact fees. 

The financing plan separates projects and portions of projects that add capacity fkom those that 
do not, since the latter are generally not appropriate for impact fee funding. The financing plan 
and impact fee calculation formula alsb differentiate between projects or portions of projects that 
address existing deficiencies (ineligible for impact fees) and those which address future growth 
related needs. 

General Obligation Bonds: Bonds are typically used to fimd construction of new schools and 
other capital improvement projects. A 60% voter approval is required to pass a bond. Bonds are 
then retired through collection of property taxes. The Lake Stevens School District passed a 
capital improvements bond for $15 million in 1994, another for $9 million in 1999. All funds 
&om these bonds have been utilized. A capital improvements bond for $65,500,000 was 
approved by the electorate in February 2005. These funds are being used to partially fund the 
projects listed in Table 9. 

In the event action by state, county and local jurisdictions determined that impact fees were not 
available in the future to fund growth-related projects, it would be necessary for the District to 
seek funds through voter approved general obligation bonds coupled with available state match. 

The total costs of the projects outlined represent current bids where construction is currently in 
or will soon be in progress, architect estimates, and recent purchases. 

Lake Stevens School District 6-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -107

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 513 of 575



Lake Stevens School District 6-4 Capital Facilities Plan 

Table 9 -Capital Facilities Plan 2006 - 2011 
Estimated Project Cost by Year - in $millions 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Improvements Adding Student Capacity 

Elementary 
Site Acquisition 0.98 

Middle School 
New (8-9) Secondary School 16.65 16.65 

High School 
New (8-9) Secondary School 16.65 16.65 

Improvements Not Adding Student Capacity 
Elementary 

Mt. Pilchuck Modernization 
. 

5.10 5.00 
Hillcrest Modernization 4.40 5.80 
Sumycrest Modernization 4.42 5.00 

Middle School 

High School 
High School Cafeteria Modernization 2.44 3.70 

High School Track and Field 1.40 
District-wide Improvements 

District Athletic Facility 0.25 1.95 

Totals 35.74 52.32 15.80 1.23 1.95 
Elementary School (including land acquisition) 13.92 15.80 0.98 
Middle School 16.65 16.65 
High School 19.09 21.75 
District Wide 0.25 1.95 ' 

Annual Total 35.74 52.32 15.80 1.23 1.95 
Cumulative Total 35.74 88.06 103.86 105.09 107.04 107.04 

* Local Cost includes amounts currently available to the Distric~ future uncollected impact fees and bonds and levies not yet approved. 

$millions) 

10.14 

10.14 

Match 

5.99 
5.86 
5.43 

3.70 

Match 
17.28 
10.14 
13.84 

4 1.26 
4 1.26 

(All 

0.98 

33.30 

33.30 

Cost 

10.10 
10.20 
9.42 

6.14 
1.40 

2.20 

Total 
30.70 
33.30 
40.84 
2.20 

107.04 
107.04 

Amounts in 

0.98 

23.16 

23.16 

Local 

4.11 
4.34 
3.99 

2.44 
1.40 

2.20 

Local 
13.42 
23.16 
27.00 
2.20 
65.78 
65.78 

New Business 14 -108

Page 514 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



State Match Funds: State Match Funds come from the Common School Construction Fund. 
Bonds are sold on behalf of the fund then retired from revenues accruing predominately from the 
sale of renewable resources (i.e. timber) fiom State school lands set aside by the Enabling Act of 
1889. If these sources are insufficient to meet needs, the Legislature can appropriate finds or the 
State Board of Education can establish a moratorium on certain projects. 

School districts may qualify for State matching funds for a specific capital project. To qualie, a 
project must first meet State-established criteria of need. This is determined by a formula that ' 

specifies the amount of square footage the State will help finance to house the enrollment 
projected for the district. If a project qualifies, it can become part of a State prioritization 
system. This system prioritizes allocation of available funding resources to school districts based 
on a formula which calculates district assessed valuation per pupil relative to the whole State 
assessed valuation per pupil to establish the percent of the total project cost to be paid by the 
State for eligible projects. The State contribution for eligible projects can range from less than 
half to more than 70% of the project's cost3 

State Match Funds can only be applied to major school construction projects. Site acquisition 
and minor improvements are not eligible to receive matching funds f?om the State. Because 
availability of State Match Funds has not been able to keep pace with the rapid enrollment 
growth occurring in many of Washington's school districts, matching finds fiom the State may 
not be received by a school district until after a school has been constructed. In such cases, the 
District must "front fund a project. That is, the District must finance the complete project with 
local hnds (the future State's share coming fiom funds allocated to fbture District projects). 
When the State share is finally disbursed (without accounting for escalation) the future District 
project is partially reimbursed. 

Because of the method of computing State Match, the District has historically received 
' approximately 40 percent of the actual cost of school construction in state matching funds. 

School Impact Fees Development impact fees have been adopted by a number of jurisdictions 
as a means of supplementing traditional funding sources for construction of public facilities 
needed to accommodate new development. School impact fees are generally collected by the 
permitting agency at the time building permits or certificates of occupancy are issued. 

Impact fees have been calculated -utilizing the formula in   able 1 of Snohomish County 
Ordinance, Chapter 30.66C. The resulting figures are based on the District's cost per dwelling 
unit to purchase land for school sites, make site improvements, construct schools and purchase, 
install or relocate temporary facifities (portables). Credits have also been applied in the formula 
to account for State Match Funds to be reimbursed to theDistrict and projected future property 
taxes to be paid by the owner of a dwelling unit. The costs of projects that do not add capacity or 
which address existing deficiencies have been eliminated from the variables used in the 
calculations. 

By ordinance, new developments cannot be assessed impact fees to correct existing deficiencies. 
Thus, existing capacity deficiencies must be deducted from the total projected deficiencies in the 
calculation of impact fees. 

' Paving for Growth's Impacts - A  Guide to Impact Fees, State of Washington Department of Community 
Development Growth Management Division, January 1992, Pg. 30. 

Lake Stevens School Dktrict 6-5 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -109

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 515 of 575



The financing plan separates projects and portions of projects that add capacity from those that 
do not, since the latter are generally not appropriate for impact fee finding. The financing plan 
and impact fee calculation also differentiate between projects or portions of projects that address 
existing deficiencies (ineligible for impact fees) and those which address future growth-related 
needs. From this process, the District can develop a plan that can be translated into a bond issue 
package for submittal to District voters, if deemed appropriate. 

Table 10 presents an estimate of the capacity impacts of the proposed capital construction 
projects. 

- 
Lake Stevens School D btrict 6-6 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -110

Page 516 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



apacity After Improvement 

IExisting Capacity 

Lake Stevens School District 6-7 Capital Facilities Plan 

Programmed Improvement Capacity 
Capacity After Improvement 
Projected Enrollment 
Surplus (Deficit) After Improvement* 

0 
3,257 
3,730 

(473) 

0 
2,158 
2,059 

99 . 

0 

2,289 
2,662 

(373) 

New Business 14 -111

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 517 of 575



New Business 14 -112

Page 518 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



1 
1 Calculation Criteria: 

1 1. Site Acquisition Cost Element 
i Site Size: The site size given the optimum acreage for each school type based on studies of 

1 
existing school sites OSPI standards. Generally, districts will require 11-15 acres for an 
elementary school; 25-30 acres for a middle school or junior high school; and 40 acres or more 

i for a high school. Actual school sites may vary in size depending on the size of parcels available 
for sale and other site development constraints, such as wetlands. It also varies based on the 

I 
need for athletic fields adjacent to the school along with other specific planning factors. 

I 

This space for site size on the Variable Table contains a number only when the particular district 
plans to acquire additional land during the six-year planning period, 2006-201 1. As noted 
previously, the District may elect to acquire an additional school site between 2006 and 201 1. 
The District did acquire sites for an elementary school and a high school in 2001. Because these 
past purchases were accounted for in the District's 2000 CFP, the District can continue to assign 
the acquisition costs ($1.23 million) to the impact fee formula. 

Average Land Cost Per Acre: The cost per acre is based on estimates of land costs within the 
District, based either on recent land purchases or by its knowledge of prevailing costs in the 
particular real estate market. Prices per acre will vary throughout the County and will be heavily 
influenced by the urban vs. rural setting of the specific district and the location of the planned 
school site. The Lake Stevens School District estimates its vacant land costs to be $70,000 per 
acre. Until a site is actually located for acquisition, the actual purchase price is unknown. 
Developed sites, which sometimes must be acquired adjacent to existing school sites, can cost as 
much as $700,000 per acre. 

. . 

Facilitv Design Capacitv (Student FTE): Facility design capacities reflect the District's optimum 
number of students each school type is designed to accommodate. These figures are based on 
actual design studies of optimum floor area for new school facilities. The Lake Stevens School 
District designs new elementary schools to accommodate 500 students, new middle schools 750 
students and new high schools 1,500 students. 

Student Factor: The student factor (or student generation rate) is the average number of students 
generated by each housing type - in this case: single-family detached dwellings and multiple- 
family dwellings. Multiple-family dwellings, which may be rental or owner-occupied units 
within structures containing two or more dwelling units, were broken out into one-bedroom and 
two-plus bedroom units. 

Pursuant to a requirement of Chapter 30.66C, each school district was required to conduct 
student generation studies within their jurisdictions. This was done to "localize generation rates 
for purposes of calculating impact fees. A description of this methodology is contained in 
Appendix D. 

The student generation rates for the Lake Stevens School District are shown on Table 11. 

Lake Stevens School District 6-8 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -113

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 519 of 575



- 
, . 

Table 11 -Student Generation Rates 

Multiple Family, 1 Bedroom 0 0 0 0 
Multiple Family, 2+ Bedroom 0.153 0.065 0.080 0.298 7 

2. School Construcfion Cost Variables 

Additional build in^ Cavacitv: These figures are the actual capacity additions to the Lake 
Stevens School District that will occur as a result of improvements listed on Table 9 (Capital 

- 

Facilities Plan). 

Current Facility Square Footage: These numbers are taken from Tables 1-3. They are used in' 
combination with the "Existing Portables Square Footage to apportion the impact fee amounts 
between permanent and temporary capacity figures in accordance with Chapter 30.66C. 

Estimated Facility Construction Cost: The estimated facility construction cost is based on 
planned costs or on actual costs of recently constructed schools. The hcility cost is the total cost 
for construction projects as defined on Table 9, including only capacity related improvements 
and adjusted to the "growth related factor. Projects or portions of projects that address existing 
deficiencies (which are those students who are un-housed as of October 1999) are not included in 
the calculation of facility cost for impact fee calculation. 

Facility construction costs also include the off-site development costs. Costs vary with each site 
and may include such items as sewer line extensions, water jines, off-site road and frontage 
improvements. Off-site development costs are not covered by State Match Funds. Off-site 
development costs vary, and can represent 10% or more of the total building construction cost. 

3. Relocatable Facilities Cost Element 

Impact fees may be collected to allow acquisition of portables to help relieve capacity 
deficiencies on a temporary basis. The cost allocated to new development must be growth 
related and must be in proportion to the current permanent versus temporary space allocations by 
the district. 

Existine. Units: This is the total number of existing portables in use by the district as reported on 
Table 2. 

New Facilities Required Through 2011: This is the estimated number of portables to be 
acquired. 

Cost Per Unit: This is the average cost to purchase and set up a portable. It includes site 
preparation, but does not include furnishing of the unit. 

Relocatable Facilities Cost: This is simply the total number of needed units multiplied by the 
cost per unit. The number is then adjusted to the "growth-related factor. 

For districts, such as Lake Stevens, that do not credit any portable capacity to the permanent 
capacity total (see Table I), this number is not directly applicable to the fee calculation and is for 

Lake Stevens School District 6-9 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -114

Page 520 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



information only. The impact fee allows a general fee calculation for portables, however the 
amount is adjusted to the proportion of total square footage in portables to the total square 
footage of permanent and portable space in the district. 

Where districts do allow a certain amount of portable space to be credited to permanent capacity, 
that amount would be adjusted by the "growth-related factor, because it is considered to be 
permanent space. 

4. Fee Credit Variables 

BOECKH Index: This number is generated by the E.H. Boeckh Company and is used by OSPI 
as a guideline for determining the area cost allowance for new school construction. The index is 
an average of a seven-city building cost index for commercial and factory buildings in 
Washington State, and is adjusted every two months for inflation. The current BOECKH Index 
is $154.22 (July 2006). 

State Match Percentage: The State match percentage is the proportion of funds that are provided 
to the school districts, for specific capital projects, from the State's Common School 
Construction Fund. These funds are disbursed based on a formula which calculates the District's 
assessed valuation per pupil relative to the whole State assessed valuation per pupil to establish 
the percentage of the total project to be paid by the State. 

If a project were eligible for State matching funds, the Lake Stevens School District would 
receive basic project reimbursement of approximately 30% - 40% of the total project cost. (This 
is based on past history.) 

5. Tax Credit Variables 

Under Title 30.66C, a credit is granted to new development to account for taxes that will be paid 
to the school district over the next ten years. The credit is calculated using a "present value 
formula. 

Interest Rate (20-year GO Bond): This is the interest rate of return on a 20-year General 
Obligation Bond and is derived from the bond buyer index. The current assumed interest rate is 
4.60%. 

Levy Rate (in mils]: The capital construction levy rate is determined by dividing the District's 
average capital property tax rate by one thousand. The current levy rate for the Lake Stevens 
School District is 0.0021 0158712. 

Average Assessed Value: This figure is based on the District's average assessed value for each 
type of dwelling unit (single-family and multiple-family). The averaged assessed values are 
based on estimates made by the County's Planning and Development Services.Department 

, '  utilizing information from the Assessor's files. The current average assessed value is $213,761 
for single-family detached residential dwellings; $77,591 for one-bedroom multi-family units, 
and $1 14,024 for two or more bedroom multi-family units. 

Lake Stevens School District 6-10 Capital Facilfties Plan 

New Business 14 -115

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 521 of 575



6. Adiustments 

Growth Related Capacity Percentape: This is explained in preceding sections. 
- 

Discount: In accordance with Chapter 30.66C, all fees calculated using the above factors are to 
be reduced by 50%. 

Proposed Lake Stevens School District lmpact Fee Schedule 

Using the variables and formula described, impact fees proposed for the Lake Stevens School 
District are summarized in Tables 12, 13 and 14 (refer to Appendix A for worksheets). 

Without the County Discount an4 the Elective District Discount, the fee amounts would have 
been as follows: 

Table 12 - Calculated Impact Fees (No Discount) 

One Bedroom Apartment 
Two + Bedroom Apartment 

Table 13 -Calculated lmpact Fees (50% Discount) .. . .  

ISingle Family Detached $4,409 $3,715 1 

. .  .. : 
. , 

, 

Lake Stevens School District 6-1 1 Capital Facilities Plan 

One Bedroom Apartment $0 $0 
Two + Bedroom Apartment $1,504 $1,423 
DuplexfTownhouse , $1,504 $1,423 

I c 

One Bedroom Apartment $0 $0 
Two + Bedroom Apartment $2,256 $2,135 
Duplex/Townhouse $2,256 $2,135 

New Business 14 -116

Page 522 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -117

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 523 of 575



New Business 14 -118

Page 524 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



W A C T  FEE WORKSHEET 
W STEVNS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SITE ACQUISITION COST 

acres needed 
acres needed 
acres needed 

TOTAL SITE ACQUISITION COST 

SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION COST 

Growth related 
cost per 

Acre 

total const. cost $0 I 
total const. cost $33,300,000 I 
total const. cost $33,300,000 1 ' 

capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0.355 = SO (elementary) 
capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0.179 = $0 (middle school) 
capacity (# students) 1500 x student factor ' 0.187 = $1 53 (high school) 

1 Prior DroDertv ~urchase 1 

capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0.355 = $0 (elementary) 
capacity (# students) 750 x student factor 0.179 = $7,948 (middle school) 
capacity (# students) 750 x student factor 0.187 = $8,303 (high school) 

Subtotal $16,250 

Total Square Feet 1 Total Square Feet 
of Permanent Space (District ) 637,851 of School Facilities (000) 

TOTAL FACILITY CO~STRUCTION COST = S 14,917 

RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) 

Portable Cost S 72,400 1 24 facility size x student factor 0.355 = $0 (elemenkuy) 
Portable Cost $ 72,400 I 27 facility size x student factor 0.179 = $480 (middle school) 
Portable Cost $ 72,400 1 30 facility size x student factor 0.187 = 5451 (high school) 

Subtotal $93 1 
Total Square Feet / Total Square Feet 
of Portable Space (District ) 56,997 of School Facilities (000) 694,848 = 8.20% 

TOTAL RELOCATABLE COST ELEMENT = $76 

Lake Sfevens School District A-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -119

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 525 of 575



CREDIT AGALNST COST CALCULATION -MANDATORY 

STATE MATCH CREDIT 

BOECKH Index $ 154.22 x OSPIAllowance 90 x 
BOECKH Index $ 154.22 x OSPI Allowance 117 x 
BOECKHlndex $ 154.22 x OSPI Allowance 130 x 

TOTAL STATE MATCH CREDIT 

TAX PAYMENT CREDIT 

[((I+ interest rate 4.60% ) A 

(1 + interest rate 4.60% 

assessed value @F$$i 

State Match % 40.00% x student factor 0.355 = $0 . (elementw) 
State Match % 40.00% x student factor 0.179 = $1,292 (middle school) 

State Match % 40.00% x student factor 0.187 = $1,500 (high school) 

10 years to pay off bond) - 11 I [ interest rate 4.60% x 

10 years to pay off bond ] x 0.002101587 capital levy rate x . 

taxpayment credit = $ 3,537 

IMPACT FEE CALCULATION 

SITE ACQUISITION COST $153 
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION COST $14.917 
RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) $76 
(LESS STATE MATCH CREDIT) ($2,792) 
(LESS TAX PAYMENT CREDIT) ($3,537) 
(LESS C O W  DISCOUNT) 50% (54,409) 
(LESS DISTRICT DISCOUNT) 25% (62,705) 

Lake Stevens School District A 3  Capital Facilities Plan . 

New Business 14 -120

Page 526 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



IMPACT FEE WORKSHEET 
LAKE STEVNS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 1 BDRM OR LESS 

SITE ACQZlISITION COST 

acres needed 36 x Growth related $ - I capacity (#students) 0 x student factor 0 = $0 (elementary) 
acres needed 0 x cost per $ - I capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0 = $0 (middle school) 

35 . x  acres needed Acre $ 35,143 1 capacity (# students) 1500 x student factor 0 = . SO ,(high school) 

TOTAL SITE ACQLJTSITTON COST [prior property purchase I 
SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION COST 

total const. cost $0 
total const. cost $33,300.000 
total const. Cost $33,300,000 

capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0 = $0 (elementary) 
capacity (# students) 750 x student factor 0 = $0 (middle school) 
capacity (# students) 750 x student factor 0 = $0 (high school) . . 

Subtotal $0 

Total Square Feet /Total Square Feet 
of Permanent Space (District ) 637,851 of School Facilities (000) 694,848 = 91.8% 

TOTAL FACILITY CONSTRUCTION COST 

RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) 

Portable Cost 
Portable Cost 
Portable Cost 

$ 72,400 1 24 facility size x student factor - 
$ 72,400 I 27 . facility size x student factor 
$ 72,400 I 3 0 facility size x student factor 

Subtotal 
Total Square Feet I Total Square Feet 
of Portable Space (District ) ' . 56,997 of School Facilities (000) 694,848 

= $0 (elementary) 
= $0 (middle school) 
= $0 (high school) 

TOTAL RELOCATABLE COST ELEMENT = $0 

Lake Stevens School District A-4 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -121

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 527 of 575



CREDIT AGAINST COST CALCULATION - MANDATORY 

STATE MATCH CREDIT 

BOECKH Index 
BOECKH Lndex 
BOECKH Index. 

x OSPIAllowance 90 x 
x OSPI Allowance 117 x 
xOSPIAllowance 130 x 

TOTAL STATE MATCH CREDIT 

TAX PAl?vIENT CREDIT 

State Match % 
State Match % 
State Match % 

40.00% x student factor 
40.00% x student factor 
40.00% x student factor 

= $0 (elementary) 
= $0 (middle school) 
= $0 (high school) 

[((I+ interest rate 4 60% ) A  10 years to pay off bond) - 11 1 [ interest rate 4.60% x 

(1 + interest rate 4.60% )A 10 years to pay off bond 1 x 0.002105871 capital levy rate x 

$$,.;;w$..*.,.. '. 
assessed value ' +,. :,;;, :g&$$?j tax payment credit = $1,287 

IMPACT FEE CALCULATION 

SITE ACQUISITION COST $0 
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION COST $0 
RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) $0 
(LESS STATE MATCH CREDIT) $0 
(LESS TAX PAYMENT CREDIT) $0 
(LESS COLJNTY DISCOUNT) 50% $0 
(LESS DISTRICT DISCOUNT) 25 % $0 

Luke Stevens School District A-5 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -122

Page 528 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



IMPACT FEE WORKSHEET 
LAKE STEVNS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 2 BDRM OR MORE . 

' 

SITE ACQUISITION COST 

acres needed 36 x Growth related $ - I capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0.153 = 60 (elementary) 
acres needed 0 x cost per % - 1 capacity (# students) 0 x student factor 0.065 = $0 (middle school) 
acres needed 35 x Acre $ 35,143 I capacity (# students) 1500 x student factor 0.08 = $66 (high school) 

TOTAL SITE ACQUISITION COST 

SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION COST 

total const. cost $0 
total const. cost $33,300,000 
total const. Cost $33,300,000 

Prior property purchase 

capacity (# students) 0 x student Edctor 0.153 = $0 (elmentary) 
capacity (# students) 750 x student factor 0.065 = $2,886 (middle school) 

capacity (# students) 750 x student fictor 0.08 = $3,552 (high school) 
Subtotal $6,438 

Total Square Feet / Total Square Feet 
of Permanent Space (District ) 637,851 of School Facilities (000) 694,848 = 91.8% 

TOTAL FACILITY CONSTRUCTION COST 

RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) 

Portable Cost f 72,40 
Portable Cost 6 72,400 1 27 
Portable Cost 6 72.40 

0 I 24 facility size x student factor 

- facility size x student factor 
0 / - 3 0 facility size x student factor 

Total Square Feet 1 Total Square Feet 
of Portable Space (District ) 56,997 of School Facilities (000) 

Subtotal 

= ' $0 (elementary) 
= $1 74 (middle school) 
= $193 (high school) 

TOTAL RELOCATABLE COST ELEMENT $30 

Lake Stevens School District A-6 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -123

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 529 of 575



CREDIT AGAINST COST C&CULATION - hlANDATORY 

STATE MATCH CREDIT 

BOECKH Index 
BOECKH Index 
BOECKH Index 

$ 154.22 x OSPI Allowance 90 x State Match % 40.00% x 
$ 154.22 x OSPI Allowance 117 x State Match % 40.00% x 
$ 154.22 x OSPI Allowance 130 x State Match% 40.00% x 

TOTAL STATE MATCH CREDIT 

TAX PAYMENT CREDIT 

[((I+ interest rate 4 60% ) " 

(1 + interest rate 4.60% )A 

assessed value g??%%#@!q 
IMPACT FEE CALCULATION 

student factor . 0.153 = SO (elementary) 
student factor 0.065 = S469 (middle school) 
student factor 0.08 = $642 (high school) 

10 years to pay offbond) - 11 / [ interest rate 4.60% ' x 

10 years to pay off bond ] x 0.002101587 capital levy rate x 

tax payment credit = $1,887 

SITE ACQUISITION COST 
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION COST 
RELOCATABLE FACILITIES COST (PORTABLES) 
(LESS STATE MATCH CREDIT) 
(LESS TAX PAYMENT CREDIT) 
(LESS COUNTY DISCOUNT) 50% 
(LESS DISTRICT DISCOUNT) '25% 

Luke Stevens Sclrool District A-7 . Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -124

Page 530 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



APPENDIX B 
OSPI Enrollment Forecasting Methodology 

Lake Stevens School District B-1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -125

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 531 of 575



New Business 14 -126

Page 532 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



OSPI PROJECTION OF ENROLLMENT DATA 
Cohort-Survival or Grade-Succession Technique 

Development of a long-range school-building program requires a caret31 forecast of school 
enrollment indicating the projected number of children who will attend school each year. 

The following procedures are suggested for determining enrollment projections: 

1. Enter in the lower left corner of the rectangle for each year the number of pupils actually 
enrolled in each grade on October 1, as reported on the October Report of School District 
Enrollment, Form M-70, column A. (For years prior to October 1, 1965, enter pupils actually 
enrolled as reported in the county superintendent's annual report, Form A-1.) 

2. In order to arrive at enrollment projections for kindergarten andlor grade one pupils, 
determine the percent that the number of such pupils each year was of the number shown for 
the immediately preceding year. Compute an average of the percentages, enter it in the 
column headed "Ave. % of Survival , and apply such average percentage in projecting 
kindergarten andfor grade one enrollment for the next six years. 

3. For grade two and above determine the percent of survival of the enrollment in each grade 
for each year to the enrollment. In the next lower grade during the preceding year and place 
this percentage in the upper right corner of the rectangle. (For example, if there were 75 
pupils in actual enrollment in grade one on October 1, 1963, and 80 pupils were in actual 
enrollmentin grade two on October 1, 1964, the percent of survival would be 80/75, or 
106.7%. If the actual enrollment on Octoberl, 1965 in grade threehad further increased to 
100 pupils, the percent of survival to grade three would be 100180, or 125%.) 

Compute an average of survival percentages for each year for each grade and enter it in the 
column, "Ave. % of Survival. 

ln order to determine six-year enrollment projections for grade two and above, multiply the 
enrollment in the next lower grade during the preceding year by 7 the average percent of 
survival. For example, if, on October 1 of the last year of record, there were 100 students in 
grade one and the average percent of survival to grade two was 105, then 105% df 100 would 
result in a projection of 105 students in grade two on October 1 of the succeeding year. 

4. IE, after calculating the "Projected Enrollment , there are known factors which will further 
.influence the projections, a statement should be prepared showing the nature of those factors, 
involved and their anticipated effect upon any portion of the calculated projection. 

*Kindernarten students are proiected based on a reflession line. 

Lake Stevens School District B-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -127

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 533 of 575



New Business 14 -128

Page 534 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Lake Stevens School District C-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

Table C-1 
LAKE STEVENS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STUDENT ENROLLMENT, BY GRADE SPAN 1998-2005 
(Based on actual student enrollment on October 1 of each year) 

School Grade 
TY pe Level 
Elementary K 

I 
2 
3 
4 
5 

Source: Lake Stevens School D~stnct, OSPI 

School Year 
2003 
470 
555 
540 
533 
607 
576 

1998 

494 
52 1 
516 
52 1 
537 
498 

2001 
458 
507 
567 
534 
569 
559 

2004 
534 
536 
568 
557 
544 
618 

2002 
533 
520 
514 
586 
552 
585 

1999 

500 
520 
551 
551 
531 
559 

2005 
545 
555 
555 
591 
589 
552 

2000 
472 
517 
522 
540 
556 
548 

New Business 14 -129

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 535 of 575



TABLE C-2 
LAKE STEVENS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROJECTED STUDENT ENROLLMENT 2006-2011' 
(OSPI Estimate) 

Notes: 
( I )  Actual student enrollment as of October 1,2005. 
(2) Asmmes ha!f-da.v attendance for kindergarten stzrdents. 
SPR = Student Population Ratio 

Lake Stevens School District C-3 Capittrl Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -130

Page 536 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Table C-3 
LAECE STEXENS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROJECTED STUDENT ENROLLMENT 2006-2011 
(Ratio Method) 

Lake Stevens School District C-4 Capital Facilities Plan 

. , . . r > .  , - 4 - 1 4  - . 4 L 4 . I *  C . .  .a C . . . . .  ....... L . . . .  . 4 * 

New Business 14 -131

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 537 of 575



Table C-4 
Lake Stevens School District 

Proiected FTE Student Enrollment 2006 - 2011 and 2014 

2005* 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2014 
Population 35.567 36,744 37,921 39,098 40,275 41,452 -' 42,627 43,803 
FTE Student Enrollment 7,077 7,915 8,168 8,42 1 8,675 8,928 9,182 9,435 . 

Resulting Distribution 

Lake Stevens School District C-5 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -132

Page 538 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



New Business 14 -133

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 539 of 575



ONSULTING 

ENABUNG SCHOOL DISTRTCrS TO WNAGE AND USE SNDENT ASSESSMENT DATA 

March 29,2006 
Student Generation Rate - Lake Stevens School District 

This document,describes the methodology used by Larry Browning, M. A. to calculate student gineration 
rates for the Lake Stevens School District, and provides results of the calculations. 

Using data files from the Metroscan database, Snohomish County Planning and Development Services 
staff provided addresses and land use codes of all new construction between the 
years 1998 to 2004 within the Lake Stevens school district. This data was "cleaned up by eliminating 
any records that did not contain sufficient information (such as a missing site address) to generate a match 
from the student record data. 

Using data files from the Lake Stevens student records database, District staff provided student addresses 
and grade levels of K-12 students attending the District as of March 2006. The student addresses were 
cleaned up and reformatted to be consistent with the Metroscan method of storing addresses. 

Data from the two sources was electronically matched to obtain the following student generation rates: 

Single Family Rates: The records of 2,580 single family units were compared with 7,656 registered 
students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated rates were found (calculated 
rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding): 

Lake Stevens School District D-2 Capital Facilities Plan 

I K-12 1 1861 
-- 

0.721 
*Calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding. 

New Business 14 -134

Page 540 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Multifamily Rates (0-1 Bedrooms): The records of three 0-1 bedroom units were compared with 7,386 
registered students in the district and no matches were found. 

Multifamily Rates (2-plus Bedrooms): The records of 321 2-plus bedroom units were compared with 
7,386 registered students in the District, and the following count of matches and calculated rates were 
found (calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding: 

Lake Stevens School District D-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

9-12 1 22 I 0.08 
K-12 ] 82 0.298 

*Calculated rates for individual grades may not equal overall totals due to rounding. 

New Business 14 -135

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 541 of 575



New Business 14 -136

Page 542 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



Lake ~ t e v e i s  School District No. 4 . 

. 

1525) 335.1~00 FAX (4s) 335-1559 

Fduwrimal Scrvicc Ccn~er 12309 22od h e t  N.E LPkc Smw Wxdiingron PH2WSW 

RESOLUTION NO. 28-06 

WHEREAS, the Lake Stevens School District is required by RCW 36.70 (the Orawth Managcmcnt Act] and 
the Snohomish County General Policy Plan to adopt a Capital Facilities Plan; 

WHERUS, development of the Capital Facilities Plan was carried out by the Discrid in a c d m  with 
accepted methodologies and requirements of the Growth Management Act; 

. , .WHEREAS, impact fee calculations are consistentwith methodologies meeting tb~ondi t ionsd tests of 
1 L...:i :RCW 82.02 and Snohomish County Code; . . 

. . .  . . . . . .  
1 . . . . .... , . :. . .. .... .. . . . . .,. . . . . I ;: . . . . . .  J,:!. <$= . . . .  

, , $ .  .:";:? ;. ;,: : '..* > .-'-.., >.:.. ,"!,>,: .j:..:,. ::. :,,. .:::: .,:-: ,. .,. . . I  Ci ...(.: : . . .  ,.:: . . . .  
:. L:::.: WHEW, the District finds that th&mahdd&j&esl~elj;  !+.+& +~:addft!g~@:cap&tjr &j&.:.-: . ,L,;.:..- . . . . . . .  . . " :' . , . . . .  

t : .  , 

I . . . .  . . .  : . . . .  -: :'. , address only growth-related needs, ,; : ' '. . . .  . -  : , . . . . . . . .  . ' ?  

. . . . . . . .  . . . . . : . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . .  / . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  . .  . .  . .  - ;. .,,,.,. ;.:. ,:.- :., ;.. ..: 
i ? .  ..-,<c : . .  . . 
. . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  

. . . :  ',, :'. ..'-'.. . . 

I . .: . ..WHEREAS, a draftof the plan & submitted t&i&hbmish county for revie4 with &rig& W@ . ' 

made in accordance with.County comments; 

WHEREAS, the Plan meets the basic requirements of RCW 36.7OA and RCW 82.02, and 

WTIEREAS, n review of the Plan was carried out pursuant to RCW 43.21C Ithe State Environtnpntal Policy 
Act). A Determioation of Non Significance has been issued. 

, NOW, ?'IIEKEFORE,.BE, IT RESOLVED that ihe Board of  Directors of b e ,  ~ a k e  Stevens School ~istrict  . 
I .: hereby adopt. d ~ e  Capitol Facilities Planfor the.years 2006-1 1, purmant to the rcquirenlents of RCW 36.70A 

and the Snohomish County General Policy Pian The Snohomish Counry Council, the City of Lake Stevens, 

. . :and the City of Marysvilie are hereby requested to adopt the Plan as an element of their general policy plans . . .  . . . . . and companion ordinanccy . . 
. . . . .  . . - . .  , . . . . 

'1: . ADOfTE.D,'by &the Board of ~i&ctom&f the Lake Stevens School District No. rl; Snohomish County, && 
of Washingtan, ata iegular'metting&ereafheM this 23rd day of Augat 2006. 

LAKE STEVEKS SCEIOOL DISI'RICT NO, 4 
BQARD OF DIRECTORS 

Lake Stevens School District E- 1 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -137

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 543 of 575



New Business 14 -138

Page 544 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



2 

General Policy Plan A~pendix F 

? 
I 

APPENDIX F 
I 

REVIEW CRITERIA FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT CAPITAL FACILITY PLANS 

F 
f Required Plan Contents 

1. Future Enrollment Forecasts by Grade Span, including: 
1 - a 6-year forecast (or more) to support the financing program; 

1 - *See Tahles 4 ond 5: Appendix C - a description of the forecasting methodology and justification for its consistency with OFM population 

I 
forecasts used in the county's comprehensive plan. 

*Explanation on 5-2 
I 2. Inventory of Existing Facilities, including: 

- the location and capacity of existing schools; 
1 - *See Figure I for location; See table I for schools, their capacities and grade spans served - a description of educational standards and a clearly defined minimum level of service such as 

classroom size, school size, use of portables, etc.; - *See Section 3 for educational standards; minimum educational service standards are identified on 
page 3-3; 

- the location and description of all district-owned or leased sites (if any) and properties; 
- *See Figure 1 for map of school facilities; See table 1 for schools with furtl~er description located on 

page 4-i; land inventory is located on-page 4-3. 
- a description of support facilities, such as administrative centers, transportation and maintenance yards -. 

and facilities, etc.; 
- *See page 4-3 for a description of support facilities; also, table3. 
- and information on portables, including numbers, locations, remaining useful life (as appropriate to 

educational standards), etc. 
- Relocatable classroom facilities (portables) are identified on page 4-2; see Table 2 for locations and 

capacities. 

3. Forecast of Future Facility Needs, including: 
- identification of new schools and/or school additions needed to address existing deficiencies and to 

meet demands of projected growth over the next 6 years; and 
- *See pages 6-2 and 6-3 for schools and school additions; 

- the number of additional portable classrooms needed. 
*See pages 6-3 nnd pages 4-2 nnd 4-3. 

4. Forecast of Future Site Needs, including: 
- the number, size, and general location of needed new school sites. 

*See page 6-3 
5. Financing Program (6-year minimum Planning Horizon) 

- estimated cost of specific construction and site acquisition and development projects proposed to 
address growth-related needs; - *See Table 9; see also pages 6-?,6-8 and 6-9 - projected schedule for completion of these projects; and 

- *See Table 9 
- proposed sources of funding, including impact fees (if proposed), local bond issues (both approved and 

proposed), and state matching funds. 
*See Table 9 

6. Impact Fee Support Data (where applicable), including: 
- an explanation of the calculation methodology, including description of key variables and their 

computation; , L . 

- *See pages 6- 8, 6-9,6-10; see also appendices A-1 through A-3. 
- definitions and sources of data for all inputs into the fee calculation, indicating that it: 
a) is accurate and reliable and that any sample data is statistically valid; 

Lake Stevens School District F-2 Capital Facifities Plan 

New Business 14 -139

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 545 of 575



*See appendices B, C and D; see also p q e s  5-1,s-2,5-3,G-8,6-9 and 6-10. 
General Policy Plan Appendix F 

b) accurately reflects projected costs in the 6-year financing program; 
*See pages 6-2 d 6-3. 
c) and a proposed fee schedule that reflects expected student generation rates from, at minimum, the 

following residential unit types: single-family, multi-farnily/studio or 1-bedroom, and multi-farnilyR- 
- 

bedroom or more. 
*See Tables 12, 13 and 14. 

Plan Performance Criteria 

1. School facility plans must meet the basic requirements set down in RCW 36.70A (the Gro* Management Act). 
Districts proposing to use impact fees as a part of their financing program must also meet the requirements of RCW 
82.02. 

2. Where proposed, impact fees must utilize a calculation methodology that meets the conditions and tests of RCW 
82.02. 

3,'~nrollment forecasts should utilize established methods and should produce results which are not inconsistent ] 
with the OFM population forecasts used in the county comprehensive plan. Each plan should also demonstrate that it 
is consistent with the 20-year forecast in the land use element of the county's comprehensive plan. 

4. The financing plan should separate projects and portions of projects which add capacity f?om those which do not, 
since the latter are generally not appropriate for impact fee funding. The financing plan andlor the impact fee 
calculation formula must also differentiate between projects or portions of projects which address existing 
deficiencies (ineligible for impact fees) and those which address future growth-related needs. 

*Table 9 delineates improvements adding student capacity from those that don't. The inclusion of the student 
generation factor within the formula addresses specifically that growth which is forthcoming from any new housing 
unit. 

5 .  plans should use best-available information fiom recognized sources, such as the U.S. Census or the Puget Sound 
Regional Council. District-generated data may be used if it is derived through statistically reliable methodologies. 

6. Districts which propose the use of impact fees should identify in future plan updates alternative funding sources in 
the event that impact fees are not available due to action by the state, county or the cities within their district 
boundaries. 

*See page 6-3 (amended page) relating to General Obligation Bonds. 

7. Repealed effective January 2,2000. 

Plan Review Procedures 

1. District capital facility plan updates should be submitted to the County Planning and Development Services 
Department for review prior to formal adoption by the school district. 

2. Each school district planning to expand its school capacity must submit to the county an updated capital facilities 
plan at least every 2 years. Proposed increases in impact fees must be submitted as part of an update to the capital 
facilities plan, and will be considered no more frequently than once a year. 

3. Each school district will be responsible for conducting any required SEPA reviews on its capital facilities plan 
prior to its adoption, in accordance with state statutes and regulations. 

4. School district capital facility plans and plan updates must be submitted no later than 60 calendar days prior to 
their desired effective date. (For example, if a district requires its updated plan to take effect on January 1,2007 in 

Lake Stevens School District F-3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -140

Page 546 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



order to meet the minimum updating requirement of item 2. above, it must formally submit that plan no later than 
October 30,2006.) 

5. District plans and plan updates must include a resolution or motion from the district school board adopting the 
plan before it will become effective. 

Lake Stevens School District F-4 Capiial Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -141

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 547 of 575



New Business 14 -142

Page 548 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



WAC 197-11-970 Determination of non-significance @NS) 

DETERMINATION OF NON-SIGNIFICANCE 

Lake Stevens School District No. 4 
Capital Facilities Plan 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: The proposed action is the adoption of the Lake Stevens School District 
No. 4 Capital Facilities Plan, 2006-2011. This Capital Facilities Plan has been developed in accordance with 
requirements of the State Growth Management Act and is a non-project proposal. It documents how the 
Lake Stevens School District utilizes its existing educational facilities given current district enrollment 
configurations and educational program standards, and uses six-year and 19-year enrollment projections to 
quantify capital facility needs for years 2006-2025. 

PROPONENT: Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

LOCATION OF PROPOSAL: Lake Stevens School District No. 4 
Snohomish County, Washington 

LEAD AGENCY: Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant adverse impact 
on the environment. An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.O30(2)(c). 
This decision was made after review of an environmental checklist and other information on file with the lead 
agency. This information is available to the public on request. 

This DNS is issued under WAC 197-11-340-(2). The lead agency will not act on this proposal for 15 days 
from the date below. Comments must be submitted to the Responsible Oflicial, Lake Stevens School District, 
12309-2znd St. N. E., Lake Stevens, Washington 98258-9500 by June 19,2006. 

RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL: Robb Stanton PHONE: 425 335-1506 

POSITIONtTITLE: Director of Facilities & Planning 

ADDRESS: 

DATE: May 28,2006 

Lake Stevens School District No. 4 
12309-~2"~ St. N. E. 
Lake Stevens, WA 98258-9500 

SIGNATURE: 

PUBLISH: The Herald May 31,2006 & June 6,2006 
Lake Stevens Journal June 1,2006 & June 8,2006 

There is no agency appeal. 

Lake Stevens School District G -2 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -143

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 549 of 575



LAKE STEVENS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4 

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM 

Applicant: Lake Stevens School District No. 4 
12309 - 22"* Street 

Lake Stevens, WA 98023 
Phone: (425) 335-1502 

Lake Stevens School District G -3 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -144

Page 550 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



LAKE STEVENS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 4 
Environmental Checklist Form 

A. BACKGROUND 

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable: 

Adoption of the Capital Facilities Plan, 2006-201 1, for the Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

2; Name of applicant 

Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person: 

Owner: 

Lake Stevens School District No. 4 
12309 - 22"* Street 
Lake Stevens WA 98023 
Phone: (425) 335-1502 
Robb Stanton, Director of Facilities & Operations 

4. Date checklist prepared: April 10,2006 

5 .  Agency requesting checklist: 

Lake Stevens School District No. 4 - Lead agency for SEPA review. 

6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable): 

The Capital Facilities Plan, 2006-201 1, is prepared in accordance with the State Growth Management Act and is 
a non-project document. It provides an inventory of district owned facilities, school facilities scheduled for 
construction within the next six years, current student enrollment, six-year and twenty-year projected student 
enrollment, and analyzes the implications of the data on facility needs. 

The district is using phased review. Project-specific environmental review will be undertaken when identified 
and future individual projects are initiated. 

7. Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, o r  further activity related to or connected with 
this proposal? If yes, explain. 

The Capital Facilities Plan identifies school construction projects to accommodate unhoused students in the 
Lake Stevens School District (the District) through the year 201 1. The Capital Facilities Plan will be updated 
at least bi-annually. Changes in actual enrollment and in enrollment projections will be used to recalculate 
facility needs. As noted above, project-specific environmental review will be undertaken at the time of 
construction on the identified projects and future projects. 

8. List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, o r  will be prepared, directly 
related to this proposal. 

Snohomish County Draft General Policy Plan 
Snohomish County Draft General Policy Plan Environmental Impact Statement 
City of Marysville Comprehensive Plan 

- - - 

Lake Stevens School District G-4 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -145

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 551 of 575



9. Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental approvals of other proposals directly 
affecting the property covered by your proposal? If yes, explain. 

Following adoption of the Capital Facilities Plan, it is anticipated that it will be incorporated into the 
comprehensive plans for the County of Snohomish, the City of Lake Stevens and the City of Marysville. 

10. List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known. 

None. 

11. Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses and the size of the project 
and site. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain aspects of 
your proposal. You do not need to repeat those answers on this page. 

This is a non-project action proposed by the Lake Stevens School District. The proposal involves the adoption 
of the Lake Stevens School District's 2006-201 1 Capital Facilities Plan. The Capital Facilities Plan has been 
developed in accordance with requirements of the State Growth Management Act. It documents how the Lake 
Stevens School District utilizes its existing educational facilities given current district enrollment configurations 
and educational program standards. In addition, it uses six-year, eight-year and nineteen-year enrollment 
projections to quantify capital facility needs for years 2006-2025. 

The Lake Stevens School District currently serves 7,637 students (October I, 2005 headcount). Students are 
dispersed throughout six elementary schools, two middle schools, one comprehensive high school, one 
alternative high school, one K-12 alternative program (Home-Link), and 70 portable classrooms. District staff 
members number approximately 850. This includes 440 certificated and 288 classified full-time equivalent 
employees. 

12. Locatioo of the proposal. Give sufficient information for a person to understand the precise location of 
your proposed project, including a street address, if any, and section, township, and range, if known. If a 
proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal 
description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if reasonably available. While you should 
submit any plans required by the agency, you are  not required to duplicate maps or detailed plans 
submitted with any permit applications related to this checklist. 

The Capital Facilities Plan outlines the capital facility needs within the boundaries of the Lake Stevens School 
District. The Lake Stevens School District is located six miles east of downtown Everett and encompasses all 
ofthe City of Lake Stevens as well as portions of the City of Marysville and unincomorated Snohomish 
County. The District is located south of the Marysville school ~is t r ic t  and north of jhe Snohomish School 
District. 

The adoption of the plan will not directly result in any individual projects. Future projects will undergo 
individual SEPA review at time of construction. Therefore, the questions in Section B are not applicable at this 
time but will be at the time individual projects are initiated. 

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

1. EARTH 

A. General description of the site (underline one): Flat, rolling, hill, steep slopes, mountainous, other. 

Lake Stevens School District G-5 Capital ~aii i i t ies  Plan 

New Business 14 -146

Page 552 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



The Lake Stevens School District is comprised of a variety of topographic features and landforms. Specific 
topographic and landform characteristics of the sites of proposed individual projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan would be described during project-level environmental review. 

b. What is the steepest slope on the site (approximate percent slope)? 

Specific slope characteristics at the sites of the proposed individual projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be identified during project-level environmental review. 

C. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, peat, muck)? If you 
know the classification of agricultural soils, specify them and note any prime farmland. 

Specific soil types and their characteristics at the sites of the proposed individual projects included in the 
CFP will be identified during project-level environmental review. 

d. Are there surface indications o r  history of unstable soils in the immediate vicinity? If so, describe. 

Unstable soils may exist within the Lake Stevens School District. Specific soils types and properties will 
be analyzed on the sites of proposed individual projects included in the Capital Facilities,Plan at the time of 
project-level environmental review. 

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling o r  grading proposed. Indicate 
source of fill. 

Individual projects included in the CFP will be subject to local jurisdictional project approval and 
environmental review at the time of application. Proposed grading activities as well as quantity, type, 
source and purpose of such activities will be addressed at that time. Adoption of the Capital Facilities Plan 
will not cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. It is not anticipated that any project described in 
the CFP will cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. 

f. Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction or use? If so, generally describe. 

It is not anticipated that any project described in the Capital Facilities Plan will cause any significant 
adverse unavoidable impact. Potential erosion impacts will be addressed on a site-specific basis during 
project-level environmental review. 

g. About what percent of the site will be covered with impervious surfaces after project construction (for 
example, asphalt or buildings)? 

Renova t ions  a n d  n e w  school  facil i t ies proposed in the C a p i t a l  Faci l i t ies  Plan will r e s u l t  
in the increase  of imperv ious  surfaces.  The a m o u n t  of imperv ious  surface 
cons t ruc ted  dl v a r y  byindividual project. Each individual  project wi l l  b e  sub jec t  t o  
project-level e n v i r o n m e n t a l  review as wel l  as a local project r ev iew process.  
Adopt ion of t h e  C a p i t a l  Faci l i t ies  Plan wil l  n o t  cause  a n y  s ignif icant  a d v e r s e  
unavoidable  mpact .  

h. Proposed measures to reduce o r  control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any: 

~rosio" control and reduction measures will be determined during project-level environmental review and 
the requirements of the permitting jurisdiction. 

2. AIR 

Lake Stevens School District G-6 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -147

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 553 of 575



a. What types of emissions to the air  would result from the proposal (i.e., dust, automobile, odors, industrial 
wood smoke) during construction and when the project is completed? If any, generally describe and give 
approximate quantities if known. 

Various air emissions may result from projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan. Most of the 
emissions would be temporary, construction related. The air quality impacts of specific projects will be 
evaluated during project-level environmental review. 

b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions o r  odor that may affect your proposal? If so, generally 
describe. 

Any off-site sources of emissions or odor(s) that may affect individual projects identified within the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be addressed during project-level environmental review. Adoption of the CFP is not 
anticipated to cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. 

C. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, if any: 

Individual projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be subject to site-specific environmental 
review and subject to individual jurisdiction project review. The District will be required to comply with 
all applicable clean air regulations and permit requirements. Proposed air quality measures specific to 
individual projects will be identified during project-level environmental review. Adoption of the Capital 
Facilities Plan will not cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. 

3. WATER 

a. Surface Water 

1) Is there any suiface water body on o r  in the immediate vicinity of the site (including year-round and 
seasonal streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, wetlands)? If yes, describe type and provide names. If 
appropriate, state what stream or  river it flows into. 

The Lake Stevens School District is characterized by a variety of surface water bodies. The individual 
water bodies that are in close proximity to proposed projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will be 
identified during project-level environmental review. When necessary, detailed studies of surface water 
regimes and flow patterns will be conducted and the findings of the studies incorporated into the site 
designs of the individual projects. Adoption of the Capital Facilities Plan will not cause any significant 
adverse unavoidable impact. 

2) Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the described waters? If yes, 
please describe and attach available plans. 

Projects proposed within the Capital Facilities Plan may require work within 200 feet of the surface waters 
located in the Lake Stevens School District. All applicable project-specific approval requirements will be 
satisfied. 

3) Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in or removed from surface water 
o r  wetlands and indicate the area of the site that would be affected. Indicate the source of fill material. 

Specific information relating to quantities and placement of fill or dredge material resulting from proposed 
projects within the Capital Facilities Plan will be provided during project-specific environmental review. 
All applicable local regulations regarding quantity and placement of dredge and fill material will be 
satisfied for each individual project. All projects will be subject to local project review processes. 

Lake Sfevens School District G -7 Capital Facililies Plan 

New Business 14 -148

Page 554 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



4) Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals o r  diversions? Give general description, purpose, 

I and approximate quantities if known. 

1 Any surface water withdrawals or diversions made in connection with the proposed projects outlined in the 
Capital Facilities Plan will be addressed during project-specific environmental review. Adoption of the 

I CFP will not cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. 

5 )  Does the proposal lie within a 100-year flood plain? If so, note location on the site plan. 

1 If any of the projects proposed in the Capital Facilities Plan are located in a floodplain area, they will be 
i required to meet all applicable regulations addressing flood hazard areas through project-specific 

environmental review. Adoption of the CFP will not cause any significant adverse unavoidable impact. 
I 

i 6) Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface waters? If so, describe the type of 
waste and anticipated volume of discharge. 

Waste material disposal methods required for specific projects identified within the Capital Facilities Plan 
will be addressed during project-level environmental review. Adoption of the CFP will not cause any 
significant adverse unavoidable impact. 

I b. Ground 

I 1) Will ground water be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to ground water? Give general description, 
purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 

I 

Individual projects identified within the Capital Facilities Plan may withdraw or discharge to groundwater 
5 

resources. Any potential impacts on groundwater resources will be identified during project-specific 
environmental review. Each project is subject to the permitting jurisdiction's regulations regarding 
groundwater resources and will be complaint with such regulations. 

2) ~ e s c r i b e  waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic tanks or other sources, if any 
(for example: domestic sewage, industrial, containing the following chemicals; agricultural; etc). 
Describe the general size of the system, the number,of such systems, the number of houses tobe served (if 
applicable), or the number of animals or humans the system(s) are expected to serve. 

Discharge of waste material associated with any proposed individual projects identified in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be addressed during project-specific environmental review. 

C. Water Runoff (including storm water) 

1) Describe the source of runoff (including storm water) and method of collection and disposal, if any 
(include quantities, if known). Where will this water flow? Will this water flow into other waters? If so, 
describe. 

Individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may have various affects on storm water runoff 
quantities and rates. Any such affects will be identified during project-specific environmental review. All 
proposed projects will be subject to storm water regulations and will be complaint as such. 

2. Could waste mrterials enter ground or surface waters? If so, generally describe. 

The impacts of specific projects identified in the CapitalFacilities Plan on potential ground or surface 
water discharges will be addressed during project-specific environmental review. Each project will be 
subject to all applicable regulations regarding discharges to ground or surface water. 

Lake Stevens School District G-8 Capital ~acilities Plan 

New Business 14 -149

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 555 of 575



d. Proposed measures to reduce or  control surface, ground, and runoff water impacts, if any: 

Proposed measures to reduce or control surface runoff attributable to the individual projects identified in 
the Capital Facilities Plan will be addressed during project-specific environmental review. 

4. PLANTS 

a. Check o r  underline types of vegetation found on the site: 

- deciduous tree: alder, maple, aspen, other. 
evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other 
shrubs - 

- grass 
pasture 

- crop or grain 
- wet soil plants: cattail, buttercup, bulrush, skunk cabbage, other 
-water plants: water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other 
- other types of vegetation: domestic vegetation 

A variety of plant communities exist within the Lake Stevens School District. Vegetation types located at 
specific project sites included in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project-specific 
environmental review. Any wet soil plants will be determined and mitigated at the project-specific level. 

b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or  altered? 

Some projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan may require removal or alteration of vegetation. 
Specific impacts to vegetation on the sites of individual projects will be identified during project-specific 
environmental analysis. 

e. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or  near the site, if any: 

Any specific impacts to threatened or endangered species by any of the proposed projects in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be identified during project-specific environmental analysis. Proposed projects will be 
compliant with all local regulations regarding threatened and endangered species. 

d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plants, or  other measures to preserve or  enhance vegetation on the 
site, if any: 

Proposed landscaping and other measures to preserve or enhance vegetation on sites identified within the 
- . Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project-specific environmental review. All projects will be 

subject to local jurisdiction project review and the landscaping requirements implied therein. 

5 .  ANIMALS 

a. Underline any birds and animals which have been observed on or  near the site or  are known to be on or 
near the site: 

Birds: hawk, heron, eagle, songbirds, other 
Mammals: deer, bear, elk, beaver, other 
Fish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other 

Lake Stevens School District G-9 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -150

Page 556 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



A wide variety of wildlife exists within the Lake Stevens School District boundaries. A complete inventory 
of animals observed on the proposed sites identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be conducted during 
project-level environmental review. 

b. List any threatened or endangered species known to be on or  near the site. 
i 
C The specific impacts to threatened or endangered species by any of the proposed projects in the Capital 

Facilities Plan will be identified during project-level environmental review. The proposed projects will be 

I 
compliant with all regulations regarding threatened and endangered species. 

i C. Is the site part  of a migration route? If so, explain. 

I Impacts on migration routes by any proposed project identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be 

I identified during project-level environmental review. 

. . d. ' Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 
! 

Measures to preserve or enhance wildlife will be identified and determined during project-level 
environmental analysis. 

! 6. ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stove, solar) will be used to meet the completed 
! project's energy needs? Describe whether it will be used for heating, manufacturing, e t c  

The State Board of Education requires a life cycle cost analysis be conducted for all heating, lighting and 
insulation systems prior to permitting of specific school projects. The identification of project energy 
needs will be done during project-specific environmental review. 

b. Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy byadjacent properties? If so, generally 
describe. 

Any. impact of proposed projects identified in the CapitalFacilities Plan on the use of solar energy by 
adjacent properties will be identified during project-specific environmental review. 

C. What kinds of energy conservation features are included in the plans of this proposal? List of other 
proposed measures to reduce or control energy Impacts, if any: 

Projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will be required to complete a life cycle cost analysis. Other 
conservation measures will be identified during project-specific environmental review. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

a. Are there any environmental health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, risk of fire and 
explosion, spill, or  hazardous waste, which could occur as a result of this proposal? If so, describe. 

1) Describe special emergency services that might be required. 

Special emergency services will be identified during project-specific environmental review. 

2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: 

Safety procedures and programs are part of the District's emergency programs for both existing and 
proposed school facilities. Projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will comply with all applicable 

Lake Stevens School District G-10 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -151

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 557 of 575



codes, regulations and rules. Individual projects will be subject to environmental ieview and the local 
project approval process. 

b. ' ~ o i s e  

1) What types of noise exist in the area which may affect your project (for example: tratfic, equipment, 
operation, aircraft, other? 

. . 

Various noise sources exist within the Lake Stevens School District boundaries. The specific noise sources 
. that may affect individual projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project- . 

. 

specific environmental review. , 

2) - What types and levels of noise would be created by o r  associated with the project on a short-term o r  a ' . . 

long-term basis (for example: traffic, construction, operation, other)? Indicate what hours noise would 
come from the site. 

Short-term noise impacts associated with construction will exist for future projects identified in the Capital 
Facilities Plan. Long-term noise impacts associated with individual projects identified in the Plan will be 
identified through project-specific environmental review. 

3) Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 

Mitigation measures to reduce or control project-generated noise impacts will be analyzed during project- 
specific environmental review. All projects will be subject to all applicable regulations regarding noise and 
will be compliant as such. 

8. LAND AND SHORELINE USE 

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 

There are various land uses throughout Lake Stevens School District. Specific land use designations that 
apply to individual sites identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project-specific 
environmental review. 

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe. 

Existing school sites have not recently been used for agriculture. A historical review will be conducted for 
proposed sites in conjunction with project-specific environmental review. 

C. Describe any structures on the site. 

A brief description of existing school facilities is included in the Capital Facilities Plan. Proposed 
structures, located on the proposed sites, will be described in detail during the project-specific 

. environmental review. 

d. Will any structures be demolished? If so, what? 

The remodeling and renovation of school structures may involve demolition of existing structures. Any 
potential demolition will be reviewed for hazardous material removal. Any demolition of structures will be 
identified during project-specific environmental review. 

e. What is the current zoning classification of the site? 

Lake Stevens School District G-11 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -152

Page 558 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



i 
Projects in the Lake Stevens School District are and will be located in various zoning classifications under 

f 
applicable local zoning codes. Current zoning classifications, at the time of project application, will be 

I 
identified during project-specific environmental review. 

t 

f. What is the current comprehensive plan designation of the site? 

i Projects included in the Capital Facilities PIan are located within various comprehensive plan designations. 
Then-current comprehensive plan designations will be identified at the time of project-specific 
environmental review. 

1 
r 
i g. If applicable, what is the current shoreline master program designation of the site? 

I Shoreline master program designations of the proposed project sites identified in the Capital Facilities Plan 
will be identified during project-specific environmental review. 

I 
h. Has any part of the site been classified as an Kenvironmentally sensitive" area? If so, specify. 

Any environmentally sensitive areas located on District project sites will be identified during the project- 
specific environmental review. 

I 
i .  Approximately how many people would reside o r  work in the completed project? 

i 

The Lake Stevens School District currently serves 7,637 students (October 1,2005 headcount) in five 
I elementary schools, two middle schools and one comprehensive high school. The District currently 

employs a staff of 850. This includes 440 certificated and 288 classified full-time equivalent staff 
members. 

1 

j. Approximately how many people would the completed project displace? 

Any displacement of people caused by projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified 
during project-specific environmental review. 

k. Proposed measures to avoid o r  reducedisplacement impacts, if any: 

Projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will be subject to project-specific environmental review and 
local approval, when appropriate. Proposed mitigating measures will be identified at that time. 

1. Proposed measures to ensure the proposal is compatible with existing and projected land uses and plans, 
if any: 

The compatibility of the specific projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan with existing uses and 
plans will be assessed as part of the comprehensive planning process and during project-specific 
environmental review, when appropriate. 

9. HOUSING 

a. Approximately how many units would be provided, if any? 

b. Approximately how many units, if any, would be eliminated? Indicate whether high, middle, or low- 
income housing. 

Lake Stevens School District G-12 Capital Facilities PIan 

New Business 14 -153

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 559 of 575



The impacts of projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan on existing housing units will be identified 
at the time of project-specific environmental analysis. 

C. Proposed measures to reduce or control housing impacts, if any: 

Measures to reduce or control any housing impacts caused by the projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan will be addressed during project-specific environmental review. 

10. AESTHETICS 

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), n* including antennas; what is the principal 
exterior building material@) proposed? 

The design elements of the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be addressed during 
project-specific environmental review. 

b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered o r  obstructed? 

The aesthetic impacts of the projects identified inthe Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during 
project-specific environmental review. 

C. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any: 

Appropriate measures to reduce or control the aesthetic impacts of the projects identified in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be identified on a project-specific basis. Jurisdictional design requirements will be 
satisfied during project review. 

1 1. LIGHT AND GLARE 

a. What type of light or glare will the proposal produce? What time of day would it mainly occur? 

Light or glare impacts of projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project- 
specific environmental review. 

b .  Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or interfere with views? 

Light or glare impacts of projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project- 
specific environmental review, when appropriate. 

C. What existing off-site sources of light or glare may affect your proposal? 

Off-site sources (such as land use generators and traffic) of light or glare that may affect projects identified 
in the Capital Facilities Plan will be identified during project-specific environmental review, when 
appropriate. 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if any: 

Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts will be identified during project-specific 
environmental review. 

12. RECREATION 

a. What designated and informal recreational opportunities are in the immediate vicinity? 

Lake Stevens School District (3-13 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -154

Page 560 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



1 There are numerous formal and informal recreational facilities within the Lake Stevens School District 
boundaries. These include facilities both on and in the vicinity of District facilities. Recreational I opportunities exist after school hours at the various schools in the District. 

f b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses? If so, describe. 

I 
The recreational impacts of the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be addressed during 
project-specific environmental review. The projects proposed in the CFP, once completed, may enhance 

i recreational opportunities and uses that exist on school sites. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, incIuding opportunities to be provided by 

i the project or applicant, if any: 

Recreational impacts of the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be subject to mitigation 
during project-specific environmental review. School sites provide opportunities for public use throughout 

! the District's boundaries. 
i 

13. HISTORIC AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION 

' 
a. Are there any places or objects listed on, o r  proposed for, national, state, or local preservation registers 

I .  known to be on or next to the site? If so, generally describe. 

Existence of historic and cuitural resources on or next to the proposed sites identified in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will be identified in more detail during project-specific environmental review. 

b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, archaeological, scientific, or cultural 
I 
! importance known to be on or next to the site? 

An imentory of hisbrical ikes a t  or ear t k  sibs of tk prqjcts inluded in he Qpital 
Facilities Plan has been or will be developed during project-specific environmental 
review. 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if any: 
. . 

If any landmarks or evidence of historic, archaeological, scientific, or cultural importance is discovered 
during project-specific review, the State Historic Preservation Officer will be contacted. 

14. TRANSPORTATION , , 

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access to the existing street 
system. Show on site plans, if any. 

The impact on public streets and highways of individual projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan 
will be identified during project-specific environmental review. 

b. Is site currently served by public transit? If not, what is the approximate distance to the nearest transit 
stop? 

The relationship between specific projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan and public transit will be 
identified during project-specific environmental revieiv. The District does provide school bus service to its 
facilities, and the need for service will be evaluated during project-specific environmental review. 

Lake Stevens Schoof District G-14 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -155

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 561 of 575



c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have? How many would the project eliminate? 

An inventory of parking spaces located at the sites of the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan, 
and the impacts of specific projects on parking availability, will be conducted during project-specific 
environmental review. T 

d. Will the proposal require any new roads o r  streets, or improvements to existing roads o r  streets, not 
. including driveways? If so, generally describe (indicate whether public or  private). 

The need for new streets, roads or improvements to existing streets and roads will be addressed during 
project-specific environmental review. 

e: Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail, o r  air transportation? If so, 
generally describe. 

. . Use of water, rai! or air transportation will be addressed during project-specific environmental review, 
when appropriate. 

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the completed project?' If known, indicate 
when peak volumes would occur. 

The traffic impacts of the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be addressed during project- 
specific environmental review. 

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any: 

Mitigation of traffic impacts associated with the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be 
addressed during project-specific environmental review. Identified mitigation will be consistent with the 
permitting jurisdiction requirements for transportation and concurrency. 

1 5 .  PUBLIC SERVICES 

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example: fire protection, police 
protection, health care, schools, other)? If so, generally describe: 

The District does not anticipate that the projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will substantially 
increase the need for public services. Actual needs will be evaluated at project-specific environmental 
review. 

b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public services, if any. 

New school facilities will be built with automatic security systems, fire alarms, smoke alarms, heat sensors 
and sprinkler systems. Other measures to reduce or control impacts to public services will be identified at 
the project-specific level of environmental review. 

16. UTILITIES 

a. Underline utilities currently available at the site: electricity, natural gas, water, refuse service, telephone, 
sanitary sewer, septic system, other 

The types of utilities available at specific project sites identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will be 
addressed during project-specific environmental review. 

Lake Stevens School District G-15 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -156

Page 562 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the service, and the general 
construction activities on the site or in the immediate vicinity that might be needed. 

Utility revisions and construction will be identified during project-specific environmental review, when 
appropriate. 

C. SIGNATURE 

The above answers are  true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the lead agency 
is relying on them to m w t s  decision. , 

Signature: 
Lake Stevens School District No. 4 

Date submitted: May 1.2006 

Lake Stevens School District G-16 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -157

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 563 of 575



D. SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NON-PROJECT ACTIONS 
(Do not use this sheet for project actions.) 

Because these questions are very general, it may be helpful to read them in conjunction with the list of the 
elements of the environment. 

m e n  answering these questions, be aware of the extent the proposal, or the types of activities likely to result 
fiom the proposal, would affect the item at a greater intensity or at a faster rate than if the proposal were not 
implemented. Respond briefly and in general terms. 

1. How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water, emissions to air, production, 
storage, o r  release of toxic o r  hazardous substances; o r  pfoduction of noise? 

L r . - .  ' 7 , . - 
The adoption of the Capital Facilities Plan, 2006-201 1, will notre'hu~t in an'inctease in discharges to water; 
emissions to air; production, storage, or release of toxic or hazardous substances; or production of noise. 
The construction of a new school or the alteration of existing school sites proposed in the plan could 
increase impervious surfaces, resulting in an increase in storm water runoff. Activities and traffic resulting 
from school constnrction and school operations could produce air emissions and noise. 

Proposed measuresto avoid or  reduce such increases are: 

The implementation of storm water runoff controls and the use of site buffering to minimize noiseimpacts 
could be utilized as appropriate. Site-specific measures will be proposed at time of construction as project 
impacts are identified. 1 

2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish or  marine life? 

As specific projects identified in the plan are constructed, additional impervious surfaces are likely to 
result. These are not anticipated to have any significant adverse effect on plants, animals, fish or marine 
life. 

Proposed measures to project or  conserve plants, animals, fish or  marine life are: 

Specific measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish or marinelife will be proposed at the time of 
construction as specific project impacts are identified.. 

3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy o r  natural resources? 

The construction and operation of specific projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan will require the 
use of energy and natural resources. 

Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are: 

At time of construction, individual buildings will be designed to meet applicable energy standards. 

4. How would the proposal be likely to use or  affect environmentally sensitive areas o r  areas designated 
(or eligible or  under study) for governmental protection; such as parks, wilderness, wild and scenic 
rivers, threatened or endangered species habitat, historic o r  cultural sites, wetlands, flood plains o r  
prime farmlands? 

Some undeveloped sites currently owned by the district contain wetlands that could be impacted by 
development. 

Proposed measures to protect such resources or  to avoid or reduceimpacts are: 

Lake Stevens School District G-17 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -158

Page 564 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



As specific projects are undertaken, environmentally sensitive areas will be protected through the SEPA 
review process. The district will avoid, protect, or attempt to mitigate damage to environmentally sensitive 
areas. 

5. How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, including whether it would allow 
o r  encourage land or  shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans? 

Specific projects identified in the Capital Facilities Plan are intended to be compatible with comprehensive 
plans, current zoning classifications, and land use designations of district-owned properties. Future 
development of Lake Stevens School District properties is not anticipated to affect shoreline use. 

Proposed measures to avoid or  reduce shoreline and land use impacts are: 

It is not anticipated that future development of Lake Stevens School District properties will affect shoreline 
use. 

6. How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on transportation o r  public services and 
utilities? 

The construction of future school facilities identified in the plan would likely create additional demands on 
transportation, public services, and utilities. 

Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand@) are: 

Specific measures to address increased demands will be identified as specific projects are proposed for 
construction. 

7. Identify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, state, o r  federal laws o r  
requirements for the protection of the environment. 

Neither the Capital Facilities Plan nor any hture construction projects identified in the plan will conflict 
with local, state, or federal laws or requirements for the protection of the environment. 

Prior to initiating any future school construction projects, the district will provide a sitdproject DNS for the 
specific construction activity. 

. .. 

Lake Stevens SchooL District (3-18 Capital Facilities Plan 

New Business 14 -159

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 565 of 575



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue + Marysville, WA 98270 

(360) 363-81 00 (360) 651 -5099 FAX 

IMPACT FEES 

In accordance with Title 18 MMC, the following impact fees are to be paid, per unit, for all new 
construction: 

PARKS (Title 18A MMC) 

Single- family 

Multi- family 

TRAFFIC (Title 18B MMC) 

Single-family (per unit) 

Duplex (per unit) 

Multi-fady (per unit) 

Commercial (per DM PHT) 

Effective 1/1/06 

$2,500.00 $3,175.00 

$l,825.00 $2,317.75 

$1,550.00 $1,968.50 

$1,300.00 N/A 

SCHOOLS (Title 18C MMC) 

Marysville School District (Ordinance No. 2605, effective 12/5/05) 

Single-fady $7,955.00 

Mu1 ti-family (studio or one bedroom unit) exempt 

Multi-family (two or more bedroom unit) $5,777.00 

Lake Stevens School District 

Single-family $5,572.00 

Multi-family ( s tu lo  or one bedroom unit) exempt 

Multi-family (two or more bedroom unit) $2,135.00 

Lakewood School District 
Single-family $783.00 

Multi-family (studio or one bedroom unit) exempt 

Multi-family (two or more bedroom unit) $1,810.00 

NOTE: 
A dqlex is considered two (2) units. Thergore, the mitigationfee(s) listed above shall be multiplied by two (2). 

A multi-famib unit is considered a building containing three (3) or more dwelling units, or tlnits when above a 
groundJoor commercial me. The t e r n  inch&s tnipbxes,jur-p.hxes, apartments, condominiums and the Like. It 
does not include boarding houses, moteh or hoteh. 

New Business 14 -160

Page 566 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE c I m  OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON PROVIDING 
FOR THE AMENDMENT OF THE CITY'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY THE 
ADOPTION OF THE MARYSVILLE, LAKEWOOD AND LAKE STEVENS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 2006-2011 CAPITAL FACILITIES PLANS AS A SUBELEMENT 
OF THE CITY'S COMPREHENSrVE PLAN AND ESTABLISHING THE 
ADOPTION OF SAID PLAN AND THE COLLECTION AND IMPOSITION OF 
SCHOOL IMPACT FEES AS A COMPONENT OF THE CITY'S ANNUAL 
BUDGETING PROCESS; AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2676 RELATING 
TO ADOPTION OF THE c I m  BUDGET OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE. 

WHEREAS, the State of Washmgton enacted the Growth Management Act ("GMA") in 1990 
amending Chapter 82.02 RCW to authorize the collection of school impact fees on new 
development under specified conditions, including the adoption by the City of a GMA 
Comprehensive Plan as defined in RCW 36.70A; and 

WHEREAS, the Marysvllle City Council adopted a GMA Comprehensive Plan on April 1, 
1996 that included a policy commitment to consider the adoption of a GMA-based school impact 
fee program (Policy 1 0.S.6); and 

WHEREAS, in April 2005 the Marysville City Council approved Ordinance No. 2569, 
adopting an update to the Comprehensive Plan that adopted the Lakewood and Lake Stevens 2004- 
2009 Capital Facilities Plans as a Subelement to the City Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, on November 28,2005 the Marysville City Council approved Ordinance No. 
2605, adopting an update to the Comprehensive Plan that adopted the Marysville 2005-2010 Capital 
Facdities Plan as a Subelement to the City Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the respective capital facility plans developed by the 
Marysville, Lakewood, and Lake Stevens School Dismcts and adopted by their Board of Directors in 
accordance with the requirements of RCW 36.70A and RCW 82.02.050, et seq. and has determined 
that the plans meet the requirements of said statutes and the Marysville Municipal Code Title 18C; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Marysville has adopted MMC Chapter 18C relating to School Impact 
Fees and Mitigation which is designed to meet the conditions for impact fee programs in RCW 
82.02.050, et seq; and 

WHEREAS, the Marysville Planning Commission held a public hearings on the 2006-201 1 
Capital Facdities Plans of each School Dismct on January 9,2007; and 

WHEREAS, the MarysviUe, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School District have prepared an 
environmental checkhst and issued a determination of nonsignificance relating to their respective 
capital facilities plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Marysde, Lakewood and Lake Stevens School Dismct Board of Directors 
have each adopted their respective Capital Facdities Plan; and 

ORDINANCE 
School CI:P's 2OOG2011 

Ordinance 16 - 1

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 567 of 575



WHEREAS, the Marysville City Cound has considered the recommendation of staff and the 
Planning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the School District's plan in the context of the 
adopted comprehensive plan, and the 2007 annual budget. Adoption of the District's Capital 
Facrlities Plan and this ordinance are hereby incorporated as an amendment to the 2007 City budget 
as set forth in Ordinance No. 2676. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON D O  ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Adoption. The Marysde School District Capital Fachties Plan 2006-2011, the 
Lakewood School District Capital Facihties Plan 2006-201 1, and the Lake Stevens School Dismct 
Capital Facilities Plan 2006-201 1, are hereby incorporated by thls reference and are hereby adopted 
as a subelement to the capital facilities element of the City of Marysville Comprehensive Plan. The 
Plans hereby adopted replace the school district capital facihty plans previously adopted by the 
Marysville City Council in Ordinances 2605 and 2469. 

Section 2: Schedule of fees. The Department of Community Development is hereby directed 
to develop a schedule of school impact fees based upon the school district's Capital Facilities Plans 
hereby adopted and as adjusted by the provisions of Chapter 18C.10 of the MarysviUe Municipal 
Code. 

Section 3: Budget Amendment. Ordinance No. 2676 relating to the 2007 budget is hereby 
amended by addmg a new section which shall read as follows: 

It is anticipated that during calendar years 2007 through 2009 the Marysde City Council d adopt 
certain capital facilities plans as a subelement of the City's Comprehensive Plan. The City Council 
finds that the adoption of said plans do have an effect on the City budget and in the case of School 
Districts, the budget of such districts for which the City is authorized to impose and collect fees 
intended to mitigate the impacts of new development. The City Council fuaher h d s  that the 
administration and implementation of capital facilities plans does require City manpower and 
resources and as such, the adoption of said plans should be considered as part of the annual budget 
process for said years. 

Section 4: Effective date. This Ordmance shall be effective five days following adoption and 
publication. 

Section 5: Savings Clause. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this 
Ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any 
other section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this Ordinance. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this day of 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

By: 
DENNIS L KENDALL, MAYOR 

ORDINANCE 
School C W s  2CMM2Jll 

Ordinance 16 - 2

Page 568 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



By: 
CITY CLERK 

Approved as to form: 

By: 
GRANT K. WEED. CITY ATTORNEY 

Date of Publication: 

Effective Date: 
(5 days after publication) 

ORDINANCE 
School CN"s 2WK-2011 

Ordinance 16 - 3

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 569 of 575



Park Advisory Board Members Present: 
Mike Elmore, Chairman 
Brooke Hougan 
Andy Delegans 
John Myers 
Dorothy Stanton 

Park Advisory Board Meeting 
January 17,2007 - 7 PM 
Marysville Public Library 

Parks and Recreation Staff Present: 
Jim Ballew, Director of Parks and Recreation 
Mike Robinson, Park Maintenance Manager 

Carmen Rasmussen, City Council Representative 

Call To OrderIPledge of Allegiance: 
Chairman Mike Elmore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Minutes of Previous Meeting: 
MOTION by John Myers; seconded by Andy Delegans to approve the November 2006 Minutes as written. 
Minutes approved. 

Parks and Recreation Director Jim Ballew requested to move the #2 Item under New Business to the front of the 
Agenda, as our presentation is from Langley British Columbia and will be driving back this evening 

Mike Robinson introduced John Jensen, President and CEO of Wishbone Industries and Site Furnishings and 
thanked him for driving the wintry roads to introduce their product to our Park Advisory Board. Mike 
summarized that John visited Jennings Park a few years ago to  introduce their outdoor furnishings and he had the 
opportunity to talk with John again at the NRPA Congress Expo. Mike was impressed with their product and 
asked him to demonstrate the product for our Board. 

John Jensen offered background on Wishbone Industries as being in the site furnishings business for about seven 
years. Their goal was to produce site furnishings with recycled plastics content. They developed their product 
that incorporates recycled plastics in as much of the structure as they possibly could. Tonight's presentation is a 
small sample of the items they produce. 

John explained that recycled plastics for their outdoor furnishings are produced from 100% post consumer and 
industrial products, with 80% coming from recycled pop bottles andlor milk jugs. The balance comes from other 
waste plastics blended. After years of extensive experimenting they developed the combination of a variety of 
plastics which gave them the consistency that works. 

Another product Wishbone Industries produces is bollards which come in a variety of sizes. The bollards are also 
made from recycled plastics; however this product is produced from recycled automobiles with the glass and 
metal taken out. 

Their third product is plastic sheeting which many municipatalities utilize for sign baclung, or anywhere plywood 
is used in the environment. This product is made from the factory cuttings of diapers with the absorbency 
removed. 

Park Advisory Board 
January 17,2007 

Information Items 15 -1

Page 570 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



He explained that even though recycled plastic looks like lumber and has some of the dimensions of lumber; it is 
not lumber. It has its own characteristics, which expand and contract. Wishbone allows for expansion and 
contraction when they build all their site furnishings by incorporating gaps in their design which allows the 
material to move as it expands and contracts. In addition recycled plastics are not structural and therefore a 
complete metal frame supports the plastic lumber. 

The initial cost of a recycled plastic bench is higher due to the metal supports, however in the long term they are 
stronger and the plastic lumber is cheaper to replace than traditional wood benches. In addition, because the 
boards are not wood they do not cup. Traditional wood boards require more fasteners to stop the material from 
cupping. With their material it just needs to be held in place with one fastener in the center, which allows ease of 
flipping the boards in case of vandalism. 

Jim Ballew asked John to talk about his recommendations on vandalism andfor graffiti. 

John explained that over time they have found and recommend a black metal frame, as it is easy to cover with a 
coat of paint in cases of vandalisdcarving. Their bench frame is made of aluminum as opposed to steel so in 
cases of vandalism the frame does not rust. As for graffiti, the plastic lumber is not porous and the graffiti does 
not seep into the material, making removal easier. Wishbone Industries is also worlang on a graffiti removal 
product which is designed specifically for their plastics. At this time most graffiti removers will work, but when 
the graffiti is removed it can take some of the pigment out of the plastic. The remover they are developing will 
seep in between the graffiti and plastic material to separate them. This non-toxic graffiti remover product should 
be available in about a month. 

Jim asked about sanding carving off this product. 

John noted that the reason vandals engrave is to see something, and because the material iscolor fast or color 
through the material, all they see is the same color down below it. You can fill-in the carving and using an iron or 
heat gun, melt plastic back on the spot. 

Mike Robinson asked John to talk about Wishbones' Legacy Program. 

John noted that they offer a Legacy Program along with the purchase of their bench. Wishbone will order and 
professionally flush mount install the plaque with the specified inscription. When the bench arrives in Marysville 
it will be ready to install. He suggested Marysville set guide lines for the plaque verbiage, as to the plaque size, 
number of lines for verbiage and how many characters and spaces per line. Wishbone recommends the bronze 
plaque with raised bronze lettering and a black accent background. They also recommend the bronze over 
etchings, as the bronze has a quality look and is easier to maintain, while etchings tend to fade over time in the 
sun. 

Board Member Jolm Myers asked about product warranty. 

John Jansen said the plastic lumber comes with a ten year warranty, and if there is an issue with a bench they will 
stand behind them. He added that they have never had a claim, as issues with the benches are not an issue of 
workrnanship; it is generally something similar to being driven over with a car. 

John Myers asked how this product compares to similar products such as Trex. 

John Jansen pointed out that Trex is made of 60% wood and 40% plastic and developed mainly as a decking 
product to handle some of the maintenance issues of wood. Also, the more wood in a product the more bacteria it 
will support. The Wishbone products are made of plastic and plastic does not support bacteria. You merely wash 
and hose the bacteria off their products. 

Other Wishbone products John had on display included a molded stackable garbage can, a wrap for 45 gal drums 
(their #1 seller) and a bicycle stand. 

4 2 Park Adv~sory Board January 17,2007 

L 

Information Items 15 -2

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 571 of 575



Jim Ballew stated that he and Mike Robinson both like this product and wish to develop a standard for Memorial 
Benches that the City can use for many years; a quality memorial bench that will also be a focal point in the City. 
Jim reviewed that the narrower bench on display could be utilized on the back of a sidewalk while the larger 
bench would work well installed on a concrete slab in a park. Jim invited the Board to examine and sit on the 
benches, along with the other products on display. 

Discussion 

Jim stated that no decisions will be made at tonight's meeting. He wanted the Board to see the benches and 
hopefully have pricing and further information by the next Board Meeting. 

CURRENT BUSINESS: 
1. Merrysville for the Holidays Review 

Jim Ballew reviewed that he has heard only positive comments about the 2006 event. He had lunch with two 
Home Street Bank Officers and they are interested in being sponsors for the 2007 festival and have an entry in 
the Electric Light Parade. 

Council Representative Carmen Rasmussen asked if staging the parade at City Hall worked better logistically. 

Jim told her i t  worked great. He added that the conclusion of the parade at the State Farm building also 
worked very well. He hopes the next occupants of the State Farm building will continue to allow us to end 
the parade there in the future. 

2. Whiskey Ridge Comments 
Jim Ballew reviewed that the City is loolung at a potential population increase of approximately 9,000 people 
with the Whiskey Ridge and Sunnyside Annexations. 

Jim distributed copies of his Annexation Impact Comments which he has forwarded to Community 
Development requesting our Planning Department focus on a Jennings Park style of environment, as there is 
one area which is lake like. 

The proposed trails are great. The extensions of 40th Street, the connectivity of Deering Wildflower Acres, 
the Whiskey Ridgemaby Ridge Trail, can all be sensational if accomplished. 

Carmen asked if there is a proposal to make Deering Wildflower Acres more accessible. 

Jim acknowledged that Deering is not well known as it is a very restricted environment. It is only open 
during specific hours and days. The intent of the Trusties who gave the property to the City was for the City 
to maintain it with the purpose as a sanctuary. The City can do a lot along those lines, but when using public 
funds to maintain it, we need to make it more available to the public. Another aspect that needs consideration 
is the limited parlung. The City has retained a Land Use Consultant to help tie up all the acquisitions and 
easements that are needed to put a trail in. Jim has asked them to also look at two parcels in the Deering 
Wildflower neighborhood which we could acquire for a parlung lot across the street and still have 
conductivity with Deering and what is proposed through the annexation. 

Jim asked the Board to review the information and forward him any comments they would like submitted to 
the Planning Commission as soon as possible. 

Park Advisory Board 
January 17,2007 

Information Items 15 -3

Page 572 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Draft Off-Leash Park  Design 

Jim reviewed that Kiwanis Park is located on 40th Avenue and East of Sunnyside Nursery. It is a 5-acre 
linear tract that has an asphalt path, with the balance of the property being native vegetation and some hydro 
seed. 

Jim talked with Marysville Kiwanis and they are very interested in the use of the Park as an Off-Leash Dog 
Park. Jim also spoke with Marysville School District Officials, the maintenance and the facility design teams 
and they recommend the gate that separates the park from the Sunnyside Elementary Field have a sign stating 
dogs are not allowed on School District property unless they are on a leash, and hours' for public access are 
after school hours only. 

Brooke asked if there is the possibility of a dog running into the school play ground during the school day. 

Jim said that would not be a possibility as the gate would be a spring loaded gate and possibly a double gate. 

Jim distributed and reviewed a draft drawing he prepared of the potential off leash park and pointed out: a 15' 
utility easement between the park and the rear lots of new homes, a parking area, a two stage entry system, 
site for sani-can, information kiosk, drinlang fountain, black 4' high vinyl fencing, area of cattle style 2x4 
fencing, rock formations and culverts for play, and tables and benches for dog owners to rest and socialize. 
In the middle of the park we could have another pen that ties into another fence line that would intersect the 
property, allowing us to rest an area or designate large and small dog areas. The West side, which is sloped, 
could be a run area site. 

Jim has learned that in the Pacific Northwest we should not expect success in trying to raise grass in this type 
of environment. He is therefore loolung at soft gravels, bark, hog fuel, play chips and existing vegetation on 
site. 

Next week Jim Ballew, Carmen Rasmussen, Mike Robinson and Maryke Burgess are going to tour a few 
fairly successful Dog Parks of comparable type, size and use. They will take photos for the Board to see what 
is being offered. 

The next step would be to put numbers on the project, decide if the site is functionally appropriate to be 
dedicated as an off-leash dog park and decide if the Board wants to go forward with a recommendation to the 
Mayor and City Council for use of Kiwanis Park as an Off-Leash Dog Park. Jim would recommend holding 
Public Hearings to talk to the neighborhood to inform them of our intentions and the School District for their 
official response. In addition, being a specialized park, it may require a Special Use Permit. 

Graffiti Committee Information 
Jim referred to copies he distributed of the Graffiti Draft Ordinance, which is the result of several months of 
work by a task force and City Council. The Ordinance is scheduled to be heard at the first City Council 
Meeting in February. If Council passes the Ordinance, it will have an impact on everyone, giving them the 
responsibility of removing graffiti. Jim is also recommending a Prevention component: A sub-committee 
evolving out of the original group feels we can't just paint over it and hope it will go away. They believe we 
need to deal with efforts to curb the activity and identify alternatives, such as reward systems and public 
education as to what graffiti costs the City. 

Jim advised those who would like to be a part of the sub-committee that the next meeting is at 9:30 am on 
January 25Ih in the Marysville Public Safety Building Fire Training Room and they will meet monthly after 
that. They will take a leadership role in dealing with our youth to inform them of the impacts of graffiti. 

Carmen asked if this is the Prevention Sub-committee, which is a sub group of the Graffiti Task Force and if 
there are any Council Members in the group. 

Park Advisory Board 
January 17,2007 

Information Items 15 -4

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 573 of 575



Jim confirmed that it is a sub-group of the Graffiti Task Force and Jeff Vaughan may be interested. 

Carmen said she would like to participate if Jeff can't, as it ties in with the Youth Council she is also 
interested in. 

3. Sand Blasters, Inc. Request 
Jim distributed a flyer and request he recently received from a group who would like to stage a "Hot Rod 
Show" at Ebey Waterfront Park on Sunday, April 29,2007. They are proposing to stage cars and receive 
donations that will go to the Gayle Jubie Memorial Fund and Food Bank. 

Jim believes this could be a great opportunity, however the Waterfront Park is a unique facility and he has 
concerns about opening the door for these types of events that require closures year round. The show could 
be staged in an area of the parking lot that would allow us to keep the park open and accessible to the general 
public, and avoid issues with boaters. In addition, opening day of fishing season will have passed and the car 
show is proposed for a Sunday. The group would like to start their antique hot rod for about 30 seconds and 
quickly shut it down as it is very loud. They would be required to complete the necessary applications, pay 
the typical rental fees and provide the appropriate insurance information. 

Dorothy Stanton asked if the event would interfere with the boat ramps or boaters parhng. 

Jim responded that the group estimates they will have approximately 30 vehicles and 100 guests in 
attendance. 

Jim asked the Board if they feel this is an appropriate use of the facility. 

Carmen asked if most of the visitors are coming from out of town or from Marysville. 

Jim feels they will be from out of town as well as Marysville, which is a benefit to the City. 

Jim had proposed Comeford Park for the event, but the group liked the exposure they would receive from 1-5, 
which would be more donations. 

/" 
Andy asked if there will be sufficient parlung for the exhibitors, visitors to the event and boaters. 

Jim said parking is available, but limited. He will require additional signage that will prompt them to park on 
First Street or the mall, if parking is full. But he doesn't believe the event will have that type of activity. 

Jim asked the Board to either approve or disapprove the use of Ebey Waterfront Park for this Special Event. 

MOTION by John Myers; seconded by Andy Delegans to approve the request. 
MOTION passed unanimously. 

4. Gateways Master Plan 
Jim Ballew distributed copies of the Gateway Master Plan to the Park Board. 

Mike Elmore also circulated the color version for the Board to view. After being on a number of committees, 
Mike is very impressed with this Consultants final product. 

Jim stated that City Council will receive a presentation of the document at the Council Meeting on Monday. 
Jim and Mike were both members of the Gateway Committee and saw some great ideas come to h i t ion .  

Park Advisory Board 
January 17,2007 

Information Items 15 -5

Page 574 of 575 Marysville City Council Meeting February 26, 2006



In review, Jim noted that the document itself recognizes that we have an opportunity to create a theme of 
signage and directional input within our community. There is no money proposed for the project, but there 
are some figures attached for putting it together. Park Board will be very involved in the project in terms of 
installation, construction and landscape. The Consultants were asked to give us a theme and prioritized 
landscape schedule, which will be a part of our Streetscape Plan. Board Members interested in seeing the 
presentation at Monday nights Council Meeting are invited to attend. 

Jim would like to hear the Boards comments on the Gateway Master Plan. 

STAFF REPORTS: 
Jim Ballew 

Jim and Athletic Coordinator Dave Hall recently met with Marysville Youth Soccer Club, who has been our 
partner for the Youth Spring Soccer Program. They are ashng us to contribute more for the use of their 
soccer facility and contribute more funds. They also learned that Marysville Youth Soccer Club is merging 
with the Lake Stevens Soccer Club and there is a chance that our Spring Soccer Program may be a victim to 
some degree. In addition, the State is requiring that every club employ their officials, which would mean our 
teens who referee as volunteers would have to be employees. The City traditionally does not hire anyone 
under the age of 16 and in addition doors would open for unemployment when their not refereeing. 
Both sessions of the Father Daughter Valentine Dance have sold out. 

Mike Robinson 
Parks Maintenance Staff has done a great job picking up and cleaning up parks after the storms. Fortunately 
they combined the many down branches from the storms with the Chnstrnas Tree Recycling. This has 
generated an enormous pile of mulch that the boy scouts will help spread on trails. 
The RE1 Grant Project will take place on February 24th in Jennings Park. We have over 100 volunteers to 
help plant native plants and trees where the noxious weeds were taken out. It should be a fun event. 

BOARD MEMBERS: 
John Myers 

Has there been any progress on the security camera for the skate park? 

Jim and Mike met with a vendor last week to get pricing on security cameras at the Library, Jennings Park and the 
Skate Park. Jim is expecting a proposal any day. The vendor doesn't feel the numbers for the Skate Park will 
change much and installation could be completed very quickly. They also feel one quality camera mounted on the 
Parks Admin Building could cover the entire Jennings parking lot. They will also give us a quote on equipment 
that can take a photograph of everyone that enters and leaves the Jennings Parking Lot. You would get a license 
plate number and a face. 

John Myers asked how long the images would remain. 

Jim told him it will be a DVR drive or hard drive and we can spec out how long we want to store images. It is 
constantly recording and triggered with activity. Even with the low light at the skate park, it would be enough 
light to give us a color rendering at dark. 

Jim pointed out and thanked Carmen Rasmussen who requested at City Council that the Library and Jennings 
Park be considered for security cameras as well. 

Jim estimated the cost for security cameras at Jennings and the Skate Park will be in the range of $5,000 to 
$6,000. 

MOTION by John Myers, seconded by Dorothy Stanton to adjourn tonight's meeting at 8:32 PM. 

Park Advisory Board 
January 17,2007 

Information Items 15 -6

February 26, 2006 Marysville City Council Meeting Page 575 of 575


	ccagenda022607.pdf
	Presentations B 02262007.pdf
	Council Meeting 02122007 2.pdf
	CC Recap 0212071 02262007.doc
	CC 0212071 02262007.doc

	WorkSession 02202007 02262007.pdf
	Consent 3 02262007.pdf
	Consent 4 02262007.pdf
	Consent 5 02262007.pdf
	Consent 6 02262007.pdf
	Consent 7.pdf
	Consent 8.pdf
	Consent 9.pdf
	Consent 10.pdf
	New Business 12.pdf
	New Business 13.pdf
	Current Business 11.pdf
	New Business 14.pdf
	Ordinance 16 02262007.pdf
	Information Items.pdf

